
 

 
 

 

Members are summoned to attend this meeting 
Barry Quirk 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Thursday, 26 June 2014 

 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

 

Date: WEDNESDAY, 25 JUNE 2014 at 6.00 pm, or 
upon the rising of Mayor & Cabinet Contracts, 
whichever is the later. 
 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2 

Civic Suite 

Lewisham Town Hall 

London SE6 4RU 

 
Enquiries to: Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327 
Telephone: 0208 314 9327 (direct line) 
Email: kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Sir Steve Bullock Mayor (L) 
Councillor Alan Smith Deputy Mayor - Growth & Regeneration (L) 
Councillor Chris Best Health, Well-Being & Older People (L) 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia Resources (L) 
Councillor Janet Daby Community Safety (L) 
Councillor Joe Dromey Policy and Performance (L) 
Councillor Damien Egan Housing (L) 
Councillor Paul Maslin Children & Young People (L) 
Councillor Joan Millbank Third Sector and Community (L) 
Councillor Rachel Onikosi Public Realm (L) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

 

The public are welcome to attend our Committee meetings, however, occasionally, committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 
 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1. Declaration of interests 
 

1 - 4 

2. Minutes 
 

5 - 14 

3. Outstanding Scrutiny Matters 
 

15 

4. Financial Outturn 2013-14 
 

16 - 28 

5. Sir Francis Drake Primary School 
 

29 - 98 

6. Small Scale Traffic Schemes 2014-5 
 

99 - 121 

7. Adoption Statement of Purpose update 
 

122 - 158 

8. Trinity Primary School 
 

159 - 167 

9. Somerville and Kenton Court Extra Care Scheme 
 

168 - 189 

10. Response to Healthier Communities Select Committee on Public Health 
Expenditure 
 

190 - 192 

11. Management Report 
 

193 - 266 

12. Appointment of LA Governors 
 

267 - 275 

13. Instrument of Government Brindishe Federation 
 

276 - 284 

14. Instrument of Government St Mary's School 
 

285 - 293 

15. Surrey Canal Sports Foundation 
 

294 - 320 

16. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

321 

17. Application for funding from Department of Energy and Climate Change 
 

322 - 346 

   



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\8\ai00008828\$sagguwug.doc 

 

 

MAYOR & CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Declarations of Interests 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No. 1 
 

Ward 
 

n/a 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: June 25 2014 

 
 
 
 
 Declaration of interests 
 
 Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on 
 the agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct :-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 
 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 

gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\8\ai00008828\$sagguwug.doc 

 

 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register 
the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which 

you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence 
of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be 
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close 
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area 
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests  (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school 
at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
 

Page 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\8\ai00008828\$sagguwug.doc 

 

(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 
 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity  and in any 
event before the matter is considered.  The declaration will be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary 
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter 
and withdraw from the room before it is considered.  They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the 
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an 
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a 
fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, 
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless 
paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest.  If so, the member must 
withdraw  and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would 
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to 
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a 
registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests.  These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk 
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such 
interest need not be registered.  Members with such an interest are referred to 
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

Page 3



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\2\8\ai00008828\$sagguwug.doc 

 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing 
so.  These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the 

matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears 
exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 4



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\2\8\ai00008829\$yqwehsl3.doc 

 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Minutes 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No.2 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: June 25 2014 

 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended that the minutes of that part of the meeting of the Mayor and Cabinet  
which were open to the press and public, held on April 2014 (copy attached). 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAYOR AND CABINET 
Wednesday, 9 April 2014 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT:  Sir Steve Bullock (Mayor), Chris Best, Janet Daby, Damien Egan, 
Helen Klier, Paul Maslin, Joan Millbank, Alan Smith and Susan Wise. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Stella Jeffrey and 8 members of the public. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Crada Onuegbu. 
 
 
73. Declaration of interests 

 
None were made. 
 

74. Minutes 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on March 19 2014 be  
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

75. Outstanding Scrutiny Matters 
 
The Mayor received confirmation that no items had slipped since the last  
report. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

76. Permanent Primary Places Holbeach, John Ball, Coopers Lane and Sir 
Francis Drake 
 
An overview of the proposals was given by Councillor Helen Klier, the Cabinet  
Member for Children & Young People. She highlighted the major challenges  
being presented by escalating birth rates and stated the authority’s intention  
to provide places in good popular schools and wherever possible to avoid  
young children having to be bussed to school. 
 
The Executive Director for Children and Young People’s representative  
reported that while no responses had been received in connection with the  
Coopers Lane and John Ball proposals, multiple representations had been  
received regarding Holbeach and Sir Francis Drake Primary Schools. He  
pointed out an addendum had been tabled at the meeting containing an up to  
date summary of all the representations that had been received. 
 
The Mayor then indicated he would examine each school proposal  
individually. 
 
Sir Francis Drake Primary School 
 
The Mayor received a representation from Fraser Jupp, the Chair of  
Governors and Christine Barnes, the Head Teacher. Mr Jupp highlighted two  
concerns from their written response, firstly a query on the need for places in  
the locality given other provision coming on stream and secondly the possible  

Public Document Pack

Page 6



 

 

 

2 

flexibility in the Education Funding Agreement to enhance the scheme by  
providing an amended design proposal which would allow better and more  
imaginative use of space. 
 
The Executive Director for Children and Young People’s representative  
Confirmed to the Mayor that there was little prospect of the Education Funding  
Agency financing any enhancements and that refinements could only  
realistically be made with an injection of local authority funding. The Mayor 
suggested that as it would take some years for the school to reach its 
optimum capacity, there might be scope to add features. Officers said they 
could attempt to negotiate future changes with the Education Funding  
Agency.  
 
Councillor Klier pointed out that the consultation had also raised concerns  
about traffic management issues and about the siting of toilets which needed  
to be addressed. 
 
Having listened carefully to the representations that had been made, the  
Mayor concluded he would approve the recommendation in relation to Sir  
Francis Drake School but that he expected the next stage report to have  
thoroughly explored all the concerns expressed by the school. 
 
Holbeach Primary School 
 
Councillor Klier assured the Mayor the proposals had been formulated only  
after very careful consideration but she acknowledged there was still a job of  
work to be undertaken to earn the trust of parents. 
 
The Executive Director for Children and Young People’s representative  
outlined the various steps which had been taken to address the concerns  
raised by the Friends of Holbeach prior to the start of the formal consultation.  
He pointed out that in terms of available space should the proposals be  
agreed, Holbeach would be at a comparable level with Gordonbrock,  
Stillness, Kelvin Grove and Torridon which were all regarded as successful  
schools. He further reported that while the Governors had issued an objection,  
they would co-operate fully in whatever outcome was decided upon. 
 
Eileen O’Mahoney spoke on behalf of the Friends of Holbeach and objected  
to the proposals saying they lacked a costs and benefits analysis and seemed  
to ignore the fact the school had already accommodated two bulge  
classes. She stated there was no guarantee the school’s success would  
continue, as she believed spatial constraints would be considerable especially  
if a mooted rooftop playground proved untenable. She also said nursery  
provision was in jeopardy, as she believed Barretts would not be able to  
secure permission from Network Rail for a railway bridge. 
 
The Mayor was advised by the Deputy Mayor that the proposed community  
space and Railway Bridge to be provided by developer Barrett at the former  
Greyhound stadium were part of a Section 106 Planning Agreement and  
therefore legally enforcible. The Executive Director for Children and Young  
People’s representative added that in terms of space there were a number of  
possible options for an imaginative reconfiguration and that additionally a roof  

Page 7



 

 

 

3 

top solution had worked well elsewhere with aesthetic screening and  
adherence to strict Planning conditions requirements on noise. 
 
The Mayor asked if the proposals represented value for money and was  
assured by officers that the costs were good value for money given that the  
school was a listed building that was being permanently expanded.  
 
The Mayor concluded that this was a difficult decision which had received  
genuine and heartfelt objections from dedicated groups and individuals  
attempting to act in the best interests of current and future pupils. He  
acknowledged agreeing the recommendations would come as a huge  
disappointment to some but he felt he must take account of the staggering  
overall scale of the problem of a lack of primary places and he believed  
expansion was in the best interests of local children generally. Although not  
conditional on proceeding with the expansion, he did ask to see a further  
report confirming nursery provision and play space arrangements; 
 
Coopers Lane Primary School 
 
Councillor Klier informed the Mayor this was a straightforward expansion to  
3FE which had the enthusiastic support of the Governors and Head Teacher  
and which had been facilitated by the Community Services Directorate which  
had negotiated a transfer of the Community Education Lewisham  
requirements to the London & Quadrant building on Baring Road. 
 
John Ball Primary School 
 
Councillor Klier again informed the Mayor this was a straightforward  
expansion to 3FE which was fully supported. 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Children & Young People, Councillor Helen Klier, the Chair and  
Head Teacher of Sir Francis Drake Primary School and a representative of  
the Friends of Holbeach Primary School, the Mayor, for the reasons set out in  
the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the responses received during the representation period on  
proposals to enlarge Coopers Lane, Holbeach and John Ball Primary Schools  
be noted; 
 
(ii) the proposal to enlarge Coopers Lane Primary School from 2 to 3 forms 
of entry with effect from September 2014 be approved; 
 
(iii) the proposal to enlarge Holbeach Primary School from 2 to 3 forms of  
entry with effect from September 2015 be approved and a further report be  
received confirming nursery provision and play space arrangements; 
 
(iv) the proposal to enlarge John Ball Primary School from 2 to 3 forms of  
entry with effect from September 2015 be approved; and 
 

Page 8



 

 

 

4 

(v) the publication of a statutory notice on a proposal to enlarge Sir Francis  
Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry with effect from September  
2016 be approved. 
 
 

77. Referral from Healthier Communities Select Committee: Public Health 
Expenditure 
 
The report was presented by the Vice-Chair of the Healthier Communities  
Select Committee, Councillor Stella Jeffrey, who accepted a suggestion that a  
joint report be prepared by the two pertinent Executive Directors. 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Vice Chair of  
the Healthier Communities Select Committee, the Mayor  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive Director for Community Services and the  
Executive Director for Children & Young People be asked to prepare a  
response. 
 
 

78. Admissions Policy 2015-16 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Children & Young People, the Mayor, for the reasons set out in the 
report:  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) Admissions arrangements - The nursery, primary, secondary and sixth form  
admission arrangements for Lewisham’s community schools as set out in  
appendices A to F be approved; 
 
(ii) The Admissions Schemes - The Pan London Admission Schemes for  
reception and secondary transfer and a local scheme for in year admissions  
as detailed in Appendix G be approved; 
 
(iii) Priority for children of staff - Priority be not given for children of school  
staff and that this issue be reviewed in a year’s time, with modelling carried  
out to determine its possible impact; 
 
(iv) Measuring home to school distance - Home to school distances be  
measured in future to a central nodal point for the property concerned; and 
 
(v) Admission of two year olds - the admission arrangements for nursery  
schools and nursery classes in primary schools participating in the Early  
Learning Offer be amended to enable them to admit two year olds. 
 
 

79. Annual Lettings Plan 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  

Page 9



 

 

 

5 

Member for Customer Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor, for the 
reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the lettings outcomes for 2012/13 and 2013/14 and the position on the 
housing register be noted; 
 
(ii) the proposed Lettings Plan for 2014/15 be approved. 
 
 

80. Fixed Penalty Notices 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Customer Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor, for the 
reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) Changes in the rates applicable for Fixed Penalty Notices imposed within  
the Borough for “environmental crimes”, as described in appendix A be  
approved; and 
 
(ii) the introduction of an early payment scheme in relation to 
FPN’s be approved. 
 
 

81. Appointment of Local Authority Governors 
 
Having considered information supplied in respect of the nominees proposed  
for appointment and advice from the Cabinet Member for Children & Young  
People, Councillor Helen Klier, the Mayor: 
 
RESOLVED that the following persons be appointed as a Local Authority 
governor; 
 

Claire Witkowski    Dalmain 
Ivor Mason     Dalmain 
Cllr. John Paschoud   Perrymount 
Lynda Miller     Marvels Lane 
John Harrington    Marvels Lane 
Deborah Bamidele    Sydenham  
William Evans    Sedgehill 
Joanne Honeybone              Torridon Infant  
Russell Ewens    Our Lady & St Philip Neri RC 

 
 

82. Response to Housing Select Committee Private Rented Sector and 
Discretionary Licenses 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Customer Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor  

Page 10



 

 

 

6 

 
RESOLVED that the response contained in the report be presented to the  
Housing Select Committee. 
 
 

83. Response to CYP Select Committee Early Intervention 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Children & Young People, Councillor Helen Klier, the Mayor  
 
RESOLVED that the response contained in the report be presented to the  
Children and Young People Select Committee. 
 
 

84. Campshill Road Extra Care Scheme 
 
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet  
Member for Customer Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor, for the 
reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the progress on the proposals for the Campshill Extra Care 
Scheme be noted; 
 
(ii) the comments made by secure tenants in response to the statutory 
consultation undertaken pursuant to Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 
in relation to the proposal for a new housing development for older people 
on the Campshill Site, and the results of that consultation as 
summarised be noted; and 
 
(iii) the responses from the additional, non-statutory consultation 
activities with leaseholders and tenants as summarised be noted. 
 
 

85. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local  
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to  
Information)(England) Regulations 2012 and under Section 100(A)(4)  
of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded  
from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds  
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined  
in paragraphs [3, 4 and 5] of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, and  
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public  
interest in disclosing the information 
 
 
14. Call-in 144 Evelyn Street (Parker House) Surplus Declarations  
 and Approval to Demolish 
 
15. Campshill Road Extra Care Scheme  

Page 11



 

 

 

7 

 
16. Hostel Expansion Programme 

 
 

86. Call-in 144 Evelyn Street (Parker House) Surplus Declarations and Approval 
to Demolish 
 
Having received confirmation from Officers that a corporate reputation  
strategy was not in place concerning the proposals, the Mayor decided to  
uphold the call-in and defer the decisions. 
 

87. Campshill Road Extra Care Scheme Closed 
 
Having considered a confidential report and the comments and responses  
referred to in recommendations 4.3 and 4.4 of the accompanying open report  
on the same subject and a presentation by the Cabinet Member for Customer  
Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor, for the reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the progress on the proposals for the Campshill Extra Care Scheme  
be noted;  
 
(ii) the valuation advice received and the results of the soft market  
testing with Registered Providers be noted; 
 
(iii) the Council submits a planning application for the Campshill Extra  
Care Scheme; 
 
(iv) this site be declared surplus to the Council’s requirements and that  
authority to finalise the terms of any disposal to a Registered Provider  
Partner be delegated to the Executive Director for Resources and  
Regeneration, in consultation with the Head of Law; and 
 
(v) officers should commence the procurement of a Registered  
Provider Partner to develop, own and manage the scheme. 
 
 
 
 

88. Hostel Expansion Programme 
 
Having considered a confidential officer report, and a presentation by the  
Cabinet Member for Customer Services, Councillor Susan Wise, the Mayor,  
for the reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the business case that sets out the financial and operational benefits from  
increasing the stock of hostel accommodation by 150 units as a means to  
reduce the number of homeless households placed into bed and breakfast  
accommodation be approved; 

Page 12



 

 

 

8 

 
(ii) a further 50 hostel spaces be acquired through the purchase of properties  
yet to be identified, at an estimated cost of £4.3m, based on an average cost  
per space of £86,000, and to increase the General Fund Capital Programme  
accordingly; 
 
(iii) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Resources and  
Regeneration to acquire property to achieve this objective, in line with the  
requirements for viable hostel stock as set out and to decide on a case by  
case basis the appropriate capital funding approach for each purchase;  
 
(iv) these purchases are intended to provide a temporary solution to the  
current housing supply constraints, and  
 
(v) officers should keep under review alternative future uses for newly  
acquired hostel accommodation, including disposal, at an appropriate time in  
the future. 
 
The meeting closed at 7.51pm 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAYOR AND CABINET 
Friday, 11 April 2014 at 10.00 am 

 
 

PRESENT:   Sir Steve Bullock (Mayor) 
 
 
 
1. Declaration of interests 

 
There were none. 
 

2. Green Deal Communities Fund: approval of funding offer 
 
The report was presented by the Executive Director for Resources and  
Regeneration’s representative who outlined the bidding process and the  
projected expenditures that were to be used to incentivise energy efficiency  
measures. The Mayor received confirmation that Lewisham would be the lead  
authority with Bromley and Bexley as partners and that there was no  
requirement to share the available funds equally. 
 
RESOLVED that the acceptance of the grant offer of £1.6m under the Green  
Deal Communities Fund be approved. 
 
The meeting closed at 10.09am. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 14



MAYOR & CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Outstanding Scrutiny Matters 
 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No. 3 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Head of Business and Committee 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 25 June 2014 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To report on items previously reported to the Mayor for response by 
directorates and to indicate the likely future reporting date. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 
 That the reporting dates of the item shown in the table below be noted. 
  

Report Title Responding 
Author 

Date 
Considered 
by Mayor & 
Cabinet 
 

Scheduled 
Reporting 
Date 

Slippage 
since last 
report 

Matters raised by 
Overview & 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel – 
Recycling 
 

ED Customer 
Services 

15 January 
2014 

3 September 
2014 

No 

Matters raised by 
Healthier 
Communities 
Select Committee 

ED 
Community 

9 April 2014 25 June 2014 No 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS and AUTHOR 

Mayor & Cabinet 15 January 2014 and 9 April 2014 available from Kevin 
Flaherty 0208 314 9327. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 15



Agenda Item 4

Page 16



 
 

MAYOR & CABINET 
 

 

REPORT TITLE 
 

 

Financial Outturn 2013/14 

 

KEY DECISION 
 

 

No 
 

Item No.  
 

 

WARD 
 

 

N/A 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 

Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration 

 

CLASS 
 

 

Part 1 
 

Date  
 

25 June 2014 
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report sets out the financial results for 2013/14.  The key areas to note are as 
follows: 

 

• The directorates’ net General Fund revenue budget was underspent by £1.8m. 

• The Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) of £250.4m was spent to budget. 

• The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was spent to budget. 

• Council Tax collection for the year was 94.8%.  This was a slight improvement 
on last year and above the ‘in year’ key performance target of 94.5%.   

• Capital expenditure for the year was £114.4m.  This represents 96% of the 
revised forecasted year-end expenditure budget of £119.8m. 

• A total of 95% of the £20.9m savings agreed in setting the 2013/14 budget 
were delivered on schedule. 

• Business Rates collection was 99.0% against a target for the year of 98.5%.  
 
 
2. PURPOSE 
 
2.1 To set out the Council’s financial results for 2013/14. 

 
 

3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Mayor is asked note the financial results for the year ending 31 March 2014. 
 
 
4. POLICY CONTEXT 

 
4.1 Reporting financial results in a clear and meaningful format contributes directly to the 

Council’s tenth corporate priority which is ‘inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and 
equity’. 

 
 

Page 17



 
5. OVERALL DIRECTORATE OUTTURN 
 
5.1 The overall net General Fund underspend against the directorates’ net controllable 

budgets was £1.8m, as set out in Table 1. 
 

Table 1 – Directorates Financial Results for 2013/14 
 

Directorate Gross 
budgeted 
spend 

Gross 
budgeted 
(income) 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend 

 

Variance 

 £m £m £m £m £m % 

Children & Young People 1 79.6 (20.4) 59.2 63.3 4.1 6.5% 

Community Services 179.2 (60.8) 118.4 113.3 (5.1) (4.5%) 

Customer Services 2 78.4 (46.1) 32.3 33.9 1.6 4.7% 

Resources & Regeneration 59.7 (13.2) 46.5 44.1 (2.4) (5.4%) 

Directorate Total 396.9 (140.5) 256.4 254.6 (1.8) (0.7%) 

Corporate Items   28.2    

Budget Requirement   284.6    

 
1. Gross figures exclude £250.4m Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DGS) expenditure and matching grant income. 
  
2. Gross figures exclude £225.0m matching income and expenditure for housing benefits.  This figure is lower 
than last year due to the implementation of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS), an effect of which is 
to replace benefits paid out with discounts at source. 

 

5.2 Table 2 sets out the proportion of the agreed revenue budget savings which have 
been delivered in the year.  Any variances have been reflected in the overall net 
General Fund position which has been set out in Table 1 above. 

 
 Table 2 – Savings delivered for 2013/14 

 
Directorate Savings 

agreed for 
2013/14 

 

Saving 
delivered 

Variance 

 £m £m £m % 

Children & Young People  6.5 6.5 0.0 0.0 

Community Services 6.9 6.4 0.5 7.0 

Customer Services  2.4 2.2 0.2 8.0 

Resources & Regeneration 5.1 4.7 0.4 8.0 

Total 20.9 19.8 1.1 5.0 

 
5.3 The year end variances reported for Community Services represents the proposed 

saving from the reablement service.  The shortfalls in Customer Services relates to 
the introduction of cashless parking payments.  This will materialise over the life of 
the new contract, but not in the first year of operation.  The shortfall for Resources 
and Regeneration mainly relates to staffing re-organisations which have been 
paused to come into line with the implementation of the Oracle Financials R12 
upgrade.  The delivery of these savings are now being progressed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
6. CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 
 
6.1 The directorate overspent by £4.1m.  This was generally in line with the forecasts 

being reported during the year and the overall position for the directorate has been 
set out in Table 3. 

 
 Table 3 – Children & Young People’s Services 
 

Directorate Gross 
budgeted 
spend 

Govt 
Grants 

Other 
Income 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend 

 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Children's Social Care 
services 

49.5 (1.9) (0.6) 47.0 53.0 6.0 

Resources & Performance 8.2 0.0 (11.0) (2.8) (4.0) (1.2) 

Standards & Achievement 5.3 (0.2) (2.1) 3.0 2.7 (0.3) 

Education Infrastructure 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.5 1.5 0 

Targeted Services and Joint 
Commissioning 

15.1 (1.1) (2.2) 11.8 11.4 (0.4) 

Schools 0 0.0 (1.3) (1.3) (1.3) 0 

 
Directorate Total 

 
79.6 

 
(3.2) 

 
(17.2) 

 
59.2 

 
63.3 

 
4.1 

 
6.2 The overspend of £6m within children’s social care services was mainly in respect 

of the costs of clients with ‘no recourse to public funds’ and the placements for 
Looked After Children (LAC). 

 
6.3 The clients with ‘no recourse to public funds’, including bed and breakfast 

accommodation and Section 17 payments had created a cost pressure of some 
£4.6m for the year.  These are families who have made an application to remain in 
the country and are waiting to be dealt with by the Home Office.  The number of 
cases at the end of the year was just over 200.  

 
6.4 For the LAC service, the year end overspend of £1.4m is the net of management 

action to move placements towards lower cost areas such as fostering and less 
residential packages, where this was deemed appropriate to the needs of the child.  
The placement numbers for LAC have increased from 491 at the start of the year 
to 508 at the end.  The social care management team have reviewed placements 
weekly throughout the year to ensure that care packages have provided value for 
money and met the desired outcome.  

 
6.5 The increase in the number of clients with ‘no recourse to public funds’, bed &  

breakfast accommodation and Section 17 payments is significant.  In the past, 
some of these cases would have been regarded as asylum seekers and the 
Council would have been entitled to receive grant funding.  However, fewer people 
are now regarded as such by the Home Office and hence there are no asylum 
seekers being funded. 

 
6.6 There were other pressures which arose in the leaving care service of £1.1m, due 

to the increase in the number of young people requiring support and national 
changes in housing benefit.  Client numbers at the start of the year were 53 and 
this increased to 117 by the year end. 

Page 19



 
 

6.7 There were a number of other net underspends in children’s social care services 
which totalled £1.1m and mainly relate to staff vacancies and savings in supplies 
and services through the operation of the directorate expenditure panel.   

 
6.8 All the other divisions in the directorate either spent to budget or underspent 

overall.  For resources and performance, the underspend of £1.2m was mainly due 
to staff vacancies and use of the unallocated contingency.  For standards and 
achievements, the underspend of £0.3m again relate to staff vacancies in the main 
and the early delivery of future agreed savings.  The underspend for targeted 
services and joint commissioning of £0.4m has been delivered through improved 
commissioning arrangements, staff vacancies and savings on supplies and 
services.   

  
 
7. COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
7.1 The directorate underspent by £5.1m.  This was generally in line with the forecasts 

being reported during the year and the overall position for the directorate has been 
set out in Table 4. 

 
Table 4 – Community Services 

 
Directorate Gross 

budgeted 
spend 

Gross 
budgeted 
income 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Variance 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Culture and Community 
Development 

24.4 (7.5) 17.0 16.6 (0.4) 

Adult Services 112.2 (30.9) 81.3 79.2 (2.1) 

Public Health 14.6 (14.6) 0.0 (0.5) (0.5) 

Crime Reduction and 
Supporting People 

25.7 (7.6) 18.0 16.6 (1.4) 

Strategy & Performance 2.3 (0.2) 2.1 1.8 (0.3) 

Community Reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.4) (0.4) 

 
Directorate Total 

 
179.2 

 
60.8 

 
118.4 

 
113.3 

 
(5.1) 

 
7.2 The culture and community development budget underspent by £0.4m.  This 

reflects a £0.2m underspend on the voluntary sector grants budget which is mainly 
due to further slippage in the allocation of the Community Sector Investment Fund 
element of the budget.  There were overspends for the sports service of £0.3m due 
to increased electricity costs at the Glassmill and various works at the older 
centres, including the Bridge and Wavelengths.  Other net underspends amounting 
to £0.5m have been delivered through the early implementation of budget savings, 
underspends in the libraries services and unused directorate balances.   

 
7.3 Adult services has reported a year end underspend of £2.1m.  This is mainly due 

to an underspend on the modernisation budget, including savings achieved 
through negotiation of contracts for care services of £1.1m.  There were a number 
of other underspends in this area and these include: day opportunities and support, 
due to the early achievement of budget savings and the gradual shift in provision 
away from building based care to more personalised services of £0.5m; non-

Page 20



 
residential services for older people and people with a physical disabilities of 
£0.2m; residential and nursing services for older people and people with physical 
disabilities of £0.2m.  There were some further net underspend variances for adult 
services which amounted to £0.1m at the year end.   

 
7.4 The services for crime reduction and supporting people recorded an overall 

underspend of £1.4m for the year.  In total, £1.2m of this underspend related to the 
drugs and alcohol service, where there were underspends which pertained to 
those areas funded by the public health grant.  Budget pressures on the youth 
offending service of £0.3m which related to the overspend on secure remand 
following changes in government policy, have been offset by the early achievement 
of savings in the supporting people service of £0.2m and through staff savings 
mainly in the community safety and CCTV service areas of £0.3m.  

 
7.5 There was a net underspend of £0.5m on the core public health budgets.  The 

underspend in strategy and performance of £0.3m mainly related to the employee 
budget and the contracts for purchased services.  There were also unused 
contingencies of some £0.4m which has led the directorate to deliver an overall 
underspend of £5.1m for the year. 

 
 

8. CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
8.1 The directorate overspent by £1.6m.  The overall position for the directorate has 

been set out in Table 5. 
 

Table 5 – Customer Services 
 

Directorate Gross 
budgeted 
spend 

Gross 
budgeted 
income 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Variance 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Strategic Housing & 
Regulatory Services 

13.6 (10.1) 3.5 4.5 1.0 

Environment 41.1 (19.1) 22.0 22.2 0.2 

Public Services 21.9 (16.7) 5.2 5.6 0.4 

Strategy & Performance 1.8 (0.2) 1.6 1.6 0.0 

 
Directorate Total 

 
78.4 

 
(46.1) 

 
32.3 

 
33.9 

 
1.6 

 
8.2 The main cause of the directorate’s overspend is within the bed and breakfast 

budget as a result of a significant increase in the number of clients in bed and 
breakfast accommodation.  The number risen from an average of 79 in 2012/13 to 
an average of 197 in 2013/14.  The number of ‘live’ rent accounts relating to bed 
and breakfast at the end of the year was 318.  This compared to 108 at the end of 
March 2013.  This has led to an overspend of some £1.1m.  There are some net 
underspends amount be £0.1m which has brought down the overall pressure in 
strategic housing and regulatory services to £1.0m. 

 
8.3 The environment division overspent by £0.2m.  This was mainly due to income 

shortfalls within the bereavement services, street management and green scene 
budgets and the lumber collection service. 

Page 21



 
 

8.4 There was a net underachievement of parking income overall for the year, even 
though the collection rates of fines has increased over the course of the year.  In 
addition to this, the planned savings from the new parking contract have not yet 
materialised.  These has been partially alleviated by the Council receiving 
additional court fee income and leaving the public services division ending the year 
with a net overspend of £0.4m. 

 
 
9. RESOURCES & REGENERATION 
 
9.1 The directorate underspent by £2.4m.   The overall position for the directorate 

has been set out in Table 6. 
 

Table 6 – Resources and Regeneration 
 

Directorate Gross 
budgeted 
spend 

 

Gross 
budgeted 
income 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Variance 

 £m 
 

£m £m £m £m 

Audit and Risk 5.4 (2.3) 3.1 2.6 (0.5) 

Corporate Policy and 
Governance 

3.6 (0.1) 3.5 3.2 (0.3) 

Finance 6.5 (1.2) 5.3 4.6 (0.7) 

Executive Office 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 

Personnel & Development  3.4 (0.3) 3.1 2.9 (0.2) 

Legal Services 2.7 (0.4) 2.3 2.3 0.0 

Strategy 2.8 (0.4) 2.4 2.1 (0.3) 

Information Management 
and Technology (IM&T) 

11.5 (1.2) 10.3 10.3 0.0 

Planning & Economic 
Development 

3.7 (1.5) 2.2 2.0 (0.2) 

Regeneration and Asset 
Development 

19.9 (5.3) 14.6 14.4 (0.2) 

Transfers to/from Reserves 0 (0.5) (0.5) (0.5) 0.0 

 
Directorate Total 

 
59.7 

 
(13.2) 

 
46.5 

 
44.1 

 
(2.4) 

 
9.2 No divisions with the directorate were overspent.  The principal underspends were 

as set out in the following paragraphs. 
 
9.3 The audit and risk division underspent by £0.5m, principally driven by a £0.3m 

underspend in the cost of insurance renewals and related premia.  Within 
corporate policy and governance, just under £0.2m of the underspend was 
achieved by holding staffing vacancies open as they arose.  The balance of the 
underspend was achieved by a variety of smaller cost control measures being 
implemented. 

 
9.4 The underspend in the finance unit budget was £0.7m and was mainly due to an 

underspend on the directorate contingency budget.  There was also an 
underspend in the personnel and development service of £0.2m due to staff 
vacancies and reduced agency costs.  The underspend in the strategy of £0.3m 

Page 22



 
was due to a managed underspend on community budgets of mainstreamed grant 
funding and a delay in an English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) 
project.  The planning and economic development underspend of £0.2m had 
arisen because of additional land charge fee income.  For the regeneration and 
asset management service, a number of overspends and underspends make up 
the overall net underspend position of £0.2m.  This includes a staffing overspend 
offset by underspends on the street lighting budget and flood risk funding.  

 
9.5 The executive office, legal services and Information Management and Technology 

(IM&T) have all spent to budget at the year end.   
 
 
10. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 
 
10.1 The overall spend on the Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) budget was contained 

within budget by the year end, as set out in Table 7. 
 

Table 7 – Dedicated Schools’ Grant 
 

Dedicated Schools Grant Gross 
budgeted 
spend 

Govt 
Grants 

Other 
Income 

Internal 
Income  

Net 
Budget 

 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Individual Schools Budget 224.4 (224.4) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Central expenditure on education of 
children under 5s 

17.1 (13.5) (0.4) (0.1) 3.1 

Provision of pupils with Special 
Educational Needs (SEN) 

12.4 (20.4) 0.0 0.0 (8.0) 

Education out of school 1.5 0.0 0.0 (0.1) 1.4 

Capital Expenditure from Revenue 
(CERA) (Schools) 

36.9 (24.2) (1.4) (5.9) 5.4 

School specific contingencies 4.2 (9.6) 0.0 (1.7) (7.1) 

Other 5.0 0.0 0.0 (1.1) 3.9 

Academy Recoupment (6.2) 6.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 
DSG Total 

 
295.3 

 
(285.9) 

 
(1.8) 

 
(8.9) 

 
(1.3) 

 
10.2 The main spending pressures related to the increase in the number of placements 

in the independent special school sector where there were 12 more pupils placed 
than allowed for in the budget.  These costs were covered by the use of the DSG 
contingency.  The DSG provides the funding for the delegated schools budget.  At 
the end of the financial year 2013/14, the schools had unspent balances of 
£15.7m, which was the same level as at the end of the previous financial year.  

 
 
11. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
11.1 The Housing Revenue Account spend to budget by 31 March 2014.  Table 8 sets 

out the budgets and year end variance by services.  
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 
Table 8 – Housing Revenue Account 

 
Housing Revenue Account Gross 

budgeted 
spend 

Gross 
budgeted 
income 

Net 
budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Final 
Outturn 

 £m 
 

£m £m £m £m 

Lewisham Homes management 
costs (including R&M) 

36.5 0.0 36.5 34.9 (1.6) 

Housing management (LBL & 
PFI) 

12.2 (3.2) 9.0 8.9 (0.1) 

Management and Support 
Services (LBL, including SLAs) 

1.6 0.0 1.6 2.0 0.4 

Energy costs 2.8 0.0 2.8 2.2 (0.6) 

Capital Financing 46.8 0.0 46.8 64.6 17.8 

Balances, Provisions and 
Contingencies 
 

20.7 0.0 20.7 5.7 (15.0) 

Rents, Services Charges and 
major works income 

0.0 (83.0) (83.0) (83.9) (0.9) 

Government Grants (PFI 
Credit/Decent Homes funding)  

0.0 (34.4) (34.4) (34.4) 0.0 

Total 120.6 120.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 
11.2 Lewisham Homes manages certain budgets on behalf of the Council in addition to 

those that are formally delegated to them.  The repairs and maintenance budget 
was underspent by just over £1.6m for the year.  This in part reflects the continued 
investment in the decent homes programme, which has tended to reduce demand 
for day to day repairs and maintenance as properties are brought up to standard. 

 
11.3 Underspends on salaries costs and additional fee income in the Council’s own 

housing management budget was partially offset by reduced rent and service 
charge income from hostels, due to higher than budgeted void rates.  This has 
resulted in a small underspend overall.  The final void rate was 11.7% compared to 
a budget rate of 10%.  

 
11.4 The overspend in management and support services relates to the insurance and 

risk recharge which has increased by £0.4m for the year.  This is due to the 
revaluation of dwelling stock values which led to an increase in the proportion 
recharged to the HRA. 

 
11.5 Energy costs slightly underspent due to credits received for meters read, due to a 

change in contract provider.  The previous costs were based on energy supplier 
estimates.  The energy budgets for 2014/15 will be reviewed as part of the contract 
change. 

 
11.6 The net variance between capital financing and balances and provisions, relates to 

additional interest costs due to higher than forecast interest rates and technical 
accounting adjustments.  This is to recognise the decent homes costs as revenue 
rather than capital expenditure and increases in depreciation costs over budgeted 
allowances, due to revaluations in stock asset values. 

 

Page 24



 
11.7 Overall, the HRA made a surplus of £3.6m for the financial year 2013/14, which 

has been transferred into balances for use in future years.  This meant that the 
HRA ended the year with an overall balanced budget position. 

 
 
12. COLLECTION FUND 
 
12.1 As at 31 March 2014, £100.7m of Council Tax had been collected, which 

represents 94.8% of the total amount due for the year of £106.2m.  This compares 
to the ‘in year’ key performance target collection rate of 94.5%.  The collection rate 
as at the end of the 2012/13 financial year was 94.8%. 

 
12.2 Business rates collection stood at 99.0%, compared to 97.4% at the end of 

2012/13 financial year.  Performance has improved from last year and is 0.5% 
above the target collection rate for the year of 98.5%. 

 
 
13. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
13.1 The overall spend to 31 March is £114.4m, which is 95.4% of the revised forecast 

year end expenditure of £119.8m.  The reduced forecast and overall final outturn 
was due to the further re-phasing of a number of schemes including Parker House, 
Sydenham Bridge, Catford Phase 1 and Lewisham Central Opportunity Site.  The 
overall underspend for the year will be carried forward to 2014/15.  A breakdown of 
the expenditure by directorate and fund has been set out in Table 9. 
 
Table 9 – Capital Programme 
 

 
13.2 Table 10, shows the year end position on the major projects in the 2013/14 

General Fund capital programme (i.e. those projects and schemes over £1m in 
value for 2013/14). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Programme Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Spend as 
%age of 
forecast 

 £m £m £m % 

Community Services 0.9 1.7 1.1 64.7 

Resources and Regeneration 8.3 18.7 17.7 94.6 

Children and Young People  70.5 45.2 41.4 91.6 

Customer Services 1.3 3.3 3.0 90.1 

Housing (General Fund) 10.4 5.6 6.2 110.7 

Total – General Fund 91.4 74.5 69.4 93.2 

HRA – Council 1.0 2.5 1.9 76.0 

HRA - Lewisham Homes 59.0 42.8 43.0 100.5 

Total – HRA 60.0 45.3 44.9 99.3 

Total Expenditure 151.4 119.8 114.3 95.4 

Page 25



 
Table 10 – Summary of Major Capital Schemes 

 
13.3 One of the main sources of financing the programme was capital receipts from the 

sale of property assets.  In total, £15m of these usable capital receipts was used to 
finance the programme in 2013/14, whilst £74m of grants were also allocated. 

 
 
14. TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND PENSION FUND 
 

Treasury Management 
 

14.1 The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2014 has been set out 
in Table 11. 

 
Table 11 - Treasury Position as at 31 March 2014 
 

 Outstanding 
at 31 March 

2014 

Average 
Coupon  
Rate 

Average 
Remaining 
Duration 

Outstanding 
at 31 March 

2013 

 £m % Years £m 

Fixed Rate Borrowing     

Public Works Loans Board 83.9 5.99 20.8 87.7 

Market Debt 86.5 4.72 39.8 85.7 

Sub Total – Fixed Rate Borrowing 170.4   173.4 

Variable Rate Borrowing     

Public Works Loans Board 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Market Debt 25.0 4.54 24.8 25.0 

Sub Total – Variable Rate Borrowing 25.0   25.0 

Total Debt 195.4   198.4 

Investments     

Internally Managed 285.6 0.69 77.6 days 268.4 

Total Cash Managers 285.6   268.4 

Capital Programme 2013/14 Original 
Budget   

Revised 
Budget 

Final 
Outturn 

Spend as 
%age of 
forecast 

 £m £m £m % 

Vehicle Replacement 2.1 2.1 2.1 100.0 

Housing Regeneration Schemes (Kender, 
Excalibur, Heathside and Lethbridge) 

5.2 3.7 3.7 100.0 

BSF - Prendergast Hilly Fields 8.6 8.6 7.6 88.4 

Primary Places Programme 36.6 19.3 18.9 97.9 

BSF – Sydenham 10.0 8.8 8.0 90.9 

BSF – Brent Knoll 2.8 1.6 0.5 31.2 

Other Schools Capital Works 10.2 6.2 4.9 79.0 

Deptford Station, Town Centre & High 
Street Improvements 

1.6 2.0 1.8 90.0 

Lewisham Mortuary - Cremator 1.2 0.6 0.5 83.3 

Disabled Facilities / Private Sector Grants 1.7 1.2 1.1 91.7 

Catford Broadway & Town Centre 
Regeneration 

6.5 1.8 1.5 83.3 

Asset Management Programme 2.4 2.4 2.4 100.0 

Highways and Bridges (TfL) 3.4 4.0 3.8 95.0 

Highways and Bridges (LBL) 5.5 5.3 5.1 96.2 

Page 26



 
 

14.2 The net borrowing requirement for 2013/14 was minus £5.6m, this being £0.3m 
higher than the net borrowing requirement of minus £5.9m for 2012/13, as set out 
in Table 12. 
 
Table 12 – Net Borrowing Requirement for 2013/14  

 

 2013/14 2012/13 

 £m £m 

Capital Investment 70.8 66.4 

Capital Grants (39.5) (41.1) 

Capital Receipts (16.1) (16.2) 

Revenue (12.4) (5.8) 

Net 2.8 3.3 

Minimum Revenue Provision  (8.4) (9.2) 

Maturing Debt 0.0 0.0 

Net Borrowing Requirement (5.6) (5.9) 

 
14.3 In previous years, the Council has financed its net borrowing requirement from 

temporary cash balances held by the Council.  As at 31 March 2014, this internal 
borrowing totalled £40.4m.  There was no new borrowing in the year 2013/14. 

 
14.4 It has been the Council’s strategy to borrow up to the level of the Government’s 

assessment of the Council’s underlying need to borrow which is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR).  The calculation of the CFR broadly corresponds to 
the net borrowing requirement as set out in Table 12.  The comparative position is 
as set out in Table 13. 

 
Table 13 – Debt and CFR Movement in 2013/14 
 

 2013/14 2012/13  
 

 £m £m 

Capital Financing Requirement 235.9 241.5 

External Debt 195.5 198.4 

Difference 40.4 43.1 

 
14.5 The impact of the debt transactions in 2013/14 was to reduce the average interest 

rate of the debt by 0.07% from 5.80% to 5.73% and reduce the average duration 
by approximately 0.4 years, from 24.3 years to 23.9 years. 

 
Pension Fund 

 
14.6 The net asset worth of the Lewisham Pension Fund as at 31 March 2014 was 

£905m.  This represents an increase of some £37m over the course of the year, 
where the closing net assets of the scheme as at 31 March 2013 were valued at 
£868m.  This is principally attributable to an increase in stock valuation during the 
year. 

 
14.7 The Pension Fund is, and is likely to remain, ‘cash negative’.  That is, the benefits 

paid out in any year are likely to exceed the contributions paid in.  This is entirely 
normal for a Pension Fund of this maturity and is fully taken into account in the 
investment strategy. 

Page 27



 
 
 
15. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 This report concerns the financial results for the 2013/14 financial year.  However, 

there are no financial implications in agreeing the recommendation of this report. 
 
 
16. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 The Council must act prudently in relation to the stewardship of Council taxpayers 

funds.  The Council must set and maintain a balanced budget. 
 
 
17. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
17.1 There are no crime and disorder implications directly arising from this report.  
 
 
18. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
18.1 There are no equalities implications directly arising from this report. 
 
 
19. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
19.1 There are no human resources implications directly arising from this report. 
 
 
20. CONCLUSION 
 
20.1 The Council has continued to apply sound financial controls and has contained its 

expenditure for the year within agreed budgets.  However, the short and medium-
term outlook remains difficult and continued strong management and fiscal discipline 
will be required to enable the Council to meet its financial targets for 2014/15 and 
beyond. 

 
 
21. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AND FURTHER INFORMATION  

 

 

 For further information on this report, please contact: 
 
Selwyn Thompson, Head of Financial Services, on 020 831 46932 

Short Title of Report 
 

Date Location 
 

Contact 

2013/14 Budget 
 

27 February 2013 
(Council) 

3rd Floor  
Laurence House 

  Shola Ojo  

Financial Forecasts for 
2013/14 

10 July, 2 October, & 
13 Nov’ 2013 (M&C) 

3rd Floor  
Laurence House 

  Richard Lambeth 

2014/15 Budget 
 

26 February 2014 
(Council) 

3rd Floor  
Laurence House 

  Shola Ojo 

Page 28



Agenda Item 5

Page 29



 

 1 

 
 
 

 
1.  Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets the outcomes of the representation period  following the publication 

of Statutory Notice  to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School. This measure is 
proposed in order to meet demand for school places. 

 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1  The report requests the Mayor to note the responses received during the  

 Representation period following the publication of Statutory Notices proposing to  
enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry with effect from 
September 2016, subject to the development of satisfactory building proposals in 
partnership with the Education Funding Agency. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 

That the Mayor: 
 

3.1 notes the responses received during the representation period on proposals to 
enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School; 

 
3.2 agrees the proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of 

entry with effect from September 2016, subject to the development of satisfactory 
building proposals in partnership with the Education Funding Agency. 

 
4. Policy Context 
 
4.1 The proposals within this report are consistent with ‘Shaping Our Future: Lewisham’s 

Sustainable Community Strategy’ and the Council’s corporate priorities. In particular, 
they relate to the Council’s priorities regarding young people’s achievement and 
involvement, including inspiring and supporting young people to achieve their 
potential, the protection of children and young people and ensuring efficiency, 
effectiveness and equity in the delivery of excellent services to meet the needs of the 
community.  

 
4.2 The Local Authority has a duty to ensure the provision of sufficient places for pupils 

of statutory school age and, within financial constraints, accommodation that is both 
suitable and in good condition. 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Measures to increase the supply of permanent primary school places: 
Report on the Representation period on the  proposal to enlarge Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School 

Key Decision 
 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

Evelyn 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children and Young People, Executive Director 
Regeneration & Resources, Head of Law 
 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: June 25 2014 

Page 30



 

 2 

 
4.3 In aiming to improve on the provision of facilities for primary education in Lewisham 

which are appropriate for the 21st century,  the implementation of a successful 
primary places strategy will contribute to the delivery of the corporate priority Young 
people’s achievement and involvement: raising educational attainment and improving 
facilities for young people through partnership working. 

 
4.4 It supports the delivery of Lewisham’s Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP), 

which sets out the Council’s vision for improving outcomes for all children and young 
people, and in so doing reducing the achievement gap between our most 
disadvantaged pupils and their peers. It also articulates the objective of improving 
outcomes for children with identified SEN and disabilities by ensuring that their needs 
are met.   

  
 The Primary Capital Programme (PCP) and Lewisham’s Primary Strategy for 

Change 

4.5 A priority in the  Primary Strategy for Change (PSfC), is the provision of sufficient 
places at the right time to meet future needs within and between Primary Places 
Planning Localities (PPPLs) in the Borough. As stated in Lewisham’s June 2008 
PSfC: 

 “Ensuring that sufficient places are provided in localities at the right time will take 
precedence over significant investment in schools where the rectification of 
conditions and suitability issues will not produce additional places. “  

4.6 Dependent upon future central government decisions on capital delivery, it is 
proposed that the borough’s Primary Capital Programme will continue to be governed 
by the following criteria as set out in the 2008 PSfC: 

 

• Provide sufficient places at the right time to meet future needs within and 
between planning localities in the Borough 

• Improve conditions and suitability of schools in order to raise standards 

• Increase the influence of successful and popular schools 

• Maximise the efficient delivery of education in relation to the size of the 
school, removing half-form entries and promoting continuity of education 

• Enable school extended services for pupils, parents and communities 

• Optimise the Council’s capital resources available for investment.  
 
 School Organisation Requirements  
 
4.7 Proposals to establish additional provision on a permanent basis must comply with 

the provisions set out in The Education and Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and The 
School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) 
Regulations 2013. These set out the statutory process for making changes to a 
school, and statutory guidance on making changes to a maintained school indicates 
4 stages to making a prescribed alteration to a maintained school. These are: 

 
1) Publication of a Statutory Notice 
2) Representation period 
3) Decision making 
4) Implementation 
 

5.  Background 
 
5.1 School expansion  
5.1.1 The Mayor and Cabinet and the Education Select Committee have received regular 

reports detailing the pressure on Primary School places and the measures taken to 

Page 31



 

 3 

increase supply. The following tables summarises the schools who have offered 
additional places that have been opened since 2008 and the total number provided: 

 
School 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Primary Place Planning Locality 1  Forest Hill & Sydenham  
Adamsrill  √ √ √ √ Expanded  
Christ Church   √     
Dalmain  √ √ √ Expanded   
Eliot Bank     √   
Fairlawn   √   √  
Haseltine     √ YR  & Y1 √ 
Horniman    √    
Kelvin Grove   √ √ Expanded  √ 
Kilmorie  √ √ √ Expanded √  
Perrymount   √   √  
Rathfern    √ √   
St Bartholomew’s     √ Expanded  
St Michael’s       √  
St Will. of York    √    
Primary Place Planning Locality 2 Lee Green 
Brindishe Lee   √   √  
John Ball  √  √    
Lee Manor   √     
Trinity CE      New 

provision 
 

St Winifred’s      √ √ 
Primary Place Planning Locality 3 Brockley, Lewisham & Telegraph Hill 
Ashmead   √  √   
Beecroft Gardens √    Expanded  √ 
Edmund Waller   √     
Gordonbrock    √ Expanded   
Holbeach √ √      
John Stainer  √   √ √  
Lucas Vale    √   √ 
Myatt Garden    √    
Prendergast Primary       New 

provision 
Prendergast Vale      √  
St Stephens CE     √   
Turnham    √ √   

Primary Place Planning Locality 4 Catford, Bellingham & Grove Park 
Athelney   √ √    
Baring   √     
Coopers Lane    √ √ √ Expanded 
Elfrida     √  √ 
Forster Park  √ √  √ √ √ 
Rushey Green   √ √ √  Expanded 
Sandhurst  √ √ √ Expanded   
Torridon   √    √ 

Primary Place Planning Locality 5 Deptford and New Cross 
Deptford Park  √ √    √ 
Grinling Gibbons    √ √   
Kender   √ √ Expanded  √ 
St Josephs    √ √ √  

Primary Place Planning Locality 6 Downham 
Downderry     √   
Good Shepherd    √    
Launcelot   √    √ 
Marvels Lane      √  
Haberdashers 
Aske’s Knights 
Temple Grove 

    √ Expanded  

Rangefield    √    

 
 
 

Page 32



 

 4 

Year Permanent  
Places opened 

Temporary  
Places opened 

2008/09  60  (2FE) 

2009/10  255  (8.5FE) 

2010/11  555  (18.5 FE) 

2011/12  564   (19 FE) 

2012/13 180  (6FE) 564 (19FE) 

2013/14 90  3FE) 375   (12.5FE) 

2014/15 120  (4FE) 315 (10.5FE) 

 
5.1.2 The majority of places have been added as partial expansions (“bulge” 

classes).Since 2012 the authority has used  Basic Need allocations to launch a 
programme to increase the supply of places on a  permanent basis, using existing 
council-owned buildings, developing existing school sites and by taking the 
opportunity to remove half forms of entry. 

 
5.1.3 Projections are reviewed at least annually as the information on live births, 

applications to schools and the uptake of places across each year becomes 
available. 

 
5.1.4 The most recent update indicates that the demand for places will remain high and 

measures continue to be required to increase the supply of places through a mixture 
of permanent and temporary enlargements tailored to meet the needs of each area. 
Figures are set out in the following tables. 

 

Year Planned Admission 
Number 

Forecast 
Reception 
demand 

Shortfall 

2014/15 3634 3989 355 (12 FE) 

2015/16 3724 3994 270 (9 FE) 

2016/17 3724 4083 329 (11.FE) 

2017/18 3724 4085 331 (11FE) 

 
 
6. Proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of 

entry 
 
6.1.1 On April 9th 2014 Mayor & Cabinet received a report which set out the demand for 

primary places in Deptford & New Cross Primary Place Planning Locality and the 
outcomes of the consultations on proposals to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary 
School as part of the measures to meet this demand. The minute of the discussion of 
the report is included as Appendix One.  

 
6.1.2 Sir Francis Drake Primary School is located in Primary Place Planning Locality 5, 

New Cross & Deptford. The following schools in that locality have been enlarged 
since 2009: 

 Partial enlargements 
 Deptford Park Primary   2009, 2010, 2014 
 Kender Primary    2010, 2011 
 Grinling Gibbons Primary   2011, 2012 
 St Josephs RC Primary   2011,2012,2013  
 Permanent  
 Kender Primary enlarged from 1 to 2FE 2012 
 New Provision 
 Haberdashers Aske’s Free School 2FE 2013 

 
 
 

Page 33



 

 5 

 Additional Requirement – Deptford and New Cross 
6.2.1 Sir Francis Drake Primary School  is located in Primary Place Planning Locality 5, 

Deptford and New Cross.  Typically there is a low level of on-time applications 
compensated for by a high level of late applicants. Since 2012 there has also been a 
high number of in-year applicants from the area. There is considerable housing 
development in the area, including brown-field sites for which Sir Francis Drake will 
be the nearest school. Whereas the birth rate in some areas has stabilised, it 
continues to increase in this part of the borough. 

 
 Births 

Births September 1st 2000 to August 31st 2001 537 

Births September 1st 2009 to August 31st 2010 655 

Births September 1st 2010 to August 31st 2011 694 

Increase 2000/01 to 2010/11 29% 

Increase 2009/10 to 2010/11 6% 

. 
6.2.2 The number of on-time applications for places at schools in the area has increased 

over the last 3 years. Whilst the significant increase in applications for 2014/15 may 
reflect the popularity of the new Haberdasher’s provision in the area, it is evident that 
demand in the New Cross and Deptford area is growing. 

  

Year Number of on-time applications 
(preferences 1-6) 

2012/13 1,567 

2013/14 1,637 

2014/15 1,862 

 
 The distance of the last child offered a place at Sir Francis Drake in the 2013 

application round was 527 metres. Without expansion of local school places many 
families who do not have a child already at a school will be disadvantaged. 

 
6.2.3 The table below sets out occupancy by year group across the Planning Area. The 

fluctuations in the occupancy of individual cohorts as they move through emphasises 
that this is an area with considerable in year movement. The figures demonstrate that 
the overall trend is for Key Stage occupancy to increase meaning that there are few 
vacancies for families new to the borough to access. 

  
 January 2012 January 2013 January 2014 

Year R 96% 96% 99% 

Year 1 92% 97% 97% 

Year 2 94% 86% 94% 

Key Stage 1 
Occupancy 

94% 93% 97% 

Year 3 91% 87% 92% 

Year 4 90% 91% 92% 

Year 5 81% 87% 96% 

Year 6 75% 80% 91% 

Key Stage 2 
Occupancy 

84% 86% 93% 

 
6.2.4 Projections for the area are based on a methodology which ensures that it meets the 

current characteristics of the local population. The number of births to families 
resident in the area is taken as the basis for the number of 5 year olds at the relevant 
year for entry to school. An allowance is made for inward migration and the impact of 
new developments. Reception places in the area are currently full which suggests 
that the increase in population forecast for the end of the decade has started earlier.  

 

Page 34



 

 6 

6.2.5 Projections produced in April 2014 indicate that at least 560 Reception places will be 
required each year, and currently 510 are available. Demand will continue to rise 
beyond the end of the decade. Approximately 1,300 additional dwellings are planned 
in the area. The addition of permanent places in the area will contribute to reducing 
reliance on temporary enlargements offering greater stability to parents and schools.  

 
6.3 Sir Francis Drake Primary School  
 
6.3.1 Sir Francis Drake Primary is a 1 form of entry primary school located to the south of 

Deptford Park, and adjacent to both the Surrey Canal Triangle development and the 
Grinstead Road development. It offers 30 Reception places each year and has a total 
of 210 places across the year groups. 

 
6.3.2 Ofsted inspected the school in 2013 when it was rated as “Good”. Since then the 

school has had exceptionally good KS 2 SATs results. At the Spring census the 
occupancy level across Key Stage 1 was 96% and 91% in Key Stage 2.  

 
6.3.3 Demand for places at Sir Francis Drake has also increased as is demonstrated in the 

following table. 
  
 

Year Sir Francis 
Drake 
Number of  first 
preference on-
time 
applications 
 

Sir Francis 
Drake 
Number of  
second 
preference on-
time 
applications 
 

Sir Francis Drake 
Number of on-time 
applications 
(preferences 1-6) 

2012/13 29 39 145 

2013/14 33 42 145 

2014/15 38 41 159 

 
 
6.3.4 The table below demonstrates that the school has few vacancies across the year 

groups and is effectively full. Whilst occasional vacancies may occur, the school does 
not have capacity to accommodate population change in the area. 
 

 January 2012 January 2013 January 2014 

Year R 97% 97% 97% 

Year 1 100% 93% 96% 

Year 2 96%  97% 96% 

Key Stage 1 
Occupancy 

97% 95% 95% 

Year 3 100% 100% 97% 

Year 4 96% 96% 87% 

Year 5 100% 90% 90% 

Year 6 90% 100% 97% 

Key Stage 2 
Occupancy 

96% 96% 93% 

 
 
6.3.5 The school was built in 1963. Although the governing body has taken care of the site, 

the condition of the buildings have become increasingly less suitable for the delivery 
of the primary curriculum as is evidenced by the addition of a large number of 
portacabin buildings to provide additional space for teaching and learning. The school 
building is now 50 years old and is starting to require expensive maintenance and 
upgrades. 

Page 35



 

 7 

6.4 Priority Schools Building Programme 
 
6.4.1 In 2010 the new coalition government launched the Priority School Building 

programme (PSBP). This is intended to replace school buildings in poor condition 
and also offered the opportunity to expand schools in areas of high demand. The 
government’s original intention had been to finance the programme through a Private 
Finance Initiative (PFI). 

 
6.4.2 The local authority bid successfully to the Priority School Building programme to 

rebuild and enlarge Sir Francis Drake, reflecting the extent of major maintenance 
works that would become due in the near future. The scheme is now to be delivered 
without a PFI. The Education Funding Agency will project manage the procurement 
and construction of the building but requires the LA to undertake the statutory 
process to enlarge the school. 

 
6.4.3 In view of the changing levels of demand in the area the LA has proposed 

enlargement from September 2016. 
 
6.4.4 The building delivered by the Education Funding Agency (EFA) will be in line with the 

specifications agreed by the James Committee. The focus will be on the delivery of a 
modern, functional building which meets the government’s revised guidelines for 
space which have recently been revised down from those previously published. The 
standardised designs offer less flexibility in design  in order to reduce construction 
costs. The budget will not meet the cost of any additional planning conditions. The 
EFA will seek a commitment from the LA that it will meet the cost of any planning 
conditions, including traffic management proposals. Officers advise that this still 
offers good value. 

 
6.4.5  Work has continued through the consultation periods to develop the accommodation 

proposals should the school be enlarged. The EFA has published an outline 
programme which proposes that detailed discussions about design will commence 
with the school at the end of June. The EFA programme allows for  a series of 6 
meetings to take place during July and early August. The planning application is 
programmed to be submitted by mid-September. Construction would take place 
during 2015 with the new school buildings opened in January 2016. 

 
 
6.5 First Phase of consultation 
 
6.5.1 Following confirmation from the EFA in Autumn 2013 that the PSBP programme was 

to be launched and after consultation with the school Governing Body, the Mayor’s 
permission was requested in January 2014 to launch a consultation on a proposal to 
expand Sir Francis Drake from 1 to 2 forms of entry.  

 
6.5.2 Consultation events were held during February 2014, in line with the School 

Organisation legislation requirements. The outcomes were reported to the Mayor, 
April 9th 2014. 

 
6. 5.3 Some parents agreed that it was appropriate to expand the school in response to the 

increased population in the area. However many parents were opposed feeling that 
the site was too small and that the building offered through the PSBP-funded  
development would not offer the facilities the school currently enjoyed. 

 
6.5.4 Having reviewed the outcomes of the consultation and the presentation by the Chair 

of Governors and Headteacher of Sir Francis Drake, the Mayor agreed the 
recommendation that a statutory notice should be published to enlarge Sir Francis 
Drake Primary school from 1 to 2 FE with effect from September 2016. 

 

Page 36



 

 8 

6.6 Representation Period 

6.6.1 The Statutory Notice for Sir Francis Drake was published on May 14th . The notice 
was published in the Mercury newspaper, on the Council website and in  2 local 
libraries. Six copies were provided to the school to display. The Statutory Notice is 
attached at Appendix Two and the accompanying Prescribed Information is attached 
as Appendix Three. 

6.6.2 The representation period ran until June 10th.  A written response was received from 
the Governing Body and can be found at Appendix Four. Two petitions were 
launched with 1 and 114 signatories respectively. They are included as Appendix 
Five.  Eight Representations were received  from parents and members of the  
community and  are included at Appendix Six. One Representation was a letter 
written on behalf of 25 parents of children in the Reception class.  In addition, the 
Evelyn Parents forum also wrote to the Mayor of Lewisham and to Joan Ruddock MP 
for Lewisham & Deptford. Correspondence with Joan Ruddock is included at 
Appendix Seven  

 All the representations received during the Statutory Notice period opposed the 
proposal.  

6.6.3.Sir Francis Drake Governing Body 

The Governing Body recognises that the school has a role to play in meeting the 
needs of the local community, However it remains concerned about how the design 
of the school will support the delivery of an outstanding education. They ask for the 
continued support of the LA in working with the EFA during the development of the 
design and a possible financial contribution from the LA to make extra provision. 
They have undertaken to visit schools which have been provided through the Priority 
Schools Building Programme in order to understand better how the buildings 
function. 
 

6.6.4 The Governing Body has been fully engaged with the consultation activities and with 
the EFA . 

 
6.6.5  The Head of Education Infrastructure and the Places Manager have met with the 

school and separately with the EFA’s Project Manager to discuss how to ensure 
effective liaison during the next stages of design development, should the proposal 
proceed.  The governing body has been informed that a limited amount of money can 
be made available. The first call on this will be the cost of planning conditions. The 
nature of the PSBP funding does not allow Local Authorities to “top-up” the funding to 
make significant changes to the design..  

 Summary of issues raised by SFD parents  
 

Key Points Response 

The School works well 
as it is. 

It is recognised that Governors have looked after 
the site of the school. However in the next few 
years important elements of the infrastructure will 
reach their expected lifespan and will need 
replacing. The EFA set stringent conditions for the 
conditions of buildings eligible to be replaced 
through the Priority Schools Building Programme. 
They conducted their own assessments of 
nominated buildings and agreed with the LA’s 
assessment that the school buildings are likely to 
become more costly to maintain.  

Family/Community feel - The majority of schools in Lewisham are 2 or 3FE 

Page 37



 

 9 

Expansion to 2 FE will 
completely change the 
school’s personality. 
 

schools. The very many successful schools in 
Lewisham demonstrate that a school of this size 
can continue to deliver an inclusive and caring 
culture where the children achieve high standards. 
There are a number of models which enable the 
school to maintain an environment where children 
feel secure and valued as an individual.  
Since 2008 many schools have enlarged on the 
same sites and demonstrate that change can be 
successfully managed. 
 

Lack of information on 
proposed building 
plans.  
. 

It is frequently the case that designs are not 
available at this consultation stage. However, 
should the proposal reach the stage of a planning 
application, an outline design is required and is 
made publically available. As part of the planning 
process, interested parties are asked to comment 
to the Planning Department who are required to 
take them into account in considering the 
application. 
 

How will the school 
function alongside 
building works? 

The Council has considerable experience of 
supporting schools through major building 
schemes. Brockley Primary (now Beecroft 
Gardens) was developed in a way similar to that 
proposed for Sir Francis Drake. A new building 
was constructed on the playground while the 
existing school continued to function. Once the 
pupils had moved, the old building was 
demolished and a new playground was set out.  
Should the scheme go ahead, the Education 
Funding Agency contractor identified by the EFA 
will be responsible for Health & Safety on and 
around the site during the build period. It is 
accepted good practice when working with 
schools that arrangements are discussed and 
agreed with the school management.  

How are works funded 
and what is the budget? 
Will this be an 
“Austerity School”?   
 
When will additional 
staff be recruited? 
 

Capital expenditure 
The provision of the new school building  will be 
funded by central government through the 
Education Funding Agency. It has tendered the 
work to nationally known construction companies. 
They do not make known  the budget for the 
programme but will  provide a building which 
conforms to  the standards set out in the recently 
revised building guidelines. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/school-
building-design-and-maintenance 
The EFA does not cover the cost of planning 
conditions which would need to be met by the 
Local Authority. 
Baseline designs for the primary and secondary 
schools were published following the work of the 
James Committee whose remit was to develop 
cost-effective building proposals. This is in part 
achieved through a degree of uniformity in 
appearance as well as bulk procurement.  It 

Page 38



 

 10 

cannot be assumed that they will lead to a 
reduced quality classroom experience 
Revenue budget 
The school receives its revenue  budget from the 
Direct Schools Grant which is administered by the 
local authority according to a the locally 
determined Fair Funding formula. This is  
considered and recommended by the Schools 
Forum. It is largely determined by the numbers of 
pupils on roll. Should the enlargement be agreed, 
the funding will therefore start to increase from 
September 2016.  

When will additional 
staff be recruited? 
 

The LA recognises that,  in order to plan 
effectively for gradual growth, some additional 
funding may be required at an earlier stage. The 
School’s Forum has agreed that schools 
experiencing major capital developments should 
be able to make a business case, tailored to meet 
the needs of their school, for appropriate 
management support. In addition schools may be 
able to agree a financial plan which will allow them 
to anticipate future funding in order to recruit 
teaching staff earlier to help plan for the changing 
nature of the school 

What benefit will 
expansion bring to the 
current users of the 
school 
 

Children and staff will benefit from being in a 
modern building with all activities taking place 
within one location, rather than dispersed across a 
number of portacabins around a main building. 
Running costs will be lower meaning that more of 
the school’s revenue budget will be available for 
staffing and materials.  
Many schools have used the experience of a 
building project as part of the curriculum for the 
year. 
Without expansion current users of the school 
may find that their local community loses an 
important aid to community cohesion, as families 
who may otherwise have expected to attend the 
school may not be able to access a school place. 

Inadequate consultation 
process with 
insufficient information.. 

Consultation was undertaken fully in line with 
statutory regulations.  

The initial consultation period was 6 weeks from 
Feb 3rd to March 17th. This is deemed to be 
an adequate time for responses.  The consultation 
leaflet invited views on the expansion of Sir 
Francis Drake..   A first stage consultation is very 
much focused on obtaining the views of 
governors, parents and children. 

The meeting of Mayor & Cabinet, April 9th 2014, 
was addressed by the Chair of Governors and the 
Headteacher of Sir Francis Drake. This is 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting.   

The Representation period has been completed in 
line with school organisation guidelines It provides  
an opportunity for other stakeholders to submit 
their views. following the publication 

Page 39



 

 11 

of a public notice.  

Should the enlargement be agreed there will be a 
further period  of consultation when the EFA 
submit a planning application for the proposed 
building. 
 

Failure of Council to 
provide new schools in 
the area. 

The Council has a severe shortage of sites for 
new schools.  The old Tidemill site and Deptford 
Green site are not available for educational 
purposes as these are earmarked for much 
needed housing and to replace the green space 
taken by the new Deptford Green school. A new 
school is proposed for inclusion in the Convoys 
Wharf development to meet the demand for 
places that will be generated.  Neighbouring Local 
Authorities also have severe pressures to provide 
additional school places to meet the needs of their 
residents. Few places will be created by 
them which are accessible by Lewisham residents 
in this locality.  

The shortage of sites means that the expansion of 
school places across the borough has been 
achieved mainly through the enlargement of 
existing schools. 
 

 

 

7. Factors relevant to a making a decision on school organisation proposals 

 When making a decision on a school organisation proposal the Decision Maker must 
consider the following factors: 

  
7.1 Consideration of consultation and representation period  

The decision-maker will need to be satisfied that the appropriate consultation and/or 
representation period has been carried out and that the proposer has had regard to 
the responses received. If the proposer has failed to meet the statutory requirements, 
a proposal may be deemed invalid and therefore should be rejected. The decision-
maker must consider all the views submitted, including all support for, objections to 
and comments on the proposal.  
The consultation has been undertaken in accordance with the statutory requirements. 
Stakeholders have been involved in the development of the proposal. The notice has 
been published as required. Views submitted, including all support for, objections to 
and comments on the proposal have been reported to the decision maker. 

 
7.2 Education standards and diversity of provision  
 Decision-makers should consider the quality and diversity of schools in the relevant 

area and whether the proposal will meet or affect the aspirations of parents, raise 
local standards and narrow attainment gaps.  

 The decision maker has received information on the schools in the relevant area, 
including the aspirations of parents.  

 The decision-maker should also take into account the extent to which the proposal is 
consistent with the government’s policy on academies as set out on the department’s 
website.  

 
 The government’s policy on academies does not apply to this proposal. 

Page 40



 

 12 

 
7.3 Demand  

In assessing the demand for new school places the decision-maker should consider 
the evidence presented for any projected increase in pupil population (such as 
planned housing developments) and any new provision opening in the area 
(including free schools).  

The Decision maker has received information on the projected demand for places 
which demonstrates that there is a sustained demand for places. 

The decision-maker should take into account the quality and popularity of the schools 
in which spare capacity exists and evidence of parents’ aspirations for a new school 
or for places in a school proposed for expansion. The existence of surplus capacity in 
neighbouring less popular schools should not in itself prevent the addition of new 
places.  

The Decision maker has received information on demand for places which 
demonstrates that there is no spare capacity in neighbouring schools. 

Reducing surplus places is not a priority (unless running at very high levels). For 
parental choice to work effectively there may be some surplus capacity in the system 
as a whole. Competition from additional schools and places in the system will lead to 
pressure on existing schools to improve standards.   
 
The proposal does not cover the removal of surplus places 

 
7.4 School size  

Decision-makers should not make blanket assumptions that schools should be of a 
certain size to be good schools, although the viability and cost-effectiveness of a 
proposal is an important factor for consideration. The decision-maker should also 
consider the impact on the LA’s budget of the need to provide additional funding to a 
small school to compensate for its size.  
 
The decision maker has received advice about the financial impact on the school and 
on the LA budget. 

 
7.5 Proposed admission arrangements (including post-16 provision)  
 In assessing demand the decision-maker should consider all expected admission 

applications, not only those from the area of the LA in which the school is situated.  

Before approving a proposal that is likely to affect admissions to the school the 
decision-maker should confirm that the admission arrangements of the school are 
compliant with the School Admissions Code. Although the decision-maker cannot 
modify proposed admission arrangements, the decision-maker should inform the 
proposer where arrangements seem unsatisfactory and the admission authority 
should be given the opportunity to revise them.  
 
The Decision maker has received information on current demand and on projections 
of likely future demand which are informed by trends in admissions. Sir Francis 
Drake is a Community school and the LA’s published Admissions arrangements 
apply. 

 
7.6 National Curriculum  

All maintained schools must follow the National Curriculum unless they have secured 
an exemption for groups of pupils or the school community.  
 
The Decision maker has been advised of the outcomes of Ofsted inspections of  Sir 
Francis Drake  Primary school which confirm that the school follows the National 
Curriculum. 

Page 41



 

 13 

 
7.7 Equal opportunity issues  

The decision-maker must have regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) of 
LAs/governing bodies, which requires them to have ‘due regard’ to the need to:  
I eliminate discrimination;  

I advance equality of opportunity; and  

I foster good relations.  

The decision-maker should consider whether there are any sex, race or disability 
discrimination issues that arise from the changes being proposed, for example that 
where there is a proposed change to single sex provision in an area, there is equal 
access to single sex provision for the other sex to meet parental demand. Similarly 
there should be a commitment to provide access to a range of opportunities which 
reflect the ethnic and cultural mix of the area, while ensuring that such opportunities 
are open to all. 
 
The Decision maker has received an Equality Analysis Assessment of the proposal 
to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School by 1 Form of Entry. This concludes that 
the proposal is beneficial to the community. 
 

7.8 Community cohesion  
 Schools have a key part to play in providing opportunities for young people from 

different backgrounds to learn with, from and about each other; by encouraging, 
through their teaching, an understanding of, and respect for, other cultures, faiths 
and communities. When considering a proposal, the decision-maker must consider 
its impact on community cohesion. This will need to be considered on a case-by-case 
basis, taking account of the community served by the school and the views of 
different sections within the community.  

 The Decision maker has received evidence of demand for places in the locality of Sir 
Francis Drake Primary school. The provision of sufficient places in local schools will 
promote community cohesion. 

 
7.9 Travel and accessibility  

Decision-makers should satisfy themselves that accessibility planning has been 
properly taken into account and the proposed changes should not adversely impact 
on disadvantaged groups.  

The decision-maker should bear in mind that a proposal should not unreasonably 
extend journey times or increase transport costs, or result in too many children being 
prevented from travelling sustainably due to unsuitable walking or cycling routes.  

A proposal should also be considered on the basis of how it will support and 
contribute to the LA’s duty to promote the use of sustainable travel and transport to 
school.  
 
The Decision maker has received advice of demand for places in the locality of Sir 
Francis Drake Primary school. The increase in places will reduce the likelihood of 
extended journey times by enabling families to access places in their local school. 

 
7.10 Capital  

The decision-maker should be satisfied that any land, premises or capital required to 
implement the proposal will be available and that all relevant local parties (e.g. 
trustees or religious authority) have given their agreement. A proposal cannot be 
approved conditionally upon funding being made available.  

Where proposers are relying on the department as the source of capital funding, 
there can be no assumption that the approval of a proposal will trigger the release of 

Page 42



 

 14 

capital funds from the department, unless the department has previously confirmed in 
writing that such resources will be available; nor can any allocation ‘in principle’ be 
increased. In such circumstances the proposal should be rejected, or consideration 
deferred until it is clear that the capital necessary to implement the proposal will be 
provided.  
 
The Decision maker has been advised that the land and premises are owned the 
local authority and the  capital costs of the development will be met through the 
Priority Schools Building Programme.  
 

7.11 School premises and playing fields  
Under the School Premises Regulations all schools are required to provide suitable 
outdoor space in order to enable physical education to be provided to pupils in 
accordance with the school curriculum; and for pupils to play outside safely. 
Guidelines setting out suggested areas for pitches and games courts are in place 
although the department has been clear that these are non-statutory.  

The Decision maker has received advice that the enlargement of Sir Francis  Primary 
School will be contained within the existing site and the school’s current 
arrangements for physical education and for pupils to play outside safely. The 
Decision maker is advised to note that, although Guidelines setting out suggested 
areas for pitches and games courts are in place, these are non-statutory.  

7.12 The Mayor is recommended to agree the proposal that Sir Francis Drake Primary 
school should be enlarged from 1 to 2 forms of entry with effect from September 
2016. 

 
8 Capital Financial implications  
 
8.1 In the period 2008/09 to 2016/17 the Government has made available £114.95m 

Basic need grant available.  In addition the Council has secured  other grants of 
£18.65m and identified £4.3m of Section 106 monies to support the programme.  
This makes the total resources available over the period £137.9m.  Against these 
resources the value of works estimated to be necessary are £157.25m to 
September 2016:  this leaves a shortfall of  £19.3m.  In the period to September 
2019 additional works of £55m are estimated which includes £50m to meet 
secondary places demand equivalent to two secondary schools. 

 
8.2 Capital Financial Implications 
 
8.2.1 The costs for the construction of Sir Francis Drake were intended to be met  

through the government’s Priority Schools Building Programme.  However it is 
now clear that the EFA will not pick additional costs resulting from planning 
permission requirements.  While the costs for these cannot be accurately 
determined at this stage, an allowance has been made in the expenditure 
forecasts set out in 8.1 above to fund any contribution toward costs as a result of 
those measures.  The Governing Body has raised concerns about the facilities to 
be provided as part of the build and asked that the local authority address these.   
No commitments have been made at this stage but discussions will continue if 
the proposals proceed as agreed. 

 
8.2.2 Although the LA had hoped to secure a rebuilt and expanded school at no cost, 

the contribution likely to be made will be a small proportion of the costs and could 
not be otherwise achieved with the resources available currently to the Council.  

   
8.2.3 The construction works will provide an additional 30 places in September 2016 

rising to a total of 210 additional places over the next 7 years. 
 
8.3 Revenue Financial Implications 

Page 43



 

 15 

 
8.3.1 The revenue costs of running the fully expanded accommodation will be funded 

from the Dedicated Schools Grant with no burden falling on the General Fund 
resources of the Council. 

 
9 Legal Implications  
 
9.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 safeguards the rights of children in the Borough to 

educational provision, which the Council is empowered to provide in accordance with 
its duties under domestic legislation. 

 
9.2 Section 14 of the Education Act 1996 obliges each local authority to ensure that there 

are sufficient primary and secondary schools available for its area i.e. the London 
Borough of Lewisham, although there is no requirement that those places should be 
exclusively in the borough. The Authority is not itself obliged to provide all the 
schools required, but to secure that they are available.  

 
9.3 In exercising its responsibilities under section 14 of the Education Act 1996 a local 

authority must do so with a view to securing diversity in the provision of schools and 
increasing opportunities for parental choice. 

 
9.4 Section 19 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 provides that where a local 

authority or the governing body of a maintained school proposes to make a prescribed 
alteration to a maintained school and it is permitted to make that alteration, it must 
publish proposals.  
 

9.5 The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England ) 
Regulations 2013 provide that proposed enlargements of school premises which would 
increase the capacity of the school by more than 30 pupils  and by 25% or 200 pupils 
(whichever is the lesser), or changes to the age limit of a school are prescribed 
alterations which means that statutory proposals have to be published, and there must 
be a period of four weeks for representations before a decision is made. This does not 
apply to temporary enlargements where it is anticipated that the enlargement will be in 
place for less than 3 years, or a rise in the number anticipated to last only one year.  

 

9.6 The Council, before making any decision regarding the expansion of a school, must 
ensure that capital funding is in place, interested parties have been consulted, the 
statutory notice is published and there has been a four week period for 
representation. 
 

9.7 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 
equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
9.8   In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 

need to: 
 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 

 
9.9 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be   attached to it is 

a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It 

Page 44



 

 16 

is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality 
of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 
9.10 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality 
Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The 
Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and 
attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The 
Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. 
This includes steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The 
guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, 
as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The 
statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-
of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 
9.11 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five 

guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  
 

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 

9.12 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It 
covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four documents 
provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 
information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-
duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
9.13 In deciding whether to agree the recommendations of this report, the Mayor must be 

satisfied that to do so is a reasonable exercise of his discretion on a consideration of 
all relevant matters and disregarding irrelevancies and having regard to all Guidance 
that he is statutorily required to consider. 

 
10 Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
10.1 There are no crime and disorder implications. 

 
11 Equalities Implications 
 
11.1 This report supports the delivery of the Council's Equalities programme by ensuring 

that all children whose parents /carers require a place in a Lewisham school will be 
able to access one. An Equalities Analysis Assessment has been undertaken and is 
attached as Appendix 8  

12 Environmental Implications 
 
12.1 Every effort will be made to enhance rather than detract from school 
 environments in the solutions to providing additional primary place 

 
13 Risk assessment 

Page 45



 

 17 

 
13.1 There are financial risks if insufficient funding is made available to support the 

delivery of the programme. There are also significant  reputational risks to the 
Council if it does not meet its statutory requirement to ensure sufficient primary 
school places are made available. 

14 Conclusion 
 
14.1 This report and background papers demonstrate that there is a clear need to expand 

primary provision to meet demand in the borough and in this locality. The 
enlargement proposed in this report will provide places in popular and successful 
schools in areas of high demand.  

 
14.2 The Mayor is therefore recommended to agree to the enlargement of  
 Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry with effect from 
 September 2016 
 
 
 
Background Documents 
Mayor & Cabinet April 9th 2014 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s28377/Permanent%20Primary%
20Places%20Holbeach%20John%20Ball%20Coopers%20Lane%20and%20Sir%20
Francis%20Drake.pdf 
 
 
Children and Young People Select Committee January 2014 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s26896/06PrimaryAndSecondary
SchoolPlacesPlanning29012014.pdf 
 
Mayor & Cabinet January 15th 2014 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s26528/Permanent%20Primary%
20School%20places.pdf 
 
Guidance on school organisation changes 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278422/Schoo
l_Organisation_Guidance_2014_-_Annex_B.pdf 
 
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact  
Margaret Brightman, Place Manager, ext 48034 
 
 
 

Appendix One Extract from the Minute of the meeting of Mayor & 
Cabinet April 9th 2014 

Appendix Two Sir Francis Drake Statutory Notice 

Appendix Three Sir Francis Drake Prescribed Information 

Appendix Four Sir Francis Drake : Response from Governors 

Appendix Five Petitions received  

Appendix Six Responses received during the representation period 

Appendix Seven Correspondence with Joan Ruddock MP 

Appendix Eight Equalities Impact Assessment: Sir Francis Drake to 
follow 

  

Page 46



 

Addendum 

The report sets out the outcomes of the representation period following a 
consultation on an opportunity to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 
to 2 forms of entry from September 2016. 

This addendum incorporates an additional petition, opposed to the demolition of Sir 
Francis Drake Primary, supported by 242 handwritten signatories, that was 
submitted at the end of the consultation period, to supplement the main report. 

This increases the total number of petitions received during the consultation period 
from 2 to 3, and the number of supporting signatories from 115 to 357. 

It has further transpired that only the first page of the ‘Online 38 Degrees’ petition 
was incorporated into Annex 5. 

As a consequence, the following Annexes and paragraphs of the report have been 
updated. 

In the light of the additional submissions, the relevant sections of the Mayor and 
Cabinet report are amended as follows: 

 

(APPENDIX FIVE - REFERENCES ON PPS 37 AND 46 OF COMMITTEE 
PAPERS; REPLACES PPS 65-66) 

1. The substitution of an updated Appendix Five, incorporating the additional petition 
and the complete 2-page ‘Online 38 Degrees’ petition.  

(PARAGRAPH 6.6.2 – P 37 OF COMMITTEE PAPERS) 

2. Paragraph 6.6.2 is revised as follows:) 

6.6.2 The representation period ran until June 10th. A written response was received 
from the Governing Body and can be found at Appendix Four. Three petitions 
were launched with 1, 114 and 242 signatories respectively. They are included 
as Appendix Five.  Eight Representations were received from parents and 
members of the community and are included at Appendix Six. One 
Representation was a letter written on behalf of 25 parents of children in the 
Reception class. In addition, the Evelyn Parents forum also wrote to the Mayor 
of Lewisham and to Joan Ruddock MP for Lewisham & Deptford. 
Correspondence with Joan Ruddock is included at Appendix Seven. 

 All the representations received during the Statutory Notice period opposed the 
proposal. 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
Report Title 

 
Measures to increase the supply of permanent primary school places: 
Report on the Representation period on proposal to enlarge Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School 

Key Decision 

 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 

 

Evelyn 

Contributors 

 

Executive Director for Children and Young People, Executive Director 
Regeneration & Resources, Head of Law 
 

Class 

 

Part 1 Date: June 25th 2014 

Page 47



1 

APPENDIX One 
  

Extract from the Minutes of the meeting of the Mayor & Cabinet April 9th 2014 
 

Permanent Primary Places Holbeach, John Ball, Coopers Lane and Sir 
Francis Drake 
 
An overview of the proposals was given by Councillor Helen Klier, the Cabinet 
Member for Children & Young People. She highlighted the major challenges 
being presented by escalating birth rates and stated the authority’s intention 
to provide places in good popular schools and wherever possible to avoid 
young children having to be bussed to school. 
 
The Executive Director for Children and Young People’s representative 
reported that while no responses had been received in connection with the 
Coopers Lane and John Ball proposals, multiple representations had been 
received regarding Holbeach and Sir Francis Drake Primary Schools. He 
pointed out an addendum had been tabled at the meeting containing an up to 
date summary of all the representations that had been received. 
The Mayor then indicated he would examine each school proposal 
individually. 
 
Sir Francis Drake Primary School 
The Mayor received a representation from Fraser Jupp, the Chair of 
Governors and Christine Barnes, the Head Teacher. Mr Jupp highlighted two 
concerns from their written response, firstly a query on the need for places in 
the locality given other provision coming on stream and secondly the possible 
flexibility in the Education Funding Agreement to enhance the scheme by 
providing an amended design proposal which would allow better and more 
imaginative use of space. 
 
The Executive Director for Children and Young People’s representative 
Confirmed to the Mayor that there was little prospect of the Education Funding 
Agency financing any enhancements and that refinements could only 
realistically be made with an injection of local authority funding.  
 
The Mayor suggested that as it would take some years for the school to reach 
its optimum capacity, there might be scope to add features. 
Officers said theycould attempt to negotiate future changes with the Education 
Funding Agency. 
 
Councillor Klier pointed out that the consultation had also raised concerns 
about traffic management issues and about the siting of toilets which needed 
to be addressed. 
 
Having listened carefully to the representations that had been made, the 
Mayor concluded he would approve the recommendation in relation to Sir 
Francis Drake School but that he expected the next stage report to have 
thoroughly explored all the concerns expressed by the school. 
 
 

Page 48



2 

Appendix Two 

 
 

 

Proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of 

entry  

Notice is given in accordance with section 19(1) of the Education and Inspections 

Act 2006 that London Borough of Lewisham intends to make a prescribed 

alteration to Sir Francis Drake Primary School, Community school, Scawen Road, 

Deptford SE8 5AE from 01 September 2016. 

Following a period of consultation, the London Borough of Lewisham proposes to 

enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry. This is in 

response to increasing demand for primary school places in the area served by the 

school. Housing development in the area means that local demand will continue to 

increase during this  decade with the risk that, without enlargement, choice for 

local families will become increasingly constrained. The additional 

accommodation required will be provided through the government’s Priority 

Schools Building Programme. The existing school buildings would need 

considerable investment on maintenance in the near future. Participation in the 

Priority Schools Building Programme will mean that new school  buildings can be 

provided.  

The proposal will be implemented in September 2016. 

The current capacity of the school is 210 and the proposed capacity will be 420. 

The number of pupils registered at the school at the time of the pupil census in 

January 2014 was 196. The current admission number for the school is 30 and the 

proposed admission number will be 60.  

The proposal will apply to pupils admitted to the Reception Year in September 

2016. 

This Notice is an extract from the complete proposal. Copies of the complete 

proposal can be obtained from: Margaret Brightman, Place Manager, Children & 

Young People Department, 3rd Floor Laurence House, 1 Catford Road, London 

SE6 4EH. 

Within four weeks from the date of publication of these proposals, any person 

may object to or make comments on the proposal by sending them to Margaret 

Brightman, Place Manager, Children & Young People Department, 3rd Floor 

Laurence House, 1 Catford Road, London SE6 4EH. 

Signed: 

Publication Date: May 14
th
 2014 

 

 

Page 49



3 

Appendix Three  

PROPOSALS FOR PRESCRIBED ALTERATIONS OTHER 
THAN FOUNDATION PROPOSALS: Information to be included 
in a complete proposal  

 

Extract of Part 1 of Schedule 3 and Part 1 of Schedule 5 to The School 

Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 

2007 (as amended): 

In respect of a Governing Body Proposal: School and governing body’s details 

1. The name, address and category of the school for which the governing body are 
publishing the proposals. 

 

The Proposal is published by the London Borough of Lewisham 

 
 

In respect of an LEA Proposal: School and local education authority details 

1. The name, address and category of the school . 

 

Sir Francis Drake Primary School, Scawen Road, Deptford SE8 5AE (Community 
School) 

 
 

Implementation and any proposed stages for implementation 

2. The date on which the proposals are planned to be implemented, and if they are to be 
implemented in stages, a description of what is planned for each stage, and the number of 
stages intended and the dates of each stage. 

 

It is proposed that the school’s planned admission number should be increased to 60 with 
effect from the 2016/17 intake of Reception pupils. The school will continue to admit 60 
Reception pupils each year thereafter. As a result, the school will be two forms of entry 
throughout by September 2022. 

 

 

Objections and comments 

3. A statement explaining the procedure for making representations, including — 

(a) the date prescribed in accordance with paragraph 29 of Schedule 3 (GB 
proposals)/Schedule 5 (LA proposals) of The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 (as amended), by 
which objections or comments should be sent to the local education authority; and 

(b) the address of the authority to which objections or comments should be sent. 

 

 

Page 50



4 

Margaret Brightman, Places Manager, Children & Young People Department, 3rd 
Floor Laurence House, 1 Catford Road, London SE6 4EH.  

 

Alteration description 

4. A description of the proposed alteration and in the case of special school proposals, a 
description of the current special needs provision. 

 

The Local Authority proposes to increase the planned admission number of the school 
from 30 to 60 pupils each year. This is in response to the sustained increase in demand 
for school places in the locality. The proposal is for a new school to be built on part of the 
existing playground.  Arrangements for play and sports during this period will be 
discussed with the Governing Body.   When the new building  is complete the school will 
move and the existing building will be demolished.. 

School capacity 

5.—(1) Where the alteration is an alteration falling within any of paragraphs 1 to 4, 8, 9 
and 12-14 of Schedule 2 (GB proposals)/paragraphs 1-4, 7, 8, 18, 19 and 21 of Schedule 4 
(LA proposals) to The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended), the proposals must also include — 

(a) details of the current capacity of the school and, where the proposals will alter the 
capacity of the school, the proposed capacity of the school after the alteration; 

 

The current capacity of the school is 210 pupils 

The proposed capacity of the school after the alteration will be 420 
 

 

(b) details of the current number of pupils admitted to the school in each relevant age 
group, and where this number is to change, the proposed number of pupils to be 
admitted in each relevant age group in the first school year in which the proposals 
will have been implemented;  

 

As at January 2014, the current number of pupils admitted to the school in each year 
group is as follows: 

Reception  30 

Year 1   30 

Year 2   30 

Year 3   30 

Year 4   30 

Year 5   30 

Year 6   30 

 

The proposed number of pupils to be admitted in each relevant year group in the first 
school year in which the proposals will have been implemented (2016/17) are as 
follows 

Reception  60 

Year 1   30 

Year 2   30 

Year 3   30 

Page 51



5 

Year 4   30 

Year 5   30 

Year 6   30 

 
 

 

(c) where it is intended that proposals should be implemented in stages, the number of 
pupils to be admitted to the school in the first school year in which each stage will 
have been implemented;  

 

It is proposed that the school will enlarge to 2 forms of entry across all year groups on 
an incremental basis through the admission of 60 pupils each year to the Reception 
Year Group. 60 pupils will be admitted from 2016. 

 
 

 

(d) where the number of pupils in any relevant age group is lower than the indicated 
admission number for that relevant age group a statement to this effect and details 
of the indicated admission number in question. 

 

In 2016/17 the indicated admission number for years 1,2,3,4 & 5 will be 30. Should 
vacancies arise in those year groups children will be admitted up to an admission 
number of 30. 

In 2017/18 the indicated admission number for years 2,3,4,5 & 6 will be 30. Should 
vacancies arise in that year group children will be admitted up to an admission number 
of 30. 

In 2018/19 the indicated admission number for years 3,4,5 & 6 will be 30. Should 
vacancies arise in that year group children will be admitted up to an admission number 
of 30. 

In 2019/20 the indicated admission number for years 4,5 & 6 will be 30. Should 
vacancies arise in that year group children will be admitted up to an admission number 
of 30. 

In 2020/21 the indicated admission number for years 5 & 6 will be 30. Should 
vacancies arise in that year group children will be admitted up to an admission number 
of 30. 

In 2021/22 the indicated admission number for year 6 will be 30. Should vacancies 
arise in that year group children will be admitted up to an admission number of 30. 

 
 

 

(2) Where the alteration is an alteration falling within any of paragraphs 1, 2, 9, 12 and 13 
of Schedule 2 (GB proposals) /paragraphs 1, 2, 8, 18 ands 19 of Schedule 4 (LA proposals) 
to The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) 
Regulations 2007 (as amended), a statement of the number of pupils at the school at the 
time of the publication of the proposals. 

Page 52



6 

 

At the time of the publication of the proposals the numbers of pupils on roll at Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School are as follows: 

Reception  29 

Year 1   29 

Year 2   28 

Year 3   28 

Year 4   26 

Year 5   27 

Year 6   29 

 
 

Implementation 

6. Where the proposals relate to a foundation or voluntary controlled school a statement 
as to whether the proposals are to be implemented by the local education authority or by 
the governing body, and, if the proposals are to be implemented by both, a statement as to 
the extent to which they are to be implemented by each body. 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake is a Community school. 

 
 

Additional Site 

7.—(1) A statement as to whether any new or additional site will be required if proposals 
are implemented and if so the location of the site if the school is to occupy a split site. 

 

No additional site will be required.  

 
 

 

(2) Where proposals relate to a foundation or voluntary school a statement as to who will 
provide any additional site required, together with details of the tenure (freehold or 
leasehold) on which the site of the school will be held, and if the site is to be held on a 
lease, details of the proposed lease. 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake is a Community school. 

 

 
 

Changes in boarding arrangements 

8.—(1) Where the proposals are for the introduction or removal of boarding provision, or 
the alteration of existing boarding provision such as is mentioned in paragraph 8 or 21 of 
Schedule 2 (GB proposals)/7  or 14 of Schedule 4 to The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 (as amended) — 

(a) the number of pupils for whom it is intended that boarding provision will be made if 
the proposals are approved; 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision . 
 

Page 53



7 

 

(b) the arrangements for safeguarding the welfare of children at the school; 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision . 
 

 

(c) the current number of pupils for whom boarding provision can be made and a 
description of the boarding provision; and 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision . 
 

 

(d) except where the proposals are to introduce boarding provision, a description of the 
existing boarding provision. 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision. 
 

 

(2) Where the proposals are for the removal of boarding provisions or an alteration to 
reduce boarding provision such as is mentioned in paragraph 8 or 21 of Schedule 2 (GB 
proposals)/7 or 14 of Schedule 4 (LA proposals) to The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 (as amended) — 

(a) the number of pupils for whom boarding provision will be removed if the proposals 
are approved; and 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision  
 

 

(b) a statement as to the use to which the former boarding accommodation will be put if 
the proposals are approved. 

 

Not applicable. Sir Francis Drake does not offer boarding provision  
 

Transfer to new site 

9. Where the proposals are to transfer a school to a new site the following information— 

(a) the location of the proposed site (including details of whether the school is to 
occupy a single or split site), and including where appropriate the postal address; 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 
 

 

(b) the distance between the proposed and current site; 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 

 

(c) the reason for the choice of proposed site; 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 
 

 

Page 54



8 

 

(d) the accessibility of the proposed site or sites; 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 
 

 

(e) the proposed arrangements for transport of pupils to the school on its new site; and 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 
 

 

(f) a statement about other sustainable transport alternatives where pupils are not 
using transport provided, and how car use in the school area will be discouraged. 

 

Not applicable. There is no proposal to transfer Sir Francis Drake to a new site. 
 

Objectives 

10. The objectives of the proposals. 

 

The objective of this proposal is to meet the growing demand for school places in the area. 

 

Sir Francis Drake is proposed for expansion because it is a popular school in an area of 

high demand. The school is consistently over-subscribed. 38 on-time first preference, 41 

second preference and 26 third preference applications were received for 30 places for 

entry in September 2014. 

 

The school was built in 1963 and is now reaching the end of its intended lifespan; it is 

starting to require expensive maintenance and upgrades. For this reason, the Local 

Authority submitted a successful bid to the government’s Priority School Building 

programme to rebuild and enlarge the school, to take account of the major maintenance 

works that would become due in the near future. 

 

The objective is to provide a modern school building which is fit for purpose within the 

Government’s revised guidelines for space.  

 
 

Consultation 

11. Evidence of the consultation before the proposals were published including— 

(a) a list of persons who were consulted; 

(b) minutes of all public consultation meetings; 

(c) the views of the persons consulted; 

(d) a statement to the effect that all applicable statutory requirements in relation to the 
proposals to consult were complied with; and 

(e) copies of all consultation documents and a statement on how these documents 
were made available. 

 

Page 55



9 

 

 

A full account of the consultation parents, pupils, staff and the Governing Body, and all 
the relevant documents are included in the report and addendum presented to the 
Mayor on April 9

th
 2014 – under Item 4. 

 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2856/Public%20reports%20pack%2009th-

Apr-2014%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

 
 

Project costs 

12. A statement of the estimated total capital cost of the proposals and the breakdown of 
the costs that are to be met by the governing body, the local education authority, and any 
other party. 

 

The expansion of Sir Francis Drake will be funded by the Department for 
Education’s Priority School Building Programme. The Education Funding Agency 
will manage the procurement and construction of the building. The Local Authority 
is managing the statutory process to enlarge the school. 

 

The scheme development is not yet at a stage where these costs can be 
quantified. 

 

The Local Authority will meet the cost of any planning conditions, including traffic 
management proposals.  

 
 

 

13. A copy of confirmation from the Secretary of State, local education authority and the 
Learning and Skills Council for England (as the case may be) that funds will be made 
available (including costs to cover any necessary site purchase). 

 

The Local Authority and the school have signed a memorandum of understanding 
with the EFA prior to the signing of contracts with the Secretary of State for the 
delivery of the school 

 

Age range 

14. Where the proposals relate to a change in age range, the current age range for the 
school. 

 

There is no proposal to change the age range of Sir Francis Drake Primary School. 
 

Early years provision 

15. Where the proposals are to alter the lower age limit of a mainstream school so that it 
provides for pupils aged between 2 and 5— 

Page 56



10 

(a) details of the early years provision, including the number of full-time and part-time 
pupils, the number and length of sessions in each week, and the services for 
disabled children that will be offered; 

 

Not applicable. 

There is no proposal to alter the provision for pupils aged between 2 and 5 at Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 

 

 

(b) how the school will integrate the early years provision with childcare services and 
how the proposals are consistent with the integration of early years provision for 
childcare; 

 

Not applicable. 

There is no proposal to alter the provision for pupils aged between 2 and 5 at  Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 

 
 

 

(c) evidence of parental demand for additional provision of early years provision; 

 

Not applicable. 

There is no proposal to alter the provision for pupils aged between 2 and 5 at  Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 

 
 

 

(d) assessment of capacity, quality and sustainability of provision in schools and in 
establishments other than schools who deliver the Early Years Foundation Stage 
within 3 miles of the school; and 

 

Not applicable. 

There is no proposal to alter the provision for pupils aged between 2 and 5 at  Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 

 
 

 

(e) reasons why such schools and establishments who have spare capacity cannot 
make provision for any forecast increase in the number of such provision. 

 

Not applicable. 

There is no proposal to alter the provision for pupils aged between 2 and 5 at  Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 

 
 

Changes to sixth form provision 

16. (a) Where the proposals are to alter the upper age limit of the school so that the 
school provides sixth form education or additional sixth form education, a statement of how 
the proposals will— 

(i) improve the educational or training achievements; 

Page 57



11 

(ii) increase participation in education or training; and 

(iii) expand the range of educational or training opportunities 

for 16-19 year olds in the area; 

 

Not applicable 
 

(b)  A statement as to how the new places will fit within the 16-19 organisation in an area; 

 

Not applicable 

(c)  Evidence — 

(i) of the local collaboration in drawing up the proposals; and 

(ii) that the proposals are likely to lead to higher standards and better progression at 
the school; 

 

Not applicable 

(d)  The proposed number of sixth form places to be provided. 

 

Not applicable 
 

 

17. Where the proposals are to alter the upper age limit of the school so that the school 
ceases to provide sixth form education, a statement of the effect on the supply of 16-19 
places in the area. 

 

Not applicable 
 

 

Special educational needs 

18. Where the proposals are to establish or change provision for special educational 
needs— 

(a) a description of the proposed types of learning difficulties in respect of which 
education will be provided and, where provision for special educational needs 
already exists, the current type of provision; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(b) any additional specialist features will be provided; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(c) the proposed numbers of pupils for which the provision is to be made; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

Page 58



12 

(d) details of how the provision will be funded; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(e) a statement as to whether the education will be provided for children with special 
educational needs who are not registered pupils at the school to which the 
proposals relate; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(f) a statement as to whether the expenses of the provision will be met from the 
school’s delegated budget; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(g) the location of the provision if it is not to be established on the existing site of the 
school;  

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(h) where the provision will replace existing educational provision for children with 
special educational needs, a statement as to how the local education authority 
believes that the new provision is likely to lead to improvement in the standard, 
quality and range of the educational provision for such children; and 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(i) the number of places reserved for children with special educational needs, and 
where this number is to change, the proposed number of such places. 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

19. Where the proposals are to discontinue provision for special educational needs— 

(a) details of alternative provision for pupils for whom the provision is currently made; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(b) details of the number of pupils for whom provision is made that is recognised by the 
local education authority as reserved for children with special educational needs 
during each of the 4 school years preceding the current school year; 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

Page 59



13 

(c) details of provision made outside the area of the local education authority for pupils 
whose needs will not be able to be met in the area of the authority as a result of the 
discontinuance of the provision; and 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

(d) a statement as to how the proposer believes that the proposals are likely to lead to 
improvement in the standard, quality and range of the educational provision for such 
children. 

 

Not applicable.  
 

 

20. Where the proposals will lead to alternative provision for children with special 
educational needs, as a result of the establishment, alteration or discontinuance of existing 
provision, the specific educational benefits that will flow from the proposals in terms of— 

(a) improved access to education and associated services including the curriculum, 
wider school activities, facilities and equipment with reference to the local education 
authority’s Accessibility Strategy; 

(b) improved access to specialist staff, both educational and other professionals, 
including any external support and outreach services; 

(c) improved access to suitable accommodation; and 

(d) improved supply of suitable places. 

 

Not applicable. 
 

Sex of pupils 

21. Where the proposals are to make an alteration to provide that a school which was an 
establishment which admitted pupils of one sex only becomes an establishment which 
admits pupils of both sexes— 

(a) details of the likely effect which the alteration will have on the balance of the 
provision of single sex-education in the area; 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

(b) evidence of local demand for single-sex education; and 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

(c) details of any transitional period which the body making the proposals wishes 
specified in a transitional exemption order (within the meaning of section 27 of the 
Sex Discrimination Act 1975). 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

Page 60



14 

 

22. Where the proposals are to make an alteration to a school to provide that a school 
which was an establishment which admitted pupils of both sexes becomes an establishment 
which admits pupils of one sex only— 

(a) details of the likely effect which the alteration will have on the balance of the 
provision of single-sex education in the area; and 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

(b) evidence of local demand for single-sex education. 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

Extended services 

23. If the proposed alterations affect the provision of the school’s extended services, 
details of the current extended services the school is offering and details of any proposed 
change as a result of the alterations. 

 

Not applicable. The proposal will not affect the school’s provision of extended 
services 

 
 

Need or demand for additional places 

24. If the proposals involve adding places— 

(a) a statement and supporting evidence of the need or demand for the particular 
places in the area; 

 

Sir Francis Drake is located in Primary Place Planning Locality 5, Deptford and New 
Cross. It is evident that demand in the New Cross and Deptford area is growing. 

 

The number of on-time applications for places at schools in the area has increased 
over the last 3 years.  

 

Year               No. of on-time applications (preferences 1-6) 

2012/2013     1,567 

2013/2014     1,637 

2014/2015     1,862 

 

The number of births in the area has increased by 29% (from 537 to 694) between 
September 1st 2000 and August 31st 2011.  

Additional permanent places have been provided at schools in the area. In 2012/13 
Kender Primary  School was enlarged from 1 to 2 Forms of Entry. The 
Haberdashers’ Aske’s Federation opened a 2 Form of Entry Free School to serve 
the area. The school admitted its first 60 pupils in September 2013 and will be full by 

Page 61



15 

2019.  

 

Full information on the demand for places in the borough can be found in the report 
and addendum presented to the Mayor & Cabinet April 9th 2014 – under Item 4. 

 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2856/Public%20reports%20pack%2009

th-Apr-2014%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

 

 
 

 

(b) where the school has a religious character, a statement and supporting evidence of 
the demand in the area for education in accordance with the tenets of the religion or 
religious denomination;  

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

(c) where the school adheres to a particular philosophy, evidence of the demand for 
education in accordance with the philosophy in question and any associated change 
to the admission arrangements for the school. 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

25. If the proposals involve removing places— 

(a) a statement and supporting evidence of the reasons for the removal, including an 
assessment of the impact on parental choice; and 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 

(b) a statement on the local capacity to accommodate displaced pupils. 

 

Not applicable. 

 
 

 
 
Expansion of successful and popular schools 
 
25A. (1) Proposals must include a statement of whether the proposer considers that the 
presumption for the expansion of successful and popular schools should apply, and 
where the governing body consider the presumption applies, evidence to support this. 
 
(2) Sub-paragraph (1) applies to expansion proposals in respect of primary and 
secondary schools, (except for grammar schools), i.e. falling within: 
 

Page 62



16 

(a) (for proposals published by the governing body) paragraph 1 of Part 1 to 
Schedule 2 or paragraph 12 of Part 2 to Schedule 2;  
  
(b) (for proposals published by the LA) paragraph 1 of Part 1 to Schedule 4 or 
18 of Part 4 to Schedule 4 
  
of the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended).  
  

 

Sir Francis Drake is a successful and popular school. It is judged by Ofsted to be 
a Good school. The most recent inspection occurred in October 2013 and can 
be accessed via the following link. http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-
inspection-report/provider/ELS/100712. The school has been oversubscribed on 
first preferences for entry in 2013 & 2014. 

  

 

Page 63



17 

Appendix Four 
Sir Francis Drake Primary School enlargement proposal 

 

Governing Body response 

 

The governors have given very serious consideration to the possibility of enlargement 

and our views are summarised below: 

Sir Francis Drake is a great 
school 
 

It is in the top 8% of schools in the country in the 2013 SATs. It 
was recognised by the DfE as being among the top 250 schools 
in the country measured by the progress made by 
disadvantaged pupils. It has great attendance and a waiting list 
for places in Reception. We recognise that it is a part of the 
local community and wants to provide a great education for as 
much of the community as it realistically can. 

Where teaching is enabled, 
not impeded, by its 
buildings. 

The current buildings may be worn, but the generous 
classrooms and flexible use of ancillary spaces allow a rich 
curriculum, and the individual attention to pupils that enable 
these results. 

So enlargement risks 
replacing a successful small 
school with a larger but less 
successful one. 

This is in nobody’s interest. We notice that the other 1FE school 
in the area is also highly successful, but enlargement of Sir 
Francis Drake would leave only two 1FE community schools in 
this part of the borough. There is no guarantee that all places 
will be filled, and we are concerned that, if all spaces are not 
filled, we would have to have some vertical classes; this is a 
cause for concern for parents and teachers. Even now, there are 
spaces in several years that have not been filled. 

We recognise the need for 
more places locally,  

But are disappointed that opportunities to build enough capacity 
into new developments (particularly the Surrey Canal Triangle 
and Convoy’s Wharf) have been missed, and other brownfield 
sites are not being considered. 

And can see potential 
benefits in enlargement, 

Enlargement could potentially bring better use of staff time (and 
better staff development opportunities), recruitment of specialist 
staff, lower overhead cost per child, greater energy efficiency 
and more productive use of some presently underused space.  

As long as we protect the 
things we value. 

Sir Francis Drake has a personal family feel that parents and 
children value. Most importantly the school has a strong ethos 
that relies on identifying children’s individual needs and 
providing the support that enables them to thrive. The children 
are well behaved and well-motivated as a result. The school 
itself is well laid out for active play with varied play areas and 
planting. 

But the proposed ‘austerity’ 
scheme threatens our 
success 

By reducing class room size and breakout space the focused 
education we are proud of will be much harder. The proposed 
classroom sizes are smaller than those in use elsewhere; we 
will be guinea pigs for these design restrictions. This is 
particularly hard felt as many of our children live in cramped 
accommodation where finding study space is hard. We need 
enough space for the teaching assistants and other support, as 
well as teachers and pupils.  
The current hall is at capacity for curriculum and extra 
curriculum use; the proposed one provides even less resource. 
The whole school will not be able to meet in one place. The 
proposed play ground is larger, but is not large enough to 

Page 64



18 

accommodate all children at once, and the separation of KS1/2 
will be harder to achieve. The inside toilets are not accessible 
from the play area. 
We would like to add that while we understand that detailed 
design work under the EFA scheme is still to take place, we 
have only had a site sketch to base our response on. We have 
not been able to undertake any detailed planning or assess the 
full impact of the project. 

So we are opposed to 
enlargement under the 
present scheme unless… 

We believe that the EFA funded scheme worsens the school’s 
ability to deliver outstanding education. If enlargement is 
unavoidable, we would look to the local authority to enhance the 
scheme so that sufficient flexibility can be designed in from the 
outset. This would be good value for the local authority, as the 
bulk of the capital costs are still being met by the EFA.  
 
We ask LBL to undertake to: 
 
Allow and fund appropriate use of Deptford Park for additional 
play/sports space during and after construction 
Fund additions to the scheme that will enable larger classes 
now and later addition of flexible spaces (such as services 
provision in other parts of the site) 
Resolve traffic issues on Scawen & Grinstead Roads to ensure 
child safety and funds the necessary adaptations 
Confirm resources will be available for fit out (where current 
equipment can’t be re-used (e.g. wall bars, Southampton cage, 
IT suite). 
Confirms adequate funding arrangements while numbers are 
still increase (but overheads are potentially higher). 
Investigate and funds appropriate energy saving and other 
enhancements (such as rainwater harvesting) that will reduce 
running costs in the future.  
 

 

Fraser Jopp  

Chair of Governors 

Sir Francis Drake Primary School 

21 May 2014 

Page 65



19 

Appendix Five 

Petitions raised during the Representation period 

 

Petition posted on Lewisham.gov.uk 

We are parents of children at Sir Francis Drake (SFD). Most of us have chosen SFD because it is a 
small primary school with a good record of academic achievement and has been part of our local 
community for over 50 years now. The School is located on a small site which we believe is appropriate 
for the current size of the School (210 pupils). Our children enjoy good inside and outside space and 
although the school might not be sleek and modern it is still in a good condition and has all the facilities 
necessary to ensure that its pupils and staff can work together as one happy family.  
 
We are very concerned about the proposed plans to enlarge SFD. We believe that doubling the school 
to 420 pupils will completely change the school's personality. The size of the school and the close-knit 
community that arose from this, were the key reasons why we chose SFD in the first place. The 
expansion would result in having a large building on the same size of land which could potentially lead 
to significant reduction class spaces, cramped common areasand smaller outdoor facilities, which would 
simply not accommodate 420 children appropriately.  

 
We are particularly concerned about the lack of information on the proposed building plans and how the 
Lewisham Council proposes to carry out building works alongside the ongoing functioning of the school. 
A number of us tried to obtain this information from your department but none was provided. In order for 
it to be a fair consultation process rather than a tick-box exercise we request the following:  
 
- Details of proposed building works and detailed plans of the proposed school layout  
 
- The budget for these works and who will be providing it  
 
- How the proposed changes will affect the current classroom sizes and the outdoor space  
 
- What is the added value that the proposed expansion will bring to the CURRENT users of the school  
 
- How the Council is going to handle the teaching process while the proposed building works take place  
 
- How and when would new staff be recruited to deal with the additional numbers  
 
Until we receive the above information we will continue to strongly oppose the expansion of our School.  

 
Although we understand that there is a need for further primary school places in the area we do not feel 
that it is fair for our school to bear the responsibility to provide these in the manner which is currently 
being proposed. The Council has approved a lot of new building in the area close to SFD but failed to 
secure the provision of new schools to meet the demand. This is utterly irresponsible and can only be 
met with opposition from the local residents and particularly from families with children in SFD.  

 

Page 66



20 

 

Page 67



 

 21

 DESCRIPTION RESPONSE 
AGE 

GROUP 
SEX ETHNICITY COMMENTS      APPENDIX SIX 

1 Parent/Carer No 
Not 
stated 

F Not stated 

We wish for our objections to this proposal to be included as a 
representation. We object to the proposals for the following reasons: 
 

• The school is on a small site and it would be unreasonable to expect this 
site to accommodate more pupils without an adverse impact on health 
and safety and learning through physical movement and free play; 

• The expansion will change the unique character, culture and ethos of the 
school and is likely to impact standards: larger schools consistently 
underperform in measures of attainment and outcomes; 

• The classrooms will be smaller and fewer per capita constraining the 
numbers of targeted interventions that school can reasonably offer to 
small groups of learners; 

• Impact on local traffic volume and severe risk to the lives of pupils 
walking near roads from said increased traffic as the pavements in this 
area are often completely inaccessible due to incessant fly tipping; there 
is much irresponsible driving behaviour locally anyway due to skip lorries 
hurtling towards the Surrey Canal area at dangerous speeds; 

• There is a dearth of school places, agreed, but many sites locally have 
been allowed unprecedented freedom via local planners to expand and 
develop masses of high density housing in a fashion that creates this 
situation due to lack of associated infrastructure (schools and community 
resources); 

• Large school sites (Deptford Green KS4, the old Tidemill site on 
Frankham Street) are being sold to developers to make way for more 
high density housing, rather than being reconfigured as new build stand 
alone schools 

 

P
age 68



 

 22

 

 DESCRIPTION RESPONSE 
AGE 

GROUP 
SEX ETHNICITY COMMENTS      APPENDIX SIX 

      

• The budget nature of this proposal is concerning on a number of levels: 
no one has seen more detailed plans so there is a risk that the proposed 
development will go ahead to be followed by a cheap, ugly building that 
carries substantial costs to maintain; 

      

• The long term maintenance and management plan is also of concern 
and carries risk incumbent on the school re upkeep and repayments; 

• There is insufficient evidence available that it would not be financially 
viable to repair and refurbish the current school building; 

 
The consultation process has been poor - most local residents have had 
no information about the proposals, and what limited info has been 
provided has been most partisan on the side of enlargement; 
All this disruption and upheaval for an additional thirty places per year, it 
hardly seems worth it, except for those who hold the purse strings, we 
suspect. 

2 Parent/Carer No 
Not 
stated 

M Not stated Comment as above – joint submission 

3 Parent/Carer No 
Not 
stated 

F Not stated 

I am writing to register my opposition to the plans to knock down and 
expand Sir Francis Drake School, and to utterly condemn the way in which 
the LA has acted, allowing massive expansion and the development of 
thousands of flats without planning adequate infrastructure - including 
schools - to service the needs of a community allowed to grow 
exponentially. I am a local resident and parent of three children, two of 
whom attend this school, and am appalled at the lack of vision and creative 
thinking being applied to the problem of insufficient school places. 
Needless to say, I oppose the plan to demolish a perfectly sound building 
which houses a thriving and successful school community and to erect a 
'budget build' in its place. There are numerous vacant sites which could 
house a two or three form entry school, one being the old Charlotte Turner 

P
age 69



 

 23

School, another being the vast Convoys Wharf development which seems 
almost entirely geared to providing ever more flats. Why there has been no 
inclusion of a school building in this development is a complete mystery, 
 
The  current SFD school site cannot house twice as many children safely: 
the outdoor place space is really rather tiny as it stands. The new 
classrooms are, I understand going to offer 'reduced space' to pupils. 
When can the increased population of children move around then? Neither 
inside nor out it seems. And this in the context of a rise in sedentary 
childhood and early childhood obesity. Shameful.  
 
There is good evidence to show that smaller schools lead to better 
outcomes for children, both academic and in terms of social and emotional 
wellbeing and adjustment. I therefore do not understand why the LA feel 
the best course of action is to knock down a small, successful school and 
replace it with a much larger one, altered in character and diluted in terms 
of resourcing and infrastructure. The proposal is all about achieving 
economies of scale rather than promoting better pupil outcomes and high 
achievement for economically disadvantaged inner city pupils.  
 
It is clear that there is commitment to this scheme from Lewisham Council 
and that it is being pushed through very quickly without effective process, 
transparency of plans and proper information sharing and consultation with 
local residents. Local families and residents haven't been made aware of 
the proposal, no one seems able to say what kind of school is being 
planned to go in the place of SFD and there has been next to no 
information provided re: the implications for increased traffic volume, car 
parking space and associated road safety concerns for local children. My 
own child had a very near miss recently when a parent dropping off 
reversed dangerously over the zig zag markings and hit the railing he was 
standing behind. It provokes real anxiety to think how children will travel 
safely to school with increased traffic volume for a school of double the 

P
age 70



 

 24

size.... Particularly in an area routinely targeted by fly tippers, making 
pavements nearby (Kezia St) often completely inaccessible to pedestrians 
due to mattresses, sofas and other rubbish blocking the way.  
 
The 'consultation' process within the school community was extremely 
skewed, with the benefits of expansion given maximum airplay, with no 
detail of the plans offered to inform the discussion and no exploration of the 
challenges, risks and potential hazards of rebuilding (asbestos removal, 
reduced space for physical play, for example). Children and families were 
not encouraged to each have a proper say, as only two children per class 
completed the consultation, and only one (biased) letter + consultation form 
went home per family. And local residents were not consulted or engaged 
at all. I think that Lewisham are hoping to benefit from a local populace who 
are poorly informed, rather apathetic and - in many cases - made up of 
short term lessees who have little investment in, or wish to shape, the local 
community.  
 
I vehemently oppose the planning application for this proposal. I would like 
to register my educational concerns. I would also like to be notified as soon 
as the LA obtains the planning application for this proposed scheme, so 
that I can look at this in detail and again raise my strongest objections. 
 

4 Parent/Carer No 
Not 
stated 

F Not stated 

I chose Sir Francis Drake school for my son for how close and caring the 
teachers are towards their pupils. My son education has improved 
massively thanks to the school. I believe my son and the other pupils 
education will suffer if the enlargement goes ahead. I am against the 
enlargement. Why should the children have smaller classroom, dinner hall 
and corridors? Every term the years have a school assembly with all the 
years there to watch. If the enlargement happens there will not be enough 
space to accommodate all the pupils which will be a disappointment. I 
believe this brings all the pupils together; all the pupils know each other 
names; Year 6 know the names of reception pupils. I think it is unfair the 

P
age 71



 

 25

children of Sir Francis Drake and the teacher will suffer due to the 
Government wanting to save money. It is disgusting that the Government 
want to make a flat pack school by doing this. These children spend most 
of the early life in school; they deserve to have a well built and equipped 
school like everyone else in this borough has. 
 
Sir Francis Drake is also on the corner of a busy and dangerous road. It’s 
dangerous now to get across; how will it be with the double of pupils and 
parents trying to cross? 
 
It really is unfair that the Government are not thinking or willing to protect 
the pupils who are already at Sir Francis Drake. The education and safety 
of these children should be considered too. 

5 Parent/Carer No    

I would like to state my case AGAINST the school enlargement of Sir 
Francis Drake. 
 
My daughter first attended [REDACTED] Primary School. In Year 1 she 
was being bullied by her 'best friend' and when I raised this with the school, 
showing pictures of marks on her neck where her 'friend' tried to strangle 
her, told them of her having nightmares, explained how this other child 
(Vietnamese) was racist against black children, (my child was the only 
white child in the class and when she tried to play with other children the 
'friend' would get angry with my daughter) nothing was done about it. I 
decided to move her out of the school. 
 
My daughter moved to SFD half way through Year 1 and started in Jan 
2013. She loved it from week one, has developed greatly, speaks 
confidently and truly enjoys all aspects of her varied curriculum. 
 
I don't believe she would have adapted to the change as well had she 
moved to a school similar to that of [REDACTED] Primary School. 
 

P
age 72



 

 26

I believe that the current size of SFD is what makes it such a successful 
school. Successful in results; successful in its comfortable feel; successful 
in its personal, family feel; successful in its production of well rounded, 
intelligent, respectful and polite students. The first thing I noticed, anyone 
notices, when first visiting the school is how friendly and open the children 
are. Everyone knows everyone and helps everyone when needed. The 
'whole school assembly's' are great and teach the students to be respectful 
of each other and support each other. 
 
The staff at SFD are all approachable (to both students and parents) and 
deal with any situations straight away and follow up on them. They believe 
in fairness, diversity, and focusing on the development of individuals as 
well as supporting group work. 
 
Increasing the school size, just aesthetically will immediately eradicate its 
friendly, relaxed, family, personal feel. It has the risk of becoming just 
another inner city, under achieving school with cramped teaching space 
and limited space for the vast number of intended students to come 
together in one assembly. And one with teachers too busy to get know 
students individually, too busy to get to know their families, and who aren't 
interested in helping where help is needed. In teaching students the basics 
but not having the time to invest in giving each student the individual 
attention they need to become the best they can be. 
 
I believe SFD should remain as it is, a successful school. 

6 Parent/Carer No 
Not 
stated 

F Not stated 

Firstly, it should be noted that the Statutory Notice outside SFD does not 
explain or make it clear to parents or the local people that the proposal is to 
DEMOLISH Sir Francis Drake Primary School (SFD) in order to find just 30 
additional places per year. 
 
It is difficult to think that once Lewisham Council has succeeded in 
demolishing Sir Francis Drake Primary School for the sake of just 30 

P
age 73



 

 27

additional places per year, they will then need to address this matter fully 
and actually find a way to build the new primary schools necessary to cater 
for the rising local demand from the many new families that are being 
introduced in to the area. 
 
When these new schools are finally built as the real solution to find the 
primary places for local children sadly, for Sir Francis Drake Primary 
School, this will all come too late as it will have already been demolished 
and permanently changed into a different type of school entirely. The 
proposed ‘re-build’ retains nothing of the original school. 
 
It is understood that the proposed new school building will be an ‘Austerity’ 
build with reduced sized classrooms. The new building will also have to be 
located far to one side of the school site in order for double the amount of 
children (420) to receive enough ‘allowable’ space.  
 
The question is: Why would a council do this to the existing 210 children or 
to the proposed 420 children of SFD? This proposal is being enforced 
without any money from Lewisham Council or due consideration to the 
existing thriving, hard working school in an already notably deprived area. 
The children at SFD need more given to them and not less in order for 
them to continue to thrive. This proposal is being so coldly handled that 
does not deliver or even address the care needed for the children at SFD. 
 
Despite the Mayor visiting the school recently, several of the older children 
were quite upset afterwards and the younger children are too young to 
know they are about to lose their school as they know it. 
 
All schools require money to maintain them but the notice is unclear as to 
the ‘considerable investment’ it refers to? This is an important issue 
because the proposal will use PSBP funding. PSBP funding ‘addresses the 
needs of those schools in the very worst condition’. Therefore a strong and 

P
age 74



 

 28

determined case would have needed to be made by Lewisham Council in 
the case of SFD in order to obtain this funding? This is confusing because 
it is obvious that SFD is not at all in ‘the very worst condition’ and it is also 
documented by Lewisham Council that SFD is ‘a well maintained school’? 
Obviously without the obtained PSBP funding there would be no proposed 
demolition of Sir Francis Drake Primary School. 
 
In addition, this proposal is not very transparent and does not give the 
necessary information needed to have any kind of informed input and in 
fact it does not appear to be a very democratic process overall. This can 
only make one think that the proposal will be imposed at whatever the cost 
to this school. 
 
I am therefore confirming that I am opposed to the proposal and I would 
like to ask the Mayor and Lewisham Council to kindly re-consider this 
proposal and to find an alternative solution regarding Sir Francis Drake 
Primary School. 

7 Parent/Carer No    

I am objecting to the Statutory Notice Proposal for Sir Francis Drake 
Primary School. 
 
As you may or may not know Evelyn Ward is named in a lottery bid 
application through Better Start (CYP Frankie Sulke) and has undergone 
an extensive investigation to discover what is the Toxic Stress for 
preventing children 0yrs - 8yrs from reaching their full potential. Evelyn 
Ward is the most deprived area in the borough 37% of children living in 
poverty families are in overcrowded housing on low income, high levels of 
lone parent families, neglect and abuse, high levels of domestic abuse , 
substance misuse, mental health and reduced social community 
engagement. 
 
Sir Francis Drake's Evelyn Ward are the children are living in this "Toxic 
Stress" and can add the following 

P
age 75



 

 29

• 52% of our school pupils are have English as a second language 

• 41% are on free school meals and 
The proportion of disabled pupils and special educational needs is 
above average. 
 
In spite of the toxic stress this small school was Ofsted inspected 2013 
as good with a number of number of outstanding features. 
Reception pupils join with skills below levels typical for their age by the 
time they reach Year 1 they have reach typical levels. 
 
Year 1 higher than national proportion of pupils who well in the phonics 
screen check. 
By the end of year 6 most pupils reach standards above those found 
nationally in English and Maths. 
Disabled pupils and those with SEN are effectively supported and 
make better than expected progress. 
 
Currently it is in the top 8% of schools in the country in the 2013 SATs and 
is recognised by the DfE as being among the top 250 schools in the 
country measured by the progress made by disadvantaged pupils. 
 
My son has a Statement of Education needs for Autism Spectrum Disorder 
in a class of 28 (with 7 peers on school action plus) he is thriving in this 
wonderful small school. It is inclusive and diverse catering for the most and 
less needy together. It works brilliantly it provides a small family 
environment all supporting each other from reception to year 6. But now my 
son is already full of anxiety at the prospect of his school being "knocked 
down, being made smaller in space and having lots of lots strangers in it". 
 
The school needs some little maintenance done but demolishing it to 
provide 30 reception places to join in Sept 2016 is the worst case scenario 
for this successful inclusive and diverse little school. 

P
age 76



 

 30

 
How is that funding justified to demolish to avoid maintaining a great 
school? 
 
To consider allowing the EFA to build the first pilot Austerity school in the 
country as a replacement is a sorry reward for all the hard work achieved 
thus far - One of the council pledges is to improve secondary results by 
10% to do, this you need to copy the formula of this primary school not 
demolish it. 
 
9.2.9 The building delivered by the Education Funding Agency will be in 
line with the specifications agreed by the James Committee. The focus will 
be on the delivery of a modern functional building which meets the 
government’s revised guidelines for space which have recently been 
revised down from those previously published. The standardised designs 
offer less flexibility in design in order to reduce construction costs. The 
budget will not meet the cost of any additional planning conditions. 
 

The Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) is seriously concerned 

about the unproven ‘Austerity School’ scheme. RIBA President Angela 

Brady said: 

'Our students, teachers and local communities deserve great schools - 
environments that are beneficial to the best-quality teaching and learning. 
In these times of austerity of course we need to cut our cloth on all 
spending; however, the government's proposals for the design and 
construction of future schools are far too restrictive with too much focus on 
short-term savings. 
 
The school is never full to capacity Ofsted shows 202 for 210 this area has 
a highly transient population children come and go leaving in year gaps. 

P
age 77



 

 31

 
We note that the LA advisors are justifying demolition our little school to 
serve primarily the needs of the Surrey Union Triangle where major 
housing developments of Marine Wharf and The Wharves are bringing in 
residents and future needs. 
 
However the projections I find in your January 15 2014 council meeting 
shows with currently Kender Primary school and Haberdasher Aske's 
expansions no additional requirements are projected right up until 
2020/21! 
 
January 15 2014 
 
Projected demand for Reception 
Year   PAN Projection Additional Requirement 
2014/15 510 476  0 
2015/16 510 500  0 
2016/17 510 487  0 
2017/18 510 500  0 
2018/19 510 504  0 
 
The LA has not retained sites available at old Tide Mill primary school and 
old Deptford Green sites to build a new school(s). But there are sites locally 
that Lewisham Council have for Sale big enough to accommodate a two 
form baseline design school in close proximity to the housing 
developments planned. 
 
We think joined up thinking would be better;- we are lucky to be in the 
Surrey Union Triangle in close proximity of Greenwich and Southwark of 
which many of our local families are accepted in to their schools; 
Greenwich are returning schools places back in to operation at Charlotte 
Turner and Royal Hill schools there is a International Greenwich free 

P
age 78



 

 32

school supported by Michael Gove looking for site to open and Southwark 
have a plan for 2FE in Rotherhithe for summer 2016 and there is a plan for 
Convoys Wharf to build a 2FE school in our area too. 
 
Refer your advisors to 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/f
ile/185804/CUBEC-11-2012.pdf 
 
Why would popular schools ever choose to expand when there are no 
obvious incentives to do so, the are the questioning costs reducing the 
learning space children will have, of adding considerable extra 
administrative and management burden, financial issues and the potential 
for reducing academic achievement. Is it the primary role to make schools 
better or bigger (in our case smaller)? I think it is to make schools better so 
there is no incentive for this proposal. 
 
There are so many better solutions that Lewisham can do to reduce "Toxic 
Stress" start with protecting Sir Francis Drake's Evelyn Ward children 1 FE 
school, please halt the process - now take a look with new eyes at this 
proposal and the real need for an additional new school for planned 
housing developments. 

8 Parent/Carer No    

Parents of Reception Class (signed by 25 parents) 
We are writing to you with regards to the proposed plans to enlarge Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 
 
We are parents of Reception Class children at Sir Francis Drake {SFD). 
Most of us have chosen SFD because it is a small primary school with a 
good record of academic achievement and has been part of our local 
community for over 50 years now. The School is located on a small site 
which we believe is appropriate for the current size of the School (210 
pupils). Our children enjoy good inside and outside space and although 
the school might not be sleek and modern it is still in a good condition and 

P
age 79



 

 33

has all the facilities necessary to ensure that its pupils and staff can work 
together as one happy family. 
 
We are very concerned about the proposed plans to enlarge SFD. We 
believe that doubling the school to 420 pupils will completely change the 
school's personality. The size of the school and the close-knit community 
that arose from this, were the key reasons why we chose SFD in the first 
place. The expansion would result in having a large building on the same 
size of land which could potentially lead to significant reduction of class 
spaces, cramped common areas and smaller outdoor facilities, which 
would simply not accommodate 420 children appropriately. 
 
We are particularly concerned about the lack of information on the 
proposed building plans and how the Lewisham Council proposes to carry 
out building works alongside the ongoing functioning of the school. A 
number of us tried to obtain this information from your department but 
none was provided. In order for it to be a fair consultation process rather 
than a tick-box exercise we request the following: 

• Details of proposed building works and detailed plans of the proposed 
school layout 

• The budget for these works and who will be providing it 

• How the proposed changes will affect the current classroom sizes and 

the outdoor space  

• What is the added value that the proposed expansion will bring to the 

CURRENT users of the school 

• How the Council is going to handle the teaching process while the 
proposed building works take place 

• How and when would new staff be recruited to deal with the additional 
numbers 

P
age 80



 

 34

 
Until we receive the above information we will continue to strongly oppose 
the expansion of our School. 
 
Although we understand that there is a need for further primary school 
places in the area we do not feel that it is fair for our school to bear the 
responsibility to provide these in the manner which is currently being 
proposed. The Council has approved a lot of new building in the area 
close to SFD but failed to secure the provision of new schools to meet the 
demand. This is utterly irresponsible and can only be met with opposition 
from the local residents and particularly from families with children in SFD. 

 

P
age 81



 

 35 

APPENDIX SEVEN 

Correspondence to Joan Ruddock from Evelyn Parents  

 

Joan Ruddock 

28/3/14 

We are asking for Sir Francis Drake Primary (SFD) to be spared in the process of the 

Lewisham Council’s School Enlargement Scheme. 

We are asking this because Lewisham Council has earmarked SFD for complete demolition, 

a decision that cannot be reversed. 

Consultation Process 
The consultation process has been conducted in an unacceptable way. 

• The consultation document gave every appearance of being simply an "issues paper". It 

contained no actual proposals or visible plans and the information given to consultees was 

wholly insufficient for anyone to make an informed response. 

 

• The lack of detail in the proposal hides the real plan to demolish the entire school which in 

fact should have been the highlight of the proposal as this is what makes the SFD 

enlargement different to the previous Lewisham schools earmarked for enlargement 

 

Every previous school expansion proposal has been agreed at the Mayors council meeting 

despite strong opposition (Jan 15 204 council meeting) from pupils, parents and 

reservations from concerned governors. 

The document does not say if your views will influence the proposal at the Mayors next 

council meeting in April. 

 

Majority of Parents feel that it is pointless as it is a foregone conclusion so didn’t bother to 

fill out the form 

 

Some parents reported had tried to do online consultation but couldn’t get it to submit  

 

ESOL parents 52% have no idea what the consultation is about paper was in English only 

 

•  3 sessions (on one day) was hosted at the school by Margaret Brightman LA. 

This was not highly emphasised as being the only opportunity to question and engage in 

conversations about the proposal, which meant many parents failed to recognise the 

importance of attending or making arrangements eg for work or for childcare to attend- 

 in addition there were no interpreters offered (52 %of SFD parents are ESOL). This ensured 

low turnout and only those that attended got information. 

 

• The SFD consultation  even its poor format has not been extended and circulated to the 

members of the local community even though there is provision for them to be included in 

the consultation which ended on the 17
th

 March we are concerned that this is against the 

equalities monitoring policy. 

 

• The consultation presents no concrete evidence that the demolition is needed - this is an 

irreversible decision.  

 

 

 

Page 82



 

 36 

 

Question of Need? 

 

From the consultation document Lewisham Council says there has been a 29% increase in 

births from 2000/01 however currently SFD is not at full capacity as stated in October 

2013 Ofsted report pupil numbers are 202 out of 210. 

According to the Mayor and Cabinet meeting of 15 Jan 2014 - see below - the information 

suggests there is no real need for additional requirement. 

Therefore demolition of SFD is not justified. 

 

Mayor & Cabinet January 15th 2014  

 Sir Francis Drake Primary School  

  

9.1 Additional Requirement – Deptford and New Cross  

9.1.1 Sir Francis Drake Primary School is located in Primary Place Planning  

Locality 5,  Deptford and New Cross. Typically there is a low level of  

on-time applications compensated for by a high level of late applicants.  

This year there has also been a high number of in-year applicants from  

the area. There is a considerable housing development in the area,  

including brown-field sites for which Sir Francis Drake will be the  

nearest school. Whereas the birth rate in some areas has stabilised, it  

continues to increase in this part of the borough.  

  

 Births  

Births September 1st 2000 to August 31st 2001 537  

Births September 1st 2009 to August 31st 2010 655  

Births September 1st 2010 to August 31st 2011 694  

Increase 2000/01 to 2010/11 29%  

Increase 2009/10 to 2010/11 6%  

 

9.1.2 Additional permanent places have been provided at schools in the area  

In 2012/13 Kender Primary School was enlarged from 1 to 2FE. The  

Haberdashers’ Aske’s Federation opened a 2FE Free School to serve  

the area. The school admitted its first 60 pupils in September 2013 and  

will be full by 2019.  

  

9.1.3 Projections to 2017/18 suggest that, with these enlargements, the  

supply of places is sufficient to meet demand. However current  

experience is that additional Reception places will be required in the  

2013/14 school year to meet the demand created by in-year  

applications. This suggests that the increase in population forecast for  

the end of the decade has started earlier. This may be due to the high  

levels of rented accommodation in the area.  

  

 Projected demand for Reception  

Year PAN Projection Additional Requirement  

2014/15 510 476 0  

2015/16 510 500 0  

2016/17 510 487 0  

2017/18 510 500 0  

2018/19 510 504 0   

     

Page 83



 

 37 

2019/20 510 510 0  

2020/21 510 513 0  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Missing from Lewisham Council calculations  
 

• A proposed 2FE (420 places of which 187 will be used by new residents and remaining to 

LBC )  

• Joined up thinking with our very close neighbouring boroughs Greenwich with empty 

Charlotte Turner and Royal hill school coming back in to use and proposal for  a new school 

the International Academy of Greenwich.  

• Southwark council also have new school planned for Rotherhithe to combat 270 place 

shortfall for Sept 2016  

• Empty school sites at Deptford Green old split site and old Tidemill primary school  

 

 

 

Financial 

There is a need for transparency as this is Tax payer’s money under the governments Priority 

building programme and this seems to be a moulding of the figures to qualify for funding 

stream criteria. 

This is in question because once the school has been demolished funding will have to be 

found to rebuild. 

 

What are financial arrangements? - build costs, contract type, break clauses within the 

contract, maintenance forecasts, and all the other linked financial arrangements and cost 

model details for the proposed contract.  

The formula applied by Partnership for Schools (PFS) is that the required threshold for 

bidding for funds is that the value of planned refurbishment works (given by the council to be 

estimated at £765,810) comprises no less than 30% of the cost of the rebuild.  The local 

authority have not provided adequate information to show that this is indeed the case for our 

school.  

 

 

Background information  

 

Sir Francis Drake is in Evelyn Ward which is currently an area that has been identified as an area that fulfils 

necessary criteria for a 10 year programme for the Better Start lottery bid January 2014 to end "Toxic Stress". 

 

Better Start Lottery Team comprises of Voluntary Action Lewisham, Lewisham Council CYP (Frankie Sulke) 

Greenwich and Lewisham NHS Trusts, The Children’s Society & Pre-school learning Alliance.  

They commissioned a Well being study study of 0-8 year olds in Bellingham / Downham the Evelyn/ New 

Cross Wards and detailed lottery application examining well being of children and all the external factors 

that are impeding them to thrive “Toxic Stress” 

Page 84



 

 38 

The intensive investigation the Lewisham Better start team has undertaken shows majority of Evelyn Ward families are in 

overcrowded housing on low income and in the CYP’s (Frankie Sulke) most deprived areas in Lewisham.  
Evelyn Ward identified as the most deprived ward in Lewisham with 37% of children living in poverty, high levels of domestic 

violence, substance abuse and mental health issues and reduced social community engagement.  

 It showed children have high levels of Obesity, Communication and Language difficulties, behavioural and development 

difficulties including readiness for schools (3-8years). 

 

Despite the depravation and “Toxic Stress” in Evelyn Ward Sir Francis Drake transforms their local 

Evelyn Ward children and has them hitting above national standards of learning and achievement – 

Supporting the case of Almost without exception, the studies show that small school size is unambiguously good for 
students from low socio-economic status backgrounds and communities with relatively high levels of disadvantage. 
   

 

Ofsted report is overall good with outstanding for Behaviour & Safety 

 

Sir Francis Drake  

Name of School Sir Francis Drake Primary School 

Gender Mixed 

Age range 5 - 11 

Type of School Primary 

Type of Establishment Community School 

Total number of pupils 202 

Capacity of School 210 

OFSTED ranking Good 

Date of last OFSTED inspection 15 October 2013 

Free School Meals 41% 

English as Additional Language 51.2% 

 
This is an average-sized primary school. 
  

• Pupils are from a wide range of minority ethnic backgrounds. Many speak English as an additional 
language. The largest groups are pupils from any other Black and Black Caribbean backgrounds.  

• The proportion of pupils supported by the pupil premium is higher than in the majority of schools. This 
is additional funding provided for children looked after by the local authority and pupils known to be 
eligible for free school meals. In this school, it applies to both groups.  

• The proportion of disabled pupils and those with special educational needs supported through school 
action is above average. The proportion supported at school action plus or with a statement of special 
educational needs is around average. 

 

  

All groups of pupils achieve well so that by the end of Year 6, most reach standards above 

those  

found nationally in English and mathematics. Attainment in reading is usually higher than 

writing  

and mathematics, but the gap is closing quickly. More pupils now make outstanding progress 

as  

a result of more effective planning and marking.  

 

• Children join the Reception class with skills below the levels found typical for their age. They  

learn quickly within a lively and stimulating setting, so make good progress. By the time they  

Page 85



 

 39 

enter Year 1 the majority have caught up and have skills more typical for their age.  

• Pupils enjoy their lessons and settle down quickly to work. They particularly relish the 

challenge in mathematics lessons of activities that are known in the school as ‘hot’. This 

helps them to use their numeracy skills to solve complicated problems. Sometimes more 

able pupils are not given the activities which are ‘too hot to handle’ until they complete the 

easier work. This sometimes leads to them not making the progress of which they are 

capable, or being able to work on their own.  

• Disabled pupils and those with special educational needs are given very effective support in  

small groups and one-to-one. Their needs are identified quickly. As a result, work is well  

matched to their needs, and they make better than expected progress from their varying 

starting points.  

• Pupils funded through the pupil premium are now making rapid progress and the gap in  

achievement with their peers is closing quickly. In 2012, the most recent year for which  

comparative data are available, these pupils were six months behind the others in English, 

and one year behind in mathematics. However, their needs are now assessed accurately and 

money is spent well to provide additional help in small groups.  

• Achievement is rising rapidly, so now all groups of pupils, including those who speak English 

as an additional language, and small minority ethnic groups, make at least good progress. 

• Pupils enjoy reading and are given many opportunities to practise their understanding of 

letters and the sounds they make. This is evident in the higher-than-national proportion of 

pupils who did well in the phonics screen check in Year 1. By the time they reach the end of 

Year 2, pupils’ standards in reading are above the national average.  

 

 

Response to Joan Ruddock 

 

 

Dear Joan Ruddock 

Thank you for your email to the Mayor of 8th April 2014 to which the Mayor has 
asked me to reply on his behalf. I am sorry for the delay in responding occasioned by 
the Easter holiday.   

The Mayor considered your letter and the attached representations carefully before 
making his decision at the Mayor and Cabinet meeting of 9th April to take forward 
the proposal to expand Sir Francis Drake to the next stage of the issue of a public 
notice.  

 

I will answer the points made by the representations broadly in the order they were 
made in the attachment to the email.   
Consultation was undertaken fully in line with statutory regulations. The consultation 
period was 6 weeks from Feb 3rd to March 17th. This is deemed to be an adequate 
time for responses.  Written responses to the consultation could have been made not 
only on line, but by letter and by email.   

The consultation leaflet invited views on the expansion of SFD.  It was not intended to 

be ‘issues oriented’, and was explicit that the  expansion would mean ‘that the existing school 

buildings could be demolished and replaced with a new school’.  Other Lewisham 

schemes have also involved demolition, for example at Beecroft Garden in Brockley.  

Page 86



 

 40 

A first stage consultation is very much focused on obtaining the views of governors, parents 

and children, although there is an opportunity for other stakeholders to submit their views. It 

is unusual to provide interpreters at a parents’ consultation meeting. However, the LA would 

have responded to a request from the school. 

In line with normal Lewisham practice and statutory requirements: 

•          Consultation leaflets were sent to the school. 

•          Ward MPs and Councillors were notified via email. 

•          Neighbouring authorities were notified via email. 

•          Trade unions were notified via email. 

•          All Lewisham schools were notified. 

•          The DFE was notified via email. 
  

As was made clear in the consultation document, following the Mayor's agreement to take 

forward the proposal to the next stage, there is a further opportunity for representations to be 

made following the publication of a public notice. The Mayor will consider representations 

before making a decision on whether or not to proceed with the proposal. In addition, should 

the proposal reach the stage of a planning application, an outline design is required and is 

made publically available. As part of the planning process, interested parties are asked to 

comment to the Planning Department who are required to take them into account in 

considering the application. 

The consultation document sets out in general terms the need for demolition of the existing 

buildings –‘the buildings have become increasingly less suitable for the delivery of the 

Primary curriculum… (they are) now 50 years old and starting to require expensive 

maintenance and upgrades’. 

The Council’s estimated cost of refurbishment of the school, which were required as part of 

the bid for funding, was rigorously audited by central government and found to be accurate. 

This was a condition of grant. The Council is not at liberty to share details of costs and 

contracts which are commercially confidential and which are being managed through the 

Educational Funding Agency on behalf of the government. 

Building Regulations BB99 (Revised) are now superseded, and new guidance from 
the EFA is awaited. However, indicative designs for a 2FE primary school have been 
published. It is the view of Council officers that the site of Sir Francis Drake is 
sufficiently large to deliver a successful, new 2FE school both in terms of the internal 
and external area.    

The Mayor and Cabinet report (April 9th 2014) provides evidence that there is a need 
for an expanded school in this locality looking forward to the end of this decade. 
The due diligence conducted by the government's Education Funding Agency, which 
would manage the new build, also confirms this. This current year the school has 
202 pupils which is within the usual margin which takes account of pupil mobility (the 
Published Admissions Limit is 210).  

The Council has a severe shortage of sites for new schools.  The old Tidemill site 
and Deptford Green site are not available for educational purposes.  The Convoys 
Wharf development, when it is delivered, will only provide sufficient additional places 
to meet the needs of the new site residents. Neighbouring Local Authorities also 
have severe pressures to provide additional school places to meet the needs of their 
residents. For example, the proposed International Academy of Greenwich has not 
been able to find a site despite searching for two years. Few places, if any, are likely 

Page 87



 

 41 

to be created by neighbouring boroughs which are accessible by Lewisham 
residents in this locality.  

An additional 30 places would be created in September 2016 under this 
proposal, and the school would thereafter increase by 30 places each year to 2022 
when it would reach its full capacity of 420 children. This gradual change would 
be carefully managed, as would the building phase, to ensure that there is no 
adverse impact on the welfare and learning of the children. Over three quarters of 
Lewisham primary schools have already expanded their premises, and a few have 
been entirely or almost entirely replaced. The Council has therefore built up a wealth 
of successful experience in supporting schools during this process. The recognition 
that they can better meet the needs of their localities in providing additional 
places has been the motivation for good and outstanding schools to 
expand. Lewisham schools have risen to the resultant challenges to the extent that, 
during this period of unprecedented change, standards have continued to rise so that 
in 2013 Lewisham's key stage 2 results were the fourth highest in the country.           

A 2 Form of Entry school is not a large school. It is the norm in Lewisham. The very 
many successful 2 FE (and 3FE) schools in Lewisham demonstrate that a school of 
this size can continue to deliver an inclusive and caring culture where the children 
achieve high standards. The argument that Sir Francis Drake children have high 
needs underscores the need for a new school fit for 21st century learning.  

Yours sincerely ,  

  

Chris Threlfall            Head of Education Infrastructure, London Borough of 
Lewisham 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



 

 42 

 

We also note from this online government document there is no benefit for good schools to 

expand 

www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/185804/CUBEC-11-

2012.pdf 
How can we encourage good schools to expand?  
 A CUBeC Short Report  
 Rebecca Allen, Institute of Education, University of London  
Simon Burgess, Centre for Market and Public Organisation, University of Bristol  
 September 2012  
Conclusions of this report 
The question “why don’t popular schools expand?” implies a context in which there are good  
reasons for popular schools to expand, but for some reason, they choose not to.   
In fact, our results suggest the opposite and that the question is better put the other way around:  
“why would a popular school ever choose to expand?” There are no obvious incentives to do so  
unless the headteacher is simply interested in school size per se.  And there are potential costs, in   
 terms of adding a very considerable extra administrative and management burden, financial issues, 
and the potential in some cases for reducing school academic performance.   
There is also a question of the communication of objectives. In a system where more and more  
schools are becoming autonomous, they will be increasingly driven by the perceived ‘mission’ of the  
headteacher and governors. Of course, the accountability mechanisms in the system (league tables  
and Ofsted) place a limit on the extent to which schools can aim for different things. But one  
question is: do the headteachers and governors of high�performing and popular schools believe it is  
their primary role to make their school better, or bigger? We suspect that it may be the former. In  
which case not only may there be no incentive to do this, but also no�one has told them that they  

should be trying to do so.  
 

Page 89



 1 

 

Updated Appendix Five 

Petitions raised during the Representation period 

 

Petition posted on Lewisham.gov.uk 

We are parents of children at Sir Francis Drake (SFD). Most of us have chosen SFD because it is a 
small primary school with a good record of academic achievement and has been part of our local 
community for over 50 years now. The School is located on a small site which we believe is 
appropriate for the current size of the School (210 pupils). Our children enjoy good inside and 
outside space and although the school might not be sleek and modern it is still in a good condition 
and has all the facilities necessary to ensure that its pupils and staff can work together as one happy 
family.  
 
We are very concerned about the proposed plans to enlarge SFD. We believe that doubling the 
school to 420 pupils will completely change the school's personality. The size of the school and the 
close-knit community that arose from this, were the key reasons why we chose SFD in the first place. 
The expansion would result in having a large building on the same size of land which could 
potentially lead to significant reduction class spaces, cramped common areas and smaller outdoor 
facilities, which would simply not accommodate 420 children appropriately.  

 
We are particularly concerned about the lack of information on the proposed building plans and how 
the Lewisham Council proposes to carry out building works alongside the ongoing functioning of the 
school. A number of us tried to obtain this information from your department but none was provided. 
In order for it to be a fair consultation process rather than a tick-box exercise we request the 
following:  
 
- Details of proposed building works and detailed plans of the proposed school layout  
 
- The budget for these works and who will be providing it  
 
- How the proposed changes will affect the current classroom sizes and the outdoor space  
 
- What is the added value that the proposed expansion will bring to the CURRENT users of the 
school  
 
- How the Council is going to handle the teaching process while the proposed building works take 
place  
 
- How and when would new staff be recruited to deal with the additional numbers  
 
Until we receive the above information we will continue to strongly oppose the expansion of our 
School.  

 
Although we understand that there is a need for further primary school places in the area we do not 
feel that it is fair for our school to bear the responsibility to provide these in the manner which is 
currently being proposed. The Council has approved a lot of new building in the area close to SFD 
but failed to secure the provision of new schools to meet the demand. This is utterly irresponsible 
and can only be met with opposition from the local residents and particularly from families with 
children in SFD.  

Page 90



 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 4 

 

 

Page 93



APPENDIX EIGHT 

 

Sir Francis Drake Primary School  Equality Analysis  
 

Name of proposal 

Proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry with 
effect from September 2016 

Lead officer 

Margaret Brightman  
Places Manager  
Children & Young People  
3rd Floor Laurence House  
1, Catford Road  
London SE6 4RU  

Tel: 0208 314 8034  
margaret.brightman@lewisham.gov.uk 

Other stakeholders 

Sir Francis Drake Primary School 
The Governing Body  
Staff  
Parents/carers 
Pupils 
Evelyn Parents Forum 
Residents of Evelyn ward  (Primary Place Planning Locality 5) 
Residents of Scawen Road, Grinstead  Road and Trundley’s Road 
 

Start date of Equality Analysis 

The assessment started in 2010 when the LA was invited to nominate schools to be 
rebuilt through the Priority Schools Building Programme   
 

End date of Equality Analysis 

The Mayor is the Decision Maker for school organisation proposals in Lewisham and 
will consider his decision on the proposal at the meeting of Mayor & Cabinet, June  
25th 2014. 
 

Step1: Identify why you are undertaking an Equality Analysis 

Members have received a series of reports setting out the pressure on school places. 
Demand for primary places has exceeded supply since 2008. The most recent report 
to Members  (January 2014) can be accessed via the following link. 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2866/Public%20reports%20pac
k%2029th-Jan-
2014%2019.30%20Children%20and%20Young%20People%20Select%20Committee
.pdf?T=10 
 
The Local Authority has identified a number of popular and successful schools in 
areas of high demand which could be enlarged in order to meet actual and projected 
demand for school places. 
 
This Equality Analysis has been undertaken in support of a proposal to enlarge Sir 
Francis Drake Primary School. 
 

Step 2: Identify the changes to your service 

The proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake  Primary school permanently to 2 forms of 
entry would mean that, from 2016, the school would admit 60 children to the 

Page 94



APPENDIX EIGHT 

 

Reception class each year until it became 2 forms of entry throughout in 2022. The 
school would receive additional revenue funding to meet the costs of educating the 
increasing number of pupils, primarily to employ additional teachers so that class 
sizes met class size legislation. A new,  fully accessible,  building would be provided 
through the Priority Schools Building Programme. 
 

Step 3: Assessment of data and research 

Projections are reviewed at least annually as the information on live births, 
applications to schools and the uptake of places across each year becomes 
available. The most recent update indicates that the demand for places will remain 
high and measures continue to be required to increase the supply of places through 
a mixture of permanent and temporary enlargements tailored to meet the needs of 
each area. Figures are set out in the following tables. 
 

Year Planned Admission 
Number 

Forecast Reception 
demand 

Shortfall 

2014/15 3634 3989 355 (12 FE) 

2015/16 3724* 3994 270 (9 FE) 

2016/17 3754* 4083 329 (11.FE) 

2017/18 3754* 4085 331 (11FE) 

 
Sir Francis Drake Primary School is located in Primary Place Planning Locality 5, 
Deptford & New Cross. There is considerable housing development in the area, 
including brown-field sites for which Sir Francis Drake will be the nearest school. 
Developers’ contributions will be available from some sites, but are insufficient by a 
significant margin to fund the required level of school place provision. 
 
Whereas the birth rate in some areas has stabilised, it continues to increase in this 
part of the borough. 
 
 Births 

Births September 1st 2000 to August 31st 2001 537 

Births September 1st 2009 to August 31st 2010 655 

Births September 1st 2010 to August 31st 2011 694 

Increase 2000/01 to 2010/11 29% 

Increase 2009/10 to 2010/11 6% 

 
Schools in this area have been expanded since 2009. Deptford Park Primary was 
partially enlarged in 2009 & 10, and will offer additional Reception places in 2014. In 
2012/13 Kender Primary School was enlarged from 1 to 2FE, having offered 
additional places in 2010 & 2011. . Other places have been provided through the 
partial enlargement of Grinling Gibbons (2011 & 2012) and St Joseph’s RC Primary 
(2011, 2012 & 2013). 
 
Projections produced in April 2014 indicate that at least 560 Reception places will be 
required each year, and currently 510 are available. Demand will continue to rise 
beyond the end of the decade. Approximately 1,300 additional dwellings are planned 
in the area. 
 
Over the last decade the LA has worked closely with many schools which have 
expanded and has built up a body of expertise and good practice to help schools 
manage this change whilst maintaining high academic standards. 
 

Step 4: Consultation 

In 2010 the LA consulted  with the Governing Body about its intention to submit a bid 

Page 95



APPENDIX EIGHT 

 

to the Priority School Building Programme (PSBP) for the re-build and enlargement 
of the school.  The Governing Body expressed concerns about the possibility that 
such a scheme might be delivered through a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme. 
They agreed that the bid should go forward with final agreement being subject to the 
terms of the PFI. The LA’s bid was successful but no further information was 
received until Autumn 2013 when it was confirmed that the re-build and enlargement 
would be funded by the government without a PFI element. Further information on 
PSBP can be accessed through the following link 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psbp-list-of-successful-applicants 
 
The LA  consulted with Governors in the Autumn term 2013 and it was agreed that 
consultation should start on a proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake  from 1 to 2 
forms of entry. 
  
The consultation process is regulated by legislation which can be accessed through 
the following link.  

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278422/School
_Organisation_Guidance_2014_-_Annex_B.pdf 

 The following stakeholder groups must be consulted: Parents/carers. Pupils, staff 
and governors.  
 
At the meeting of Mayor & Cabinet held January 15th  2014, the Mayor gave 
permission for the consultation to take place.  
 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2850/Public%20reports%20pac
k%2015th-Jan-2014%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
The results of the consultation were reported to him at the meeting of  Mayor & 
Cabinet held April 9th 2014 
 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s28377/Permanent%20Primary%
20Places%20Holbeach%20John%20Ball%20Coopers%20Lane%20and%20Sir%20F
rancis%20Drake.pdf 
 
Three  meetings have been held at the school in order to present information to  
parents/carers. The majority of respondents to the consultation oppose the proposal 
to enlarge the school. They are concerned that the site is too small to take an 
increased number of children. They feel that this will have a negative impact on the 
experience of the children already at the school including their access to space 
outdoors for play and physical exercise.  
 

Step 5: Impact Assessment 

The proposal is made in order to meet the requirements of two major pieces of 
legislation:  
The Human Rights Act 1998 safeguards the rights of children in the Borough to 
educational provision, which the Council is empowered to provide in accordance with 
its duties under domestic legislation. 
Section 14 of the Education Act 1996 obliges each local authority to ensure that there 
are sufficient primary and secondary schools available for its area i.e. the London 
Borough of Lewisham, although there is no requirement that those places should be 
exclusively in the borough. The Authority is not itself obliged to provide all the 
schools required, but to secure that they are available. In exercising its 
responsibilities under section 14 of the Education Act 1996 a local authority must do 

Page 96



APPENDIX EIGHT 

 

so with a view to securing diversity in the provision of schools and increasing 
opportunities for parental choice. 
 
The proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake Primary school will help to ensure that the 
increasing child population in the area will be able to access an education at a 
popular and successful school. As set out in the table in Section 3 projections 
indicate that demand for places will continue to be high in the area. Without 
additional school places families who did not already meet the admission criteria 
through having a child already at the school would have a reduced chance of being 
offered a place. They might instead  be allocated a place at a school they had not 
chosen. This will increase the chances of families who are new to the area benefitting 
from a place at a school, with the consequence that the school will better reflect the 
characteristics of the local community. The new building will include a lift, which will 
mean that the school will continue to be fully accessible for staff or children with a 
disability. 
 
The current school community has called attention to a number of aspects of the 
school which they feel will be adversely affected by increasing the size of the school. 
The notional amount of playground  space per child will be reduced but that can be 
mitigated by the introduction of staggered play times and lunch breaks. This would 
also address concerns about playground safety for younger children. 
 
The school has free access to areas such as Deptford Park. The proposal for the 
school site will includes a landscaping scheme which will deliver a marked out area 
for ball games as well as other quieter areas for less boisterous play. 
 
Enlarging the school will lead to changes for pupils already at the school. Children in 
the upper year groups may leave without benefitting from the re-modelled site and 
may experience some disruption during the site development. The construction 
programme will need to be managed to minimise this and thought be given to ways 
that they may be invited back to see the “new” school. 
 
The major impact on staff will be the gradual enlargement of the staff group, bringing 
opportunities for wider sharing of ideas and good practice and greater 
development/promotion opportunities. 
 
The gradual enlargement of the school will mean that local residents may experience 
a gradual increase in traffic and footfall at the start and end of the school day.  
 

Step 6: Decision/ Result 

This proposal advances equality of opportunity and does not have an adverse impact 
on the protected characteristics identified by the Equality Duty. The protected 
characteristics are age, disability, gender re-assignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.   
 
The proposal to enlarge Sir Francis Drake primary school will support Article 2 of the 
Human Rights Act  - that everyone has the right to education. 
 
The Local Authority has a legal duty to provide an adequate supply of school places 
and local families expect that where possible places will be provided in popular and 
successful schools. The LA has bid successfully to the Priority Schools Building 
Programme for funding which will deliver the re-build and enlargement of the school. 
This scheme would otherwise have been a call on the limited Basic Need allocation 
and would mean that other expansions would be delayed. Revenue funding for the 
increased number of pupils comes through the annual settlement. There will be no 

Page 97



APPENDIX EIGHT 

 

call on the General Fund Resources of the Council.    

Step 7: Equality Analysis Action Plan 

Negative impacts 
1) Playground space: The school should be supported to develop strategies for 

managing available space. There is a body of good practice in Lewisham 
schools with constrained sites. 

2) Disruption during the construction phase: Children and adults who may 
be vulnerable during the construction phase should be identified, allowing 
sufficient time for individual protection plans to be developed as a 
construction programme is refined. 

3) Additional traffic: the school should monitor travel patterns and keep its 
travel plan under review 

 
 

Sign Off 

 
 
 
 
 
. 
 
. 
. 

Page 98



Agenda Item 6

Page 99



 

1. Reason for Urgency 
 
1.1. This matter has not been correctly included in the Council’s Key 

Decision Plan.  However, the decision must be taken by such a date 
that it is impracticable to defer it until after it has been included in the 
next Key Decision Plan and until the start of the period to which the 
next Key Decision Plan relates.  The reason for this is that a number of 
proposed transport schemes (including the programme of Small Scale 
Traffic Schemes) cannot commence until agreed by Mayor and 
Cabinet.  In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 15 Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) 
Regulations 200, written notice has been given to the Chair of the 
Business Plan in writing and made publicly available by posting at the 
Town Hall for 5 clear days. 
 

2. Purpose 

2.1. This report seeks approval for a prioritised programme of Small Scale 
Traffic Schemes to be funded by Transport for London (TfL) and 
implemented in 2014-15.  It also proposes a revenue programme of 
traffic management works. 

 
2.2. The report also provides information on the implementation of last 

year’s Small Scale Traffic Schemes 2013-14, as well as the wider 
approach to road safety engineering, and the forthcoming programme 
of transport schemes under the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 
programme for 2014-15.  

 
3. Recommendations 

The Mayor is recommended to agree:- 
 
3.1. That prioritisation of Small Scale Traffic Schemes for 2014-15 in 

Appendix A be approved; 
 
3.2. That applicable funding identified via S106 or other external sources be 

used to investigate and treat items from the priority list; 
 
3.3. That the Mayor notes the small scale traffic schemes carried out in 

2013-14 (as set out in section 7); 

MAYOR AND CABINET 

 

Report Title 
 

Small Scale Traffic Schemes & Traffic Management Works 
2014-15 

Key Decision 
 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

All 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration 
 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 25 June 2014 

Page 100



 
3.4. That officers report back next year on additional small scale traffic 

scheme requests received and action taken in respect of the 2014-15 
programme. 

 
3.5. That the Borough’s 2014-15 “Local Transport Funding” allocation from 

Transport for London of £100,000 be allocated as listed below: 
 

i. That £50,000 be allocated to the programme of Small Scale Traffic 
Schemes; 

 
ii. That £50,000 be allocated to the development of LIP schemes and 

the implementation of minor urgent local traffic works; 
 
3.6. That the revenue traffic management budget for 2014-15 of £65,000 be 

allocated as listed below: 
 

i. That £25,000 be allocated to the programme of Small Scale Traffic 
Schemes; 

 
ii. That £20,000 be allocated for new waiting and loading restrictions; 

 
iii. That £10,000 be allocated for footway parking; 

 
iv. That £10,000 be allocated for the maintenance and relocation of 

speed indicator devices / traffic flow and speed surveys. 
 
4. Policy Context 

4.1. The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) sets out Lewisham’s policy 
objectives for transport and has been developed within the framework 
provided by the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.   

 
4.2. The goals, objectives, and outcomes for the LIP reflect local policies 

and priorities and are aligned with the Council’s Corporate Priorities 
and the Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
4.3. As a major policy document, the LIP supports all six priorities of the 

Sustainable Community Strategy and has particular relevance to the 
many economic, environmental and social improvement that rely on a 
modern transport system.  The LIP Programme for improving 
“Corridors and Neighbourhoods” in 2014-15 is included in section 5.3. 

 
4.4. More specifically, the road safety and traffic management measures 

contained in this report will contribute directly to the “Safer” priority, and 
to the “Clean green and liveable” priority.  

 
4.5. These measures are also supported by local planning policies (TRN20 

and TRN21) which are being taken forward into the Local Development 
Framework. These policies undertake to reduce the number and 
severity of road accidents in the borough and introduce traffic calming 
measures on the road network so as to: 

 
- reduce traffic to achieve the role assigned to roads in the hierarchy; 

Page 101



- allocate road space to essential traffic and sustainable transport; 
- reflect the requirement of land uses, in terms of access, essential 

movement and environmental needs, and; 
- reduce motorised traffic in residential areas and improve the 

environment for residents. 
 
5. Background  

5.1. A prioritised list of Small Scale Traffic Schemes has been updated and 
implemented on an annual basis since 2001.  The purpose of the list is 
to record and assess the numerous requests for traffic related 
improvements to Lewisham’s highway network, and to prioritise the 
schemes according to an agreed set of criteria. 

 
5.2. In order to ensure the best use of limited funding, the Executive 

Committee approved a report on the 25th July 2001 that agreed:- 
 

i. the priority assessment criteria for traffic management measures;  
ii. the criteria for the assessment of formal pedestrian crossings, and; 
iii. for officers to report on additional requests received and action taken 

in respect of the priority list. 
 

5.3. The Council also has a limited revenue budget for traffic management 
improvements, which is used to supplement and enhance the value of 
external funding.  In addition to essential minor works, this budget 
provides an evidence base and feasibility work to support the 
development of future traffic schemes. 

 
6. Small Scale Traffic Schemes - The Process 

6.1. This programme is intended for minor traffic management schemes 
and pedestrian facilities, which are prioritised using weighted 
assessment criteria, shown on the list in Appendix A.  This system has 
been devised to ensure that schemes primarily address safety 
concerns, and are viable within the proposed budget.  The prioritised 
list is reviewed annually and reported to Mayor and Cabinet.   

 
6.2. Potential schemes are compiled from requests received from residents, 

Members and via petitions, or where a prima facie case for treatment 
exists.  All requests are registered and assessed by Officers in the 
Transport Service.  

 
6.3. Requests may be excluded from this list where they are within the 

scope of another project, where they may be funded from other 
sources, or where they form part of a submission for funding from 
Transport for London.   

 
6.4. Officers carry out detailed investigation and design of the highest 

priority small scale traffic schemes.  As a result some of the schemes 
proposed may not be viable or may require alteration following local 
consultation.   

 
6.5. Schemes which are eligible for specific funding will be pursued 

following consultation with the relevant Ward Members and the Deputy 

Page 102



Mayor, even if this results in treating schemes lower down the priority 
ranking.  In this way the benefits of any opportunistic funding will not be 
lost whilst maintaining a data-led approach to available Council 
funding. 

 
6.6. Any assessment of pedestrian crossings follows Department for 

Transport Guidance. This is a technical exercise with a wide range of 
factors, which determines whether a pedestrian crossing can be 
provided, and the type of crossing that is appropriate, as well as 
informing the order of priority. 

 
7. Small Scale Traffic Schemes for 2014-15 

7.1. The full list of prioritised schemes, together with the approximate cost 
of each scheme is shown in Appendix A. The total estimated funding 
required to implement all the schemes is £370,344. 

 
7.2. Subject to the approval of this report, the funding available for 2014-15 

is £95,000. This comprises £50,000 from TfL’s Local Transport 
Funding, which is allocated to boroughs to spend on local transport 
priorities, £25,000 from the Council’s revenue traffic management 
budget, and £20,000 from the LIP “Corridors and Neighbourhoods” 
programme, which was approved by Mayor and Cabinet in September 
2013.  

 
8. Small Scale Traffic Schemes implemented in 2013-14 

8.1. The following schemes were implemented in 2013-14, in accordance 
with the current prioritisation policy: 

 
 

Location Works 
Randlesdown Road 
Service Road 

Headway & footway works, Gallow Gate 
painting and new road markings for the 
garages. Provision of keys for local residents. 

Gellatly Road  Speed Indicator Devices. Added to our 
programme. 

Dressington 
Avenue 

Pedestrian Island Amendments 

Grierson Road  Investigation for Traffic Calming 
Ashmead Road One-way working made permanent 
Adamsrill Road Traffic calming 

 

8.2. After due consideration by the project engineers the following schemes 
were deferred/withdrawn from the programme : 

 
Location Works Reason for 

deferring/withdrawal 
Crofton Park / 
Manwood Road 

New Pedestrian 
Refuge 

At detailed design stage it 
was found that refuge was 
not viable due to the high 
impact on local residents 
parking provision due to the 
width of the carriageway 

Page 103



and need to allow for the 
passage of large vehicles.    

Woodyates Road 
/ Horncastle Road 

Traffic Calming. 
Measures remain 
on our priority list 
as part of a larger 
scheme. 

The traffic calming in this 
area will now form part of a 
scheme involving a more 
comprehensive series of 
traffic measures over a 
larger area.   

 

 
9. Local Transport Funding 

Small Scale Traffic Schemes 
 
9.1. Transport for London provide annual flexible funding of £100,000 for  

local transport priorities. It is therefore proposed that £50,000 be 
allocated from the Local Transport Fund to the programme of Small 
Scale Traffic Schemes. 
 
Development of future LIP schemes and the implementation of 
urgent minor works 

 
9.2. Preparatory work is essential in the development of all the Council’s 

transport programmes, which respond to new developments and 
evolving strategies.  Similarly, the development of specific projects can 
incur necessary costs on surveys, feasibility work, initial consultations 
and preliminary design.   

 
9.3. From time to time urgent minor works are required for safety reasons 

on the public highway. These often involve works around schools. 
 
9.4. It is therefore proposed that £50,000 be allocated to the development 

of future LIP schemes and the implementation of urgent minor works. 
 
10. Traffic Management Revenue Programme 

Small Scale Traffic Schemes 
 
10.1. The programme of schemes, as set out above, is a fundamental 

element of the Council’s traffic management responsibilities. It is 
therefore proposed that the annual contribution of £25,000 be allocated 
from the Council’s revenue budget to the programme of Small Scale 
Traffic Schemes. 

 
Waiting and Loading 

 
10.2. The introduction of waiting and loading restrictions is essential in order 

to alleviate safety issues which are identified on the highway, usually 
on corners or bends in roads.  Many of these problems are brought to 
our attention by concerned members, residents and officers.  

 
10.3. It is important that such safety issues are investigated and any 

necessary action taken and it is proposed that £20,000 be allocated to 
address this issue. 

Page 104



 
Footway parking 
 

10.4. The increasing amounts of kerbside parking in narrow roads results in 
damage from passing vehicles, or unnecessary congestion due to the 
traffic’s inability to pass. Similar problems exist in narrow roads where 
parking causes problems for service vehicles such as dustcarts.   

 
10.5. Where the footway strength will allow vehicle loading, and where 

acceptable footway widths can be maintained, footway parking may be 
introduced.  It is proposed that £5,000 be allocated to fund the 
necessary investigations and lining to address these issues. 

 
10.6. In addition to investigating new footway parking, it is necessary to 

maintain existing areas of footway parking.  It is therefore proposed 
that £5,000 be allocated to fund re-marking and maintenance of 
existing footway parking places. 

 
Speed Indicator Devices / Traffic Flow and Speed Surveys   

 
10.7. The Council has 44 speed indicator devices (SIDs) sited around the 

borough, of which 14 are designed to be easily relocated and are used 
throughout the borough.  These signs are a useful tool to draw drivers 
attention to the speed limit or when they travelling above that limit 
(depending on how they are set up).  The Council also requires up to 
date information on traffic growth and patterns in order to understand 
trends and issues on the boroughs highway network. This evidence is 
essential in designing effective traffic schemes and monitoring their 
impacts.  It is proposed that £10,000 be allocated for the maintenance 
and relocation of speed indicator devices / traffic flow and speed 
surveys. 

 
11. Road Safety Engineering 

Local Safety Schemes   
 

11.1. In 2001 the Executive Committee agreed a prioritised approach to 
achieving a reduction in the numbers of personal injury accidents 
occurring in the borough. For local safety schemes, roads with the 
highest number of recorded personal injury records are investigated for 
possible remedial measures.  

 
11.2. Until 2009-10 the Council made annual submissions to Transport for 

London for specific funding for safety schemes where engineering 
measures were likely to reduce accident numbers.  

 
11.3. Over time, councils across London have generally been successful at 

targeting and treating accident clusters, and rather than identify specific 
Local Safety Schemes, TfL have moved towards incorporating road 
safety issues into wider improvement programmes, which look at whole 
Corridors and Neighbourhoods.  In the current LIP, Local Safety 
Schemes will therefore be carried out under the “Corridors, 
Neighbourhoods and Supporting Measures” programme.   

 

Page 105



11.4. Schemes with a strong road safety focus are reviewed after at least 
three years of implementation, to assess whether they have achieved 
their casualty reduction objectives and where additional measures are 
required.  

 
12. TfL funded Schemes for 2014/15 

12.1. Transport for London LIP allocation for Lewisham in 2014-15 totals 
£2.916M. This includes £2.233M from the Corridors, Neighbourhoods 
and Supporting Measures Programme, which is detailed below in Table 
1.  

 
12.2. The LIP allocation also includes £365k for Principal Road Renewal 

(Brookmill Road and Lausanne Road) and £218k for the Borough 
Cycling Programme. 

 
12.3. Details of the LIP budget proposals for 2014-15 were reported to Mayor 

and Cabinet on 2 October 2013, and are subject to minor change 
throughout the year.  

 
12.4. The table below is the latest list of schemes proposed from the 

Neighbourhood and Corridors LIP budget.  
  

 

Page 106



 
Table 1:  LIP “Corridors” Programme for 2014-15. 
  

TfL LIP 

Ref. 
TfL LIP SCHEME NAME 

BUDGET 
(£) 

16261 HITHER GREEN NEIGHBOURHOOD 146,000 

16262 GROVE PARK NEIGHBOURHOOD 150,000 

16264 BELL GREEN NEIGHBOURHOOD STUDY 50,000 

18832 SYDENHAM ROAD EAST 250,000 

18834 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY 150,000 

18849 
ROAD SAFETY EDUCATION, TRAINING & 

PUBLICITY 
65,000 

18880 CYCLE TRAINING 108,000 

18881 EVELYN STREET NOISE ASSESSMENT 5,000 

18901 ROADSIDE AIR QUALITY MONITORING 5,000 

18902 SCHOOL TRAVEL PLANNING 144,000 

18903 INDEPENDANT TRAVELLER TRAINING 25,000 

18912 TRAVEL AWARENESS 20,000 

20767 COMPLETION OF PREVIOUS YEAR PROJECTS 30,000 

20770 SMALL TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT WORKS 20,000 

22306 COULGATE STREET NEIGHBOURHOOD 140,000 

22310 
DARTMOUTH ROAD NORTH - PED 

IMPROVEMENTS 
350,000 

22342 
BROCKLEY ROAD  STONDON PARK AND 

BROCKLEY RISE CORRID0R   
300,000 

22343 EVELYN STREET CORRIDOR 150,000 

23569 
REVIEW OF PREVIOUSLY IMPLEMENTED 

CORRIDOR SCHEMES 
50,000 

23570 GREEN CHAIN 25,000 

23571 LEWISHAM TOWN CENTRE 50,000 

  TOTAL 2,233,000 

 

13. Financial Implications  

13.1. The Traffic Management Schemes revenue budget for 2014/2015 has 
been set at £65,000. Of this amount £25k is to be spent on small scale 
traffic schemes, £20k on new waiting and loading restrictions, £10k on 
allocated footway parking and £10k for traffic flow and speed surveys. 

 
13.2. Transport for London have allocated £100,000 to each borough to be 

spent on “Local Transport” priorities of their choice. Of this amount 
£50k is to be allocated to small scale traffic schemes, and £50k 
allocated to the development of LIP schemes and the implementation 
of minor urgent local traffic works. 

 
13.3. The total LIP2 allocation for Lewisham submitted to and agreed by TfL 

thus far amounts to £2.916m. This includes £100k for “Local Transport” 
priorities as described in paragraph 12.2. Of this total £2.233M relates 

Page 107



to the LIP “Corridors” programme. The list of schemes proposed from 
this budget are listed in Table 1 paragraph 11.4 of this report. The table 
includes £20k for small scale traffic schemes. 

 
14. Legal implications  

14.1. In relation to safety, section 39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 requires 
the Council to:  

 
a) prepare and carry out a programme of measures designed to 

promote road safety and  
 
b) carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of vehicles 
 on roads or parts of roads within their area, and; 

 
i. in the light of those studies take such measures as appear to 

them to be appropriate to prevent such accidents, those 
measure to include the dissemination of information and 
advice relating to the use of roads, the giving of practical 
training to road users or any class or description of road 
users, the construction, improvement, maintenance or repair 
of roads for the maintenance of which they are responsible 
and other measures taken in the exercise of their powers for 
controlling, protecting or assisting the movement of traffic on 
roads, and; 

 
ii. in constructing new roads, must take such measures as 

appear to them to be appropriate to reduce the possibilities 
of such accidents when the roads come into use. 

 
 The measures detailed in this report would go towards discharging 

these various duties. 
 
14.2. In addition the Council has a broad duty to maintain those highways for 

which it is responsible. The Council can also take pro-active steps in 
improving highways, by virtue of various powers given to it under the 
Highways Act 1980. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 gives the 
Council the ability to provide pedestrian crossings, and introduce other 
measures that complement physical alterations to the roads 
themselves, such as speed limits or one-way restrictions. Both Acts 
give the Council implicit powers to incur expenditure to achieving those 
ends. The 1984 Act imposes a duty on the Council, in exercising its 
powers under the Act, to do so in a way which, so far as practicable, 
secures the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic, 
including pedestrians and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway. In complying with that 
requirement, the Council must have to have regard to: 

 
a) the desirability of maintaining reasonable access to premises; 
 
b) the effect on the amenities of the locality, and in particular the 

importance of regulating and restricting the use of roads by 
heavy commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the 
amenities of the areas through which the roads involved run; 

Page 108



 
c) the national air quality strategy; 

 
d) the importance of facilitating the passage of public service 

vehicles and of securing the safety and convenience of persons 
using or desiring to use such vehicles and 

 
e) any other matter which appears to be relevant. 

 
14.3 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine 
protected characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
14.4 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have 

 due regard to the need to: 
 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
14.5 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

 
14.6 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued 

technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and 
attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the   
should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally 
required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not 
have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as 
failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. 
The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-
 codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 

 

14.7 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
     3. Engagement and the equality duty 
     4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

Page 109



         5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 
14.8 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 

requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties 
and who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to 
meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more 
detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 
information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-

equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 

 

15. Crime and Disorder Implications 

15.1. There are no significant implications for the prevention of crime & 
disorder. However, the road safety and traffic management 
programmes in this report contribute to a safer environment which 
encourages motorists to drive with respect and in compliance of the 
highway code. 

 
16. Equalities Implications 

16.1. The Council’s Comprehensive Equality Scheme for 2012-16 will 
provide an overarching framework and focus for the Council's work on 
equalities and help ensure compliance with the Equality Act 2010. 

 
16.2. An Equalities Analysis Assessment has been developed alongside the 

LIP to ensure that any potential adverse impacts were  fully considered 
and, where necessary, appropriate changes made. The overall findings 
of the assessment were that the proposals within the LIP do not 
discriminate or have significant adverse impacts on any of the 
protected characteristics.   

 
16.3. Instead, the focus on improving access to services and better, safer 

streets will have broadly positive impacts on the local community.  
More specifically, the proposed schemes will reduce hazards for blind 
and partially sighted people, older people and those with impaired 
mobility. 

 
17. Environmental Implications 

17.1. The preparation of the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) has been 
accompanied by a parallel process of Strategic Environmental 
Appraisal (SEA). A part of that process involved the development of 
objectives against which the proposals in the LIP might be assessed. 

 
17.2. With regards to cumulative effects the assessment suggest that with all 

the policies, schemes and measures implemented through the period 
of the LIP, there are likely to be significant positive effects on SEA 
objectives relating to health, air quality, promoting more sustainable 
modes of transport, promoting safer communities, improving road 
safety, and improving accessibility in the Borough.  

Page 110



 
17.3. The proposed schemes will reduce hazards and make the road 

environment more attractive for pedestrians and cyclists. It is 
considered that the imposition of restrictions on vehicle movement 
referred to in the report, will not adversely impact on either the national 
or the Council’s own air quality strategies. 

 
18. Background Documents and Originator 

18.1. Executive Committee Reports: ‘Traffic Management and Pedestrian 
Facilities’ and, ‘An Integrated Approach to Traffic Calming, 
Environmental Improvements and Safer Routes to Schools’. 

 
Date:  25 July 2001 
Location: Attached 

 
18.2. Mayor and Cabinet Reports: ‘An Integrated Approach to Traffic 

Calming, Environmental Improvements and Safer Routes to Schools’, 
and ’Prioritisation of Transport Schemes…..’ 

 
Date:  
July 2002 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20020717/Agenda/Agenda.pdf 
July 2003 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20030716/Agenda/Agenda.pdf 
July 2004 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20040721/Agenda/Agenda.pdf 
June 2005 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20050629/Agenda/Agenda.pdf 

Page 111



 
July 2007 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20070711/Agenda/1ac331262b304edbac0078911824d0
86Item11PrioritisationofTransportSchemes11July2007.P
DF 

May 2008 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/Data/Mayor%20and%20Cabine

t/20080528/Agenda/9af5e105098649c9b0d5e587e5781e
72Item6PrioritisationofTrafficSchemes28May20082.PDF 

 
April 2010 

i. and the implementation of minor urgent local traffic works; 
May 2011 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g1978/Public%20re

ports%20pack%2011th-May-
2011%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

June 2012 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2454/Public%20re

ports%20pack%2020th-Jun-
2012%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10  

Location: Lewisham Online 
 
18.3. Mayor and Cabinet Report: “Local Implementation Plan” 

http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/strategie
s/Documents/Local%20Implementation%20Plan%202011-31.pdf 

 
Date:  17 November 2010 
Location: Lewisham Online 

 
18.4. Mayor and Cabinet Report: “Annual Spending Submission” 

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2458/Public%20re
ports%20pack%2003rd-Oct-
2012%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

 
Date:  3 October 2012 
Location: Lewisham Online 
 

18.5. Mayor and Cabinet Report: “Local Implementation Plan - Annual 
Spending Submission (2014/15) and Delivery Plan (2014/17)” 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/g2845/Public%20re
ports%20pack%2002nd-Oct-
2013%2018.00%20Mayor%20and%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Date:  2 October 2013 
Location: Lewisham Online 
 

 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Simon Moss, Transport 
Policy and Development Manager, 020 8314 2269. 

Page 112



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
Procedure for Assessment and Priority Rating for Traffic 

Management and Pedestrian Facilities 
 
The schemes were prioritised using a weighted assessment criteria. 
The criteria and weighting as follows: 
 
• Pedestrian Safety - Weighting 30 
• Prevention of Rat Running – Weighting 10 
• Prevention of Traffic Violations – Weighting 10 
• Perceived Accident Risks – Weighting 30 
• Scheme Viability – Weighting 20 
• Scheme Cost  
 
Schemes were assessed by Engineers to give a weighting value to each 
criteria listed above.  The weighted values were added and divided by the 
estimated cost to give a total value, thus allowing a priority ranking to be made 
as in Appendix A. 
 
 
 

Notes on Appendix A 
 
1. The schemes are prioritised.  All schemes and costings are subject to 

detail design. The costs are only budget estimates to give Members an 
indication of possible costs and these costs could vary.  Following analysis 
it may not be possible to progress some schemes for engineering, cost or 
safety reasons. 

 
2. Road Safety Schemes are not included in the above list and will be dealt 

with under the road safety programme. 
 
3. Traffic Calming Schemes are not included in the list and will be dealt with 

under the area based traffic calming programme. 
 
4. Larger more expensive schemes above £40,000 are generally not included 

in the list and where appropriate will be dealt with via the Local 
Implementation Plan. 

 

Page 113



Appendix A 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 1 - Proposed for Funding 

Scheme 
Estimated 
Cost (£) 

Description 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Prevent Rat-
Running  

Prevent 
Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 
Risk  

Viability & 
Effectivenes

s 
Total Score 

Ranking 
from cost 

benefit 
score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Hillmore Grove 19,000 
Traffic calming between Knighton 
Park Rd and Kent House Road  

10 5 5 5 10 35 1 

St Joseph's Vale 3,500 
Steps should be taken to prevent 
footway parking. Install a series of 
Hexham bollards 

30 0 10 15 20 75 2 

Seymour Gardens  2,000 Replacement Bollards.  15 0 5 10 8 38 3 

Middleton Way 
junction with 
Belmont Park  

5,000 Pedestrian island 30 0 10 0 20 60 4 

Tyrwhitt Road 
junction with Hilly 
Fields Crescent  

7,000 
Pedestrian island and associated 
footway works 

30 0 10 15 20 75 5 

Southvale  4,750 3 speed humps 20 5 0 15 10 50 6 

Junction of Vesta 
Road and Endwell 
Road 

6,000 
Construct a traffic island at the 
mouth of the junction so as to 
"tighten" the turn into Endwell Road 

30 0 10 0 20 60 7 

Ewhurst Junction 
with Salehurst 
Road 

6,000 
Dropped crossing, Tactile paving 
and Lining 

10 0 5 10 20 45 8 

Granville Park 9,500 Speed humps  20 5 0 15 10 50 9 

Sub Total 62,750                 

P
age 114



 

Appendix A 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 1 - Proposed for Funding 

Scheme 
Estimated 
Cost (£) 

Description 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Prevent Rat-
Running  

Prevent 
Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 
Risk  

Viability & 
Effectivenes

s 
Total Score 

Ranking 
from cost 

benefit 
score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Bramdean Crescent  10,000 
Now that the road has been re 
surfaced cars are speeding. 
Request a 20mph zone.  

20 5 0 15 10 50 10 

Selworthy Road  10,000 Traffic Calming 20 5 0 15 10 50 11 

Queenswood Road  10,000 Traffic Calming 20 5 0 15 10 50 12 

Sub Total 92,750                 

 

P
age 115



 

Appendix A 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2013/14) 

Part 2 - Unfunded 

Scheme 
Estimated 
Cost (£) 

Description 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Prevent Rat-
Running  

Prevent 
Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 
Risk  

Viability & 
Effectivenes

s 
Total Score 

Ranking 
from cost 

benefit 
score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Beaulieu Avenue, 
Sydenham 

14,000 
Traffic island at junction with 
Longton Grove and Jews Walk. 

20 0 0 15 10 45 13 

Bovill Road  15,000 

Measures to improve safety within 
the area and close to a public 
footpath, used frequently by 
children walking to and from school, 

20 0 0 15 10 45 14 

Trewsbury Road 15,000 
Install a traffic system that will slow 
down the reckless driving on this 
long straight road. 

15 0 5 10 10 40 15 

Beaulieu Avenue, 
Sydenham 

20,000 

Potential 20mph zone including 
Jews Walk, Longton Avenue, 
Longton Grove, Taylors Lane and 
Ormanton Road  

15 2 15 5 15 52 16 

Perry Vale Area 
including Houston 
Road   

15,000 
Enhancement of the 7.5 Lorry Ban 
TMOs and new signs  

5 10 10 5 5 35 17 

Ticehurst Road and 
Hawkesfield Road 

30,000 20mph zone Traffic Calming 20 5 5 15 10 55 18 

Sub Total 201,750                 

P
age 116



 

Appendix A 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2013/14) 

Part 2 - Unfunded 

Scheme 
Estimated 
Cost (£) 

Description 

Pedestrian 
Safety 

Prevent Rat-
Running  

Prevent 
Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 
Risk  

Viability & 
Effectivenes

s 
Total Score 

Ranking 
from cost 

benefit 
score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Longhurst Road 37,000 
Install new zebra crossing at 
Longhurst Road and Staplehurst 
Road  

20 0 0 15 15 50 19 

Horncastle Road 21,000 
No entry / one way system to 
prevent rat running  

10 8 0 5 5 28 20 

Springbank Road  31,000 Install new zebra crossing 15 0 0 15 8 38 21 

Girton Road     
/Tannsfield Road 

17,500 
Reverse the one way behind 
Supermarket 

5 0 0 5 10 20 22 

Rayford Avenue 31,000 Small 20mph zone  10 5 10 5 5 35 23 

Grove Street 20,000 
Informal pedestrian crossing table 
near Sayes Court 

15 0 2 5 10 20 24 

Maroons Way j/w 
Steve Biko Lane 

37,200 
Improve the pedestrian environment 
by traffic calming 

15 0 5 10 5 35 25 

Barriedale Road 17,360 One way working  0 5 0 5 5 15 26 

Sydenham Rise, 
J/W Tarleton 
Gardens 

26,784 
Speed table and kerb realignment 
to prevent u turns 

5 0 0 0 0 5 27 

Total Programme 
Cost 

440,594                 

Total Budget 95,000         

 

P
age 117



 

Appendix A (Amended) 

 Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 1 - Proposed for Funding 

Scheme 
Estimated 

Cost (£) 
Description 

Pedestrian 

Safety 

Prevent Rat-

Running  

Prevent 

Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 

Risk  

Viability 

& 

Effectiv

e-ness 

Total 

Score 

Ranking 

from cost 

benefit 

score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

St Joseph's Vale 3,500 

Steps should be taken to prevent 

footway parking. Install a series 

of Hexham bollards 

30 0 10 15 20 75 1 

Seymour Gardens  2,000 Replacement Bollards.  15 0 5 10 8 38 2 

Middleton Way 

junction with 

Belmont Park  

5,000 Pedestrian island 30 0 10 0 20 60 3 

Tyrwhitt Road 

junction with 

Hilly Fields 

Crescent  

7,000 
Pedestrian island and associated 

footway works 
30 0 10 15 20 75 4 

Southvale  4,750 3 speed humps 20 5 0 15 10 50 5 

Junction of Vesta 

Road and Endwell 

Road 

6,000 

Construct a traffic island at the 

mouth of the junction so as to 

"tighten" the turn into Endwell 

Road 

30 0 10 0 20 60 6 

Ewhurst Junction 

with Salehurst 

Road 

6,000 
Dropped crossing, Tactile paving 

and Lining 
10 0 5 10 20 45 7 

Granville Park 9,500 Speed humps  20 5 0 15 10 50 8 

Sub Total 43,750                 

P
age 118



 

 

Appendix A (Amended) 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 1 - Proposed for Funding 

Scheme 
Estimated 

Cost (£) 
Description 

Pedestrian 

Safety 

Prevent Rat-

Running  

Prevent 

Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 

Risk  

Viability 

& 

Effectiv

eness 

Total 

Score 

Ranking 

from cost 

benefit 

score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Bramdean 

Crescent  
10,000 

Now that the road has been re 

surfaced cars are speeding. 

Request a 20mph zone.  

20 5 0 15 10 50 9 

Selworthy Road  10,000 Traffic Calming 20 5 0 15 10 50 10 

Queenswood 

Road  
10,000 Traffic Calming 20 5 0 15 10 50 11 

Beaulieu Avenue, 

Sydenham 
14,000 

Traffic island at junction with 

Longton Grove and Jews Walk. 
20 0 0 15 10 45 12 

Sub Total 87,750                 

 

P
age 119



 

 

Appendix A (Amended) 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 2 - Unfunded 

Scheme 
Estimated 

Cost (£) 
Description 

Pedestrian 

Safety 

Prevent Rat-

Running  

Prevent 

Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 

Risk  

Viability 

& 

Effectiv

eness 

Total 

Score 

Ranking 

from cost 

benefit 

score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Bovill Road  15,000 

Measures to improve safety 

within the area and close to a 

public footpath, used frequently 

by children walking to and from 

school, 

20 0 0 15 10 45 13 

Trewsbury Road 15,000 

Install a traffic system that will 

slow down the reckless driving 

on this long straight road. 

15 0 5 10 10 40 14 

Beaulieu Avenue, 

Sydenham 
20,000 

Potential 20mph zone including 

Jews Walk, Longton Avenue, 

Longton Grove, Taylors Lane 

and Ormanton Road  

15 2 15 5 15 52 15 

Perry Vale Area 

including Houston 

Road   

15,000 
Enhancement of the 7.5 Lorry 

Ban TMOs and new signs  
5 10 10 5 5 35 16 

Hillmore Grove 

(Originally ranked 

first due to 

spreadsheet error)  

19,000 

Traffic calming between 

Knighton Park Rd and Kent 

House Road  

10 5 5 5 10 35 17 

Ticehurst Road 

and Hawkesfield 

Road 

30,000 20mph zone Traffic Calming 20 5 5 15 10 55 18 

Sub Total 201,750                 

P
age 120



 

 

Appendix A (Amended) 

Priority List Traffic Management and Pedestrian Facilities  2014/15) 

Part 2 - Unfunded 

Scheme 
Estimated 

Cost (£) 
Description 

Pedestrian 

Safety 

Prevent Rat-

Running  

Prevent 

Traffic 

Violation  

Accident 

Risk  

Viability 

& 

Effectiv

eness 

Total 

Score 

Ranking 

from cost 

benefit 

score 

30 10 10 30 20 (100)   

Longhurst Road 37,000 

Install new zebra crossing at 

Longhurst Road and Staplehurst 

Road  

20 0 0 15 15 50 19 

Horncastle Road 21,000 
No entry / one way system to 

prevent rat running  
10 8 0 5 5 28 20 

Springbank Road  31,000 Install new zebra crossing 15 0 0 15 8 38 21 

Girton Road     

/Tannsfield Road 
17,500 

Reverse the one way behind 

Supermarket 
5 0 0 5 10 20 22 

Rayford Avenue 31,000 Small 20mph zone  10 5 10 5 5 35 23 

Grove Street 20,000 
Informal pedestrian crossing 

table near Sayes Court 
15 0 2 5 10 20 24 

Maroons Way j/w 

Steve Biko Lane 
37,200 

Improve the pedestrian 

environment by traffic calming 
15 0 5 10 5 35 25 

Barriedale Road 17,360 One way working  0 5 0 5 5 15 26 

Sydenham Rise, 

J/W Tarleton 

Gardens 

26,784 
Speed table and kerb 

realignment to prevent u turns 
5 0 0 0 0 5 27 

Total Programme 

Cost 
440,594                 

Total Budget 95,000         

 

P
age 121



Agenda Item 7

Page 122



 

 

 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide the Mayor and Cabinet with an overview of the work of the 

Adoption Service and the Adoption and Permanence Panel in 
compliance with legislation, and to present the Statement of Purpose 
and Children’s Guides. 

 
2. Summary 
 
2.1 This report sets out the work undertaken by the Adoption Service and 

presents the Statement of Purpose and the Children’s Guides on 
Adoption. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 
 That the Mayor: 
 

• notes the report of the work of the Adoption Service  
 
• approves the review of the Statement of Purpose (Appendix 1)  
 
• notes the two updated Children’s Guides to Adoption  

     (Appendix 2 and 3). 
 
4. Policy Context 
 
4.1 Lewisham is a registered Adoption Agency. Adoption Agencies are 

subject to the Adoption Agency Regulations (AAR) 2005 and 2011 and 
The Adoption Agencies (Panel and Consequential Amendments) 
Regulations 2012; Adoption Agencies (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2013 and are subject to the National Minimum Standards 
(NMS) which accompany the Regulations. Standard 25.6a of the 
National Minimum Standards requires the Adoption Agency to produce 
a six monthly report to be received by the Council Executive.  

 
4.2 Standard 18.3 of the National Minimum Standards requires that the 

Adoption Agency approves and annually reviews the Statement of 
Purpose and the Children’s Guides. 

MAYOR AND CABINET 

Report Title 
 

Adoption Service Update, Revised Statement of Purpose and 
Children’s Guides to Adoption 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No.   
 

Ward 
 

All. 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children & Young People 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date:  25 June 2014  

Page 123



 

 

 
4.3  The Statement of Purpose contributes to five of the key priority 

outcomes of Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2020: 
 

• Ambitious and achieving – where people are inspired and 
supported to fulfil their potential  

• Safer – where people feel safe and live free from crime, antisocial 
behaviour and abuse 

• Empowered and responsible – where people are actively involved 
in their local area and contribute to supportive communities 

• Healthy, active and enjoyable – where people can actively 
participate in maintaining and improving their health and well-being 

• Dynamic and prosperous – where people are part of vibrant 
communities and town centres, well connected to London and 
beyond. 

4.4 The Government’s Adoption Reform Programme and provision of 
special grant for Local Authorities to encourage more people to adopt 
and to reduce the time it takes for children to be placed with adoptive 
families, the action includes: 

• implementing a simplified process for people who want to adopt or 
foster a child  

• providing a first point of contact for anyone interested in adopting 
through First4Adoption  

• Introducing scorecards that allow a comparison of the delay for 
placement of children in care in each local authority  

• introducing legislation that will:  

• make sure court hearings on children in care last no longer than 26 
weeks, except in exceptional circumstances  

• encourage ‘fostering for adoption’, i.e. placing children with 
approved adopters who will foster the child while they wait for court 
approval to adopt  

• give adoptive parents the same pay and leave rights as birth 
parents from 2015  

• reduce delay due to adoption agencies seeking a perfect or partial 
ethnic match  

• allow prospective adopters to access the adoption register directly, 
subject to appropriate safeguards, so they can play a more active 
role in identifying children for whom they might be suitable adoptive 
parents  

4.5 An action plan was devised to implement the above from 1st July 2013. 
 
5. Background 
 
5.1 The Adoption Service is primarily a service for looked after children. It 

is committed to finding and supporting stable and secure adoption 
placements for children when adoption is the identified plan for that 
child. The majority of children placed for adoption have been removed 
from their parents through the court system. All of these children have 
had their plan for adoption approved by the court.  

Page 124



 

 

 
5.2 Following the 2nd publication of the adoption scorecard the Children’s 

Minister, Edward Timpson acknowledged the tough target Local 
Authorities have to meet to place children and congratulated  
Lewisham suggesting we share the lessons from our success in 
placing children timely more widely with other local authorities. There 
were also examples of service users writing directly to the Prime 
Minister and the Mayor about the high standard of service they 
received from Lewisham.  This reflects the recognition of the 
effectiveness for children and adopters of this agency’s organisational 
approach. As of July 2013, we have also formed partnership with three 
of our Consortium members running Stage 1 Learning groups for 
prospective adopters. Lewisham Adoption Service is a high performing 
agency and achieves adoption in a timely way for many children.  

 
6.  Current Development and Performance 
 
6. 1 The two previous Adoption Team Managers both retired in April 2013 

after their long and loyal service in Lewisham.  Their replacements 
joined the team in April and July respectively.   

6.2 Currently the Adoption Team is working with 40 looked after children, 
preparing them for adoption and supporting adoptive placements. 

 
6.3 The table below shows the number of adoption orders achieved in the 

last three financial year 2011-2; 2012-3 and 2013-4:  
 
 

 April 
2011 to 
March 
2012  

April 
2012 to 
March 
2013 

April 
2013 to 
March 
2014 

Number of adoption orders 31 23 28 

Adoption orders, child placed with 
family approved Lewisham 

12 19 20 

Adoption orders, family approved by 
Inter-agency 

19 4 8 

Number of single adopters 10 8 4 

Number adopted by foster carer 5 5 6 

Number adopted by relative 1 0 0 

Children adopted Male / Female 16/15 9/14 10/18 

 
6.4 During the last year between 1st April 2013 and 31st March 2014, 29 

children were placed for adoption, that is, they were placed with 
approved adoptive parents prior to an adoption order being granted. 

 
6.5 The table below shows the detail of the children placed for adoption 

over the last year.  This illustrates the number of adoption orders likely 
to be granted over the coming 12 months.  It includes details of who the 
children were placed with including their ethnicity and gender.  In 
2014/15 the Adoption Service, along with colleagues across the 
Children and Young People’s Directorate will have an increased focus 
on children previously considered ‘hard to place’.  We have partnership 

Page 125



 

 

arrangements with both PACT and the South London Consortium. In 
the coming summer we have our first Activity Day with Consortium 
members, an event to identify adoptive families with ‘hard to place’ 
children.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.6 Comparison of ages at time of placement for the last three years of 

data. 
 

 
 
Age of child at time of 
placement for adoption  

April 
2011 
to 
March 
2012 

April 
2012 
to 
March 
2013 

April 
2013 
to 
March 
2014 

Under 2 years 17 16 20 

Age 2 to 3 6 4 4 

Age 4 1 2 3 

Age5 1 2 0 

Age 6 0 1 0 

Age 7-15 1 0 2 

 
6.7 The Adoption and Permanence Panel considers and makes clear 

recommendations to the Agency Decision Maker who has the ultimate 
decision making authority on behalf of the Council on a) whether a child 
who is not the subject of care proceedings, should be placed for 
adoption, b) whether an applicant(s) should be approved to adopt  c) 

 April 2012 
to March 
2013 

Number of children placed for 
adoption 

29 

With families approved by Lewisham 21 

With families through inter-agency 
placements 

8 

Number of children placed with single 
adopters 

3 

Number of children placed with 
gay/lesbian adopters 

4 

Number of children placed with foster 
carers 

2 

Male  15 

Female 14 

Ethnicity  

White UK 20 

Mixed heritage (incl mixed white 
parentage) 

7 

Black African Caribbean 2 

Black African 0 

Black African Caribbean / Black 
African 

0 

Black other 0 

White other 0 

Page 126



 

 

whether a specific child/ren should be matched with an identified 
adoptive parent(s). Guidance sets out that adoption agencies must not 
deny or delay a child an adoptive home on the grounds that they do not 
share the same ethnic or cultural background. Lewisham is clear that 
due consideration is given to the particular characteristics and 
circumstances and the background of children when matching to 
adoptive parents but this consideration will never delay the placement. 

6.8 Plans for the children are now considered by three Agency Decision 
Makers; the Director of Children’s Social Care and two Service 
Managers.  Because of the high volume of work and the new 
requirement of care proceeding to be completed in 26 weeks, the 
meeting is now weekly and in rotation amongst the three Agency 
Decision Makers.  The Agency Decision Maker is able to consult with 
the agency’s legal, medical and adoption adviser and to request any 
further information deemed necessary.  

 
6.9 The Lewisham Adoption and Permanence Panel is fully compliant with 

the Adoption Agency Regulations.  The Lewisham Adoption and 
Permanence Panel, which convenes on a fortnightly basis (more 
frequently if required to avoid delay in a child’s placement), currently 
consists of one member nominated by the Mayor, four independent 
persons of whom one is an adoptee, one is an adopter, one having 
personal and professional experience of adoption and fostering and 
another having knowledge and expertise of education.  Due to the 
departure of two social worker members; new appointments have been 
made to replace them. We have now appointed three new social work 
members to share the workload and they will attend meetings 
according to the arranged rota.  The  Medical Adviser is a paediatrician 
with the Lewisham NHS Trust.  The chair is independent of the Council 
and has extensive experience of adoption work. The Panel is 
supported by a Solicitor and an Adoption Team Manager who acts as 
Panel Professional Adviser. 

 
6.10 In line with the Adoption Agencies (Miscellaneous Amendments) 

Regulations 2013, which came into force on 1 July 2013. A new two-
stage assessment process was introduced, with amended timescales, 
i.e. 2 months for Stage 1 and 4 months for Stage 2 for completion of 
the adoption processes for prospective adopters and a fast-track 
process for previous adopters/foster carers; i.e. they will proceed 
straight to Stage 2. With the Adoption Reform Grant, we updated  the 
recruitment materials and now have monthly Information Evening to 
provide information for potential families who wish to adopt and meet 
the needs of children in Lewisham. When a person approaches an 
adoption agency and expresses an interest in being assessed as a 
prospective adopter, they will be provided with information and invited 
to one of the  Information Evenings. After the Information Evening, if 
the person wishes to proceed, the agency will arrange a meeting and 
consider whether we should provide them with a Registration of 
Interest form. Once we agree for the family to proceed to Stage 1, the 
self-learning process, statutory checks, references, homework and 
Learning Group can start. If we agree for the family to proceed to Stage 
2, the home study will begin. A report is provided to the Adoption and 

Page 127



 

 

Permanence Panel at the end of Stage 2 for recommendation to the 
agency decision maker in Lewisham, the Director of Children’s Social 
Care, if the prospective adopter is suitable to adopt a child.  

6.11 Between 1st April 2013 to 31st March 2014 30 families were approved 
by the panel to adopt.  

 April 
2011 
to 
March 
2012 

April 
2012 
to 
March 
2013 

April 
2013 
to 
March 
2014 

Number of applicants approved to adopt 20 20 30 

Of these applicants, number who were 
heterosexual couples 

13 13 26 

Of these applicants, number who were single 
female 

5 7 3 

Of these applicants, number who were single 
male 

0 0 0 

Of these applicants, number who were same 
sex couple 

2 0 3 

Of these applicants, number who were second 
time adopters 

4 3  3 

Of these applicants, number who were kinship / 
foster carers 

1 5 2 

    

Ethnicity    

White UK 8 8 20 

Mixed heritage (including White UK/Asian) 1 3 5 

Black African Caribbean 4 3 3 

Black African 0 3 2 

Black African Caribbean / Black African 0 3 0 

Other 7 0 0 

 

6.12 The second Adoption Scorecard published by the DfE confirmed that 
the Adoption Service in Lewisham performs in the top quartile of all 
London Local Authorities in the performance measure on the 
timeliness of adoption. For example, between 2011 and 2013, the 
average time between a child entering care and moving in with its 
adoptive family, Lewisham ranks 2nd place in Inner London ranking 
(the lower the better). 

 No of days 

National performance 647  

Inner London 732 

Lewisham 536 

 

6.13 Lewisham also had the highest average percentage of children   
adopted from care between 2011 and 2013 at 12% and ranked first. 

 
 

Page 128



 

 

 
 
7. Inter-country Adoption 

7. 1 Adoption in the UK is principally a service for children in the UK.  A 
small   number of applicants in the UK want to adopt a child from 
overseas and Lewisham, as an adoption agency, has a duty to ensure 
these applicants are assessed. A charge is made for these 
assessments. From July 2011 PACT (Parents and Children Together), 
a voluntary agency, has provided this service for Lewisham.  Predating 
2011, Lewisham has two adoptive families approved and still awaiting 
the placements of a child from China and from Kazakhstan. 

8. Adoption Support and Special Guardianship Support Services  

8.1 Support services are available to adoptive families and special 
guardians. The support services provide a range of services to families 
and their children which includes counseling, advice and information, 
workshops/support groups, an annual conference, financial support 
and links with CAMHS. The team also coordinates post adoption 
contact arrangements. Counseling is also provided to birth relatives 
who are losing a child to adoption and Lewisham provides an 
intermediary service between birth relatives and adopted adults.  

8.2 Over the last 12 months, the Adoption Support Team dealt with 404 
exiting cases providing a range of support services to adoptive families, 
adopted children, adopted adults, birth parents and birth relatives. 87 
new referrals were received, and out of those 53 were from adopted 
adults which indicates adoption is a life long issue and Lewisham 
responds well to the needs of adopted people. We also provide 
support, either financial, therapeutic support or both to 128 families 
who have a Special Guardianship Order.       

8.3 The Government announced on 10 September 2013 that an Adoption 
Support Fund will be created to make adoption support accessible, 
timely and of high quality for those families that need it the most. 
Lewisham has been chosen by the Department for Education as one of 
the ten Local Authorities across the country to take part in developing 
the prototype before preceding full implementation of the Fund. 

9. National Requirements   

9.1 The National Minimum Standards require that a clear written statement 
of purpose is available to all users of the service which sets out the 
aims and objectives of the Adoption Agency and describes the facilities 
and services that are provided and the principles to which the service 
adheres. The Lewisham Statement of Purpose (Appendix 1) has been 
updated and is presented to Mayor & Cabinet for approval. Updating 
has included information on staff and new recruitment process and new 
information on Fostering for Adoption. 

9.2 The National Minimum Standards require that two Children’s Guides to 
Adoption are produced, one for younger children and one for older 

Page 129



 

 

children.  The Guides (Appendix 2 & 3) have been updated and are 
presented to Mayor and Cabinet for approval. 

9.3 Lewisham devised an Action plan for the Reform Grant and see that we 
well placed to meet the expectations of the Reform Programme.  As 
can be seen from paragraph 6, Lewisham is already outperforming the 
national average, statistical neighbours and the inner London average 
in timeliness of adoptions.    Our rate of disrupted placements is also 
very low with only 2 adoptive placements breaking down in the last 10 
years out of 272 adoptions.  The recent research study on adoption 
disruption indicates that the national figures was about  3%.  
Lewisham’s figure of less than 1% compares very favourably. 

9.4 Paragraphs 6 demonstrates that Lewisham is well placed to implement 
the forthcoming changes.  However, such changes will be challenging 
and the service is aware of the need to work differently in order to meet 
the requirements.  An example of this is the need to strengthen the role 
of the South London Adoption Consortium.  It is only by working with 
the Consortium partners that the Lewisham Adoption Service will be 
able to deliver a responsive service where there are no delays in the 
assessment process.  A more flexible approach within the Consortium 
is more likely to deliver placements for those children with specific 
needs who cannot safely remain within borough boundaries.  A similar 
approach will need to be considered for post adoption support and to 
ensure  the service is able to meet the requirements of the adoption 
support fund. 

10. Financial Implications 
 
10.1 In order to support the reforms detailed in paragraph 9.3 the 

Government provided in 13/14 a grant £213,470 which was ring fenced 
to adoption and £.802,369 to support  the adoption agenda and 
permanence across the Looked After population. The grant needs to 
focus on meeting the Governments priorities.  An Action Plan has been  
put together for the spending of this grant. We are on target with the 
time scale and targets set in the plan.    

 
11. Legal Implications 
 

11.1 Section 3(1) of the Adoption and Children Act 2002 places a duty on 
the Local Authority to establish and maintain an adoption service in its 
area designed to meet the needs of children who may be or who have 
been adopted, adults who have been adopted, their parents or 
guardians, including parents and former guardians, and both 
prospective or actual adopters. 

11.2 The Local Authority is required to maintain and operate its adoption 
service in accordance with detailed statutory regulations, including  The 
Adoption Agency Regulations (AAR) 2005 and 2011 and The Adoption 
Agencies (Panel and Consequential Amendments) Regulations 2012 , 
Adoption Agencies (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2013 
and it is subject to National Minimum Standards which accompany the 
Regulations. 

Page 130



 

 

 

11.3 National Minimum Standards apply to how the Local Authority 
discharges its duties. They do not have the force of law, but are used 
by registration authorities when registering and inspecting adoption 
agencies and adoption support agencies , to determine whether the 
agencies meet their obligations under the mandatory regulations.  

 

12  Equalities Legislation 

12.1  The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 
duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine 
protected characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

12.2 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 

12.3  The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 
attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

12.4 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 
Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and 
attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the 
equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public 
authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as 
failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. 
The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 

12.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
    3. Engagement and the equality duty 

Page 131



 

 

    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 
        5. Equality information and the equality duty 

 

12.6 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties 
and who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to 
meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more 
detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 
information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-
sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
13. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
13.1 Research indicates that early adoption secures better outcomes for 

looked after children and improves their life chances and thereby 
reduces the likelihood of them becoming involved in crime or becoming 
victims of crime. 

 
14. Equalities Implications 
 
14.1 Looked After Children are one of the most vulnerable groups of 

children. They are more likely to have poorer education and health 
outcomes that lead to social exclusion.  Looked After Children are also 
more likely to have special educational needs.  Outcomes for adopted 
children are better than for Looked After Children so adoption is 
positive in terms of minimising inequalities. 

 
15. Environmental Implications   
     
15.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 
 
16. Conclusion 
 
16.1 The Mayor is asked to accept the report of the Adoption Service and to 

approve the revised statement of purpose and the two updated 
Children’s Guides. 

 
17. Background documents 
 
 Adoption Agency Regulations 2005 and 2011 
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/389/contents/made 
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1410/contents/made 
 
 The Adoption Agencies (Panel and Consequential Amendments) 

Regulations 2012; Adoption Agencies (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2013 

 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1410/contents/made 
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/985/contents/made 
 
 

Page 132



 

 

 National Minimum Standards (Adoption) 2003 and 2011 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adoption-national-

minimum-standards 
 
 
 
Appendix 1-Adoption Service Statement of Purpose 
Appendix 2-Children’s Guides-Young Children 
Appendix 3-Children’s Guides-Older Children 
 
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact Tina Benjamin, 
Service Manager LAC, Leaving Care and Adoption on 020 8314 7808. 

Page 133



 

 1 

 
 
 
 
Lewisham Adoption Service  

  

Statement of Purpose 2014 - 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
V1 25.4.14 

 

Page 134



 

 2 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

 

Why does Lewisham have a Statement of Purpose? ................................................................ 3 

Values, aims and objectives ...................................................................................................... 3 

Policies and procedures ............................................................................................................ 4 

Services provided by Lewisham Adoption Agency .................................................................... 4 

Adoption Support Services ........................................................................................................ 5 

Non-agency adoptions ............................................................................................................... 5 

Intercountry adoptions ............................................................................................................... 6 

The Adoption and Permanence Panel and Decision-making..................................................... 6 

Safeguarding and promoting welfare ......................................................................................... 7 

Monitoring and evaluation of service provision .......................................................................... 7 

Management of the service ....................................................................................................... 8 

Where can we be found? ........................................................................................................... 9 

How to complain ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Regulation and Inspection ......................................................................................................... 9 

 

Page 135



 

 3 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

Why does Lewisham have a Statement 
of Purpose? 

The National Minimum Standards for Adoption 

set out the requirement for adoption agencies 

to have a Statement of Purpose detailing the 

aims and objectives of the Adoption service,  

and sets out service provision.  

The statement of purpose is for: 

• children and young people; 

• birth relatives; 

• prospective and approved adoptive 

families; 

• special guardians and foster carers; 

• adopted adults; 

• social workers and staff working for the 

purposes of Lewisham Adoption service; 

• Councillors; 

• Adoption and Permanence Panel 

members; 

• Office for Standards in Education, 

Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted); 

• members of the public  

 

This statement of purpose is reviewed annually, 

and updated as required to incorporate any 

changes in policy and/or legislation. It is also 

subject to review and approval by elected 

members of London Borough of Lewisham. 

 

Values, aims and objectives  

The London Borough of Lewisham 

understands that for vulnerable children and 

young people who become looked after that 

self development and security are 

fundamental to ensuring they are able to 

progress positively to lead fulfilling and happy 

lives. We work together with our partners to 

reach children for whom support and 

intervention is needed in the most timely and 

effective way and aim to support birth families 

to provide safe and appropriate care for their 

children. Where this is not possible, adoption 

can be an option to enable children to have 

an enjoyable childhood, and benefit from 

excellent parenting and education, enjoying a 

wide range of opportunities to develop their 

talents and skills leading to a successful adult 

life.    

  
The Adoption and Adoption Support teams are 

committed to finding and supporting stable and 

secure adoption placements for children where 

the identified plan is adoption.  The service is 

driven in its work by the ambition to achieve 

permanence for as many children as possible 

and as early as possible. To this end we are 

progressing a range of different ways to 

promote adoption and permanence for children 

including the ‘Foster to Adopt’ programme.  We 

strive to recruit as many adopters as we can 

and are working in partnership with PACT 

(Parents and Children Together) and South 

London Adoption Consortium to find 

placements for those  children who are harder 

to place. 

 

A comprehensive range of services are 

provided to meet the lifelong needs of 

individuals whose lives are affected by 

adoption.  We aim to treat all parties with 

fairness and respect and to ensure that the 

services provided meet the services users’ 

needs in relation to race, culture, ethnicity, 

language, disability and sexuality. 

 

The Adoption and Children Act 2002 provides  

the legal framework for the service.  The values 

that underpin the services include: 

• all children are entitled to grow up as part 

of a stable and loving family 

• where possible it is best for children to be 

brought up by their birth family 

• the welfare of the child is the paramount 

consideration throughout the adoption 

process 

• the matching of children with prospective 

adopters is given careful consideration in 

relation to all the child’s identified needs 

Page 136



 

 4 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

with consideration of  the special needs of 

each child in every case 

• the teams work in close partnership with 

colleagues across Children’s Social Care 

and with key partner agencies to ensure 

that delays in achieving permanence are 

avoided 

• the lifelong implications of adoption 

require a range of services to meet the 

needs of individuals at different stages of 

the process 

• adoptive parents will be supported and 

valued through the process of 

recruitment, matching, placement and 

beyond, based on assessed need. 

 

All staff are provided with a thorough induction 

and support from experienced and skilled 

managers to promote these values and to work 

within the Council’s equal opportunities 

policies.  Staff are also given the Council’s 

whistleblowing policy as part of their induction 

and this makes clear the responsibility for all 

staff to report areas of poor practice. 

 

The National context 

In 2013, the Government published Adoption 

Reform Programme and provide special grant 

for local authorities to accelerate the adoption 

process with the aim of more children being 

adopted and more rapidly.  

 

Lewisham has a strong track record of 

successfully placing children and is one of the 

highest performing local authorities in the 

recently published adoption Scorecards. We 

welcome the Government to improve the 

adoption system and we continually strive to 

improve our services and to deliver improved 

outcomes for our children and young people.  

 

Our key areas for development are: 

 

• Concurrent Panning and Fostering 

for Adoption – to develop our 

concurrent planning and Fostering for 

Adoption for children and to ensure we 

are ready to implant any legislative 

change to enable adopters to be 

approved as foster carers.  

• Focus on our more difficult to place 

children – working with regional and 

national partners to prioritise and place 

those children. 

 

Policies and procedures 

The policies and procedures cover all of the 

agency’s activities for children, adopters, 

adopted adults , birth relatives, step-parent 

adopters and intercountry adopters and their 

children and are updated as required to reflect 

developments in practice, legislation and 

regulation. 

 

Services provided by Lewisham 
Adoption Agency 

All services provided are within the legal 

framework of the Adoption and Children Act 

2002, Children Act 1989 and associated 

guidance and regulations. 

 

Information for enquiries relating to adoption 

can be accessed through: 

• a free phone line: 0800 587 7392; 

• email: adoptioninfo@lewisham.gov.uk;  

• a website providing written information on 

services: www.lewisham.gov.uk/adoption 

 

Prospective adopters receive a prompt and 

professional response and written information  

within the timescale set out in the new Stage 1 

& Stage 2 assessment process . This outlines 

the process from initial enquiry to the making of 

an adoption order. Information evenings are 

held every month for the recruitment of 

adopters. We seek to identify adopters for 

Lewisham children but we also assess 

adopters who can provide placements for 

children from other parts of the country.   

 

Page 137



 

 5 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

Lewisham is part of the South London Adoption 

Consortium and will provide advice to 

prospective applicants about the other local 

authorities and agencies within the consortium 

where applicants do not match the needs of 

Lewisham’s children. 

 

Prospective adopters will be assessed following 

the new Stage 1 and Stage 2 process (from 

receipt of the Registration of Interest form to 

ratification by the Adoption Agency Decision 

Maker).  Second time adopters and foster 

carers who are applying to adopt a child placed 

with them will proceed straight to Stage 2 

process and be assessed within four months.  

 

A full preparation training programme is offered  

to prospective adopters which runs at both 

stages and post approval. The groups  cover a 

range of issues to help adopters understand 

the demands and rewards of adoption.  The 

training programme focuses on the importance 

of building secure attachments and how to 

promote attachment with children who have 

had negative life experiences and whose 

histories may include parental drug and alcohol 

misuse, mental health difficulties or learning 

difficulties. The training programme is reviewed 

on an annual basis to ensure that comments 

from attendees are taken into account to 

continuously improve the quality of the training. 

In recognition of some prospective adopters  

may need further learning, we also provide e-

learning courses to those who need them.     

 

Once approved, adopters continue to receive 

support from their social worker and information 

about children needing adoption.  They are 

referred to the South London Adoption 

Consortium and the Adoption Register.  They 

also go on the database of the Adoption 

Support Team so that they can receive 

invitations to relevant events and further 

training. 

 

Recruitment is continually kept under review 

and targeted to meet the needs of the children 

who are identified as in need of an adoptive 

family. 

 

Adoption Support Services 

The Adoption Support Team has a range of 

services in place to support adoptive families 

and their children including counselling, advice 

and information, workshops/support groups, an 

annual family day, a newsletter, financial 

support and links with CAMHS (Children and  

and Adolescents Mental Health Service).  The 

team also supports Special Guardian families, 

post order. 

 

Lewisham Council supports ongoing contact 

arrangements as required. The Adoption 

Support Service facilitates both direct and 

indirect contact (through our letterbox service) 

between birth families, children and significant 

others. An allocated worker provides support to 

birth relatives and adopters to promote contact 

as a positive experience for the child. 

 

Independent counselling is provided to birth 

parents whose child/ren are placed for 

adoption.  Lewisham provides an intermediary 

service for birth relatives and adopted adults.  

Some group work is organised within the 

consortium, e.g. for adopted adults and adopted 

teenagers.  

 

The manager of the Adoption Support Team is 

also the Adoption Support Services Advisor for 

Lewisham. 

 

Non-agency adoptions 

Lewisham provides a comprehensive service to 

people pursuing a non-agency adoption (which 

is an adoption not arranged through the 

adoption agency). Cases are promptly 

allocated to social workers experienced in this 

field and court reports are filed within required 

Page 138



 

 6 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

timescales. Adopters are made aware of their 

right to access Adoption Support services. 

 

Inter-country adoptions 

A voluntary agency called PACT (Parents and 

Children Together) provides a service to those 

residents of Lewisham wishing to adopt a child 

from overseas. In some cases a child may be 

known to the applicant or be a relative.  PACT 

provides initial information, preparation groups 

and an assessment service.  Adopters and 

children adopted from overseas are offered 

help and advice from the Adoption Support 

Team.  Further information can be found on the 

websites of the Department for Education, the 

Home Office, the Border Agency and the 

Intercountry Adoption Centre.  There are 

charges associated with intercountry 

adoption. 

 

The Adoption and Permanence Panel 
and Decision-making 

Lewisham’s Adoption and Permanence Panel 

is held every two weeks and is conducted in 

line with Government regulations and good 

practice guidance.   

 

The panel has an independent chair. It is also 

attended by a Lewisham Councillor, and other 

members who have varied personal or 

professional experience of adoption.  The panel 

includes a medical adviser who is a Senior 

Speciality Doctor in Community Paediatrics.  

There is an Adoption Adviser, one of the 

Adoption Team Managers, provides advice and 

information to the panel. The legal adviser 

(Principal Lawyer) to the panel who is 

employed by Lewisham is available for 

consultation during the panel meetings.  

  

The Director of Children’s Social Care meets 

with the chair of the panel once a year and 

undertakes an appraisal of the effectiveness of 

the chair annually. The appraisal of other panel 

members are conducted by the Independent 

Chair and Panel Adviser.  

 

The panel makes recommendations on the 

following issues: 

• the approval of adopters. 

• whether adoption is the best plan for a 

child who is not the subject of care 

proceedings. 

• whether a match between a child/ren and 

particular adopters is right for them. 

 

The adoption panel makes recommendations to 

the agency. The agency decision-maker 

considers recommendations from the panel and 

then makes a decision within 7 working days 

upon receiving the agreed minutes.  The 

Agency Decision Maker is able to seek the 

advice of medical, legal and adoption advisors. 

 

The panel also offers advice regarding adoption 

support plans, contact arrangements or any 

other issue of concern which it feels that the 

agency needs to address.   

 

Prospective adopters attend the panel when 

their approval is being considered, and 

approved adopters attend the panel meeting 

when a match with a specific child is being 

considered. The chair informs applicants of the 

recommendation immediately after the panel.  

All applicants who attend are asked to 

complete a feedback form so that we can 

consider ways of improving the process and 

ensuring that everyone involved can make the 

best contribution to this important area of 

decision-making in children’s lives. 

 

A decision as to whether a child who is the 

subject of care proceedings should be placed 

for adoption is made by one of the three 

agency decision-makers (ADMs) in Lewisham. 

They meet weekly to avid any delay in making 

decision on children’s permanency plan. They 

are able to consult with the agency, legal, 

Page 139



 

 7 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

medical and adoption advisors and to request 

any further information which is deemed 

necessary.  

 
Safeguarding and promoting welfare 

The London Child Protection Procedures 

provide the procedural framework for 

safeguarding children in Lewisham and the 

adoption agency ensures that staff and 

managers attend child protection training and 

comply with good practice and guidance.   

Safeguarding issues are also part of the 

training programme for Adoption and 

Permanence Panel members. 

 

Monitoring and evaluation of service 
provision 

The Department for Education has set in place 

a Scorecard system for assessing the 

effectiveness of planning and permanency 

(including adoption) arrangements for children 

who are looked after by the Local Authorities.  

In addition, clear priorities for improvement are 

set for the Adoption Service on an annual basis 

through discussion with the Director of 

Children’s Social Care.  These targets are set 

to ensure that decisions regarding children’s 

futures are made promptly with a view to 

children being placed with their adoptive family 

as quickly as possible.  Systems are in place 

within Children’s Social Care so that children 

who may have adoption as their final care plan 

are tracked by the Adoption Team so that an 

adoptive family can be identified as soon as 

possible. 

 

A range of mechanisms are in place to monitor 

and improve the performance of the service. 

For example: 

• An Annual Report on the agency’s 

performance is submitted to Councillors. 

• The Director of Children’s Social Care 

shares performance information with the 

lead member for children and young 

people. 

• The Children and Young People’s Strategic 

Partnership receives a performance 

monitoring report at each meeting 

• The Adoption and Permanence Panel 

receives a six monthly report on activity. 

• Quality issues are addressed through 

regular supervision and file audit. 

• Feedback questionnaires are sent to 

prospective adopters after attending 

preparation groups and the Adoption and  

Permanence Panel. 

• Children’s Social Care undertakes 

telephone surveys of Adopters to learn 

from their experiences of the adoption 

journey in order to improve our processes 

and procedures.  

• If an adoption placement breaks down, a 

meeting is held and independently chaired.  

The learning from this is then taken forward 

within the service to improve our practice. 

However, our adoptive placement very 

rarely break down and this is a key 

measure of our work. 

• The Adoption and Permanence Panel 

provides independent oversight of cases.  

• The Director of Children’s Social Care 

observes the Panel once a year. 

• Performance is monitored nationally via 

Scorecards, annual returns to the 

Department for Education, and voluntary 3 

monthly ‘snapshots’ of service progress. 

• Ofsted inspections of the Adoption Service 

and Adoption Support Service. 

 

 

Lewisham Adoption Service received a letter 

from the Children’s minister, Mr  Edward 

Timpson following the 2nd publication of 

the adoption scorecard. 

 
‘it’s good to see that you have met the 
2010-13 threshold.   
In the meantime, I’d like us to think about 
how we can share the lessons from your 
success more widely’  
 

 

Page 140



 

 8 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

 

 

We share our positive experience with our 

Consortium members and currently two of the  

members are adapting the Lewisham model to 

improve their practice.    

 
Management of the service 

Overall responsibility for the Adoption Service 

is held by the Service Manager for Adoption, 

Looked After Children and Leaving Care, Tina 

Benjamin. The Service Manager is a 

Registered Social Worker with extensive 

experience of safeguarding and all aspects of 

services  for looked after children.  

 

In line with National Minimum Standards, the 

Agency Decision Maker is a senior person 

within the adoption agency, who is a social 

worker with at least 3 years post-qualifying 

experience and knowledge of permanency 

planning for children, adoption and childcare 

law and practice. Three Agency Decision 

Makers have been appointed on behalf of the 

Local Authority: Ian Smith, Director of 

Children’s Social Care; Naeema Sarkar,  

Service Manager for Referral and Assessment; 

and  the Service Manager for Quality 

Assurance (the post currently covered interim 

but the post holder will be Agency Decision 

Maker when we have permanent person in 

post). 

 

The Adoption Service employs qualified and 

experienced staff as follows:- 

 

• Two Adoption Team Managers, and one 

part time Adoption Support Manger. Team 

Managers are registered social workers 

and have extensive experience of child 

care and the adoption services over many 

years. 

• Four full-time and six (full time equivalent 

of 2.3 posts) part-time social workers who 

are all qualified and experienced in 

adoption work. 

• Three adoption support workers who are 

all qualified social workers who have 

relevant experience. 

• Two business support staff provide 

administrative support to the team. 

 

 

 

All social workers are registered with the Health 

and Care Professional Council. Three members 

of the team hold post qualifying awards in 

Childcare. Other staff have other post qualifying 

awards. 

 

Future Plans for the Adoption Service 

 

We are ambitious to perform even better than 

we do at the moment and to give more children 

the opportunity to be adopted timely. With the 

Government’s Adoption Reform Grant, we have 

invested in our recruitment activities, and have 

50% increased in number of approved adopters  

and significant increased in number of children 

placed in adoptive families. We would like to 

continue to improve our recruitment process 

and provide a better support for adoptive 

families and birth families. We have plan in 

place with the Consortium to organise ‘Activity 

Day’ to place more children who are older and 

or have more complex needs.

Page 141



 

 9 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

Where can we be found? 

The Adoption and Adoption Support Teams are 

located at: 

 

Children’s Social Care 

1st Floor, Laurence House 

1 Catford Road 

London SE6 4RU 

0208 314 6887 

 

How to complain 

Any service user can complain if they are 

unhappy with the service the agency provides.  

In the first instance, service users are 

encouraged to talk about the problem with the 

social worker to see if they can resolve the 

problem.  If the service user is not satisfied, the 

formal complaints process offers three stages. 

 

Complaints Team 

Lewisham Council 

3rd Floor Laurence House 

1 Catford Road 

London 

SE6 4RU 

 

If the complaint relates to the Adoption and 

Permanence Panel’s decision not to approve an 

adoptive applicant, the applicant can ask for the 

case to be reviewed by the Independent 

Review Mechanism.  Details of this process will 

be provided on request from the Adoption Team 

Managers. 

 

Independent Reviewing Officers chair Looked 

After Children’s reviews prior to an Adoption 

Order being made and ensure that children and 

their adopters are fully informed of the 

complaints process.  Details of the complaints 

procedure are included in the information packs 

sent to all prospective adopters. 

 

Regulation and Inspection 

Responsibility for the regulation and inspection 

of adoption agencies is undertaken by the 

Office for Standards in Education (known as 

Ofsted). 

 

Concerns, complaints and allegations about 

registered services including adoption agencies 

can be directed to Ofsted particularly where it is 

not possible for them to be resolved directly 

with the agency. 

 

For advice and information on how Ofsted can 

help, they can be contacted at: 

Ofsted 

Piccadilly Gate 

Store Street 

Manchester 

M1 2WD 
 

Telephone : 0300 123 1231 

 

or via the website at www.ofsted.gov.uk 

 

Page 142



 

 - 10 - 

 
 

 Lewisham Adoption Agency – statement of purpose 
 

 

 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Lewisham Adoption Agency – Statement of Purpose 
 

  
 

Page 143



I’m going to be  adopted
What does it mean?

P
age 144



Adoption means living with another 

family forever when you can’t live with 

the family where you were born.

Who adopts children?
Children are adopted by all sorts of families.  
It may be a family with a mum and a dad 
or two mums or two dads, or just one mum 
or dad.  It may be a family where there are 
other children or a family where you are the 
only child.

Why am I going to be adopted?
Some mums and dads grow beautiful children 
but can’t look after them safely.
Social workers, independent reviewing 
officers, people who know about adoption 
and a judge and the court then have to 
decide where children should live.
While this is being decided, children live with 
foster carers.

If everyone decides that you need a 
new, forever family, your social worker 
will find the right one for you.

You will see pictures of your new family 
and then get to know them at your 
foster home.

You will then move to your new home.

Your social worker will still come to see 
you to make sure that you are all right.

You will go to court and be adopted. 
You are now a part of a new family.

If you want, you can still hear about 
your old family.

Lots of children have been adopted

P
age 145



Here are some people who can help you:

!!" Independent Reviewing Officer

!!!!!!" Lewisham Council Complaints Officer

!!!!!!!" Children’s Rights Director

!!!!" Ofsted

!!" Independent Advocate

" Adoption Support Team

©
 P

u
b

lis
h

ed
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0
1
2
. 
R

ef
: 
3
9

5
-2

a

P
age 146



© Published November 2012. Ref: 395-1b

Page 147



   ?
 

 

Page 148



Page 149



F
o

st
er

 f
am

ili
es

 u
su

al
ly

 l
o

o
k 

af
te

r 
ch

ild
re

n
 

u
n

ti
l 
th

ey
 c

an
 m

o
ve

 b
ac

k 
h

o
m

e 
o

r 
o

n
 t

o
 a

 
n

ew
 a

d
o

p
ti

ve
 f

am
ily

. 
S
o

m
et

im
es

 a
 f

o
st

er
 

fa
m

ily
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k 

af
te

r 
a 

ch
ild

 u
n

ti
l 
h

e 
o

r 
sh

e 
is

 
g

ro
w

n
 u

p
. 

S
o

m
et

im
es

 a
 f

o
st

er
 f

am
ily

 w
ill

 a
d

o
p

t 
a 

ch
ild

 
th

ey
 a

re
 l
o

o
ki

n
g

 a
ft

er
. 
H

o
w

ev
er

, 
fo

st
er

 
fa

m
ili

es
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
su

al
ly

 l
o

o
k 

af
te

r 
ch

ild
re

n
 

u
n

ti
l 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

g
ro

w
n

 u
p

. T
h

ey
 s

o
m

et
im

es
 

ke
ep

 i
n

 t
o

u
ch

 w
it

h
 t

h
ei

r 
fo

st
er

 c
h

ild
re

n
, 
ev

en
 

w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 m
o

ve
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
ei

r 
n

ew
 f

am
ili

es
. 

  
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 m
ea

n
s 

liv
in

g
 w

it
h

 
an

o
th

er
 f

am
ily

 f
o

re
ve

r 
w

h
en

 
yo

u
 c

an
’t

 l
iv

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fa

m
ily

 
w

h
er

e 
yo

u
 w

er
e 

b
o

rn
. 

W
h

en
 y

o
u

 a
re

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 

b
el

o
n

g
 t

o
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
 u

p
 w

it
h

 a
 

n
ew

 f
am

ily
. 

B
ei

n
g

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 m
ea

n
s 

yo
u

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

‘i
n

 c
ar

e’
 o

r 
‘l
o

o
ke

d
 a

ft
er

’ 
an

y 
m

o
re

 b
u

t 
yo

u
 a

re
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
n

ew
 f

am
ily

. 

 
 

T
h

is
 b

o
o

k
le

t 
w

il
l 
te

ll
 y

o
u

 m
o

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
. 
Y
o

u
 

m
ig

h
t 

w
a
n

t 
to

 r
e
a
d

 i
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

yo
u

r 
so

ci
a
l 

w
o

rk
e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

r 
ca

re
r.

 Y
o

u
 c

a
n

 a
sk

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

y 
q

u
e
st

io
n

s 

yo
u

 m
a
y 

h
a
ve

. 

3

Page 150



?
B

ei
n

g
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 i
s 

a 
re

al
ly

 b
ig

 t
h

in
g

 b
ec

au
se

 i
t 

w
ill

 c
h

an
g

e 
yo

u
r 

lif
e 

fo
re

ve
r.
 W

e 
w

an
t 

to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
h

at
 i
t 

is
 r

ig
h

t 
fo

r 
yo

u
. 

Yo
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 t
al

k 
to

 y
o

u
 a

b
o

u
t 

it
. 
It

 i
s 

im
p

o
rt

an
t 

th
at

 
yo

u
 t

el
l 
th

em
 w

h
at

 y
o

u
 a

re
 t

h
in

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ee

lin
g

. 
Yo

u
r 

so
ci

al
 

w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 t

al
k 

to
 y

o
u

r 
m

u
m

, 
d

ad
 a

n
d

 p
er

h
ap

s 
o

th
er

 
p

eo
p

le
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

lif
e 

lik
e 

yo
u

r 
n

an
, 
g

ra
n

d
d

ad
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
r 

ca
re

r.
 A

t 
sp

ec
ia

l 
m

ee
ti

n
g

s 
ca

lle
d

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
w

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 t
al

k 
ab

o
u

t 
w

h
et

h
er

 
yo

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
. 

W
h

en
 s

o
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
s,

 t
h

e 
co

u
rt

 a
n

d
 m

ay
b

e 
yo

u
r 

m
u

m
 a

n
d

 
d

ad
 h

av
e 

d
ec

id
ed

 t
h

at
 i
t 

is
n

’t
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
o

r 
yo

u
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 u
p

 
in

 t
h

e 
fa

m
ily

 w
h

er
e 

yo
u

 w
er

e 
b

o
rn

, 
yo

u
r 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 w

ill
 

te
ll 

a 
d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

er
 a

ll 
ab

o
u

t 
yo

u
 a

n
d

 a
sk

 t
h

em
 w

h
et

h
er

 
th

ey
 t

h
in

k 
th

at
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 i
s 

ri
g

h
t 

fo
r 

yo
u

. 

T
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

er
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

s 
h

o
w

 i
m

p
o

rt
an

t 
it

 i
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n

 t
o

 g
ro

w
 u

p
 i
n

 a
 f

am
ily

 w
h

o
 l
o

ve
s 

th
em

 a
n

d
 w

h
er

e 
th

ey
 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
n

d
 c

an
 b

el
o

n
g

.

?

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y 
al

l 
so

rt
s 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
es

. 
It

 m
ay

 b
e 

a 
fa

m
ily

 w
it

h
 a

 

m
u

m
 a

n
d

 a
 d

ad
 o

r 
tw

o
 m

u
m

s 
o

r 
tw

o
 

d
ad

s,
 o

r 
ju

st
 o

n
e 

m
u

m
 o

r 
d

ad
. 
It

 m
ay

 

b
e 

a 
fa

m
ily

 w
h

er
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
o

th
er

 

ch
ild

re
n

 o
r 

a 
fa

m
ily

 w
h

er
e 

yo
u

 a
re

 

th
e 

o
n

ly
 c

h
ild

. 

4

Page 151



 
 

T
h

er
e 

ar
e 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
h

o
 w

an
t 

to
 a

d
o

p
t 

a 
ch

ild
 o

r 
yo

u
n

g
 p

er
so

n
. 
Yo

u
r 

so
ci

al
 

w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 d
o

 t
h

ei
r 

b
es

t 
to

 fi
 n

d
 a

 f
am

ily
 t

h
at

 i
s 

ri
g

h
t 

fo
r 

yo
u

. T
h

ey
 m

ay
 b

e 
lo

o
ki

n
g

 f
o

r 
a 

fa
m

ily
 w

h
o

 s
p

ea
ks

 t
h

e 
sa

m
e 

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

an
d

 w
h

o
 c

el
eb

ra
te

s 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

sp
ec

ia
l 
d

ay
s.

 I
f 

yo
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 c
an

n
o

t 
fi 

n
d

 a
 f

am
ily

 l
ik

e 
th

is
 t

h
ey

 w
ill

 
te

ll 
yo

u
. 

Yo
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 g
et

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 f

am
ili

es
 w

h
o

 w
an

t 
to

 a
d

o
p

t 
so

m
eo

n
e 

lik
e 

yo
u

. 
S
o

m
et

im
es

 t
h

ey
 m

ay
 p

u
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
yo

u
 i
n

 s
p

ec
ia

l 
m

ag
az

in
es

 
an

d
 p

ap
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 s

en
t 

to
 f

am
ili

es
 t

h
in

ki
n

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

ad
o

p
ti

o
n

. 
Yo

u
r 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 

w
ill

 g
o

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fa

m
ili

es
 t

o
 fi

 n
d

 o
u

t 
ab

o
u

t 
th

em
. 
A

ft
er

 h
o

ld
in

g
 a

 
m

ee
ti

n
g

, 
th

ey
 w

ill
 t

h
en

 c
h

o
o

se
 o

n
e 

th
at

 t
h

ey
 t

h
in

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
ri

g
h

t 
fo

r 
yo

u
. 

Yo
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 t
el

l 
th

e 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 p

an
el

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 f

am
ily

. T
h

e 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 

p
an

el
 i
s 

a 
g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le
 w

h
o

 k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 n
ew

 
fa

m
ili

es
. 
If

 t
h

ey
 a

ls
o

 t
h

in
k 

th
is

 f
am

ily
 i
s 

ri
g

h
t 

fo
r 

yo
u

 t
h

en
 y

o
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 
w

ill
 t

al
k 

to
 y

o
u

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

em
. 
Yo

u
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 a

sk
 a

n
y 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
ab

o
u

t 
th

e 
ad

o
p

te
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
ey

 m
ig

h
t 

al
so

 s
en

d
 y

o
u

 s
o

m
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

em
se

lv
es

 
su

ch
 a

s 
a 

b
o

o
k 

o
r 

ev
en

 a
 D

V
D

. 

5

Page 152



A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 m

ea
n

s 
b

el
o

n
g

in
g

 t
o

 a
 n

ew
 f

am
ily

, 
b

u
t 

it
 d

o
es

n
’t

 m
ea

n
 

fo
rg

et
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

eo
p

le
 y

o
u

 k
n

o
w

 a
n

d
 l
o

ve
. 
F
o

r 
so

m
e 

ch
ild

re
n

 i
t 

m
ay

 
b

e 
g

o
o

d
 t

o
 s

ta
y 

in
 t

o
u

ch
 w

it
h

 c
er

ta
in

 m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
th

ei
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

. 
F
o

r 
o

th
er

s 
th

is
 m

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

b
e 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 o

r 
m

ig
h

t 
b

e 
to

o
 u

p
se

tt
in

g
. 
If

 
yo

u
 d

o
n

’t
 w

an
t 

to
 s

ta
y 

in
 t

o
u

ch
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 t
h

at
’s

 o
k 

to
o

. 

If
 t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
p

eo
p

le
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 t
h

at
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e 
to

 
se

e 
o

r 
w

ri
te

 t
o

, 
ta

lk
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 w
h

o
 w

ill
 d

ec
id

e 
if

 t
h

is
 i
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
. T

h
e 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 w

ill
 t

al
k 

to
 y

o
u

r 
n

ew
 f

am
ily

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 

an
d

 a
rr

an
g

e 
fo

r 
yo

u
 t

o
 w

ri
te

 f
ro

m
 t

im
e 

to
 t

im
e 

o
r 

se
e 

yo
u

r 
b

ir
th

 
fa

m
ily

 i
f 

ev
er

yo
n

e 
sa

ys
 i
t 

is
 o

k.
 

E
ve

n
 i
f 

yo
u

 d
o

n
’t

 s
ee

 y
o

u
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 t
h

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

an
 

ar
ra

n
g

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

em
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
r 

n
ew

 f
am

ily
 t

o
 s

en
d

 a
 l
et

te
r 

to
 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
. T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 g
iv

e 
yo

u
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 y
o

u
r 

n
ew

s 
an

d
 g

iv
e 

yo
u

 n
ew

s 
ab

o
u

t 
th

em
. 
Yo

u
r 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
to

ld
 w

h
er

e 
yo

u
 

liv
e 

n
o

w
, 
w

h
er

e 
yo

u
 g

o
 t

o
 s

ch
o

o
l,
 o

r 
yo

u
r 

n
ew

 f
am

ily
 n

am
e.

 

 
 

O
n

ce
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
liv

ed
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

fa
m

ily
 f

o
r 

a 
w

h
ile

 t
h

ey
 w

ill
 a

sk
 t

h
e 

co
u

rt
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

w
h

er
e 

ju
d

g
es

 m
ak

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

s,
 t

o
 m

ak
e 

an
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 
o

rd
er

. 
A

n
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
rd

er
 m

ea
n

s 
th

at
 

yo
u

 w
ill

 l
eg

al
ly

 b
el

o
n

g
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

n
ew

 
fa

m
ily

. 
D

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 t

im
e 

a 
ch

ild
re

n
’s

 
g

u
ar

d
ia

n
 m

ay
 c

o
m

e 
to

 t
al

k 
to

 y
o

u
 

ab
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 y

o
u

 a
re

 f
ee

lin
g

. 

If
 t

h
e 

ju
d

g
e 

d
ec

id
es

 t
h

at
 b

ei
n

g
 

ad
o

p
te

d
 i
s 

th
e 

b
es

t 
th

in
g

 f
o

r 
yo

u
, 

yo
u

r 
ad

o
p

ti
ve

 p
ar

en
ts

 w
ill

 a
lw

ay
s 

b
e 

yo
u

r 
le

g
al

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
n

d
 h

av
e 

fu
ll 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
yo

u
, 
ju

st
 a

s 
if

 y
o

u
 

w
er

e 
b

o
rn

 t
o

 t
h

em
. 

6

Page 153



7

 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
h

ap
p

y 
o

r 
h

av
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

o
r 

w
o

rr
ie

s 

yo
u

 m
u

st
 s

ay
 s

o
. 
A

s 
w

el
l a

s 
yo

u
r 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
lo

ts
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le
 y

o
u

 c
an

 t
al

k 
to

 w
h

o
 c

an
 

h
el

p
 y

o
u

 s
o

rt
 t

h
in

g
s 

o
u

t.
 Y

o
u

 c
an

 t
al

k 
to

 a
n

o
th

er
 

p
er

so
n

 w
h

o
 is

 c
al

le
d

 a
n

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
ad

vo
ca

te
. 
A

n
 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
ad

vo
ca

te
 is

 s
o

m
eo

n
e 

w
h

o
 c

an
 t

al
k 

to
 

yo
u

 a
b

o
u

t 
yo

u
r 

w
o

rr
ie

s 
o

r 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 
an

d
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 

tr
y 

to
 s

o
rt

 t
h

in
g

s 
o

u
t.

 

If
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 a
n

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
ad

vo
ca

te
, 
th

is
 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 c

an
 fi

 n
d

 o
n

e 
fo

r 
yo

u
. 
!

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
A

d
v
o

ca
te

Le
w

is
h

am
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 R

ig
h

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
 (

LC
R

S
)

A
kw

aa
b

a 
C

en
tr

e

G
ri

n
lin

g
 P

la
ce

Lo
n

d
o

n
 S

E
8
 5

H
G

F
re

ep
h

o
n

e:
 0

8
0
0
 1

6
9
 3

7
6
2

E
m

ai
l: 

le
w

is
h

am
ch

ild
re

n
sr

ig
h

ts
@

b
ar

n
ar

d
o

s.
o

rg
.u

k

Page 154



8

T
h

e 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 R

ig
h

ts
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

is
 c

al
le

d
 

R
o

g
er

 M
o

rg
an

. 
H

e 
w

ill
 h

el
p

 t
o

 s
o

rt
 t

h
in

g
s 

o
u

t 
an

d
 c

an
 a

ls
o

 o
ff

er
 h

el
p

 a
n

d
 a

d
vi

ce
.

R
o

g
e
r 

M
o

rg
a
n

 O
B

E
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 R
ig

h
ts

 D
ir

e
ct

o
r

O
fs

te
d

A
vi

at
io

n
 H

o
u

se
1
2
5
 K

in
g

sw
ay

Lo
n

d
o

n
 W

C
2
B

 6
S
E

Te
l:
 0

8
0
0

 5
2
8

 0
7
3

1
E

m
ai

l:
 t

h
et

ea
m

.r
ig

h
ts

4
m

e@
o

fs
te

d
.g

o
v.

u
k

W
eb

si
te

: 
w

w
w

.r
ig

h
ts

4
m

e.
o

rg

Yo
u

 c
an

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 L
ew

is
h

am
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 O

ffi
 c

e.
 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 T

ea
m

Le
w

is
h

am
 C

o
u

n
ci

l
3
rd

 fl
 o

o
r,
 L

au
re

n
ce

 H
o

u
se

C
at

fo
rd

 S
E

6
 4

R
U

Te
l:
 0

2
0
 8

3
1
4
 6

9
3
0
/
7
4
3
5

Fa
x:

 0
2
0
 8

3
1
4
 3

0
3
9

E
m

ai
l:
 c

yp
ca

se
w

o
rk

@
le

w
is

h
am

.g
o

v.
u

k

If
 y

o
u

 o
r 

y
o

u
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
v
e
 f

a
m

il
y
 w

o
u

ld
 l

ik
e
 

so
m

e
 h

e
lp

 o
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
, 
y
o

u
 c

a
n

 c
o

n
ta

ct
:

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 

Le
w

is
h

am
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

Te
l: 

0
2
0
 8

3
1
4
 7

5
0
6
 

E
m

ai
l: 

ad
o

p
ti

o
n

.in
fo

@
le

w
is

h
am

.g
o

v.
u

k

Page 155



9

H
e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 c

a
n

 h
e
lp

 y
o

u
:

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 o

ffi
 c

e
r.

M
y 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
re

vi
ew

in
g

 o
ffi

 c
er

 i
s:

  

N
a
m

e
:

C
o

n
ta

ct
 d

e
ta

il
s

L
e
w

is
h

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 O

ffi
 c

e
r

3
rd

 fl
 o

o
r 

L
au

re
n

ce
 H

o
u

se

1
 C

at
fo

rd
 R

o
ad

C
at

fo
rd

 S
E

6
 4

R
U

Te
l:
 0

2
0
 8

3
1
4
 8

2
7
6
/
8
2
9
8

Fa
x:

 0
2
0
 8

3
1
4
 3

1
5
1

E
m

ai
l:
 c

yp
.c

as
ew

o
rk

@
le

w
is

h
am

.g
o

v.
u

k

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

Le
w

is
h

am
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
1
st

 fl
 o

o
r 

L
au

re
n

ce
 H

o
u

se
1
 C

at
fo

rd
 R

o
ad

C
at

fo
rd

 S
E

6
 4

R
U

F
re

ep
h

o
n

e:
 0

8
0
0
 5

8
7
 7

3
9
2
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 R

ig
h

ts
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r

O
ffi

 c
e 

o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 R
ig

h
ts

 D
ir

ec
to

r
O

fs
te

d
A

vi
at

io
n

 H
o

u
se

1
2
5
 K

in
g

sw
ay

Lo
n

d
o

n
 W

C
2
B

 6
S
E

F
re

ep
h

o
n

e:
 0

8
0
0
 5

2
8
 0

7
3
1

O
fs

te
d

O
fs

te
d

 N
at

io
n

al
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
U

n
it

R
o

ya
l E

xc
h

an
g

e 
B

u
ild

in
g

s,
S
t 

A
n

n
’s

 S
q

u
ar

e
M

an
ch

es
te

r 
M

2
 7

L
A

Te
l: 

0
3
0
0
 1

2
3
 4

6
6
6

Page 156



I 
ca

n
’t

 l
iv

e 
at

 h
o

m
e

I 
g

o
 t

o
 l
iv

e 
w

it
h

 
fo

st
er

 c
ar

er
s

M
y 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
, 

m
y 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
re

vi
ew

in
g

 o
ffi

 c
er

 a
n

d
 m

y 
g

u
ar

d
ia

n
 

th
in

k 
ab

o
u

t 
an

d
 t

al
k 

to
 m

e 
ab

o
u

t 
w

h
er

e 
I 
w

ill
 g

o
 t

o
 l
iv

e

T
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

er
 

co
n

si
d

er
s 

w
h

et
h

er
 

I 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
p

la
ce

d
 

fo
r 

ad
o

p
ti

o
n

T
h

e 
ju

d
g

e 
an

d
 t

h
e 

co
u

rt
 l
is

te
n

 
to

 e
ve

ry
o

n
e 

an
d

 t
o

 w
h

at
 I
 

w
an

t 
to

 h
ap

p
en

 a
n

d
 d

ec
id

e 
w

h
at

 i
s 

b
es

t 
fo

r 
m

e

If
 t

h
e 

ju
d

g
e 

d
ec

id
es

 t
h

at
 I
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e 
ad

o
p

te
d

, 
m

y 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 w
ill

 
ta

lk
 t

o
 m

e 
ab

o
u

t 
th

is
 a

n
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
lo

o
ki

n
g

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ri

g
h

t 
fa

m
ily

 f
o

r 
m

e

Page 157



W
h

en
 m

y 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
er

 fi
 n

d
s 

th
e 

fa
m

ily
, 
th

e 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 

p
an

el
 w

ill
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 w

h
et

h
er

 
th

is
 i
s 

ri
g

h
t 

fo
r 

m
e

I 
m

ee
t 

m
y 

n
ew

 f
am

ily
 

an
d

 g
et

 t
o

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

em

W
h

en
 m

y 
n

ew
 f

am
ily

 
an

d
 I
 f

ee
l 
co

m
fo

rt
ab

le
 

to
g

et
h

er
, 
I 
m

o
ve

 i
n

to
 

m
y 

n
ew

 h
o

m
e

M
y 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 c

o
m

es
 t

o
 

vi
si

t 
m

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

h
at

 
I’
m

 a
lr

ig
h

t.
 M

y 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

re
vi

ew
in

g
 o

ffi
 c

er
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
es

 
to

 s
ee

 m
e 

at
 r

ev
ie

w
s W

h
en

 w
e 

al
l 
fe

el
 r

ea
d

y,
 I
 

w
ill

 g
o

 w
it

h
 m

y 
n

ew
 f

am
ily

 
to

 s
ee

 t
h

e 
ju

d
g

e 
an

d
 I
 w

ill
 

b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d

M
y 

so
ci

al
 w

o
rk

er
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 s
ay

 g
o

o
d

b
ye

 t
o

 m
e 

as
 

I 
h

av
e 

a 
‘f

o
re

ve
r 

fa
m

ily
’

I 
m

ay
 s

ti
ll 

h
ea

r 
fr

o
m

 m
y 

b
ir

th
 f

am
ily

 a
n

d
 I
 c

an
 

ta
lk

 a
b

o
u

t 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 m
y 

n
ew

 f
am

ily
 a

s 
th

ey
 

w
ill

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
at

 I
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

lo
ts

 o
f 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s

Page 158



Agenda Item 8

Page 159



 

1 

 
 

 
1 Summary 
 
1.1 This report requests the Mayor’s permission to transfer the site of Trinity Primary 

school to the Southwark Diocesan Board of Education (SDBE) during the 
lifetime of the school on that site. Once transferred SDBE will be responsible for 
the insurance and upkeep of the site.  

 
2  Purpose 
 

 The purpose of the report is to obtain the necessary permissions to undertake 
 the transfer of the site. 
 

 
3  Recommendations 
 

That the Mayor: 
 
3.1 notes that the Council is under a duty to transfer the land and buildings shown 

on the attached plan at Appendix 1 to the Southwark Diocesan Board of 
Education and agrees to the transfer taking place as set out in this report 

 
3.2 delegates authority to the Director of Regeneration & Asset Management, in 

consultation with the Executive Director for Children & Young People and the 
Head of Law, to agree the final terms of the transfer and to agree and conclude 
any other outstanding issues in connection with the land transfer arrangements  

 
4  Policy Context 
 
4.1 The proposals within this report are consistent with ‘Shaping Our Future: 

Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy’ and the Council’s corporate 
priorities. In particular, they relate to the Council’s priorities regarding young 
people’s achievement and involvement, including inspiring and supporting 
young people to achieve their potential, the protection of children and young 
people and ensuring efficiency, effectiveness and equity in the delivery of 
excellent services to meet the needs of the community.  

 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Trinity Primary School Leahurst Road 

Key Decision 
 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

Lee Green 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children and Young People, Executive Director 
Regeneration & Resources, Head of Law 
 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: June 25 2014 

Page 160



 

2 

4.2 The Local Authority has a duty to ensure the provision of sufficient places for 
pupils of statutory school age and, within financial constraints, accommodation 
that is both suitable and in good condition. 

 
4.3 In aiming to improve on the provision of facilities for primary education in 

Lewisham which are appropriate for the 21st century,  the implementation of a 
successful primary places strategy will contribute to the delivery of the corporate 
priority Young people’s achievement and involvement: raising educational 
attainment and improving facilities for young people through partnership 
working. 

 
4.4 It supports the delivery of Lewisham’s Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP), 

which sets out the Council’s vision for improving outcomes for all children and 
young people, and in so doing reducing the achievement gap between our most 
disadvantaged pupils and their peers. It also articulates the objective of 
improving outcomes for children with identified SEN and disabilities by ensuring 
that their needs are met.   

  
 The Primary Capital Programme (PCP) and Lewisham’s Primary Strategy 

for Change 

4.5 A priority in the  Primary Strategy for Change (PSfC), is the provision of 
sufficient places at the right time to meet future needs within and between 
Primary Places Planning Localities (PPPLs) in the Borough. As stated in 
Lewisham’s June 2008 PSfC: 

 “Ensuring that sufficient places are provided in localities at the right time will 
take precedence over significant investment in schools where the rectification of 
conditions and suitability issues will not produce additional places. “  

4.6 Dependent upon future central government decisions on capital delivery, it is 
proposed that the borough’s Primary Capital Programme will continue to be 
governed by the following criteria as set out in the 2008 PSfC: 

 

• Provide sufficient places at the right time to meet future needs within and 
between planning localities in the Borough 

• Improve conditions and suitability of schools in order to raise standards 

• Increase the influence of successful and popular schools 

• Maximise the efficient delivery of education in relation to the size of the 
school, removing half-form entries and promoting continuity of education 

• Enable school extended services for pupils, parents and communities 

• Optimise the Council’s capital resources available for investment.  
 

 
5.  Background 
 
 Trinity Primary School  
5.1. Following a statutory consultation the Mayor agreed at the meeting of the Mayor 

& Cabinet July 11th 2012 that the age of entry for Trinity CE School should be 
lowered so that the school became an all-through, admitting pupils from 
Reception age.  

 

Page 161



 

3 

5.2 It was agreed that the primary phase should be accommodated in the former 
Ennersdale Primary school buildings in Leahurst Road which had more recently 
been used as a decant site.  

 
5.3 Trinity is a Voluntary Aided school and Southwark Diocesan Board of Education 

is the owner of the school site. SDBE is responsible for the insurance and 
maintenance of their buildings. Voluntary Aided schools receive funding through 
LCVAP to maintain and develop their sites. 

 
5.4 The buildings in Leahurst Road required considerable repair and renovation. It 

was agreed that the LA would retain responsibility for the site until that 
programme was complete. Once the building had been handed over to the 
school, the process should be started to transfer the site to SDBE for such time 
as it should be occupied by Trinity Primary school. Should the school close, or 
move to different accommodation the site in Leahurst Road should revert to LB 
Lewisham.  

 
5.5  Once transferred SDBE will be able to apply for LCVAP funding as appropriate, 

 reducing the LA’s liability for repairs. 
 
6. Capital Financial implications  
 
6.1.1 The LA has invested £4.5 million in the refurbishment of the former Ennersdale 

school building in order to provide 420 places to help meet the demand for 
places in the locality. 

 
6.1.2 The transfer to SDBE would transfer the maintenance responsibility for the site 

and reduce the LA liability in this respect both in terms of maintenance costs 
and asset management planning costs.  The SDBE will be able to bid against 
the Locally Controlled Voluntary Aided Programme for maintenance funds.  That 
funding allocation from the DFE will increase because of this transfer and the 
allocation for the LA will decrease to reflect the reduced liability. 

 
6.1.3 In summary the capital funding implications of the transfer are broadly neutral. 
 
 
6.2 Revenue Financial Implications 
 
6.2.1 The revenue costs of running the fully expanded accommodation will continue to 

be funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant with no burden falling on the 
General Fund resources of the Council. 

 
7. Legal Implications  
 
7.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 safeguards the rights of children in the Borough to 

educational provision, which the Council is empowered to provide in accordance 
with its duties under domestic legislation. 

 
7.2 Section 14 of the Education Act 1996 obliges each local authority to ensure that 

there are sufficient primary and secondary schools available for its area i.e. the 
London Borough of Lewisham, although there is no requirement that those 
places should be exclusively in the borough. The Authority is not itself obliged to 
provide all the schools required, but to secure that they are available.  

 

Page 162



 

4 

7.3 In exercising its responsibilities under section 14 of the Education Act 1996 a 
local authority must do so with a view to securing diversity in the provision of 
schools and increasing opportunities for parental choice. 

 

7.4 Paragraph 40E of Schedule 3 of the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations 
to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 enables a local authority to 
give such assistance as it thinks to the governors of Trinity School in carrying 
out their obligations in implementing their proposals to lower the age of entry 
toTrinity School  through opening 2 forms of entry in the primary phase from 
September 2013. The primary phase to be located  at Leahurst Road London 
SE13 5LS. 

 
7.5 Paragraph 40F of Schedule 3 of the School Organisation  (Prescribed 

Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 prescribes that 
where the assistance consists of the provision of any premises for use for the 
purposes of the school , the local authority must transfer their interest  in the 
premises to the trustees of the school to be held on trust for the purposes of the 
school. Should the land cease to be used for those purposes, the transfer will 
provide for a right of reversion to the Council. The Council is required to pay the 
SBDE its reasonable costs in connection with the transfer.  

 

7.7 The 2007 Regulations were repealed by the School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013. However by 
virtue of Regulation 8(2) of the 2013 Regulations, the 2007 Regulations continue 
to apply in relation to proposals published by a local authority or by a governing 
body under section 19 of the Education and Inspections Act before 28th January 
2014. 

 
7.8 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 

equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
7.9   In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard 

to the need to: 
 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
7.10 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be   attached to 

it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and 
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 
7.11 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled 
“Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of 
Practice”.  The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it 
relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly 

Page 163



 

5 

with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public 
authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally 
required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have 
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so 
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and 
the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-
codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

7.12 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued 
five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  

 
 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 

7.13 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It 
covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that 
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four 
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good 
practice. Further information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
 
 
 
8. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
8.1 There are no crime and disorder implications. 

 
9. Equalities Implications 
 
9.1 This report supports the delivery of the Council's Equalities programme by 

ensuring that all children whose parents /carers require a place in a Lewisham 
school will be able to access one.  

10. Environmental Implications 
 
10.1 Every effort will be made to enhance rather than detract from school 
 environments in the solutions to providing additional primary place 

11. Risk assessment 
 

11.1 There are financial risks if insufficient funding is made available to support the 
delivery of the programme. There are also significant  reputational risks to the 
Council if it does not meet its statutory requirement to ensure sufficient primary 
school places are made available. 

 
 
 
 

Page 164



 

6 

12. Conclusion 
 
12.1 This report and background papers demonstrate that is a clear need to expand 

primary provision to meet demand in the borough. The enlargement proposed in 
this report will provide places in popular and successful schools in areas of high 
demand.  

 
12.2 The Mayor is therefore recommended to agree to the enlargement of  
 Sir Francis Drake Primary School from 1 to 2 forms of entry with effect from 
 September 2016 
 
 
Background Documents 
Mayor & Cabinet April 9th 2014 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s28377/Permanent%20Primary%20
Places%20Holbeach%20John%20Ball%20Coopers%20Lane%20and%20Sir%20Franci
s%20Drake.pdf 
 
Children and Young People Select Committee January 2014 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s26896/06PrimaryAndSecondarySc
hoolPlacesPlanning29012014.pdf 
 
Mayor & Cabinet January 15th 2014 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s26528/Permanent%20Primary%20
School%20places.pdf 
 
Guidance on school organisation changes 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/278422/S
chool_Organisation_Guidance_2014_-_Annex_B.pdf 
 
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact  
Margaret Brightman, Place Manager, ext 48034 
 
 
 

Appendix One Primary site location plan  

 

Page 165



 

7 

 

P
age 166



Page 167



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Date of Meeting 25 June 2014 

 

Title of Report 
 

The Council’s Extra Care Service at Kenton Court and 
Sommerville 

 

Originator of Report Heather Hughes 
Laura Harper 

8698 8133 

8314 609 

 

At the time of submission for the Agenda, I confirm 

that the report has:  
 
Category 

 

    Yes          No 

Financial Comments from Exec Director for Resources �  

Legal Comments from the Head of Law �  

Crime & Disorder Implications �  

Environmental Implications �  

Equality Implications/Impact Assessment (as appropriate) �  

Confirmed Adherence to Budget & Policy Framework �  

Risk Assessment Comments (as appropriate)   

Reason for Urgency (as appropriate)   

Signed       Executive Member for Community  

Date  17th June 2014 

     

Signed  

      Executive Director for Community 

Date          

Signed    

      Executive Director for Customer 

Date      
Control Record by Committee Support 

Action Date 

Listed on Schedule of Business/Forward Plan (if appropriate)  

Draft Report Cleared at Agenda Planning Meeting (not delegated decisions)  

Submitted Report from CO Received by Committee Support  

Scheduled Date for Call-in (if appropriate)  

To be Referred to Full Council  
 

Chief Officer Confirmation of Report Submission        
   
Report for:  Mayor  

Mayor and Cabinet     

Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) 

Executive Director 

Information      Part 1        Part 2    �   Key Decision 

� 

 

   

 

 

� 

Agenda Item 9

Page 168



 

 
 
1 Report summary 
 
1.1 In December 2013 Mayor and Cabinet agreed to commence consultation 

with the tenants of the Council's two extra care schemes at Kenton Court, 
Bellingham, and Somerville, Telegraph Hill. The consultation was to 
establish the care and housing needs of the tenants of the two schemes, 
which do not meet modern standards for extra care and which can not be 
converted to meet modern standards in a cost effective manner or whilst 
the schemes are occupied by the current tenants.  

 
1.2 This report updates Mayor and Cabinet on the findings of that exercise. 

This process has established that the  current accommodation in both 
schemes is unsuitable, and the care and housing needs of all of the 
tenants can be reasonably met at alternative provision in Lewisham. This 
report recommends that officers now undertake formal consultation under 
Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 over the proposed closure of both 
schemes and in accordance with requirements for proper consultation  in 
respect of proposed service alterations    

 
1.3 In addition the report recommends that officers commence feasibility 

studies on both sites to establish how they might be used to deliver new 
homes of a modern standards, and that further Section105 consultation will 
be carried out on these proposals in due course. 

 
1.4 If the Mayor agrees to these recommendations a further report, which will 

include the views of tenants and staff as well as possible alternative uses 
for each site, will be provided in the autumn of 2014 to enable the Mayor to 
make a final decision regarding the future of each scheme. 

 
1.5 The report is structured as follows: 
 

Section 1 Report Summary 
Section 2 Sets out the Recommendations 
Section 3  Provides the policy context 
Section 4  Background to the Council’s extra care service 
Section 5 Details consultation with tenants and their families 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

Report Title 
  

The Council’s Extra Care Service at Kenton Court and 
Somerville  
 

Key Decision 
  

Yes Item No.   

Ward 
  

Borough Wide 

Contributors 
  

Executive Director for Customer Services 
Executive Director for Community Services 
 

Class 
  

Part 1 Date:  25 June 2014 

     

Page 169



 

Section 6      Provides additional analysis of costs 
Section 7  Sets out next steps 
Section 8 Financial implications 
Section 9 Legal implications 
Section 10 Crime and disorder implications 
Section 11 Equalities implications 
Section 12 Environmental implications 

 
2 Recommendations 
 

The Mayor is recommended to; 
 
 

2.1 Note the consultation which has taken place so far in line with the 
recommendation from the 4th December Housing Matters report. 

 

2.2 Note that individual social care assessments have been carried out for all 
tenants at both Kenton Court and Somerville extra care schemes, and the 
outcomes of these assessments. 

 

2.3 Note that there is a range of alternative high quality housing, care and 
support  available in the borough, that there are additional extra care 
schemes being developed and that five out of 31 tenants at Kenton Court 
and Somerville have taken up these alternative offers voluntarily already. 

 
2.4 Agree that officers may now formally consult with the tenants at Kenton 

Court and Somerville about the proposed transfer of the Council’s directly 
managed extra care service to Notting Hill Housing Group at Conrad 
Court. 

 
2.5 Note that should recommendation 2.4 be agreed officers will commence 

TUPE consultation with affected staff in the extra care service. 
 
2.6 Agree that officers should commence initial statutory section 105 

consultation on the proposals to close the service provided at Kenton 
Court and Somerville and potentially close the buildings. 

 
2.7 Agree that officers should commence feasibility studies on both sites to 

develop proposals for alternative uses which meet housing need in the 
borough, and that any further necessary consultation should be 
undertaken with existing tenants to enable the Mayor to make a further 
decision on the future of the buildings in Autumn 2014.  

 
2.8 Agree that officers continue to facilitate voluntary decants of tenants who 

wish to move to other services 
 
3 Policy Context  
 
3.1 The Care Act 2014 “Caring for Our Future: reforming care and support” 

(DH, 2012) sets out the Government’s vision for the future integration of 
health and social care. This builds on the earlier government consultation 
and engagement work on this matter in 2011. The draft Bill highlights five 
key outcomes as building blocks to deliver reform of the care system. This 

Page 170



 

report relates in main part to “the maintenance of independence for as long 
as possible” outcome. 

 
3.2 The National Collaboration “Integrated Care and Support: Our Shared 

Commitment” (DH, 2013) highlights the challenges and pressures to the 
health and care system brought about by people living longer lives. The 
ministerial foreword emphasises the drive for integration of both systems to 
meet this pressure and replace it with a seamless service focussed on the 
individual in their own home. 

 
3.3 In recognition of these pressures, the Council has supported capital bids 

for three new Extra Care schemes, the first of which is Conrad Court, 
Marine Wharf, a new development built to high mobility standards. Mayor 
and Cabinet agreed January 15th 2014 that Notting Hill Housing Group 
would provide the Extra Care service there. The other two schemes at 
Campshill and Hazelhurst are in the early design and tender stages. A full 
description of the three developments was included in the 4th December 
2013 report. These are in addition to the Council’s own directly managed 
scheme at Kenton Court and Somerville, and commissioned services for 
80 places with Housing 21. 

 
3.4 This report relates to Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy 

priorities ‘Empowered and Responsible’ and ‘Healthy Active and 
Enjoyable’, and the Council’s Corporate priorities of ‘Decent Homes for All’. 
‘Caring for Adults and Older People’, ‘Active Healthy Citizens’ and 
‘Inspiring Efficiency, Effectiveness and Equity’.  

 
4 Background to the Council’s Directly Managed Extra Care Service 
 
4.1 The Council’s directly managed Extra Care service is provided at Kenton 

Court, Sydenham and Somerville, New Cross. The buildings are part of the 
Council’s housing stock. Housing management services are provided by 
Lewisham Homes and care and support services are managed by the 
Community Services Directorate. 

 
4.2 The two schemes have a capacity of 55 tenancies across both premises 

which have been under occupied for a number of years. When officers 
reported on the schemes at the December 2013 Mayor and Cabinet 
meeting as part of the “Housing Matters Programme Update”, there were 
31 tenancies filled. Tenants were  aged between 55 and 94 and receiving 
a support package averaging just under 6 hours a week (ranging from 0 to 
11.75 hours per tenant). This represents under occupancy of 44% and a 
unit cost which is significantly higher than we currently pay to other 
providers for similar services. 

 
4.3 Kenton Court and Somerville were remodelled from what were already 

hard-to-let sheltered housing schemes: Somerville was remodelled in 1995 
and Kenton Court in 1999. The schemes consist of small bedsits or studio 
flats around 28m square. There are shared bathroom facilities. 
Significantly, neither scheme meets the proposed new standard for 
modern Extra Care. The units are too small and they do not enable 
wheelchair access. Shared bathroom facilities are not appropriate for 
tenants with additional care and support needs. These factors combine to 

Page 171



 

mean that the levels of care that can be provided to current and potential 
tenants are unacceptably restricted by the physical fabric of the building. 

 
4.4 At the Mayor and Cabinet meeting on 4th December 2013, officers reported 

that detailed stock condition surveys had confirmed that both buildings 
were unsuitable for continued use for Extra Care in their current form.  
Consideration had been given to remodelling the buildings to be more 
appropriate, by conversion to self contained one-bed flats. However, 
delivering this would require significant capital investment of over £1million 
with a resultant loss of 26 units, which would in turn increase the unit cost 
of the service delivery. It would also require existing tenants effectively to 
live on a building site, or alternatively be temporarily moved for an 
extended time period, to allow the required building works. 

 
4.5 Consequently, Mayor and Cabinet agreed that officers should commence 

consultation with tenants of the Extra Care service at both Kenton and 
Somerville to establish what housing options and care requirements would 
be appropriate to their care needs. 

 
5 Consultation with Tenants and their families 
 
 Chronology of consultation 
 
5.1 Prior to the December 2013 Mayor and Cabinet, the 31 tenants of Kenton 

Court and Somerville were advised by individual letters (attachment 1) of 
the report to Mayor and Cabinet. That letter was verbally explained to each 
tenant by an extra care service manager known to them. 

 
5.2 Following the Mayor and Cabinet agreement to consult with Kenton and 

Somerville tenants to establish their housing and care needs, the extra 
care service management team, and officers from the Council’s Housing 
Team, arranged two open meetings in December 2013 (one in each 
location) to allow for a general question and answer session. A briefing 
note for officers attending these meetings was prepared, to ensure that a 
consistent message was given to tenants  (Attachment 2). Tenants and 
their families were invited to those meetings, 12 of 16 tenants attended at 
Somerville and 11 of 14 tenants attended at Kenton Court  A summary of 
the points raised at both was circulated to all tenants and their families 
whether they attended the meeting or not (Attachment 3). 

 
5.3 Housing Officers also attended informal ‘afternoon teas’ at each of the two 

premises, providing a further opportunity for individual concerns to be 
raised and for tenants to meet officers who would be contacting them for 
housing assessments. A comments book was also placed at each location 
so that tenants and their families could independently record any ‘ad hoc’ 
comments, queries or concerns that they might want to raise. 

 
5.4 Following these consultation events, service management and social work 

staff also wrote individually to all tenants (Attachments 4 and 5) and 
subsequently made arrangements to meet formally with them and their 
family or advocate to undertake a care review. Reviews were undertaken 
between February and April 2014. Tenants were sent a copy of their 

Page 172



 

individual reviews and the outcomes of the reviews are collectively 
summarised in Table 1 below. 

 
5.5 Tenants were given information about other Extra Care and Sheltered 

schemes in the borough and were advised of the new Extra Care schemes 
being developed in the borough, and in particular the first of these at 
Conrad Court available from July. Opportunities were given for supported 
visits to  existing extra care services and further visits to these and other 
options,  will continue to be offered. 

 
5.6 Housing officers have now visited 10 tenants in Kenton Court (out of 14) 

and 7 tenants in Somerville (out of 17).  Referrals to Housing have taken 
place where there has been an interest expressed in a move to alternative 
extra care provision or mainstream sheltered housing, and where the 
tenant has been willing to discuss alternative housing options available in 
the borough.  Where tenants have been assessed as requiring Registered 
Residential Care, the option to meet with a housing officer has not been 
considered to be appropriate at this time. Similarly, where tenants have not 
expressed an interest in moving as part of this early consultation. 
Therefore, no housing visit has been planned.    

 
5.7 During the visits, which are carried out by two officers, there is an 

opportunity for residents to discuss how they feel about a proposed move 
to alternative accommodation.  During this process, some people are 
already choosing to move voluntarily, and the various schemes available in 
line with their assessed social care needs are discussed. Tenants are also 
informed that there is support available to help with removals, should they 
choose to move, and of the discretionary payment available to help with 
their costs.   

 
5.8 Tenants have been individually written to and the letter explains that a 

recommendation to formally consult on transferring the Council’s extra 
care service, and to move to close and redevelop Kenton Court and 
Somerville is being made to Mayor and Cabinet in this report. This letter 
has also been explained verbally by an extra care manager to all tenants. 
Additionally, a copy of the report has been placed on the notice board at 
both locations. 

 
 Outcome of consultation and reviews 
 
5.9 The majority of tenants (25 out of 31) were assessed as continuing to need 

Extra Care Housing and Support services. The assessments also 
highlighted that some people’s social care needs had changed in terms of 
both improved (2 out of 31) and decreased (4 out of 31) independence.  

 
 Table 1 – Review outcomes and expressed preferences 
 

N(clients) Assessed Needs Current position 
25 Extra Care  13 expressed preference for existing 

extra care schemes, 5 of whom have 
moved already and 2 with planned moves 
10 have expressed an interest in Conrad 
Court but are waiting for an opportunity to 

Page 173



 

view 
2 do not wish to engage in discussion 
regarding preference  at this time 
 

4 Registered 
Residential 

2 can be referred to residential care or 
assessed as suitable for the ‘high needs’ 
support at Conrad Court  
2  have expressed a preference for a 
Shared Lives tenancy and are in the 
process of being matched with individual 
carers 

2 Mainstream 
Sheltered 

2 referred to Housing Team & option 
appraisal for Sheltered Housing in 
progress 

Total 31   

 
 
5.10 Some tenants (5) have moved voluntarily to some of the services they 

have been shown as places have become available, with two more in the 
process of actively moving. Others (10) have expressed an interest in the 
new development at Conrad Court but have not as yet been able to visit 
the location which remains an official building site. Visits will be possible 
from early July.  

 
5.11 With regard to the four tenants whose assessments suggest they need 

residential, rather than extra care two would prefer moving to a small 
homely type service and are thus considering the Council’s Shared Lives 
service as an appropriate and preferred alternative. Residential care 
options are being considered for the other two people, but they will also be 
referred for assessment to the new Extra Care scheme at Conrad Court as 
the “high needs”  service category combined with the “independence by 
design” aspect of the building itself may provide an alternative to 
residential care for these specific people. Housing officers are working with 
the two people assessed as needing residential, and who are interested in, 
moving to Sheltered Housing.  

 
5.12 Housing officers have found that tenants have already had a thorough 

understanding of the consultation at Somerville and Kenton Court at the 
point they have arranged their visits.  Tenants have expressed some 
concerns about the process of moving to alternative provision, however, 
those tenants who have moved have found the process to be easy.  Other 
concerns raised with housing officers relate to the provision of care 
services and the general upheaval which they associate with moving.   A 
couple of households have also raised concerns about rent levels in the 
new schemes, and this is being discussed on a case by case basis, 
according to people’s individual circumstances.  Notwithstanding any 
concerns raised, none of the tenants who have had a Housing visit have 
said that they are unwilling to consider a move. 

 
5.13 In summary, the process of informal consultation and the social care 

reviews have identified that the majority of people continue to have needs 
that can be met by extra care services currently available or in 
development in the borough. Some people have chosen to move through 
this period of informal consultation, and most have been open to 

Page 174



 

discussion about what preferred alternatives to Kenton Court and 
Somerville might be. Officers are confident that all tenants who have 
expressed a desire to move to existing provision (n 13), or whose 
assessed needs have changed (n 6) will continue to move on from the 
service in line with expressed preference and/ or assessed need over the 
next few months.  Where tenants have expressed an interest in Conrad 
Court they will be able to visit this scheme from early July to confirm their 
preference.  The remaining two tenants who are unwilling to engage in a 
discussion about alternative housing options at this stage will have further 
opportunities to do so over the next period of formal consultation proposed 
within this report. 

 
6 Additional analysis of service costs 

 
6.1 Further to the information previously provided, additional analysis has 

been undertaken which demonstrates the high cost to the Council of 
directly providing extra care and support services at Somerville and Kenton 
Court. The hourly rate for the original 31 tenants represents almost 3 times 
the cost of commissioned services, and is rising as other tenants move. 
The quality of the buildings, and the historical low referral rate by social 
care to the service is expected to continue particularly given the 
competition from the new extra care schemes in development. 

 
6.2 The poor quality of the housing stock at Kenton Court and Somerville, the 

evidenced availability of existing and new extra care services, and the 
increasing cost of directly managing a service at Kenton Court and 
Somerville leads officers to the view that this is an appropriate time to 
transfer the Council’s direct management responsibility for extra care to 
another agency and location. Officers would suggest that this is best 
transferred to a new provision, Conrad Court managed by Notting Hill 
Housing Group. As a new provision, there is capacity to nominate flats 
sufficient for the number of people remaining at Kenton Court and 
Somerville. In respect of the TUPE transfer of the relevant staff in the extra 
care service, there would be sufficient time for the Council to comply with 
its obligations to consult in accordance with the TUPE Regulations.  

 
6.3 This report notes that there is sufficient evidence that the housing care and 

support needs of the existing tenants of both Kenton and Somerville can 
be better met in other provision in the borough. On this basis, officers are 
requesting permission to begin a formal 3 month consultation with the 
remaining tenants on the proposals that the Council transfer the delivery of 
extra care services from its own direct management to Notting Hill Housing 
Group at Conrad Court, Marine Wharf.   

 
6.4 The number of hours delivered to the existing tenants given the net 

controllable costs results in a very high (£44) hourly rate which is 
significantly in excess of the hourly rate of existing commissioned extra 
care services. That hourly rate will have already increased as a result of 
the 5 people who have already moved and if 19 tenants move voluntarily 
as suggested in this report then there is potential for the hourly rate to 
significantly increase further and potentially to £78 an hour. 

 

Page 175



 

6.5 The voids levels resulting from under referral to both Kenton and 
Somerville also has a financial impact on the Housing Revenue Account 
with Somerville and Kenton Court being the worst performing assets (with 
the highest void loss) within the Housing Revenue Account. 

 
7 Next steps 
 
7.1 Should the recommendations in this report be agreed, it is proposed that 

both statutory Social Care Consultation and initial statutory Section 105 
consultation is undertaken with tenants on both the proposals to transfer 
the extra care service and the possibility of closing the buildings.    

 
7.2 It is also proposed that feasibility studies are carried out on both sites to 

bring forward proposals for alternative housing uses at both Somerville and 
Kenton Court.   Further section 105 consultation should be carried out on 
these proposals to enable a further decision to be taken by the Mayor in 
Autumn 2014 on the future of the buildings.  

 
7.3 The process to be followed is as follows: 
 

Tenant consultation 

July – September 3 month Adult Social Care 
Consultation on proposals to close 
the extra care service at Somerville 
and Kenton Court 

July 28 day Section 105 consultation 
with tenants on the proposals to 
close the service at Somerville and 
Kenton Court, and potentially close 
the buildings. 

August – September 28 day Section 105 consultation 
with tenants on proposals for future 
alternative housing uses for the 
Somerville and Kenton Court sites 

 
7.4 While the formal social care consultation with tenants will be with regard to 

the transfer of the Council’s extra care service, tenants will continue to be 
offered opportunities to view other housing and support services in the 
borough and supported to move on a voluntary basis to alternative 
preferred accommodation in line with their assessed needs. The nature of 
the Conrad Court development, along with the new Extra Care model of ‘a 
third low to no, a third medium, and a third high support needs, means that 
if necessary, all of the remaining tenants at both Kenton and Somerville, 
except possibly two, could be appropriately accommodated and supported 
there if required.  
 

7.5 Officers propose that they develop feasibility studies for the future use of 
the buildings/ sites at Somerville and Kenton Court as part of the “Housing 
Matters” programme in order to undertake a further section 105 
consultation with tenants on these proposals.  The results of all 
consultation will be brought back to October Mayor and Cabinet for 
consideration.  

 

Page 176



 

7.6 All tenants affected by any future decision to demolish or reconfigure the 
buildings Somerville and Kenton Court would be entitled to home loss and 
disturbance payments in accordance with the Land Compensation Act 
1973 and the Council’s policy.  In the meantime, as agreed in the 4th 
December Housing Matters Update, tenants who move on a voluntary 
basis now are being offered a discretionary payment which is equivalent in 
value to the home loss and disturbance payments to which they would be 
entitled under a statutory decant process. 

 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1 This report recommends consulting on proposals to close Kenton Court 

and Somerville, the Council’s directly managed Extra Care Service. The 
current cost of this service, met from the Community Services budget, is 
£419K.  

 

 Projected cost 2013/14 
(£000) 

Directly employed staff 202 

Agency staff 253 

Purchased domiciliary care 
service 

81 

Premises 43 

Supplies & services 17 

Gross cost 596 

Service user charges (177) 

Net controllable cost 419 

 
 
8.2 Should the Council transfer its extra care management responsibility for 

services currently delivered at Kenton Court and Somerville, then the 
budget currently allocated to that service will be used to fund extra care 
services at  Conrad Court. The full financial implications of that contract 
were set out in the award of contract report to Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) on 15 January 2014. 

 
8.3 The 15 January 2014 report identified a potential full year saving of £354K 

but noted that this could be reduced This report advises that TUPE may 
apply to the closure of Kenton and Somerville. The financial implications of 
TUPE will not be fully known until the end of Notting Hill Housing Group’s 
(as the receiving organisation) due diligence process. 

 
8.4 Any home loss compensation payments for which tenants at Kenton Court 

and Somerville may be eligible for have been previously agree by Mayor 
and Cabinet to be met from the Housing Revenue Account. 

 
8.5 The service at Conrad Court is available from August 2014, 4 months prior 

to the proposed transfer of the Council’s extra care service. The care and 
voids contract lead in time is planned to be phased over 6 months between 
August 14 and January 15. There are a number of tenants who have been 
referred to the scheme who are in receipt of packages either in registered 
residential or receiving packages at home who will be prioritised as the first 

Page 177



 

intake for that scheme. The costs of these packages are higher than the 
provision at Conrad Court; savings from the transfer will offset the initial 
start up costs of Conrad Court. 

 
8.6 As it becomes feasible to do so, the service costs at Kenton and 

Somerville relating to those tenants who voluntarily move will also be 
redirected to meet the costs of the Conrad Court contract. Additionally, 
officers have secured a contractual commitment from Notting Hill that 
hours available above the needs of extra care tenants in residence at 
Conrad Road will be made available to the Council to meet the care and 
support needs of non resident social care clients for whom the Council is 
funding packages elsewhere which will also offset the start up costs. This 
may also include tenants at Kenton Court and Somerville whose needs are 
currently met through agency staff, the costs for whom are included in eth 
total cost fro Kenton and Somerville set out in paragraph 7.1 above. 

 
8.7 The financial risk as/ should people continue to move voluntarily from the 

service to other existing extra care schemes is mitigated by those people 
moving to vacancies that are already block contracted to the Council. The 
cost of residential care which is the assessed need of 4 existing tenants 
would be additional costs to the Council even if there were no change to 
the service at Kenton and Somerville. 

  
9. Legal Implications   
 
9.1 Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 provides that the Council must 

consult with all secure tenants who are likely to be substantially affected by 
a matter of housing management to which the section applies. The section 
specifies that a matter of housing management is one which relates to the 
management, maintenance, improvement or demolition of dwelling houses 
let by the authority under secure tenancies and that such consultation must 
inform secure tenants of the proposals and provide them with an 
opportunity to make their views known to the Council within a specified 
period. The section further specifies that before making any decisions on 
this matter, the Council must consider representations from secure tenants 
arising from the consultation. Such consultation must therefore be up to 
date and relate to the proposals in question. This report sets out the formal 
consultation that it is intended to carry out with residents in the schemes. 

 
9.2 The National Assistance Act 1948 places both duties and powers upon 

local   authorities to assess the needs of, and provide services to support 
such needs including residential accommodation, people aged 18 years 
and over who because of their disability are in need of care and attention 
not otherwise available to them. Section 5 of this report summarises the 
outcomes of the social care consultation and review process for the 
services delivered at Kenton Court and Somerville. 

 
9.3 In changing or altering services provided under Social Care  legislation, 

each individuals’ needs for services  must be individually reassessed 
before changing the services or the manner of delivery. In addition, in 
making proposals for  service changes overall, there must be a proper and 
meaningful consultation with service users, their families and any other 

Page 178



 

stakeholders to enable and facilitate clear understanding of the proposals 
and enable all stakeholders to express their views effectively. 

 
9.4 The decision relating to the options for future service delivery, including 

whether any service should be externalised, where the value of the service 
is at least £500,000 per annum, is reserved for members in accordance 
with the Mayoral Scheme of Delegation.  

 
9.5 In the event that the Mayor subsequently agree to transfer the direct 

management of extra care services from Kenton Court and Somerville, the 
Council will transfer its service responsibility to Conrad Court managed by 
the Notting Hill Housing Group. In that eventuality TUPE is likely to apply 
to the relevant Council employees.  Appropriate consultation with staff and 
their trade unions will take place in line with the Council’s TUPE transfer 
guidance and statutory requirements. 

 
9.6 Since 2007, local authorities in England have been required by a direction 

made by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to 
include provision for pension protection in outsourcing agreements. Notting 
Hill Housing Group would be required to provide to the transferring 
employees a pension scheme which is the same as, or counts as being 
broadly comparable to or better than those the employee has, or had a 
right to acquire, as an employee of the Council. Or seek Admitted Body 
status to the Council’s scheme. 

 
9.7 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

 
In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
and other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
9.8 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good 
relations. 

 
9.9 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 

Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have regard 
to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is 
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The 

Page 179



 

Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet 
the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but 
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the 
technical guidance can be found at:  http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-

and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 
 
 

9.10 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 
 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply 
to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including 
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other 
four documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice 
on good practice. Further information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
10. Crime and disorder implications 
 

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 
report. 

 
11. Equalities Implications 
 
11.1 The buildings at Kenton Court and Somerville owned by the Council and 

used for the delivery of its directly managed  Extra Care service have been 
acknowledged as not meeting the standards required of modern housing 
for older people. This report recommends transferring the Council’s directly 
managed extra care service to another provider at a different location while 
the Council considers alternative uses for the buildings and sites which 
could ultimately lead to the closure of the existing buildings. 

 
11.2  The proposals to transfer the Council’s directly managed extra care service 

to another provider at a different location is likely to have short term 
negative impact on the equalities groups which are represented at 
Somerville and Kenton Court, namely older people, people with disabilities 
and people from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds.  Any negative 
impact which may arise to these groups would most likely be associated 
with the process of consultation on the proposal and re-housing. However, 
officers will plan all consultation activity around the specific identified 
needs of tenants in order to mitigate any potential negative impact. 

 

Page 180



 

 
11.3 Informal consultation with tenants has already resulted in some tenants 

moving to alternative services where they have chosen to do so. This 
consultation has been with the tenants affected, and where those tenants 
have not had capacity to fully understand the implications of that 
consultation, or where the tenant has so requested, there has been 
involvement of a family member or other independent person.  Where 
moves have taken place, these moves have been to better quality 
provision which better meets the identified needs of the tenant. 

 
11.4 The development of new and modern Extra Care services which support 

people remaining in their own homes for longer through reduced social 
isolation, increased use of assistive technology, ready access to care and 
support services and families staying together for longer means that the 
transfer of the Council’s directly managed service and the potential closure 
of Kenton Court and Somerville will not be a detriment to older adults in the 
borough not yet requiring extra care.   There is likely to be a longer term 
positive impact for older people resulting from the proposed changes, if 
they are implemented.   

 
11.5 Furthermore, proposals to develop alternative housing provision at the 

Somerville and Kenton Court Sites will provide an opportunity for the 
Council to deliver housing to more people from the Council's waiting list 
and will have a long-term positive impact on the equalities groups 
represented within this population.   

 
11.6 Seven staff are potentially affected by the transfer of the Council’s directly 

managed extra care service. Staff contracts require that they work in any 
location in the borough. Any specific equalities implications will be 
addressed through the formal TUPE consultation process and in 
discussion with Notting Hill as part of their due diligence process. 

 
11.7  An Equalities Analysis Assessment has been carried out to gather 

information about staff and tenants and to identify potential equalities 
implications.  Throughout the consultation programme this will be refined 
as further information is obtained relating to the equalities categories. 

 
12 Environmental Implications 
 

There are no specific environmental implications arising out of this report. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s25934/Housing%20Matters
%20Programme%20Update.pdf 
 
 
If there are any queries on this report, please contact: 
 
Heather Hughes, Joint Commissioner, on 020 8698 8134 or 
Laura Harper, Housing Strategy Officer, on 0208 314 609 

Page 181



 

Attachment 1 

December 2013 Letter to Tenants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear (Name of Tenant), 
 
The Council has been looking at ways it can 
improve the quality of existing older people’s 
housing and increasing the supply of housing for 
older people in the borough, especially extra care 
housing.  We want to be able to provide a better range of options for older people in 
Lewisham, and we want people’s homes to be: 

• suitable for their changing needs 

• attractive, spacious and well located 

• safe and secure 

• affordable 

• warm in the winter, comfortable in the summer 
 
A new standard for extra care accommodation has been developed and the Council and 
its partners are working to build new homes which meet these standards. The new 
standard extra care accommodation will be spacious and wheelchair accessible.  It will 
be able to meet the needs of people with a wide range of care needs and will be 
community focused.  
 
The Council has reviewed its existing extra care provision, including Somerville, and has 
identified that Somerville does not meet modern day standards and requirements.   
 
In the light of these findings, it is being recommended to the Mayor on the 4th December 
that Council Officers come and discuss with you your current housing needs, your care 
needs and options that may be available to you to meet these needs in the future.  
 
We will write to you again to let you know the decision and the next steps, but in the 
meantime, Council Officers from Housing and Adult Social Care will be available in your 
building on 5th December if you would like to discuss this letter further.  
 
They will be in the Somerville dining room at 10.30am.  
 
Yvette at Somerville has been given a copy of this letter so you can also talk to her about 
it.   
 
Yours sincerely, 

Genevieve Macklin (Housing) 
and Joan Hutton (Adult Social Care) 
Laurence House 
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Direct line 020 8314 7404 
Michele.Oliver@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
Date 27/11/2013 

Name of Tenant 
Address 

 

Page 182



 

 
Genevieve Macklin     Joan Hutton 
Head of Strategic Housing   Interim Head of Assessment and Care Management 

 
 

Page 183



 

Attachment 2 
Officer Briefing Note 

 
 
 

Sommerville & Kenton 
Initial Meetings 05.12.13 

 
 
Brief Key Message  

• The Council has been looking at the condition of homes across the borough for older 
residents and those with care needs. 

• Homes in this block do not meet those modern standards and they can’t be improved 
so that they do. 

• This means we want to talk to about your current care and housing needs and your 
housing options. 

• The process will start in the New Year with care assessments (carried out by social 
care & health) followed by discussions with the Council Officers about re-housing 
options.  

• We want to work with residents and with family and / or carers that you have.  

• There would be discretionary payments for moving – Home Loss & Disturbance.   

• Opportunities for moving will depend on your level of care needed - includes new and 
existing homes across the borough.  

• We want to offer you re-housing options that mean that your housing meets your care 
needs.  

 
Information for us – to help if questions asked (From M&C Report 4th December) 
 
Meaning of Extra care  

• Extra care was originally developed as a concept in Lewisham in the mid-90s and 
was aimed to provide greater levels of care and support on-site to people in their own 
homes and there are currently 135 units in the borough 

 
About the new standard – what is it, where it’s come from  

• In July 2012 Mayor and Cabinet decided that officers should review the Council’s 
approach to housing for older people and bring the existing stock of specialised 
housing for older people up to the required standard. Since then officers have 
prioritised seeking funding for new high quality homes for older people, as well as 
setting out some broad principles to shape the delivery of housing to older people 
more generally, which are set out in the following paragraphs.  

• The key priority is to ensure that the Council is able to offer a better range of housing 
options for older people in Lewisham whether they are: active and pre-retirement; 
retired, independent and active; more frail and in need of support.   

• Officers have worked closely with specialists in the Adult Social Care and Health 
sectors in the borough and have consulted extensively, including with the Positive 
Ageing Council and Lewisham Pensioners Forum. As a result the following aspiration 
has been developed: 

• Lewisham Council wants to help people to maintain their independence for as long as 
possible and we want people’s homes to be: 

o suitable for their changing needs 
o attractive, spacious and well located 
o safe and secure 
o affordable 
o warm in the winter, comfortable in the summer 
o able to maintain and improve people’s health and wellbeing 

Page 184



 

• In addition this process has set a standard for new accommodation to ensure that it 
meets the aspiration set out above and residents aspirations. That standard is that 
accommodation for older people should be:  

o spacious - at least 50m2 for a 1-bed unit 
o wheelchair accessible – 10% to an enhanced standard  
o self contained homes, with full bathroom facilities 
o “Care ready” 
o community focused 
o mixed dependency 

 
What are the problems with these blocks?  
o Somerville is made up of 22 small bedsits (of 29m² each) and 4 one bed units (42m²).  

The bedsits do not have bathrooms.  There are assisted bathrooms and shower 
rooms with toilets on each floor for shared use among tenants. Kenton Court is 
comprised of 28 bedsit studio flats (approx 27m² each), two one-bed units and a 
single large 2 storey maisonette flat (73m²) that is currently being used as offices. 
Again the bedsit units do not have bathroom facilities, with tenants sharing facilities 
instead.  

 
o Neither scheme therefore meets the proposed new standard for modern extra care. 

The units are too small and they do not enable wheelchair access. Shared bathing 
facilities are not appropriate for tenants with additional care and support needs. 
These factors combine to mean that the levels of care that can be provided to the 
tenants are restricted by the physical fabric of the buildings. 

 
About the viability study & stock condition surveys  

• Detailed stock condition surveys of both buildings have been carried out. The results 
of these confirm that both buildings are not suitable for continued use as extra care in 
their current form. This review also assessed the possibility of remodelling both 
buildings in order to achieve the new standard set out above. This would have 
required the conversion of the bedsits into one-bed flats and the modernisation of the 
communal areas.   

• The conclusion of this exercise was that significant investment of over £1million 
would be required to carry out this remodelling, in addition to on-going maintenance 
costs. The conversion of bedsits to one bed units would also reduce the number of 
units in both schemes by nearly half, from 55 to 29, with a loss of 26 units.  

• External benchmarking of extra care schemes run by other local authorities and 
housing associations suggests that a minimum of 42 units is required to create a 
sustainable and viable extra care scheme. This number of units allows for the sharing 
of management costs across a sufficient number of tenanted properties, and also 
allows for larger communities with people with a range of care and support needs to 
live in the scheme. Smaller schemes are likely to need to focus more on people with 
greater care needs, which is not consistent with the ambition to create communities 
made up of people with a mix of support needs who can, in part, help to support each 
other, enabling residents to retain greater independence for longer.  

• In addition any remodelling would require significant  disruption to residents, including 
that most tenants would need to be decanted temporarily while the works were 
carried out. 

• It is clear therefore that the existing buildings at Somerville and Kenton Court are not 
suitable for extra care at present and that it is not viable for them to be refurbished to 
meet the new standard set out above 

Detail of alternatives  

• Marine Wharf  

• Housing 21 schemes 
Basis of Re-housing – what if tenants don’t want to be re-housed? 

• All on a voluntary basis for the time being, we want to start discussions and 
always carry out initial re-housing schemes on a voluntary basis. 

Page 185



 

Attachment 3 
Summary of Points Raised at Tenants’ Meetings 

 
 

Tenant Consultation 5 December 2013 
 
10.30am     Somerville attendees 

  

  

  

  

  

  
 
Absent: 4 tenants        
 
3.30pm      Kenton Court attendees  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 
Absent: 3 Tenants 
 
The meeting was hosted by Michele Oliver, Service Manager who introduced 
representatives from Housing: 
 
Rachel George, Sara Caton, Liz Oxley 
 
Yvette Augustine attended the Somerville meeting & Stephen Haly the Kenton Court 
meeting. 
 
The main points raised at the meetings were: 
 

• Tenants would be helped to move to a suitable home which best met their needs 
following a social care assessment and took into account their personal 
preference. However it was stressed that it depends what housing was available 
at the time. The new Marine Wharf (Conrad Court) scheme would be available to 
all tenants if they wanted to move there. This would be the best offer for tenants 
who wanted to move with friends/neighbours. 

 

• A financial incentive would be made available to all tenants to move which would 
be ₤4,700 plus removal costs. 

 

• Would consideration will be made for mobility scooters? Michele explained 
new and recent extra care schemes have buggy stores as an integral part of their 
design. This discussion will form part of an individual assessment. 

 

• Will the flats be cleaned when we move? 
Michele explained housework would form part of a care package if it is assessed 
as something individuals need help with. 
 

• Will there be grab rails within the flats? 

Page 186



 

Yes. If the property is suitable for older people, there will be grab rails around 
communal areas and an individual assessment will be arranged by an OT for 
each flat. 
 

• Will there be car parking at Marine Wharf? 
Yes. All new buildings allow a certain amount of visitor and tenant parking. 

 

• What if you don’t want to move? 
Although no one is saying the buildings are closing, we know the buildings are not 
attracting new tenants due to the size of the flats and the closeness to facilities 
etc. and does not make it viable long term. We are hopeful everyone will find a 
suitable home they prefer to live in. 
 

• Can we make a suggestion about a particular property we are interested in 
moving to? 
Yes. Although we cannot guarantee the property will meet your requirements or 
there are vacancies. Officers from Housing will discuss this in more detail with 
you during the individual interviews. 
 

• Are Kenton Court and Somerville going to be knocked down? 
No decisions have been taken as yet about the future of the buildings although 
feasibility studies have been conducted on their future. 
 
 
Sara and Liz from Housing will be coming into Somerville and Kenton Court 

over the coming weeks during afternoon tea to meet with tenants and to 
give the opportunity to discuss concerns. 

  
 
 

Page 187



 

Attachment 4 
Letters re social work support to tenants 

 
 

Michele Oliver 
Community Services 
Supported Housing & Care 
132 Adamsrill Road 
Sydenham  
London SE26 5AU 
Direct Line 020 8314 7404 
 
Michele.oliver@lewisham.gov.uk 
Date 11 December 2013 

 
 
 
Dear (Insert Name of Tenant) 
 
I would like to tell you what we have done since I and colleagues from the Housing 
department attended (address) on 5 December 2013 to talk about future plans.   
 
We have now set up a social care project team to support you with the changes relating 
to Kenton Court and Somerville. This team will be responsible for assessing and 
reviewing your care needs and will also be working closely with the housing team. 
 
The team will be led by Linda Smith. Linda can be contacted directly on 07525 671 230 
on Monday to Friday from 10am to 4pm. Social worker Sue Gardiner and support and 
review officer Maggie Caryl will also be working in the team. They will be sending you 
their contact details in due course.   
 
You will soon be sent a letter of introduction and an invitation to meet with Maggie and 
Sue. Maggie and Sue would like to meet with you in your home to look at your care 
needs and undertake a care assessment. This is with a view to help you make a decision 
about your future housing and support.   
 
We hope that you can meet with Maggie and Sue early in January 2014. We are starting 
to make the arrangements now in order to give you time to arrange for family or friends to 
attend the meeting with you if that is what you would like. If you need to change the date 
and time offered to you then the team will do that.  
 
If you would like an advocate to attend and help you during these meetings, please let 
Maggie or Sue know and arrangements can be made for this also.  
 
Please feel free to discuss any of the above with Linda, Stephen at Kenton Court, Yvette 
at Somerville or myself.  
 
I have also included a copy of the queries raised at both tenant meetings last week which 
you may find useful. 
 
 
Kind regards 
 
Michele Oliver 
Service Manager 
 
CC; Linda Smith, Lead Operations Manager. 

Name of Tenant 
Address 

Page 188



 

Attachment 5 
Sample Follow Up letter from Social Worker 

 
Sue Gardiner 

Laurence House 
Catford 

London SE6 4RU 
 

Direct line 020 8314 7404 
Sue.gardner@lewisham.gov.uk 

 
Insert Date  

 
 
Dear (Insert Name of Tenant), 
 
Following on from the meeting held with tenants and the subsequent letter sent to you in 
December 2013 regarding potential changes Somerville, I am writing to introduce myself. 
 
My name is Sue Gardiner and I am a member of the Social Care Project Team which has 
been set up to help support tenants with any potential changes. This Team will be  
responsible for reviewing the care and support needs of everyone currently  living at 
Somerville and will be working closely with colleagues within the Housing Department. 
 
I would like to arrange to meet with you to discuss your care and support needs and 
undertake a review of the current care you receive. . This is to assist you with making a 
decision about your future housing and day to day support needs. 
 
I would like to meet with you on …….. at …… time. Please feel free to invite a relative or 
friend to the meeting if you would find this helpful. Alternatively if you would like to have 
an advocate to attend please let me know and arrangements can be made for this. 
 
If this date and time is inconvenient please get in touch and we can make alternative 
arrangements. 
 
We appreciate  that this could be an unsettling time for you but I hope this meeting will 
prove useful and assist you to make appropriate future housing plans. 
 
I look forward to meeting you. 
 
Yours Sincerely  
  
 
 
 
Sue Gardiner, Social Worker 

 
CC Michele Oliver | Service Manager 

Supported Housing & Care - supporting you at home  
 

Linda Smith, Lead Operations Manager, Social Care Project Team.  

Page 189



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Meeting 25 June 2014 

 

Title of Report 
 

Healthier Communities Select Committee  Referral on the Public 
Health priorities for expenditure in 2014/15 

 

Originator of Report Danny Ruta 48637 

 

At the time of submission for the Agenda, I confirm 

that the report has:  
 
Category 

 

    Yes          No 

Financial Comments from Exec Director for Resources �  

Legal Comments from the Head of Law �  

Crime & Disorder Implications �  

Environmental Implications �  

Equality Implications/Impact Assessment (as appropriate) �  

Confirmed Adherence to Budget & Policy Framework �  

Risk Assessment Comments (as appropriate)   

Reason for Urgency (as appropriate)   

 

Signed        Executive Member 

Date  17th June 

      
Signed   Executive Director 

Date          
 
 
Control Record by Committee Support 

Action Date 

Listed on Schedule of Business/Forward Plan (if appropriate)  

Draft Report Cleared at Agenda Planning Meeting (not delegated decisions)  

Submitted Report from CO Received by Committee Support  

Scheduled Date for Call-in (if appropriate)  

To be Referred to Full Council  
 

Chief Officer Confirmation of Report Submission        
   
Report for:  Mayor  

Mayor and Cabinet     

Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) 

Executive Director 

Information      Part 1        Part 2    �   Key Decision 

� 

 

   

 

 

� 

Agenda Item 10

Page 190



 

 
 
1. Summary 

1.1 This report responds to the comments and views of the Healthier 
Communities Select committee, arising from discussions held on the 
officer report entitled Public Health priorities for expenditure in 2014/15, 
considered at its meeting on 18th March 2014. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 

The Mayor is recommended to: 
 
2.1 Note the response of the Executive Director of Community Services 

and Director of Public Health which details plans to develop a 
comprehensive public health outcomes performance management and 
monitoring framework which will incorporate the priority outcomes of 
the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
2.2 Agree for the response to be forwarded to the Healthier Communities 

Select Committee. 
 

3. Response 
 
3.1 The Select Committee recommended that appropriate outcome 

measures are established, with a strong focus on measuring outcomes 
rather than activities, so that the social and economic value of this 
investment can be evaluated in the future.  

 
3.2 Nationally, public health outcomes are set out within the Public Health 

outcomes framework. However, it is recognised that most of these 
indicators are only reported annually or quarterly, for this reason KPIs 
for key specific public health activities will be used as proxy indicators 
in order to monitor progress monthly. 

 

MAYOR AND CABINET  
 

Report Title 
 

Matters raised by scrutiny – Comments of the Healthier 
Communities Select Committee on the public health priorities for 
expenditure in 2014/15 

Key Decision 
 

No Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

All 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Community Services, Director of Public 
Health 
 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 25 June 2014 

Page 191



 

3.3 In addition, the Health and Wellbeing Board will monitor public health 
outcomes alongside a range of other indicators taken from the NHS 
and Adult Social Care outcomes frameworks in order to assess 
progress against the Health and Wellbeing strategy and the priorities of 
the Adult Integrated Care Programme. 

 
3.4 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy identifies nine priority areas for 

action over the next 10 years. These are: 
 

1. achieving a healthy weight  
2. increasing the number of people who survive colorectal, breast and 

lung cancer for 1 and 5 years  
3. improving immunisation uptake  
4. reducing alcohol harm  
5. preventing the uptake of smoking among children and young people 

and reducing the numbers of people smoking  
6. improving mental health and wellbeing  
7. improving sexual health  
8. delaying and reducing the need for long term care and support.  
9. reducing the number of emergency admissions for people with long-

term conditions. 
 

4. Financial implications 
 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising out of this report per se; but 
there are financial implications arising from carrying out the action 
proposed in the main report.  

 
5. Legal implications 
 
5.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this response,     

save for noting that the Council’s Constitution provides that the 
Executive may respond to reports and recommendations by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
 
 

Background Documents 
 
Public Health priorities for expenditure in 2014/15 – Report to Healthier 
Communities Select Committee (18.03.14) 
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Danny Ruta on 020 8314 
9094. 

Page 192



Agenda Item 11

Page 193



   

 

 
1 PURPOSE 

1.1 To set out the Management Report as at April 2014. 

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The Management Report aims to present a comprehensive account of organisational 
performance in achieving our ten corporate priorities.  

2.2 The Council’s ten corporate priorities identify the Council’s own distinct contribution to 
the delivery of the six priority outcomes set out in the ‘Shaping our future – 
Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy’ (SCS).   

3 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 That the Mayor notes the Management Report. 

4 BACKGROUND 

4.1 The Management Report indicates how well the Council is performing against a 
basket of 58 indicators including National and Local indicators which cross each of 
the Council’s ten corporate priorities. The report aims to report on organisational 
performance by drawing together information on performance, risk, projects and 
finance. It is presented monthly to the Executive Management Team and quarterly to 
the Mayor and Cabinet. 

4.2 The Monthly Management Report utilises exception reporting to focus attention on 
key areas: exception reporting for red Projects, Risk and Finance and Red and Green 
exception reporting for performance. By combining these four areas for each of our 
corporate priorities, it functions as an important tool for supporting decisions across 
the organisation.  

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the Management Report. 
However, the report does set out a summary of the Council’s overall financial position 
as it stands at the start of each month. 

6 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report. 

7 HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Data on the performance of the Council’s human resources function is found within 
the indicators contained in the Management Report, and in particular within the 

 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Management Report – April 2014 

Key Decision 
 

No Item No.  

Ward 
 

All 

Contributors Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration 
 

Class 
 

 Date: 25 June 2014 

Page 194



   

 

indicators relating to the Council’s priority to “Inspiring Efficiency, Effectiveness and 
Equity” (priority 10).  

8 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Data on performance relating to equalities is found within the indicators contained in 
the Management Report. This is a theme that cuts across all priorities within the 
report.  

9 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Data on performance relating to the environment is found within indicators contained 
throughout the Management Report, and there is a particular focus on the 
environment within the indicators relating to the Council’s priority to make the 
borough “Clean, Green and Liveable” (priority 3). 

10 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Data on performance relating to crime and disorder is found within indicators 
contained in the Management Report, and in particular within the indicators relating 
to the Council’s priority to achieve “Safety, Security and Visible Presence” (priority 4). 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

Short Title of Document Date File Location Contact Officer 
 

None    

    

 
 
For further information on this report please contact: Stewart Snellgrove, Policy & 
Partnerships Unit, on 0208 314 9308. 
 
 
 
 

Page 195



M
o

n
th

ly
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
r
t

A
p

r
il

2
0

1
4

/
1

5

1

Page 196



C
o
n
t
e
n
t
s

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 o
u
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s

S
lig

h
tl
y
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t

N
o

t 
o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

ta
k
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o

n

Im
p

ro
v
in

g

N
o

 c
h

a
n
g

e

D
e

c
lin

in
g

M
is

s
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

M
is

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t

M
is

s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

K
e
y

F
o

re
w

o
rd

0
3

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 D

a
s
h
b

o
a
rd

0
4

O
v
e

ra
ll 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
A

re
a

s
 o

f 
G

o
o

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

0
5

0
6

0
7

O
v
e

ra
ll 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

: 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 &
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s

0
8

O
v
e

ra
ll 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

: 
R

is
k

1
2

O
v
e

ra
ll 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

: 
F

in
a

n
c
e

1
7

1
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n
t

1
8

2
. 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t
2
1

3
. 

C
le

a
n
, 

G
re

e
n
 a

n
d

 L
iv

e
a

b
le

2
4

4
. 

S
a

fe
ty

, 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 V

is
ib

le
 P

re
s
e

n
c
e

2
9

5
. 

S
tr

e
n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o
n

o
m

y
3

2
6

. 
D

e
c
e

n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

3
7

7
. 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

4
4

8
. 

C
a

ri
n
g

 f
o
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p
le

5
0

9
. 

A
c
ti
v
e

, 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

it
iz

e
n

s
5

5
1
0

. 
In

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it
y

5
8

A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
: 

M
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 -

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

7
0

A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
: 

M
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 -

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
ri

s
k
, 

fi
n

a
n
c
e

  
  

  
  

  
7

1

2

Page 197



F
o

re
w

o
rd

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 i
s
 t

o
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
 e

a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

, 
in

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
fo

rm
a
t,

 o
u

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

E
a

c
h
 m

o
n

th
 w

e
 a

tt
e

m
p

t 
to

 g
iv

e
 a

 f
u
ll 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

w
h

a
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
, 

w
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 f

u
tu

re
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 g

iv
e

s
 s

o
m

e
 

c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

. 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 i
s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 d

o
u

b
le

 e
d
g

e
d

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
ig

h
 a

m
b

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

e
t 

to
 s

tr
e

tc
h

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 s
ta

ff
 e

ff
o

rt
. 

S
o

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n

 i
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

d
ra

w
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

P
Is

),
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
o

n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

ri
s
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
s
. 

A
 d

a
s
h
b

o
a

rd
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

n
 P

a
g
e

 4
, 

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ic

tu
re

 o
n

 o
n
e

 p
a

g
e
 u

s
in

g
 a

 R
e

d
, 

A
m

b
e
r,

 G
re

e
n

 r
a
ti
n
g

. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
d
a

s
h

b
o
a

rd
 r

a
ti
n

g
 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
o

n
th

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 1

4
 G

re
e

n
 r

a
ti
n
g

s
, 

1
3
 A

m
b
e

r 
ra

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 7
 R

e
d
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
:

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
o
r 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 3
7

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 (

7
0

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t)

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 G

re
e

n
 o

r 
A

m
b

e
r 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t,

 a
n

d
 2

5
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 (
5

6
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

in
g
 a

n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l.
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 1

6
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 (

3
0
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s
 R

e
d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

ta
rg

e
t,

 a
n

d
 2

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 (
4

4
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 a
 R

e
d

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 5
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 m
is

s
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 d
a

ta
. 

P
ro

je
c

ts
: 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
o
r 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 d
a

s
h

b
o
a

rd
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 t

w
o

 r
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
 -

 C
a

tf
o
rd

 T
o
w

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
; 

a
n

d
 K

e
n

d
e

r 
P

h
a
s
e

 3
. 

R
is

k
s

: 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
d

 d
a
s
h
b

o
a
rd

 r
a
ti
n
g

s
 f

o
r 

ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

, 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
; 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 8

, 
C

a
ri

n
g
 f

o
r 

A
d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

; 
a

n
d

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
, 

In
s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
it
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
e

v
e

n
 r

e
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
is

k
s
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

 -
  
n

o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n

; 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
a
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 a
s
s
e

t 
o
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 f

a
ilu

re
 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
t 

in
 a

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
; 

fa
ilu

re
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t;

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
; 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 f
a

ilu
re

; 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

; 
a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e

liv
e

r.

F
in

a
n

c
e

: 
F

in
a
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
-r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
 f

o
r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

4
 a

s
 t

h
e

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

. 
H

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 a

s
 

a
t 

2
8
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

T
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
is

 f
o
re

c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.8

m
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 N

e
t 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 B

u
d
g

e
t 

o
f 

£
2
8

4
.6

3
2

m
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
. 

T
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n
t 

(H
R

A
) 

is
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
0
.8

m
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 

(D
S

G
) 

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 s

p
e

n
d

 t
o
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
e

d
 d

a
s
h
b

o
a
rd

 r
a
ti
n
g

s
 f

o
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 6
, 

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll;

 a
n

d
 P

ri
o
ri

ty
 7

, 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

. 

B
a

rr
y

 Q
u

ir
k

, 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 

6
 M

a
y

 2
0

1
4

3

Page 198



O
n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

S
li
g
h
tl
y
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

N
o
t 

o
n
 T

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

ta
k
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

D
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd

 S
u
m

m
a
ry

0
1
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 

E
m

p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
2
. 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
3
. 

C
le

a
n
, 

G
re

e
n
 a

n
d
 

L
iv

e
a
b
le

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

n
/a0
4
. 

S
a
fe

ty
, 

S
e
c
u
ri

ty
 &

 V
is

ib
le

 

P
re

s
e
n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
5
. 

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
c
o
n
o
m

y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

je
c
ts

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

je
c
ts

R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

0
6
. 

D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
7
. 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
h
il
d
re

n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
8
. 

C
a
ri

n
g
 f

o
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

0
9
. 

A
c
ti
v
e
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

1
0
. 

In
s
p
ir

in
g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 

E
q
u
it
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
ro

je
c
ts

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

je
c
ts

R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k
R
is

k

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

4

Page 199



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 S

u
m

m
a
r
y
: 

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

S
u

m
m

a
r
y
 o

f 
p

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

r
s
 i

n
 t

h
is

 r
e
p

o
r
t.

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
o
ta

l

1
6

1
2

2
5

2
1

2
5
8

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
ri

o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
o
ta

l

1
3
  

1
1
  

2
3
  

7
4

5
8

S
a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
o
ta

l

1
3
  

1
1
  

2
3
  

7
4

5
8

1
2
/1

3
 o

u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 

T
o
ta

l

2
0

0
2
5

1
3

5
8

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
e
ri
o
d
 v

s
 1

2
/1

3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 

T
o
ta

l

2
6
 

0
2
0
 

1
2
 

5
8

P
re

v
io

u
s
 P

e
ri

o
d
 v

s
 1

2
/1

3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T
ra

v
e
l 

T
o
ta

l

1
4
 

1
2
3
 

2
0
 

5
8

S
a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

v
s
 1

1
/1

2

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v

e
l

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
2

5
 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
w

 a
n

 u
p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 1
9
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 2

0
 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 w
it
h

 a
 r

e
d
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 2
7

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 
In

 M
a
rc

h
, 

1
3

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 h
a

d
 m

is
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 1
2

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 

N
.B

. 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
is

 t
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g

e
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e

 y
e
a

r 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

w
ill

 a
ff

e
c
t 

th
is

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

, 
a
n

d
 f

in
d

s
 t

h
a
t
3

7
 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 G

re
e
n

 o
r 

A
m

b
e
r 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t,

 u
p

 f
ro

m
 3

6
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 

In
 M

a
rc

h
, 

1
6

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 R

e
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

ta
rg

e
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 1
8

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 5

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 w
it
h
 m

is
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
, 

w
h

ic
h

 

is
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 4
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

.

5

Page 200



A
r
e
a
s
 f

o
r
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

A
re

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 m
o
n
th

 W
A
R
L
A
0
0
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m

b
li
e
s
)

1
2

1
p
1
9

 N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

5
6

p
3
8

 A
O

/D
4
0
 %

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C
a
re

 c
li
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
5

8
p
5
1

 B
V
0
0
8
 I

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s

4
1
0

p
6
0

 B
V
0
1
7
a
 %

 E
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s

5
1
0

p
6
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T
 M

a
r

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
3

D
o
T
 M

a
r

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

C
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d
s
 R

e
d
 

(l
a
s
t 

1
2
 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
)

P
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
.

P
a
g
e

N
o
.

 N
I1

9
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

1
2

3
p
2
5

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
(r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 1

 m
o
n
th

 b
e
h
in

d
)

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

D
o
T
 F

e
b
 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
3

D
o
T
 F

e
b
 

1
4
 v

 J
a
n

1
4

C
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d
s
 R

e
d
 

(l
a
s
t 

1
2
 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
)

P
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
.

P
a
g
e

N
o
.

A
re

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 m
o
n
th

 L
P
I3

2
4
 M

M
R
1
 I

m
m

u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 2

n
d
 b

ir
th

d
a
y

-
9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T
 M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
o
T
 M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 D
e
c
 

1
3

C
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d
s
 R

e
d
 

(l
a
s
t 

1
2
 

p
e
ri
o
d
s
)

P
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
.

6

Page 201



A
r
e
a
s
 o

f 
G

o
o

d
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 

T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
G

o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 L
P
I7

5
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
jo

b
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

 d
a
y

3

 N
I1

5
7
b
 %

 M
in

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s

5

 L
P
I0

3
7
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

im
e
 t

o
 R

e
-l

e
t

6

 L
P
I7

0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
6

 L
P
Z
7
0
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 l
e
t 

to
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

6

 N
I0

6
3
 S

ta
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
: 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

7

 N
I0

6
4
 C

h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

7

 N
I0

6
5
 C

h
il
d
re

n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
 C

h
il
d
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
7

 N
I0

6
7
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
7

 L
P
I2

7
2
 2

D
 R

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t/

R
e
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n
 N

o
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

8

 L
P
I2

0
2
 L

ib
ra

ry
 v

is
it
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

9

 L
P
I0

3
1
 N

N
D

R
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
1
0

 L
P
I0

3
2
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
1
0

 L
P
I5

0
0
 %

 s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

t 
P
O

6
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e

1
0

 L
P
I7

2
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

a
ll
 c

e
n
tr

e
1
0

 N
I1

8
1
 T

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/

C
o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

e
v
e
n
ts

1
0

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T
 M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
3

D
o
T
 M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
.

 N
I1

9
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 l
a
n
d
 f

il
le

d
3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
e
 m

o
n
th

 b
e
h
in

d
)

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

D
o
T
 F

e
b
 1

4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
3

D
o
T
 F

e
b
 1

4
 v

 

Ja
n
 1

4

P
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
.

7

Page 202



O
v
e
ra

ll
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

: 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s

T
o

g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
e
a

rn

P
ro

je
c

ts
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n

M
a

jo
r 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 -

M
a

y
 2

0
1
4

 t
o

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4

E
v

e
n

t
D

a
te

N
e

w
 G

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 Y

o
u

th
 C

e
n

tr
e

 -
 R

o
y
a
l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 O

f 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

 (
R

IB
A

) 
A

w
a

rd
s
 -

 a
w

a
rd

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 M

a
y
 6

th
. 

M
a
y
 2

0
1

4

H
a

rd
 t

o
 T

re
a

t 
In

s
u

la
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

t 
- 

T
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
in

s
u

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 1

,1
0

0
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

4
, 
p

a
id

 f
o

r 
w

it
h
 £

1
m

 
e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 f

u
n
d

in
g
.

M
a
y
 2

0
1

4

D
e

p
tf

o
rd

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
N

e
w

 p
a
rk

in
g

 r
e

g
im

e
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 w

a
y
 t

ra
ff
ic

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

.
M

a
y
 2

0
1

4

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 -

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

h
a
s
e

 1
A

 (
tw

o
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
fl
u

e
n

c
e
 P

la
c
e

) 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 i
n
 M

a
y
, 

w
it
h

 s
it
e

-w
id

e
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

o
rk

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 J
u

n
e

.
S

p
ri

n
g

/S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
4

B
e

c
k

e
n

h
a

m
 P

la
c

e
 P

a
rk

-
A

 £
4
.6

 m
ill

io
n

 b
id

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 L

o
tt
e

ry
 F

u
n

d
 ‘

P
a

rk
s
 f

o
r 

P
e

o
p

le
’ 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

re
s
to

ra
ti
o

n
 

w
o

rk
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

s
te

a
d

s
 s

ta
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 d

a
m

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 a

 f
ir

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
1
. 

T
h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
is

 b
id

 i
s
 e

x
p
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

4
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

C
a

tf
o

rd
 S

ta
d

iu
m

 S
it

e
 -

W
o

rk
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 o

n
 s

it
e

 a
s
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
/c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
ig

n
e
d

/d
is

c
h
a

rg
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
lly

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t
o

 v
is

it
 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 o
n

 1
5

 J
u

ly
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4

8

Page 203



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 S

u
m

m
a
r
y
: 

P
r
o

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
s

T
o

g
e

th
e

r,
 w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

C
o

r
p

o
r
a
te

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
s

T
h

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b
e

lo
w

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

.

 P
M

S
P
R
O

G
 B

u
il
d
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re

 P
M

S
P
R
O

G
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

9

Page 204



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 S

u
m

m
a
r
y
: 

P
r
o

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
s

T
o

g
e

th
e

r,
 w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 &

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

P
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 P
ro

je
c
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 G

ro
u
p

s
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o
a

rd
. 

A
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

, 
w

it
h

 a
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f
£

5
0

0
k
 a

n
d
 o

v
e

r 
th

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
d
 R

A
G

 r
a

ti
n

g
, 

a
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 a
t 

th
e
 b

o
tt

o
m

 o
f 

th
is

 p
a

g
e

.

P
ro

je
c

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 -
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4

 1
2
/1

3
 %

M
a

r 
2

0
1
4

 %
 A

p
r 

2
0

1
4

%

1
3

 4
6

 1
0

 3
7

1
0

3
7

1
2

 4
3

 1
5

 5
6

1
5

5
6

 3
 1

1
 2

 7
2

7

T
o

ta
l

 2
8

 1
0
0

 2
7

 1
0
0

2
7

1
0

0

R
e

d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4

C
a

tf
o

rd
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
h

a
s
e

 1

C
a
tf

o
r
d

 T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 -

 P
h

a
s
e
 1

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 C
e
n
tr

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

x

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 f

a
c
to

rs
. 

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
; 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 

k
e
y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
, 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 v
ia

b
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ra

b
le

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e
a
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
rs

 b
e
s
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

W
o
rk

 o
n
 a

ll
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 a

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 '
re

d
'.
 

3
6

5

K
e
n

d
e

r 
N

e
w

 B
u

ild
 -

 P
h

a
s
e
 3

 
S

o
u

th

K
e
n

d
e
r
 N

e
w

 B
u

il
d

 -
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 S
o

u
th

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 v
ia

b
il
it
y
 g

a
p
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
e
a
rs

. 
F
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 a

 r
e
s
h
a
p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
m

b
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

it
 n

o
w

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 i
t 

to
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
ir
c
a
 2

0
0
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

w
it
h
 a

 n
e
w

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 v

is
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 d
e
ta

il
e
d
 b

ri
e
f 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 2
0
1
4
. 

4
2

6

R
e
d

 P
r
o

je
c
ts

P
r
o

je
c
ts

 S
u

m
m

a
r
y

P
a
g

e
 N

o
.

C
o

r
p

o
r
a
te

 

P
r
io

r
it

y
 

N
o

.

1
0

Page 205



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 S

u
m

m
a
r
y
: 

P
r
o

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
s

T
o

g
e

th
e

r,
 w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

M
a
jo

r
 P

r
o

je
c
ts

 &
 P

r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
s

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

tu
s
 s

in
c
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

:

C
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
m

b
e

r 
to

 r
e

d
:

N
o

n
e

C
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 g
re

e
n

 t
o

 a
m

b
e

r:

N
o

n
e

C
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e

d
 t

o
 a

m
b

e
r:

N
o
n
e

C
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e

d
 t

o
 g

re
e

n
:

N
o

n
e

C
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
m

b
e

r 
to

 g
re

e
n

:

N
o

n
e

R
e

m
o

v
a

ls
: 
  

T
fL

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 2

0
1

3
/

1
4

. 
T
h
e
 T

fL
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

u
n
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri

l 
a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

.

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 H

o
m

e
s

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 
T

h
e

 L
e
w

is
h

a
m

 H
o

m
e

s
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 r

u
n

s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
b
a

s
is

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 
a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
. 

T
h
e

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
 i
s
 

n
o

w
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ry
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
:

T
fL

 P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 2

0
1

4
/

1
5

. 
T
h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

u
n
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri

l 
a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

.

L
e
w

is
h

a
m

 H
o

m
e
s
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 2

0
1

4
/

1
5

. 
T
h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

u
n
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 i
n
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

.

1
1

Page 206



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

R
is

k
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 

R
is

k
 c

a
n

 b
e
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 a

s
 u

n
c
e

rt
a
in

ty
 o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 e

v
e
n

t 
o

r 
a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
u

ld
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
t 

a
n
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
's

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

 i
ts

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
e
e

t 
it
s
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
.

G
o

o
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a
llo

w
s
 a

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 i
ts

 d
e

s
ir

e
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
; 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e

v
e

ls
; 

a
n
d

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
e
x
p
lo

it
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

G
o

o
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
ls

o
 a

llo
w

s
 s

ta
k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
's

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r.

In
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

ri
s
k
 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o
re

d
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
ri

s
k
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

. 
R

is
k
s
 a

re
 s

c
o

re
d

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t,

 w
it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e
 f

ro
m

 1
 t

o
 5

 

(w
it
h

 5
 b

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t)

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 p

lo
tt

e
d

 o
n

 a
 m

a
tr

ix
 (

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n

) 
to

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 R

A
G

 r
a

ti
n

g
. 

A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 s
e
t 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 c

o
n
ta

in
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
s
e

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 b

y
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
s
. 

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 P

a
rt

y
 a

n
d
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 u

p
d

a
te

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

r'
s
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
o

u
ti
n

e
ly

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 u
n

ti
l 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 u

p
d

a
te

 i
s
 

m
a

d
e

, 
u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e

d
 t

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

to
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t'
s
 a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

ri
s
k
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

rl
y
in

g
 r

is
k
s
. 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

re
g
is

te
rs

 n
o
w

 h
a

v
e

 c
le

a
r 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p
le

ti
o

n
.

A
n
 e

-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 m

o
d
u

le
 f

o
r 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 l
a
u

n
c
h

e
d
 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

.

A
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
s
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
B

o
a

rd
. 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ri
s
k
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e

g
is

te
rs

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
.

T
h

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
o

lic
y
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 A
u
d

it
 P

a
n
e

l 
in

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
. 

T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

la
n
n

in
g

 a
n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

T
h
is

 d
e

ta
il 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 r
is

k
s
.

1
2

Page 207



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

R
is

k
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 

1
0

4
. 

N
o

n
-c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 H
e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 L

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

1
0

1
5

. 
L
o

s
s
 o

f 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
t 

o
r
 p

r
e
m

is
e
s
 t

h
r
o

u
g

h
 f

a
il

u
r
e
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
t 

in
 a

 s
a
fe

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

il
l 
in

fo
rm

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
D

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

ra
ti
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

il
l 
e
v
e
n
tu

a
ll
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e

ri
s
k
.

7
, 

8
1

8
. 

F
a
il

u
r
e
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
r
d

in
g

 a
r
r
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

t.

R
e
g
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
a
v
o
id

a
b
le

 d
e
a
th

 o
r 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 t

o
 c

li
e
n
t 

o
r

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y
 b

e
 r

a
te

d
 r

e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
v
e
ri
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
c
c
u
r.

 

1
0

1
9

. 
L
o

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

v
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s

R
is

k
 a

ro
u
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
to

 p
e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 o

n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 T

ra
d
e

U
n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
. 

1
0

2
1

. 
I
n

fo
r
m

a
ti

o
n

 g
o

v
e
r
n

a
n

c
e
 f

a
il

u
r
e
.

A
s
s
e
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
d
it
s
 w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

1
0

2
4

. 
F
a
il

u
r
e
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a
p

a
c
it

y
 &

 c
a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e
r
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 

a
n

d

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
.

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
s
tr

a
in

 o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 h

e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
p
a
n
s
 a

n
d
 

s
i g

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

D
e
c
li
n
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

, 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
, 

n
e
w

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

o
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
li
s
m

A
c
t 

d
ri

v
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
a
 d

e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

le
x
ib

il
it
y
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ti
m

e
 o

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

re
 a

ll
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 '
S
T
A
R
' 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l.
 D

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

id
e
. 

1
0

3
0

. 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
r
o

g
r
a
m

m
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li

v
e
r

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 k

e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
li
m

a
te

 o
f 

a
u
s
te

ri
ty

. 

R
e
d
 (

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
g
is

te
r)

C
o
rp

o
ra

te

p
ri
o
ri

ty
R
is

k
 n

a
m

e
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

1
3

Page 208



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

R
is

k
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 

0
5
 B

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

C
Y
P

1
2

8
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
-4

.0
0

0
8
 D

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 o

n
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s

C
Y
P

1
5

2
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

9
1
0
.0

0

1
1
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
li
ty

C
Y
P

9
1
2

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

4
3
.0

0

C
h
a
n
g
e
 (

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 R
e
g
is

te
rs

)

R
is

k
 n

a
m

e
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t

S
o
u
rc

e
 D

a
te

T
a
rg

e
t

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
h
a
n
g
e

1
4

Page 209



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

R
is

k
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 

0
9
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s

C
O

M
1
6

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

0
9
 I

n
ju

ry
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 o
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

C
U

S
1
5

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

1
1
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
fa

il
u
re

C
U

S
1
5

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

9
0
.0

0

0
8
 D

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 o

n
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s

C
Y
P

1
5

2
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

9
1
0
.0

0

0
9
 A

s
s
e
t 

a
n
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
Y
P

1
6

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

9
0
.0

0

1
2
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d

C
Y
P

1
5

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

2
7
 D

a
ta

 B
re

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 e

rr
o
rs

C
Y
P

1
5

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

8
0
.0

0

2
8
 F

a
il
u
re

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

C
Y
P

1
6

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

9
0
.0

0

2
9
 P

o
o
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

C
Y
P

1
5

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

3
0
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
C
Y
P

1
6

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

3
3
 F

a
il
u
re

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 a

rc
h
iv

e
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 s

e
c
u
re

C
Y
P

1
6

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
0
.0

0

0
1
 D

e
la

y
s
 o

r 
fa

il
u
re

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

R
&

R
?

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
!

0
5
 U

n
a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
a
n
d
/o

r 
p
o
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

d
is

ru
p
ts

 c
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
R
&

R
?

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

4
!

0
7
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 -

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 l
e
a
v
in

g
, 

fa
il
u
re

 t
o
 

re
ta

in
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

, 
o
r 

n
o
t 

re
c
ru

it
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
k
il
ls

R
&

R
?

1
6

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

6
!

0
9
 B

re
a
c
h
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

R
&

R
?

1
5

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

5
!

R
e
d
 -

 R
e
d
 (

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 R
e
g
is

te
rs

)

R
is

k
 n

a
m

e
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

P
re

v
io

u
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t

S
o
u
rc

e
 D

a
te

T
a
rg

e
t

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
h
a
n
g
e

1
5

Page 210



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

R
is

k
T
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
e
 w

il
l 
m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 

2
7
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 D

ir
e
c
ti
v
e

C
U

S
1
2

0
1
 D

e
la

y
s
 o

r 
fa

il
u
re

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

R
&

R
1
6

0
2
 F

a
il
u
re

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 (

IE
R
)

R
&

R
6

0
3
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

b
il
it
y
 o

f 
R
&

R
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t-

li
n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

R
&

R
1
2

0
4
 U

n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
r 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
, 

p
u
ts

 a
t 

ri
s
k
, 

a
b
il
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t

R
&

R
1
2

0
5
 U

n
a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
a
n
d
/o

r 
p
o
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 d

is
ru

p
ts

 c
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
R
&

R
1
6

0
6
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
re

s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s

R
&

R
1
2

0
7
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 -

th
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

w
it
h
 s

ta
ff

 l
e
a
v
in

g
, 

fa
il
u
re

 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

, 
o
r 

n
o
t 

re
c
ru

it
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
k
il
ls

R
&

R
1
6

0
8
 B

re
a
c
h
 o

f 
H

&
S
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 (

R
&

R
)

R
&

R
1
2

0
9
 B

re
a
c
h
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

R
&

R
1
5

1
0
 C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

/r
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
li
e
d
 w

it
h

R
&

R
8

1
1
 F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n

R
&

R
8

1
2
 F

a
il
u
re

 o
f 

k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 n
o
t 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
a
li
s
e
d

R
&

R
1
2

1
3
 K

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 p

ri
c
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
R
&

R
9

1
4
 F

a
il
u
re

 o
f 

d
is

a
s
te

r 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 a
n
d
/o

r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

e
ri

o
u
s
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

- 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
(e

.g
. 

fi
re

/f
lo

o
d
/s

n
o
w

) 
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 (
e
.g

. 
p
a
n
d
e
m

ic
)

R
&

R
5

N
e
w

 R
is

k
s
 (

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 -

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
rs

)

R
is

k
 n

a
m

e
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
c
o
re

1
6

Page 211



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
: 

F
in

a
n

c
e

T
o

g
e

th
e

r,
 w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
T

h
e

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 a

re
 a

s
 a

t 
2
8

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 m
o

n
th

: 

T
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
' 
n

e
t 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ti
n
g

 a
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.8

m
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 N

e
t 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

o
f 

£
2
8

4
.6

3
2

m
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
A

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

 u
n

d
e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
3
.3

m
 w

a
s
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t.

 T
h

e
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e
a

r 
w

e
re

 a
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

3
.5

m
.

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
3
, 

lo
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 a

 n
e
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 i
n
 i
ts

 a
re

a
. 

 I
t 

m
u

s
t 

a
ls

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 A
c
t 

1
9

8
4

. 
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 r

in
g

-f
e

n
c
e

d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d

 t
o
 l
o

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
  
P

u
b

lic
 

H
e

a
lt
h
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 t

o
 s

p
e

n
d
 t

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n
t-

fu
n
d

e
d
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

o
f 

£
1
4

.6
m

.

T
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o
u

n
t 

(H
R

A
) 

is
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 a

n
 u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0
.8

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 D

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

G
ra

n
t 

(D
S

G
) 

is
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

to
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

F
e

b
 2

0
1
4

%
M

a
r 

2
0

1
4

 %

7
7
0

7
 7

0

1
1
0

1
 1

0

2
2
0

2
 2

0

 T
o
ta

l
1
0

1
0

0
1
0

 1
0
0

 0
1
. 

N
I 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 E

m
p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t

8
,7

2
4

-4
5
0
.0

0
-5

.1
6

 0
2
. 

N
I 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

1
2
,1

6
9

-1
,2

3
1
.0

0
-1

0
.1

2

 0
3
. 

N
I 

C
le

a
n
, 

G
re

e
n
 a

n
d
 L

iv
e
a
b
le

2
1
,0

3
7

1
4
7
.0

0
0
.7

0

 0
4
. 

N
I 

S
a
fe

ty
, 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 V

is
ib

le
 P

re
s
e
n
c
e

1
8
,0

5
5

-7
5
4
.0

0
-4

.1
8

 0
5
. 

N
I 

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o
n
o
m

y
3
,0

8
3

-1
7
0
.0

0
-5

.5
1

 0
6
. 

N
I 

D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

3
,5

3
4

1
,2

6
7
.0

0
3
5
.8

5

 0
7
. 

N
I 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C
h
il
d
re

n
4
6
,9

9
0

4
,7

2
3
.0

0
1
0
.0

5

 0
8
. 

N
I 

C
a
ri

n
g
 f

o
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

8
3
,3

9
4

-2
,8

7
1
.0

0
-3

.4
4

 0
9
. 

N
I 

A
c
ti
v
e
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
iz

e
n
s

8
,2

4
6

-6
3
0
.0

0
-7

.6
4

 1
0
. 

N
I 

In
s
p
ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 E

q
u
it
y

7
9
,4

0
0

-8
7
5
.0

0
-1

.1
0

 C
E
X
 N

I 
C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

2
8
4
,6

3
2

-8
4
4
.0

0
-0

.3
0

F
in

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (

£
0
0
0
s
)

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 B

u
d
g
e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 

M
a
r 

1
4

%
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

1
7

Page 212



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

1
: 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

&
 E

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n

t

G
la

s
s

 M
il

l 
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e
 H

o
s
t 

W
o

rl
d

 B
o

o
k
 N

ig
h

t
T

h
e

 a
w

a
rd

 w
in

n
in

g
 G

la
s
s
 M

ill
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 w

a
s
 t

h
e

 v
e

n
u

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 r

e
g

io
n
 W

o
rl
d

 B
o

o
k
 

N
ig

h
t 

P
a

rt
y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 2

3
 A

p
ri
l.
 T

h
e
 e

v
e
n

t 
is

 r
u

n
 b

y
 T

h
e

 R
e

a
d

in
g

 A
g

e
n
c
y
, 

a
 c

h
a
ri

ty
 w

it
h

 a
 m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

g
iv

e
 e

v
e
ry

o
n

e
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
l 
c
h

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 r
e

a
d

e
r.

 T
h

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

g
e

th
e
r 

lit
e
ra

ry
 

e
n

th
u

s
ia

s
ts

, 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

o
o

k
 s

w
a

p
p
e

rs
 a

n
d
 c

e
n

tr
e

 u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 b

o
o

k
s
, 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 b

o
o

k
s
 a

n
d

 
s
h

a
re

 t
h

e
ir

 p
le

a
s
u

re
 i
n

 r
e

a
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 a
u
d

ie
n

c
e

 w
a
s
 t

re
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

a
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 
a
w

a
rd

 w
in

n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
r,

 D
re

d
a

 S
a

y
 M

it
c
h

e
ll 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n
g

 t
h
e

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
W

o
rl

d
 B

o
o
k
 N

ig
h

t 
lis

t.
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

1
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

n
/a

 
n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

 W
A
R
L
A
0
0
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (

L
o
c
a
l 

A
s
s
e
m

b
li
e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

1
8

Page 213



W
A

R
 L

A
0

0
2

 -
 A

v
e
r
a
g

e
 A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

t 
L
o

c
a
l 

A
s
s
e
m

b
li

e
s

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

7
7

7
5

 
  

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3

0
7
5

 
  

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

3
6

7
5

 
  

Ju
n
 2

0
1
3

4
2

7
5

 
  

Ju
l 
2
0
1
3

4
2

7
5

 
  

A
u
g
 2

0
1
3

2
5

7
5

 
  

S
e
p
 2

0
1
3

4
4

7
5

 
  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
3

4
7

7
5

 
  

N
o
v
 2

0
1
3

5
0

7
5

 
  

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

5
6

7
5

 
  

Ja
n
 2

0
1
4

5
9

7
5

 
  

F
e
b
 2

0
1
4

6
3

7
5

 
  

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

6
9

7
5

 
  

W
A
R
L
A
0
0
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m

b
li
e
s
) 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

) 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m

b
li
e
s
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 

ta
rg

e
t

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

A
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 

A
tt

e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
is

 m
o
n
th

.

W
A
R
 L

A
0
0
2
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

1
9

Page 214



1
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a
d

e
r
s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
o

w
e
r
m

e
n

t
D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 W
A
R
L
A
0
0
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m

b
li
e
s
)

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
9

7
5

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

A
c
tu

a
l 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 1

4
1
2
/1

3

2
0

Page 215



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

2
: 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 A

c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 D

a
y
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
s

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 y
o

u
th

 m
u

s
ic

T
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 D

a
y
 a

 g
ra

n
t 

o
f 

£
4
0

0
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

y
o

u
th

 m
u

s
ic

 e
le

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
e

s
ti
v
a

l.
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 D

a
y
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 h

u
n

d
re

d
s
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

u
s
ic

ia
n

s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
y
 i
t 

is
 t

h
e

ir
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

a
 l
iv

e
 a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

. 
A

n
o

th
e

r 
im

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
is

 t
h
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 M
u

s
ic

 H
u

b
. 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
m

u
s
ic

 
o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g

 m
u

s
ic

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 f

o
r 

y
o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
g
e

d
 5

 t
o

 1
8

. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

2
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

2
1

Page 216



2
. 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 A

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t
R
a
is

in
g
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

2
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
Z
5
6
9
 %

 S
E
N

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 E

H
C
P
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n

ti
m

e
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

5
9
.8

0
1
0
0
.0

0

 L
P
Z
5
6
9
a
 %

 S
E
N

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 E

H
C
P
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

im
e

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
2
.1

0
1
0
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 1

4
1
2
/1

3

 B
V
0
4
5
.1

2
 %

 H
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 -

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

6
.2

0
6
.2

5

 B
V
0
4
6
.1

2
 %

 H
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 -

 P
ri
m

a
ry

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

4
.9

5
4
.7

0

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 -

 H
a
lf
-t

e
rm

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

F
e
b
 1

4

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 F

e
b
 

1
4
 v

 D
e
c
 

1
3

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
e
c
 

1
3

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
u
g
 

1
3

S
c
h
Y
 

1
0
/1

1

2
2

Page 217



2
. 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 A

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t
R
a
is

in
g
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

2
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
C
Y
P
 B

u
il
d
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
C
Y
P

£
2
3
0
m

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
Y
P
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 2

 Y
e
a
r 

O
ld

 C
h
il
d
c
a
re

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

C
Y
P

£
2
.5

6
2
m

A
u
g
 2

0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
Y
P
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
C
Y
P

£
3
8
.2

m
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
Y
P
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C
Y
P

T
B
C

D
e
c
 2

0
1
5

 P
M

S
C

Y
P
 R

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

il
l

C
Y
P

T
B
C

T
B
C

 P
M

S
C
Y
P
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 P

ro
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
C
Y
P

£
2
.6

7
2
m

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

2
 p

ro
je

c
ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

B
u
d
g
e
t

E
s
t.

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

2
3

Page 218



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

3
: 

C
le

a
n

, 
G

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 L
iv

e
a

b
le

N
e

w
 P

la
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
ti

n
g

 i
n

 M
o

u
n

ts
fi

e
ld

 P
a
rk

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 r

e
v
e

a
le

d
 i
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
 k

e
y
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

o
u

n
ts

fi
e
ld

 
P

a
rk

 i
n

 C
a

tf
o
rd

. 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 F

ri
e

n
d

s
 O

f 
M

o
u

n
ts

fi
e

ld
 P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
id

e
a

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
im

 t
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 u
s
a

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 H

u
b

, 
n

e
a
r 

to
 t

h
e

 o
ld

 b
o

w
ls

 
g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 f
o
rm

e
r 

g
a

rd
e

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

a
rd

e
n

 w
it
h

 
p
ic

n
ic

 t
a

b
le

s
, 

a
 b

ra
n

d
-n

e
w

 c
a

fé
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
o

ile
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
s
e

a
ti
n
g

 
a
re

a
, 

n
e

w
 p

la
n

ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
, 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 p
la

y
 

a
re

a
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
la

y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
ti
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 
jo

in
tl
y
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o

f 
L

o
n
d

o
n

’s
 P

o
c
k
e
t 

P
a

rk
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

S
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l,
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

g
in

 o
n

-s
it
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
u

tu
m

n
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p
le

ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 C

h
ri

s
tm

a
s
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

3
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 N
I1

9
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 

w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
F
e
b
 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
F
e
b
 

1
4
 v

 J
a
n
 1

4

2
4

Page 219



N
I
1

9
2

 -
 P

e
r
c
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n

t 
fo

r
 r

e
u

s
e
, 

r
e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

F
e
b
 1

3
1
9
.8

4
2
1
.0

0
 

  

M
a
r 

1
3

1
9
.7

8
2
1
.0

0
 

  

A
p
r 

1
3

1
8
.6

2
2
1
.0

0
 

  

M
a
y
 1

3
1
7
.9

7
2
1
.0

0
 

  

Ju
n
 1

3
1
8
.0

7
2
1
.0

0
 

  

Ju
l 
1
3

1
7
.8

5
2
1
.0

0
 

  

A
u
g
 1

3
1
7
.7

9
2
1
.0

0
 

  

S
e
p
 1

3
1
7
.8

3
2
1
.0

0
 

  

O
c
t 

1
3

1
7
.8

1
2
1
.0

0
 

  

N
o
v
 1

3
1
7
.7

3
2
1
.0

0
 

  

D
e
c
 1

3
1
7
.7

5
2
1
.0

0
 

  

Ja
n
 1

4
1
7
.7

5
2
1
.0

0
 

  

F
e
b
 1

4
1
7
.5

6
2
1
.0

0
 

  

N
I1

9
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

) 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

e
ll
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

2
1
%

, 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

5
.3

3
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

m
o
n
th

 o
f 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

7
.5

6
%

. 
L
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

 o
n
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
n
fi
rm

s

th
a
t 

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

, 
a
n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

, 

is
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
in

g
 a

 s
lo

w
d
o
w

n
 i
n
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g

ra
te

s
. 

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

tr
iv

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 m

a
n
y
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
. 

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
ll
y
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

fl
a
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

lo
w

e
r 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 r

a
te

s
 t

h
a
n
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 3

7
%

 o
f 

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

's
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

re
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 r

is
e
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
y
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

p
la

n
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 t
e
n
u
re

. 
O

th
e
r 

fa
c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 r

a
te

s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

 

1
) 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 b

in
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 

2
) 

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

in
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 F
a
c
il
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
. 

3
) 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

e
w

s
p
ri

n
t 

a
n
d
 j
u
n
k
 m

a
il
; 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
rt

a
u
ld

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 a

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

a
c
k
a
g
in

g
  

w
a
s
te

; 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
R
e
a
d
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 n

e
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
 b

o
o
k
s
. 

 

4
) 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t

o
n
n
a
g
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
. 

N
I1

9
2
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

2
5

Page 220



3
. 

C
le

a
n

, 
G

r
e
e
n

 &
 L

iv
e
a
b

le
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 o
f 

ro
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I0

7
9
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fl
y
 t

ip
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
jo

b
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 1
 d

a
y

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

6
3
.5

2
6
5
.0

0

 L
P
I0

8
0
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 b

in
s
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
9
.9

8
9
9
.9

9

 L
P
I7

2
0
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
is

e
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 v
is

it
 w

it
h
in

 4
5
 m

in
u
te

s
, 

if
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
3
.5

5
9
7
.0

0

 L
P
I7

5
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
jo

b
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

 d
a
y

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
0
0
.0

0
9
9
.5

0

 L
P
Z
7
4
9
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 (

li
tt

e
r)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
9
.4

4
9
2
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
5
0
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 (

d
e
tr

it
u
s
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
9
.6

4
8
6
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
5
1
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 (

g
ra

ff
it
i)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
1
.3

2
9
2
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
5
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 (

fl
y
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
3
.9

4
9
5
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 1

4
1
2
/1

3

 N
I1

9
1
 R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 p
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 (
K
G

)
K
g
/H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

5
5
.2

1
5
4
.1

7

 N
I1

9
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
7
.5

6
2
1
.0

0

 N
I1

9
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 l
a
n
d
 f

il
le

d
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

7
.9

9
8
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

3
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

F
e
b
 1

4

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
e
c
 

1
3

1
2
/1

3

2
6

Page 221



3
. 

C
le

a
n

, 
G

r
e
e
n

 &
 L

iv
e
a
b

le
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 o
f 

ro
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I7

2
0
d
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
o
is

e
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir

in
g
 a

 v
is

it
N

u
m

b
e
r

2
,1

2
3
.0

0
1
,9

2
8
.0

0
1
,7

8
6
.0

0
1
,6

6
0
.0

0
1
,4

9
0
.0

0
2
,1

5
3
.0

0

 L
P
I7

5
2
n
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
ra

fi
tt

i 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
jo

b
s
 i
n
 w

it
h
in

 1
 d

a
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

5
,2

2
3
.0

0
4
,9

3
0
.0

0
4
,5

8
4
.0

0
4
,0

2
6
.0

0
3
,6

6
9
.0

0
5
,1

8
0
.0

0

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 3
 -

 C
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
Y
T
D

 J
a
n
 1

4
Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 N
o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

2
7

Page 222



3
. 

C
le

a
n

, 
G

r
e
e
n

 a
n

d
 L

iv
e
a
b

le
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 o
f 

ro
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 S

y
d
e
n
h
a
m

 P
a
rk

 F
o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
4
6
2
k

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
1
.5

m
A
p
r 

2
0
1
4

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 D

e
p
tf

o
rd

 R
is

e
 P

u
b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 (
T
h
e
 D

e
p
tf

o
rd

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
td

)
R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
1
5
2
k

A
p
r 

2
0
1
5

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 B

e
c
k
e
n
h
a
m

 P
la

c
e
 P

a
rk

 (
F
u
n
d
ra

is
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t)

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
7
5
k

R
o
u
n
d
 1

 -
 

fu
n
d
ra

is
in

g

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

- 

Ju
n
 2

0
1
4
; 

R
o
u
n
d
 

2
 -

 A
p
r 

2
0
1
5

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 R

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 S

it
e
: 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
5
9
8
k

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 T

F
L
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

T
B
C

A
p
r 

2
0
1
5

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

3
 p

ro
je

c
ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

B
u
d
g
e
t

E
s
t.

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

2
8

Page 223



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

L
a

rg
e

s
t 

Il
le

g
a

l 
T

o
b

a
c

c
o

 H
a

u
l 

in
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 
A

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 r

e
ta

ile
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 f

o
u

n
d

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 w
o

rt
h

 o
f 

ill
e

g
a

l 
to

b
a

c
c
o
, 

b
e

lie
v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

fi
n

d
 b

y
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

A
 L

e
e

 H
ig

h
 

R
o

a
d

 r
e

ta
ile

r 
w

a
s
 s

e
a

rc
h

e
d

 b
y
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
fi
n

d
in

g
 6

0
0

k
g

 o
f 

ill
e

g
a

l 
C

h
in

e
s
e

 h
a

n
d

 r
o

lli
n

g
 t

o
b

a
c
c
o

, 
w

it
h

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

o
v
e
r 

£
1
0

0
,0

0
0

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

n
a
g

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 s
h

o
p
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
e

ll 
o

r 
s
to

c
k
 

c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

a
 t

o
b
a

c
c
o

 
d
e

te
c
ti
o
n

 d
o

g
 c

a
lle

d
 J

a
c
k
, 

s
n

if
fe

d
 o

u
t 

th
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
fi
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

p
 a

n
d

 s
to

re
 

ro
o
m

. 
T

h
e

 o
w

n
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 s

h
o

p
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
. 

In
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e
 w

e
e

k
, 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

a
ls

o
 s

e
iz

e
d

 1
0

,0
0

0
 C

h
in

e
s
e

 c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

te
rf

e
it
 h

a
n

d
 r

o
lli

n
g

 t
o

b
a

c
c
o

 i
n

 
D

e
p
tf

o
rd

, 
a

n
d

 1
5
,0

0
0

 R
u
s
s
ia

n
 c

ig
a

re
tt

e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e

 G
re

e
n

. 
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 f
u

rt
h

e
r.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

4
: 

S
a

fe
ty

, 
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 V
is

ib
le

 P
re

s
e

n
c

e
P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

4
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

n
/a

n
/a

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

n
/a

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

2
9

Page 224



4
. 

S
a
fe

ty
, 

S
e
c
u

r
it

y
 a

n
d

 V
is

ib
le

 P
r
e
s
e
n

c
e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

rs
 a

n
d
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o
m

b
a

t 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r

4
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 -

 w
h

e
re

 s
m

a
lle

r 
is

 b
e

tt
e
r

D
e

c
lin

in
g

 -
 w

h
e

re
 s

m
a

lle
r 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,6

3
4
.0

0
1
,4

7
9
.0

0
1
,9

0
1
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,1

1
9
.0

0
1
,0

1
1
.0

0
1
,4

0
1
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,3

6
4
.0

0
1
,2

3
7
.0

0
1
,7

7
2
.0

0

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 (

A
B
H

)

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,1

6
6
.0

0
1
,1

0
8
.0

0
1
,3

5
8
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
6
9
.0

0
6
2
3
.0

0
8
5
3
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,2

7
7
.0

0
1
,1

9
2
.0

0
1
,5

1
2
.0

0

R
o
b
b
e
ry

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

3
,0

3
5
.0

0
2
,8

2
0
.0

0
3
,4

3
7
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

2
,4

6
3
.0

0
2
,2

6
2
.0

0
2
,8

2
0
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

2
,6

3
6
.0

0
2
,4

2
5
.0

0
2
,6

3
5
.0

0

B
u
rg

la
ry

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

2
,1

2
5
.0

0
1
,9

7
8
.0

0
2
,3

4
7
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,6

7
0
.0

0
1
,5

2
5
.0

0
1
,7

4
6
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,8

0
5
.0

0
1
,6

5
2
.0

0
1
,8

9
5
.0

0

C
ri

m
in

a
l 
D

a
m

a
g
e

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

3
0

Page 225



4
. 

S
a
fe

ty
, 

S
e
c
u

r
it

y
 a

n
d

 V
is

ib
le

 P
r
e
s
e
n

c
e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

rs
 a

n
d
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o
m

b
a

t 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r

4
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 -

 w
h

e
re

 s
m

a
lle

r 
is

 b
e

tt
e
r

D
e

c
lin

in
g

 -
 w

h
e

re
 s

m
a

lle
r 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
9
8
.0

0
6
3
0
.0

0
8
6
4
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

5
9
8
.0

0
5
4
5
.0

0
6
6
9
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

7
3
6
.0

0
6
7
0
.0

0
7
4
2
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

 o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,5

2
5
.0

0
1
,4

0
4
.0

0
2
,1

0
8
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,9

0
4
.0

0
1
,7

5
2
.0

0
2
,0

2
9
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

2
,0

6
4
.0

0
1
,8

9
9
.0

0
2
,1

7
3
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

 f
ro

m
 v

e
h
ic

le

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

N
u
m

b
e
r

7
2
9
.0

0
6
7
5
.0

0
7
7
4
.0

0

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
3
2
.0

0
5
8
7
.0

0
6
8
1
.0

0

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

2
,7

2
0
.0

0
2
,5

3
3
.0

0
3
,2

0
6
.0

0

T
h
e
ft

 f
ro

m
 p

e
rs

o
n

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

C
h
a
n
g
e
 s

in
c
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

3
1

Page 226



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

5
: 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c

a
l 

E
c

o
n

o
m

y

S
it

e
m

a
s

te
rs

 C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 w
in

s
 M

a
y

o
r 

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

w
a

rd
S

it
e

M
a
s
te

rs
, 

a
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
n
 L

e
w

is
h
a

m
 W

a
y
, 

h
a

s
 w

o
n
 a

 M
a
y
o
r 

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a
m

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

w
a
rd

. 
F

o
u

n
d
e

r 
M

a
ri
a

 C
o
m

m
a

n
e
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
o

c
ia

l 
R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
w

a
rd

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y
. 

S
it
e
M

a
s
te

rs
 P

L
C
 w

a
s
 f

o
u

n
d
e

d
 i
n

 1
9

8
7

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
lie

s
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
e

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d

 
tr

a
d

e
s
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
. 

T
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
w

a
rd

 j
u

d
g

in
g

 p
a
n

e
l 
w

e
re

 i
m

p
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 S

it
e

M
a
s
te

rs
’ 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a
l 
L
a
b
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o
p

le
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

5
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
ts

 -
 R

e
d

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

3
2

Page 227



5
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o

n
o

m
y

G
a
in

in
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 k

e
y
 l
o
c
a
li
ti
e
s
, 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
u
b
li
c
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

5
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 N
I1

5
7
b
 %

 M
in

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
1
.1

5
6
5
.0

0

 N
I1

5
7
c
 %

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

7
8
.9

2
8
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

3
3

Page 228



5
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o

n
o

m
y

G
a
in

in
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 k

e
y
 l
o
c
a
li
ti
e
s
, 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
u
b
li
c
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

5
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I4

7
2
 J

o
b
 S

e
e
k
e
rs

 A
ll
o
w

a
n
c
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

ra
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

3
.8

0
3
.9

0
3
.9

0
3
.9

0
4
.0

0
5
.2

0

 L
P
I4

7
4
 T

h
e
 n

o
.o

f 
JS

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 a
g
e
d
 1

8
-2

4
y
rs

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
,4

1
5
.0

0
1
,4

7
0
.0

0
1
,4

0
5
.0

0
1
,4

4
5
.0

0
1
,5

3
5
.0

0
2
,1

7
5
.0

0

 L
P
I4

7
5
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
(L

e
w

is
h
a
m

)
£

3
2
7
,8

7
7
.0

0
3
2
5
,6

3
3
.0

0
3
2
1
,8

5
4
.0

0
3
1
5
,7

1
8
.0

0
3
1
0
,8

6
3
.0

0
2
8
6
,3

3
7
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 c

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
Y
T
D

 J
a
n
 1

4
Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 N
o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

 L
P
I4

0
1
d
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
o
u
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r

?
2
5
.0

0
2
1
.0

0
1
.0

0
1
4
.0

0
1
4
.0

0

 L
P
I4

2
3
 L

o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

?
7
2
.0

0
7
1
.2

0
7
1
.4

0
6
9
.4

0
6
9
.4

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 c

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 S
e
p
 1

3
Y
T
D

 J
u
n
 1

3
Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
3

1
2
/1

3

3
4

Page 229



5
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o

n
o

m
y

G
a
in

in
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 k

e
y
 l
o
c
a
li
ti
e
s
, 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
u
b
li
c
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

5
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
3
5
0
k

T
B
C

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
1
4
0
k

S
p
ri

n
g
 2

0
1
4

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 S

u
rr

e
y
 C

a
n
a
l 
T
ri

a
n
g
le

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
2
4
5
k

T
B
C

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

5
 p

ro
je

c
ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

B
u
d
g
e
t

E
s
t.

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

3
5

Page 230



5
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o

n
o

m
y

G
a

in
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
g

e
n
e

ra
te

 k
e

y
 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
, 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

5
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
a
tf

o
rd

 T
o
w

n

C
e
n
tr

e
.

C
a
tf

o
rd

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 C
e
n
tr

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 f

a
c
to

rs
. 

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
; 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
k
e
y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
, 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 v
ia

b
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ra

b
le

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e
a
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
rs

 b
e
s
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

W
o
rk

 o
n
 a

ll
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

is
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 a

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 '
re

d
'.
 

R
e
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

S
e
n
io

r 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

P
ro

je
c
t 

A
im

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

3
6

Page 231



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

6
: 

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 '
H

o
t 

T
o

p
ic

s
' 
to

 r
e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 6
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

6
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

 N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 K

e
n
d
e
r 

N
e
w

 B
u
il
d
 g

ra
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 3

 S
o
u
th

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
ro

je
c
ts

 -
 R

e
d

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

 0
6
. 

N
I 

D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

3
5
.8

5
1
,2

6
7
.0

0

F
in

a
n
c
e

%
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e

3
7

Page 232



N
I
1

5
6

 -
 N

u
m

b
e
r
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 T
e
m

p
o

r
a
r
y
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

F
e
b
 2

0
1
3

1
,1

5
8
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

  

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

1
,1

6
5
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

  

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3

1
,1

8
9
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

M
a
y

2
0
1
3

1
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

Ju
n
 2

0
1
3

1
,2

2
1
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

Ju
l 
2
0
1
3

1
,2

1
1
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

A
u
g
 

2
0
1
3

1
,2

6
3
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

S
e
p
 2

0
1
3

1
,3

0
9
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
3

1
,3

2
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

N
o
v
 

2
0
1
3

1
,3

4
0
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

1
,3

7
2
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

Ja
n
 2

0
1
4

1
,4

2
1
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

F
e
b
 2

0
1
4

1
,4

3
8
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
 

  

N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

) 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

H
o
u
s
in

g

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
7
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

a
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 m
o
v
e
s
 

w
h
il
s
t 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

ll
y
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

s
tr

u
g
g
li
n
g
 t

o
 f

in
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 r
is

e
 b

y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
o
s
e
 i
n

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 

b
id

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 o

n
 H

o
m

e
s
e
a
rc

h
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 l
e
t

to
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 5

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 l
e
ts

. 
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 R
e
n
te

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

th
is

 a
 m

o
re

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
.

N
I1

5
6
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

3
8

Page 233



6
. 

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r
 A

ll
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

, 
ta

c
k
le

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I0

2
9
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

n
t 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
, 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 

o
n
 v

o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

P
e
rc

e
n
t

9
8
.6

5
9
9
.0

0

 L
P
I0

3
7
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

im
e
 t

o
 R

e
-l

e
t

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
5
.3

8
2
3
.0

0

 L
P
I7

0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
9
.8

3
9
9
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
0
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 l
e
t 

to
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

2
7
.7

6
2
6
.1

0

 N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,4

4
1
.0

0
1
,1

5
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 6

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

 L
P
Z
7
0
5
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
s
 m

a
d
e
 d

e
c
e
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,5

0
5
.0

0
1
,5

0
5
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
5
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 n

e
w

 s
p
a
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
5
7
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

il
ie

s
 i
n
 n

o
n
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 n

ig
h
tl
y
 

p
a
id

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 6

 w
e
e
k
s
 (

Q
tr

)
N

u
m

b
e
r

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 6

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
e
c
 

1
3

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

S
e
p
 

1
3

1
2
/1

3

3
9

Page 234



6
. 

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r
 A

ll
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

, 
ta

c
k
le

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I6

5
8
d
 T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
e
re

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e

N
u
m

b
e
r

1
,0

7
3
.0

0
9
6
3
.0

0
9
2
4
.0

0
8
1
8
.0

0
7
5
6
.0

0
1
,1

5
7
.0

0

 L
P
Z
7
2
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
p
t 

a
 d

u
ty

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

6
4
.2

1
6
2
.7

2
6
2
.6

6
6
1
.7

4
6
2
.0

4
6
1
.5

4

 L
P
Z
7
4
7
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r

N
u
m

b
e
r

8
,2

9
4
.0

0
8
,2

6
8
.0

0
8
,3

0
2
.0

0
8
,2

9
0
.0

0
8
,1

7
6
.0

0
7
,8

3
0

 L
P
Z
7
4
8
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 H

O
C
 a

n
d
 S

H
IP

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
7
0
.0

0
7
9
9
.0

0
9
3
6
.0

0
6
8
2
.0

0
8
9
9
.0

0
5
8
5

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 6

 -
 C

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
Y
T
D

 J
a
n
 1

4
Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 N
o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

4
0

Page 235



6
. 

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r
 A

ll
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

, 
ta

c
k
le

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 K

e
n
d
e
r 

N
e
w

 B
u
il
d
 g

ra
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 3

 S
o
u
th

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
B
C

T
B
C

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 E

x
c
a
li
b
u
r 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
1
.5

2
1
m

M
a
r 

2
0
1
8

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 K

e
n
d
e
r 

N
e
w

 B
u
il
d
 g

ra
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 4

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
1
.5

4
m

M
a
r 

2
0
1
5

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 S
it
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 D
e
p
tf

 T
C
 P

ro
g
 -

 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
1
m

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
tt

e
rs

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
0
.5

m
M

a
r 

2
0
1
5

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 H

e
a
th

s
id

e
 &

 L
e
th

b
ri
d
g
e
 R

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
3
0
.2

4
4
m

P
h
a
s
e
 3

 -
 N

o
v
 

2
0
1
5

 P
M

S
R
G

N
 M

il
fo

rd
 T

o
w

e
rs

 D
e
c
a
n
t

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

£
6
m

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
s
, 

B
e
tt

e
r 

P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
1
.5

m
N

o
v
 1

4

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 H
o
m

e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
B
C

A
p
r 

2
0
1
5

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

6
 p

ro
je

c
ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

B
u
d
g
e
t

E
s
t.

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

4
1

Page 236



6
. 

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r
 A

ll
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

, 
ta

c
k
le

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.2

 P
ro

je
c

ts

 P
M

S
C
U

S
 K

e
n
d
e
r 

N
e
w

 B
u
il
d
 g

ra
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 3

 S
o
u
th

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

E
D

P
r
o

je
c
t 

A
im

K
e
n
d
e
r 

N
e
w

-B
u
il
d
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

S
o
u
th

K
e
n

d
e
r
 N

e
w

 B
u

il
d

 -
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 S
o

u
th

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 v
ia

b
il
it
y
 g

a
p
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
e
a
rs

. 
F
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 a

 r
e
s
h
a
p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
b
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

it
 n

o
w

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 i
t

to
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
ir

c
a
 2

0
0
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e
w

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 v

is
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 a

im
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 d
e
ta

il
e
d
 b

ri
e
f 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

it
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 2
0
1
4
. 

R
e
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

S
e
n
io

r 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

P
ro

je
c
t 

A
im

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

4
2

Page 237



6
. 

D
e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r
 A

ll
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

, 
ta

c
k
le

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

6
.4

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 0
6
. 

N
I 

D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
ll

3
,5

3
4

1
,2

6
7

3
5
.8

5

F
in

a
n

c
e
 O

v
e
r
s
p

e
n

d

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 a
ri

s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
li
e
n
ts

 i
n
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

g
iv

in
g
 a

 c
o
s
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
f 

£
1
.2

m
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
£
0
.1

m
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L
e
a
s
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 

w
h
e
re

 v
o
id

 r
a
te

s
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
3
.9

%
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d

ra
te

.

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

6
 (

£
0
0
0
s
)

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 

M
a
r 

1
4

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

% v
a
ri

a
n
c
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

4
3

Page 238



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

7
: 

P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 '
H

o
t 

T
o

p
ic

s
' 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 f
o

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 7
 t

h
is

 
m

o
n

th
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

7
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

n
/a

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 0
7
. 

N
I 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C
h
il
d
re

n
1
0
.0

5
4
,7

2
3
.0

0

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

%
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e

 R
M

S
C
Y
P
0
1
 A

v
o
id

a
b
le

 d
e
a
th

 o
r 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C
S
C

R
e
d
 R

is
k
s
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

4
4

Page 239



7
. 

P
r
o

te
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

il
d

r
e
n

B
e
tt

e
r 

s
a
fe

-g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 

7
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I1

2
9
a
 %

 o
f 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 m

o
n
th

 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 n

e
w

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
3
.3

0
1
2
.0

0

 L
P
Z
9
0
0
 %

 o
f 

s
in

g
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

d
a
y
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
5
.5

6
?

 N
I0

6
2
 S

ta
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
: 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
o
v
e
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
1
.0

0
9
.0

0

 N
I0

6
3
 S

ta
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
: 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

7
2
.6

0
7
2
.0

0

 N
I0

6
4
 C

h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

6
.9

0
8
.0

0

 N
I0

6
5
 C

h
il
d
re

n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
 C

h
il
d
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

fo
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
0
.9

0
1
0
.0

0

 N
I0

6
6
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

re
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
9
.6

0
9
9
.5

0

 N
I0

6
7
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

4
5

Page 240



7
. 

P
r
o

te
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

il
d

r
e
n

B
e
tt

e
r 

s
a
fe

-g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 

7
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I1

3
7
 C

H
3
9
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

L
A
C
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 L

B
L

N
u
m

b
e
r

6
0
.0

0
7
5
.1

0
8
0
.3

0
7
7
.5

0
7
8
.9

0
7
8
.9

0
7
9
.8

0
7
7
.0

0

 L
P
I1

4
1
 C

H
0
1
 N

o
.o

n
 C

P
R
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 L

B
L

N
u
m

b
e
r

3
7
.9

0
4
0
.9

0
4
7
.9

0
4
8
.3

0
4
8
.3

0
4
8
.8

0
5
0
.4

0
3
6
.5

0

 L
P
I3

0
1
 N

o
. 

o
f 
c
h
il
d
re

n
 o

n
 C

P
R
 '
a
s
 a

t'
N

u
m

b
e
r

2
8
4
.0

0
2
4
0
.0

0
3
0
4
.0

0
3
0
7
.0

0
3
0
7
.0

0
3
1
0
.0

0
3
2
0
.0

0
2
3
5
.0

0

 L
P
I3

0
2
 N

o
. 

o
f 
L
A
C
 '
a
s
 a

t'
N

u
m

b
e
r

4
4
8
.0

0
4
4
1
.0

0
5
1
0
.0

0
4
9
2
.0

0
5
0
1
.0

0
5
0
1
.0

0
5
0
7
.0

0
4
9
4
.0

0

 L
P
I3

0
9
a
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th

N
u
m

b
e
r

3
2
5
.0

0
2
6
3
.0

0
1
9
8
.0

0
1
6
7
.0

0
2
1
3
.0

0
1
3
7
.0

0
1
6
5
.0

0
1
9
7
.0

0

P
ri
o
ri

ty
 7

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

E
n
g
la

n
d

1
2
/1

3

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

1
2
/1

3

M
a
r 

1
4

F
e
b
 1

4
Ja

n
 1

4
D

e
c
 1

3
N

o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

4
6

Page 241



7
. 

P
r
o

te
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

il
d

r
e
n

B
e
tt

e
r 

s
a
fe

-g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 

7
.3

 R
is

k

 R
M

S
C
Y
P
0
1
 A

v
o
id

a
b
le

 d
e
a
th

 o
r 

s
e
ri

o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
Y
P
0
1
 

A
v
o
id

a
b
le

 d
e
a
th

 o
r 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 

w
o

r
s
t 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 r

is
k
?

D
e
a
th

 o
r 

s
e
ri

o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 

to
 c

h
il
d
/y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
.

C
o
s
t 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a

n
d
 

re
d
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

L
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
. 

L
o
s
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 t

ru
s
t.

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 m
o
ra

le
. 

L
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
. 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
.

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
C
S
C

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 t
im

e
 f

ra
m

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
ll
e
g
e
s
.

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
Q

u
a
li
ty

 c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 

!
S
tr

e
n
g
th

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

 

!
C
h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

 

!
S
tr

o
n
g
 P

R
. 

 

!
E
n
s
u
re

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

la
n
s
 f

u
ll
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 

!
R
e
g
u
la

r 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

 

!
R
e
g
u
la

r 
ti
m

e
ly

 i
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 

!
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
is

ts
 n

o
w

 t
ra

in
e
d
 i
n
 t

ra
u
m

a
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

!
E
n
s
u
re

 s
tr

o
n
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 s

ta
ff

 a
c
ro

s
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
id

s
 f

ro
m

o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
.

!
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 m
o
n
it
o
rs

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f

ro
m

 S
e
ri

o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
. 

 

!
A
d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t

o
 C

Y
P
 L

o
n
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 P

o
li
c
y
; 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t.
  

!
S
e
ri

o
u
s
 Y

o
u
th

 V
io

le
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 

!
M

A
S
H

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

h
a
ri

n
g
 P

ro
to

c
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i

t 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

R
is

k
 N

o
te

s

!
C
h
il
d
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 i
n
 

c
h
il
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 

!
T
a
rg

e
te

d
 F

a
m

il
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 e

a
rl

y
 a

n
d
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

4
7

Page 242



p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

!
R
a
g
 r

a
ti
n
g
 a

lw
a
y
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

t 
2
5
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

w
h
e
n
 a

 c
h
il
d
 k

n
o
w

n
 t

o
 C

S
C
 d

ie
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
b
u
s
e
. 

  
C
S
C
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 c

h
il
d
 

a
b
u
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

is
k
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

  

S
e
ri

o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 r
is

k
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

d
e
a
th

 o
f 

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
h
il
d
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fa

m
il
y
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 

ri
s
k
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

in
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

e
n
d
 u

p
 i
n
 c

h
il
d
 d

e
a
th

 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

h
il
d
's

 b
e
s
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

to
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 s

i g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
tt

a
c
h
m

e
n
ts

, 

b
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 c

h
il
d
 i
n
 t

h
a
t 

fa
m

il
y
. 

  
It

 i
s

n
o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
a
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

a
 c

h
il
d
. 

  
P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p
li
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

a
 c

h
il
d
 m

a
y
 d

ie
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
a
s
ta

ti
n
g
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

a
m

il
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 7

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

4
8

Page 243



7
. 

P
r
o

te
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

il
d

r
e
n

B
e
tt

e
r 

s
a
fe

-g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
  

7
.4

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 0
7
. 

N
I 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
h
il
d
re

n
4
6
,9

9
0

4
,7

2
3

1
0
.0

5

F
in

a
n

c
e
 O

v
e
r
s
p

e
n

d

C
h
il
d
re

n
's

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
f 

£
4
.7

m
. 

T
h
is

c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 o

f 
a
 £

1
.2

m
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 (

L
A
C
),

 a
 £

4
.2

m
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

li
e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
 n

o
 r

e
c
o
u
rs

e
 t

o
 p

u
b
li
c
 f

u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 £
0
.9

m
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt

o
f 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

c
a
re

. 
T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
f 

£
6
.2

m
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

d
o
w

n
 b

y
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

£
1
.6

m
 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

7
 (

£
0
0
0
s
)

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 

M
a
r 

1
4

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

%
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

4
9

Page 244



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

8
: 

C
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 '
H

o
t 

T
o

p
ic

s
' 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 f
o

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 8
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

8
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

n
/a

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

 A
O

/D
4
0
 %

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 c
li
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

re
v
ie

w

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 R
M

S
C
O

M
0
4
 S

e
ri

o
u
s
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A
d
u
lt
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

C
ri

m
e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
.

R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

5
0

Page 245



A
O

/
D

4
0

 -
 %

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
r
e
 c

li
e
n

ts
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

7
7
.8

1
7
5
.0

0
 

  

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3

7
.6

3
5
.0

0
 

  

M
a
y
 

2
0
1
3

1
5
.7

6
1
3
.0

0
 

  

Ju
n
 2

0
1
3

2
3
.7

1
2
1
.0

0
 

  

Ju
l 
2
0
1
3

3
1
.7

1
2
9
.0

0
 

  

A
u
g
 

2
0
1
3

3
7
.8

3
3
7
.0

0
 

  

S
e
p
 2

0
1
3

4
4
.3

8
4
5
.0

0
 

  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
3

5
0
.6

3
5
3
.0

0
 

  

N
o
v

2
0
1
3

5
1
.5

9
6
1
.0

0
 

  

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

5
7
.1

2
6
9
.0

0
 

  

Ja
n
 2

0
1
4

5
8
.3

0
7
7
.0

0
 

  

F
e
b
 2

0
1
4

6
1
.6

6
8
5
.0

0
 

  

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

7
0
.6

8
9
0
.0

0
 

  

A
O

/D
4
0
 %

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C
a
re

 c
li
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

re
v
ie

w
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 

A
d
u
lt
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

T
h
is

 l
o
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 e

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

9
0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

fi
g
u
re

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

is
e
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 a

s
 a

ll
 e

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 

d
a
ta

 i
s
 e

n
te

re
d
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
.

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
tc

h
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

It
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

th
is

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 l
e
v
e
l 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
 c

o
s
t 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
p
e
a
ts

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

g
e
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 W

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 w
il
l 
h
a
v
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 n

e
a
re

r 
to

 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 o
n
c
e
 a

ll

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

tw
o
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
u
n
te

d
.

A
O

/D
4
0
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

5
1

Page 246



8
. 

C
a
r
in

g
 f

o
r
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r
 P

e
o

p
le

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 o
f 

c
a

re

8
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 A
O

/D
4
0
 %

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C
a
re

 c
li
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

re
v
ie

w
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

7
0
.6

8
9
0
.0

0

 L
P
I2

5
3
 1

C
 (

1
) 

%
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
h
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

6
9
.9

2
7
0
.0

0

 L
P
I2

5
4
 1

C
 (

2
) 

%
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
h
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

1
5
.8

5
1
9
.0

0

 L
P
I2

6
4
 2

C
 (

1
) 

D
e
la

y
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

4
.7

5
4
.0

0

 L
P
I2

7
2
 2

D
 R

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t/

R
e
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n
 N

o
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

5
5
.6

0
5
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 8

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it
 

Y
T
D

 M
a
r

1
4
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4
 

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t

y
e
a
r 

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 1

4
 

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 1

4
 
1
2
/1

3

5
2

Page 247



8
. 

C
a
r
in

g
 f

o
r
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r
 P

e
o

p
le

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 o
f 

c
a

re

8
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I2

9
7
 T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C
a
re

 c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 

(n
e
w

 c
o
n
ta

c
ts

)
N

u
m

b
e
r

1
2
6
,1

0
9
.0

0
1
0
8
,0

1
5
.0

0
8
9
,6

9
0
.0

0
7
4
,0

0
7
.0

0
5
9
,7

3
0
.0

0
1
2
4
,6

4
7
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 8

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
Y
T
D

 J
a
n
 1

4
Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 N
o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

5
3

Page 248



8
. 

C
a
r
in

g
 f

o
r
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r
 p

e
o

p
le

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

8
.3

 R
is

k

 R
M

S
C
O

M
0
4
 S

e
ri

o
u
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 8

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

M
0
4
 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn

D
e
a
th

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
 o

r 

c
h
il
d
. 

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 

A
b
u
s
e
. 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

H
o
m

ic
id

e
. 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A
d
u
lt
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C
ri

m
e
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 &

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

.

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

W
e
 w

il
l 
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

2
) 

W
e
 w

il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 

3
) 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
h
a
v
e
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

o
u
r 

Q
A
F
.

4
) 

A
 n

e
w

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

5
) 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 H

o
m

ic
id

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 -

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

t 
a
 t

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 S

L
P
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

d
u
lt
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 C
a
s
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
R
e
v
ie

w
 G

ro
u
p
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
3
. 

 

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
. 

 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i
t 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 L

S
A
B
 w

il
l 
b
e
c
o
m

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
y
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

2
) 

T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
il
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

3
) 

Q
A
F
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
. 

4
) 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
4
. 

5
) 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
4
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 8

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

5
4

Page 249



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

9
: 

A
c

ti
v

e
, 

H
e

a
lt

h
y

 C
it

iz
e

n
s

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 '
H

o
t 

T
o

p
ic

s
' 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 9

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 0

9
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

n
/a

n
/a

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 L
P
I3

2
4
 M

M
R
1
 I

m
m

u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

2
n
d
 b

ir
th

d
a
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 D
e
c
 

1
3

5
5

Page 250



9
. 

A
c
ti

v
e
, 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

it
iz

e
n

s
L
e

is
u

re
, 

s
p

o
rt

in
g

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o
n

e

9
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 C
F
/C

1
9
 H

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
L
A
C

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
8
.6

0
9
3
.0

0

 N
I0

5
2
 T

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
lu

n
c
h
e
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

5
3
.8

0
5
7
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 9

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

 L
P
I2

0
2
 L

ib
ra

ry
 v

is
it
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

N
u
m

b
e
r 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0

6
5
2
.8

9
5
8
0
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 9

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

 L
P
I2

0
2
r 

L
ib

ra
ry

 v
is

it
s
 r

o
ll
in

g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
N

u
m

b
e
r

2
,0

4
6
,8

2
2

1
,7

7
2
,5

4
0

2
,0

2
5
,2

1
3

1
,7

7
6
,9

2
3

2
,0

0
6
,7

3
0

1
,7

7
6
,5

6
2

1
,7

7
2
,5

4
0

U
n
it

M
a
r 

1
4

M
a
r 

1
3
 

F
e
b
 1

4
 

F
e
b
 1

3
 

Ja
n
 1

4
 

Ja
n
 1

3
 

1
2
/1

3

 N
I0

5
3
 P

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf

e
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
 -

 8
 w

e
e
k
s
 

fr
o
m

 b
ir
th

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

?
7
8
.0

0

 N
I1

2
3
 S

to
p
p
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
R
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

?
2
5
0
.3

1

 L
P
I3

2
4
 M

M
R
1
 I

m
m

u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 2

n
d
 b

ir
th

d
a
y

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
6
.2

0
9
1
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 9

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

D
e
c
 

1
3

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

S
e
p
 

1
3

1
2
/1

3

5
6

Page 251



9
. 

A
c
ti

v
e
, 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

it
iz

e
n

s
L
e

is
u

re
, 

s
p

o
rt

in
g

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o
n

e

9
.1

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

 L
P
I2

1
1
a
 C

h
il
d
re

n
 f

re
e
 s

w
im

s
N

u
m

b
e
r

3
2
,4

2
7
.0

0
2
9
,3

3
3
.0

0
2
6
,4

7
9
.0

0
2
4
,9

6
1
.0

0
2
3
,7

7
5
.0

0
3
4
,9

6
9

 L
P
I2

1
1
b
 6

0
+

 f
re

e
 s

w
im

s
N

u
m

b
e
r

1
8
,6

7
5
.0

0
1
6
,5

4
5
.0

0
1
4
,9

4
7
.0

0
1
3
,5

0
4
.0

0
1
2
,2

9
2
.0

0
1
1
,3

4
4

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 9

 -
 M

o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 M
a
r 

1
4

Y
T
D

 F
e
b
 1

4
Y
T
D

 J
a
n
 1

4
Y
T
D

 D
e
c
 1

3
Y
T
D

 N
o
v
 1

3
1
2
/1

3

5
7

Page 252



H
o

t 
T

o
p

ic
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
: 

In
s

p
ir

in
g

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 &

 E
q

u
it

y

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 '
H

o
t 

T
o

p
ic

s
' 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
: 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

F
in

a
n
c
e

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 M

a
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 

F
e
b
 1

4

P
ro

je
c
ts

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

R
is

k

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

A
p
r 

1
4

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
A
p
r 

1
4
 v

 

M
a
r 

1
4

5
8

Page 253



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

A
re

a
s
 R

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

h
is

 M
o
n
th

 B
V
0
0
8
 I

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s

 B
V
0
1
7
a
 %

 E
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly

A
g
a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 M
a
r 

1
3

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f

T
ra

v
e
l 
M

a
r 

1
4
 v

 F
e
b
 1

4

 R
M

S
C
O

R
0
4
 N

o
n
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
5
 I

n
a
b
il
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
s
s
e
ts

 &
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
n
 s

a
fe

 &
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
9
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
1
 D

a
ta

 I
n
te

g
ri

ty
/N

o
n
 C

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
/I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
4
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 R
M

S
C
O

R
3
0
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v
e
r

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
e
d
 R

is
k
s
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

5
9

Page 254



B
V

0
0

8
 %

 o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it

h
in

 3
0

 d
a
y
s

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

8
9
.0

4
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3

9
0
.8

5
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

M
a
y

2
0
1
3

9
0
.1

9
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

Ju
n
 2

0
1
3

9
0
.6

5
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

Ju
l 
2
0
1
3

9
0
.8

2
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

A
u
g
 

2
0
1
3

9
0
.4

6
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

S
e
p
 2

0
1
3

9
0
.3

6
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
3

8
9
.6

4
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

N
o
v
 

2
0
1
3

8
9
.8

8
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

8
8
.1

7
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

Ja
n
 2

0
1
4

8
7
.8

3
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

F
e
b
 2

0
1
4

8
8
.3

0
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

8
8
.6

1
1
0
0
.0

0
 

  

B
V
0
0
8
 I

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

) 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

h
a
re

d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

9
1
.8

%
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

's
 u

n
d
is

p
u
te

d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 w

e
re

 p
a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 

d
a
y
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 M

a
rc

h
. 

Y
e
a
r-

to
-d

a
te

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 8

8
.6

1
%

.

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

T
h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

 2
 P

a
y
 (

P
2
P
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 z
e
ro

 t
o
le

ra
n
c
e
 o

n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 o

rd
e
rs

. 
A
re

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 e

x
e
m

p
t 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
is

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
in

v
o
ic

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f 

ti
m

e
ly

 r
e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 o

f 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 d

is
p
u
te

d
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
. 

W
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 b

a
n
k
 d

e
ta

il
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 B

A
C
S
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
e
q
u
e
s
.

B
V
0
0
8
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
0

Page 255



B
V

0
1

7
a
 %

 E
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
r
it

ie
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s

M
a
r 

2
0
1
3

3
1
.2

9
3
4
.0

0
 

  

A
p
r 

2
0
1
3

3
0
.7

2
3
4
.0

0
 

  

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.7

2
3
4
.0

0
 

  

Ju
n
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.7

2
3
4
.0

0
 

  

Ju
l 
2
0
1
3

3
0
.6

7
3
4
.0

0
 

  

A
u
g
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.6

4
3
4
.0

0
 

  

S
e
p
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.6

2
3
4
.0

0
 

  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
3

3
4
.0

0
 

  

N
o
v
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.6

1
3
4
.0

0
 

  

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

3
0
.6

0
3
4
.0

0
 

  

Ja
n
 2

0
1
4

3
0
.6

2
3
4
.0

0
 

  

F
e
b
 2

0
1
4

3
0
.5

1
3
4
.0

0
 

  

M
a
r 

2
0
1
4

3
0
.4

4
3
4
.0

0
 

  

B
V
0
1
7
a
 %

 E
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

A
c
tu

a
l 
(Y

T
D

) 
T
a
rg

e
t 

(Y
T
D

) 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

Y
T
D

)

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
&

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

In
 M

a
rc

h
, 

2
9
.7

5
%

 o
f 

a
ll
 s

ta
ff

 (
n
o
n
-s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

s
ta

ff
) 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 B

la
c
k
, 

A
s
ia

n
 a

n
d
 M

in
o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B
A
M

E
) 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
4
%

. 
N

o
n
-s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
ta

ff
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 3
7
.2

%
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
0
%

. 
T
h
is

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
li
n
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 Y
e
a
r-

to
-d

a
te

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 i
s
 3

0
.4

4
%

.

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

R
e
c
ru

it
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
m

in
d
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

S
e
a
rc

h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

a
re

 a
ls

o
 b

ri
e
fe

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 B

A
M

E
 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 

B
V
0
1
7
a
 -

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
1

Page 256



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.1
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 B
V
0
0
8
 I

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

8
8
.6

1
1
0
0
.0

0

 B
V
0
1
2
b
 D

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

)
N

u
m

b
e
r

7
.2

4
7
.5

0

 B
V
0
1
2
c
 D

a
y
s
/S

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 

to
 S

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 (

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 O
n
ly

)
N

u
m

b
e
r

5
.5

7
4
.0

0

 B
V
0
1
6
a
 %

 o
f 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

3
.7

2
3
.5

0

 B
V
0
1
7
a
 %

 E
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

3
0
.4

4
3
4
.0

0

 L
P
I0

3
1
 N

N
D

R
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
8
.9

7
9
8
.0

0

 L
P
I0

3
2
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
4
.7

9
9
4
.5

0

 L
P
I5

0
0
 %

 s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

t 

P
O

6
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

3
6
.8

4
2
5
.0

0

 L
P
I5

1
9
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
F
O

I 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
2
.5

7
1
0
0
.0

0

 L
P
I5

3
7
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 j
o
b
s

g
a
in

e
d
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

2
5
 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
ju

n
io

r 
le

v
e
l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 (
S
c
1
-S

c
5
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

4
4
.1

6
2
7
.0

0

 L
P
I7

2
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

a
ll
 

c
e
n
tr

e
P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
1
.0

6
9
1
.0

0

 L
P
I7

5
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 

a
rr

iv
in

g
 o

n
 t

im
e
 s

e
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

im
e

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

9
3
.6

7
9
5
.0

0

 N
I1

8
1
 T

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

D
a
y
s

7
.0

6
8
.0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs

U
n
it

Y
T
D

 

M
a
r 

1
4

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

M
a
r 

1
4

D
o
T

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

D
o
T
 L

a
s
t 

m
o
n
th

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

F
e
b
 

1
4

A
g
a
in

s
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

Ja
n
 

1
4

1
2
/1

3

6
2

Page 257



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.2
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 P
M

S
R
E
S
 A

s
s
e
t 

R
a
ti
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

S
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 £
1
.3

m
 

T
B
C

 P
M

S
R
E
S
 O

n
e
 O

R
A
C
L
E

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
1
.8

m
Ju

l 
2
0
1
4

 P
M

S
R
E
S
 S

h
a
re

P
o
in

t 
2
0
1
0

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
4
5
5
k
 (

c
a
p
it
a
l)

 

£
2
1
9
k
 (

re
v
e
n
u
e
) 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 p

ro
je

c
ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

B
u
d
g
e
t

E
s
t.

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

S
ta

tu
s

6
3

Page 258



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.3
 R

is
k

 R
M

S
C
O

R
0
4
 N

o
n
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
0
4
 

N
o
n
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

S
a
fe

ty
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 

w
o

r
s
t

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 r

is
k
?

!
D

e
a
th

 o
r 

in
ju

ry
 

to
 p

u
b
li
c
 o

r 

s
ta

ff
. 

 

!
C
ri

m
in

a
l

p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
. 

 

!
C
iv

il
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
. 

 

!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

s
to

p
p
e
d
. 

 

!
C
o
s
t 

o
f 

lo
s
t 

ti
m

e
 d

e
a
li
n
g
 

w
it
h
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

. 
 

!
L
o
s
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 

tr
u
s
t 

in
 C

o
u
n
c
il
. 

C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll
 n

e
w

 j
o
in

e
rs

. 

2
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 a

u
d
it
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

&
S
 B

S
1
8
0
0
1
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 H

&
S
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
e
d

to
 o

n
e
 H

&
S
 M

a
n
u
a
l.
 

!
H

&
S
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 H

&
S
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 u

n
io

n
s
) 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

&
S
 B

o
a
rd

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 E

M
T
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

  

!
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
&

S
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

!
O

n
li
n
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 H

&
S
 a

c
c
id

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 &
 n

e
a
r 

m
is

s
e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

H
&

S
 r

is
k
s
. 

!
A
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir

 H
&

S
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 r
o
ll
in

g
 

ri
s
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
 o

f 
fu

ll
 a

u
d
it
s
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i
t 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

2
) 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

R
is

k
 N

o
te

s

1
) 

A
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 p

u
s
h
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
e
 H

&
S
 m

a
n
u
a
l.
 S

li
p
p
a
g
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

t 
H

&
S
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

2
) 

O
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

Ju
n
e
 2

0
1
3
. 

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 b

u
t 

ti
m

in
g
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 r

o
ll
o
u
t 

o
f 

S
P
2
0
1
0
. 

S
P
2
0
1
0
 n

o
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 t

o
 I

n
te

rn
e
t 

E
x
p
lo

re
r 

8
, 

a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
 

2
0
1
0
 n

o
w

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

/M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
4

Page 259



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.3
 R

is
k

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
5
 I

n
a
b
il
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
s
s
e
ts

 &
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
n
 s

a
fe

 &
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
5
 

In
a
b
il
it
y
 t

o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
s
s
e
ts

 &

p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
 s

a
fe

 

&
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 

w
o

r
s
t

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 r

is
k
?

- 
P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

w
it
h
 c

o
s
t 

a
n
d
 t

im
e
 i
m

p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
.

- 
W

ro
n
g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

w
ro

n
g
 p

la
c
e
, 

a
t 

th
e
 

w
ro

n
g
 t

im
,e

 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

, 
s
a
fe

ly
 a

n
d
 

w
it
h
in

 b
u
d
g
e
t.

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

C
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
t 

li
s
ts

 t
o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 s
y
s
te

m
 (

K
2
) 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
F
&

M
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
t 

ra
ti
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

is
k
. 

!
C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 F

&
M

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

!
C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
to

 m
e
e
t 

D
F
E
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

) 
d
o
n
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. 

 

!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

&
Y
P
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 F
&

M
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

!
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 (

m
ix

 o
f 

s
e
lf
-i

n
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

c
o
v
e
r)

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
ie

s
. 

!
D

e
c
a
n
t 

o
f 

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i
t 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

 

R
is

k
 N

o
te

s

!
O

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 D

e
c
 2

0
1
2
. 

 

!
F
in

a
l 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
3
 a

s
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 l
e
a
s
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
ri

b
a
l 
a
re

 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
re

p
a
ri

n
g
 

s
c
ri

p
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 d

a
ta

 m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

6
5

Page 260



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.3
 R

is
k

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
9
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
1
9
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
r
s
t 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

is
p
u
te

s
 

a
n
d
 g

ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
s
. 

 

!
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 

tu
rn

o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
la

te
d
 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
. 

 

!
R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
.

!
D

iv
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

ti
m

e
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 c

o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

. 
 

!
D

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

. 

C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

T
h
e
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 a

re
 b

u
il
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 H

R
 D

iv
is

io
n
s
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
: 

 

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 U

n
io

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

B
ri

e
fi
n
g
 t

o
 a

ll
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

S
ta

ff
 F

o
ru

m
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
 

P
E
S
 a

n
d
 L

&
D

 o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 

W
o
rk

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

L
G

P
S
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 u

n
io

n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
JD

s
, 

s
in

g
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 

In
v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r.

 

R
e
g
u
la

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 v
ia

 m
u
lt
ip

le
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 o
n
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 f

a
c
in

g
. 

H
R
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

S
tr

o
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
s
. 

M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

e
q
u
a
li
ty

 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
, 

a
n
d
 w

e
ll
b
e
in

g
, 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 g
ri

e
v
a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 

II
P
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i
t 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

6
6

Page 261



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
1
 D

a
ta

 I
n
te

g
ri

ty
/N

o
n
 C

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
/I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
1
 D

a
ta

 

In
te

g
ri

ty
/N

o
n

C
o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
/I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 

w
o

r
s
t

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 r

is
k
?

!
E
x
p
o
s
u
re

 o
f 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

c
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 

d
a
ta

. 
 

!
P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
/f

in
e

fo
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

b
re

a
c
h
. 

 

!
D

iv
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 

tr
u
s
t.

  

!
L
o
s
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 G

C
S
X
 d

a
ta

 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

c
a
rd

 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

re
v
o
k
e
d
. 

C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
e
t 

a
u
d
it
s
/c

lo
s
e
 g

a
p
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

2
) 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 O

u
tl
o
o
k
 a

n
d
 U

A
G

 w
e
b
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 s
e
c
u
re

 n
e
tw

o
rk

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

3
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 '
th

ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
' 
a
u
d
it
. 

4
) 

S
c
a
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

tr
ia

l.
 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
r.

  

A
u
d
it
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
. 

 

P
o
li
c
ie

s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 (
in

c
l.
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
).

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 r
o
le

 w
it
h
 n

e
w

 I
T
 t

o
o
ls

. 

C
o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
d
it
s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 I

C
O

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
p
o
li
c
y
. 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 D

M
T
 u

p
d
a
te

s
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i

t 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

2
) 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

3
) 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3
. 

4
) 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

R
is

k
 N

o
te

s

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 d

a
ta

 b
re

a
c
h
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 I

C
O

. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 l
o
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

S
e
c
u
re

 E
x
tr

a
n
e
t 

(G
C
S
X
).

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
7

Page 262



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.3
 R

is
k

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
4
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
2
4
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
r
s
t 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
D

e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 

a
n
d
 f

le
x
ib

il
it
y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
li
v
e
ry

. 
  

!
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r/

c
it
iz

e
n
 n

e
e
d
. 

!
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 i
n
n
o
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
.

C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
, 

a
li
g
n
e
d
 t

o
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

2
) 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

ri
s
k
s
, 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 e
tc

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

R
/V

R
 p

a
n
e
ls

, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 r

o
b
u
s
t

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 f

o
r 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t.

 

!
C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
il
it
y
, 

a
n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

re
 a

ll
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 '
S
T
A
R
' 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l.
 

!
D

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w

id
e
. 

!
A
ll
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

(p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
y
) 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 f
o
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
lo

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

r 

c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 g

a
p
s
. 

!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

1
3
/1

4
 r

o
ll
e
d
 o

u
t.

 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i

t 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

2
) 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

R
is

k
 N

o
te

s

!
P
u
s
h
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 a

s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 P

re
v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
8

Page 263



1
0

. 
I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
it

y
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 e

q
u

it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

1
0

.3
 R

is
k

 R
M

S
C
O

R
3
0
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v
e
r

P
ri
o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 R
M

S
C
O

R
3
0
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v
e
r

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
r
s
t 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
B
re

a
c
h
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

d
u
ty

(i
e
s
) 

 

!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

!
L
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 g

o
o
d
 w

il
l 
 

!
A
n
x
ie

ty
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

a
r
e
 w

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
?

1
) 

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 

2
) 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

3
) 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

Id
e
a
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

is
k
?

!
E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t

h
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 F
u
tu

re
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 s

e
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

!
In

it
ia

te
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 f

o
r 

p
ri
o
ri

ty
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
tp

u
t 

fr
o
m

 a
 m

e
m

b
e
r-

le
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

!
D

e
-c

o
u
p
le

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

a
g
re

e
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
o
n
e
 o

n
 a

 r
o
ll
in

g
 b

a
s
is

. 

!
S
e
t 

u
p
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
ic

 w
o
rk

fl
o
w

 (
a
g
e
n
d
a
, 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

) 
a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

R
is

k
 -

 W
h

e
n

 i
s
 i

t 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

?

1
) 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 (

o
n
w

a
rd

s
).

 

2
) 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

3
) 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

P
ri
o
ri

ty
 1

0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

- 
R
e
d
 R

is
k
s

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s

D
o
T
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

v
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

6
9

Page 264



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 -

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 S

c
o

r
in

g
 M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 t

w
o

 m
e

th
o

d
s
.

F
ir

s
tl
y
, 

c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
a
s
t 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 “

d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l”
 –

 i
s
 i
t 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

r 
w

o
rs

e
n

in
g

?
S

e
c
o
n

d
ly

, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 n

o
rm

, 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

A
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n

 a
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri

n
g

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 2

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 -
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 D

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 
(D

o
T

) 
a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 (
in

 t
h

is
 c

a
s
e

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3
).

 I
f 

b
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 r
e

d
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

la
g

g
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n

.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a

s
 a

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

B
u
t 

it
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 w

id
e

r 
a
im

s
 t
o

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 o

th
e

r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 (

in
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

, 
p

ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
) 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
.

It
 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

o
u

r 
P

Is
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 o

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

w
o

rk
in

g
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
id

e
r 

a
im

s
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 i
n
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

’s
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

A
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
n

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 ‘
O

v
e

ra
ll 

P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

s
u

m
m

a
ry

’ 
a
t 

fr
o
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a
li

ty
 P

o
li

c
y
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 P

o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

d
h

e
re

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
.

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

ls
o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

d
a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
n

d
 a

 d
a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
. 

7
0

Page 265



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 -

 P
r
o

je
c
ts

, 
R

is
k
 &

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 S

c
o

r
in

g
 M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

P
ro

je
c

ts

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

tu
s
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 r
e

d
 /

 a
m

b
e
r 

/ 
g

re
e
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

R
e

d
: 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
la

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
o

f 
o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
r 

o
f 

n
o

t 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 

lik
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 f
a

c
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

r 
u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e

s
 

e
.g

. 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
, 

la
c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 o
v
e

r 
s
c
o

p
e
 /

 c
o
s
ts

, 
o

th
e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri
s
k
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 S

h
e

e
r 

s
c
a

le
 o

f 
a

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 i
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

ri
s
k
 l
e

v
e

l 
c
a

n
 a

ls
o
 

a
tt

ra
c
t 

a
 r

e
d

 r
a
ti
n

g
. 

A
m

b
e

r:
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

t 
m

o
d

e
ra

te
 r

is
k
 o

f 
la

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
o

f 
o

v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
r 

o
f 

n
o

t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

Is
s
u

e
s
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 e

s
c
a

la
te

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
, 

b
u

t 
lik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 e

.g
. 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 m
o

d
e

ra
te

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 c

o
s
ts

 o
r 

s
c
o

p
e

. 

G
re

e
n

: 
P

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

n
 t

im
e

, 
o

n
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 w

it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ri
s
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

R
is

k

R
is

k
s
 a

re
 s

c
o

re
d

 i
n

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a

c
t,

 w
it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e
 f

ro
m

 1
 t

o
 5

 (
w

it
h

 5
 b

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e
s
t)

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 p

lo
tt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 m
a

tr
ix

 (
a

s
 s

h
o

w
n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 O
v
e

ra
ll 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

: 

R
is

k
 p

a
g

e
) 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 R

A
G

 r
a

ti
n

g
.

A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 s
e
t 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 c

o
n
ta

in
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 b

y
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

s
. 

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 P

a
rt

y
 a

n
d

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 u

p
d
a

te
s
 

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
.

F
in

a
n

c
e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 r
e

d
/a

m
b

e
r/

g
re

e
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

N
e

t 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u
re

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 v

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

b
y
 e

it
h

e
r:

- 

R
e

d
 -

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 £
0
.5

m
 o

r 
2

.5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
o
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
0

m
 o

r 
5
0

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t

A
m

b
e

r 
- 

m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 £
0
.1

m
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 £
0
.5

m
 o

r 
b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 1

%
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 2
.5

%
 o

v
e
rs

p
e

n
t 

o
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 £
5
m

 a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 £
1
0

m
 o

r 
b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
5
%

 a
n
d

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 

5
0

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t

G
re

e
n

 -
 u

p
 t

o
 £

0
.1

m
 o

r 
u

p
 t

o
 1

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
o
r 

u
p

 t
o

 £
5
m

 o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 2

5
%

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t

T
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t:
- 

(i
)T

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
; 

(i
i)

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

n
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

‘I
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
, 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 &

 E
q

u
it
y
’.
 

T
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
.

T
h

e
 t

e
x
t 

a
b

o
v
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t.

7
1

Page 266



Agenda Item 12

Page 267



 

 
 

1. Summary 

1.1 The report sets out details of nominees for appointment as Local 
Authority governors.  

2. Purpose 
 
 
2.1 To consider and approve the appointment of Local Authority governors 

detailed in paragraph 6 below. 
 

 
3.  Recommendation/s 
 
 The Mayor is recommended to: 
 
3.1 agree to appoint the persons set out in paragraph 6 as Local Authority 

governors; 
3.2 note the information concerning the recommended new and re-appointed 

governors in Appendix 1. 
 

 
4.  Policy Context 
 
4.1 Lewisham’s Children & Young People’s Plan sets out our vision for 

improving outcomes for all children. The main purpose of a governing 
body is to account for the achievement of children and young people in 
their schools.    

 
4.2 The appointment of governors supports the broad priorities within 

Lewisham’s Sustainable Community strategy, in particular those of being 
“ambitious and achieving” and “empowered and responsible”. Governors 
help inspire our young people to achieve their full potential and they also 
promote volunteering which allows them to be involved in their local area. 

MAYOR AND CABINET  
 

Report Title 
 

Appointment of Local Authority Governors  

Key Decision 
 

No Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

Forest Hill, Bellingham, Crofton Park, Downham, Ladywell, 
Lewisham Central, Telegraph Hill, Evelyn. 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children and Young People 
Head of Law 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 25 June 2014 

Page 268



4.3 Two specific corporate priorities that are relevant pertain to “community 
leadership and empowerment” and “young people’s achievement and 
involvement”. 

 
5. Background   
 
5.1 Every governing body, under Section 19 of the Education Act 2002 and 

School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 2007, is 
required to have at least one representative of the Local Authority as part 
of its membership.  Free schools and Academies are exempt from this 
requirement. A vacancy has arisen on the governing body of the 
educational establishments listed and a new appointment or  

 re-appointment is required. 
 
5.2 Appointments to school governing bodies are usually for a four-year term, 

unless stipulated otherwise in the Instrument of Government. The 
persons listed in paragraph 6 would serve the normal 4 years.    
 

6. Governors recommended for Appointment / Reappointment as Local 
Authority governors at specific schools / federations. 

 
 

Name  

 

School 

 

 
Reappointment 

 

New 
appointment 

Cllr. Jacqueline Paschoud Holy Trinity  Yes  

Cllr. Carl Handley Watergate Yes  

Maureen Swift 
 

St William of 
York 

Yes  

Hannah Jeffreys Good 
Shepherd 

 Yes 

Andrew Holmes Leathersellers’ 
Federation 

 Yes  

Sophie Smith Turnham  Yes 

Gila Tabrizi Sydenham  Yes 

Kate Canniffe Sir Francis 
Drake 

 Yes 

 
 
7. Financial implications 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Legal implications 
 
8.1 Section 19 of the Education Act 2002 and School Governance 

(Constitution) (England) Regulations 2007 require every governing body  

Page 269



to have at least one representative of the Local Authority as part of its 
membership.  Academies are exempt from this requirement. 

 
8.2 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

8.3 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
8.4 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

8.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 
Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have regard 
to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is 
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The 
Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet 
the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but 
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and 
the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

8.6 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5 Equality information and the equality duty 
 

Page 270



8.7 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and 
who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the 
duty including steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on 
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and 
resources are available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-
and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
9 Crime and Disorder Implications 

 
9.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 

report. 
 
10. Equalities Implications 

 
10.1 Lewisham Council’s policy is to encourage all sections of the community 

to be represented as Local Authority governors. In particular, we would 
encourage further representation from the black community and minority 
groups including disabled people, who are currently under-represented 
as governors. The numbers of governors in these groups is kept under 
review  

11. Environmental Implications 
 

11.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report. 
 

12. Conclusion 

12.1 The individuals detailed in Appendix 1 are people who view being a 
governor as a way of utilising their skills and experience to make a 
difference to the lives of children and young people in Lewisham schools. 
Section 19 of the Education Act 2002 and Regulations made under it 
require  every governing body  to have at least one representative of the 
Local Authority as part of its membership.  Academies are exempt from 
this requirement. A vacancy has arisen on the governing body of the 
educational establishments listed and a new appointment or  

 re-appointment is required.  
 
12.2 Appointments to school governing bodies are usually for a four-year term, 

unless stipulated otherwise in the Instrument of Government. The 
nominees listed in paragraph 6 would serve the normal 4 years. 

Page 271



 
Background Documents 
 
There are no background papers.  
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact Suhaib Saeed, 
Strategic Lead Governors’ Services and School Leadership, Governors’ 
Services, 3rd Floor, Laurence House, telephone 020 8314 7670 
 
 
 

Page 272



New LA Governor Appointments and Re-appointments          APPENDIX 1 
 

 
Name  

 
School 

 
Occupation 

 
Residential 
Area 

 
Précis of Suitability to be considered as a 
school governor 

Governor 
Monitoring 
Information 

 
Cllr Jacqueline. 
Paschoud 
 
 

Holy Trinity CE 
 

LB of 
Lewisham 
Councillor 

SE23 Cllr. Paschoud is a long-standing LA governor at 
Holy Trinity School. She is a very active governor 
and is currently Chair of Governors at Holy Trinity 
School. She is also a Labour Councillor 
representing Bellingham Ward and is also a 
foundation governor at Watergate School. 

Female 
White British 

Cllr Carl Handley 
 
 
 

Watergate LB of 
Lewisham 
Councillor  

SE4 Cllr Handley has been a governor since May 1992 
serving on St Saviour’s, Gordonbrock and 
Watergate Schools.  He has been the Chair of 
Governors of Watergate School since 1999 and is 
passionate about special education.  He has been 
instrumental in forming a trust with Brent Knoll and 
Watergate schools and previously a soft federation 
with Watergate and Greenvale schools for the 
benefit of the pupils. He is also a Labour Councillor 
representing Ladywell Ward. 

Male  
White British 

Maureen Swift 
 

St William of 
York RC 

Clerk to 
Governors 

SE23 Maureen is an experienced governor with 
extensive knowledge of effective governance, data, 
procedures and regulations.  She is an active 
participant in meetings and chairs the Finance 
Committee.   

Female 
White British 

Hannah Jeffreys Good Shepherd 
RC 

Legal 
Caseworker 

BR2 Hannah is a legal caseworker for a charity 
representing individuals in legal disputes from 
informal resolution to tribunal representation. She 
has previously worked as a paralegal and for a 
number of voluntary organisations. Her legal 
training and experience and ability to analyse large 

Female 
White British 

P
age 273



New LA Governor Appointments and Re-appointments          APPENDIX 1 
 

 
Name  

 
School 

 
Occupation 

 
Residential 
Area 

 
Précis of Suitability to be considered as a 
school governor 

Governor 
Monitoring 
Information 

 
volumes of information and summarise issues 
quickly will be of benefit to the governing body. 

Andrew Holmes 
 
 

The 
Leathersellers’ 
Federation of 
Schools 

Chartered 
Engineer 

SE3 Andrew was previously a Community Governor 
and Foundation Governor at the  Leathersellers’ 
Federation. He joined as a governor in 2009 and 
has been extremely  professional and helpful. 
Andrew's professional expertise and experience 
has been invaluable to the Federation's various 
building projects, not least at Prendergast Hilly 
Fields and Prendergast Vale. 

In addition to the Federation, Andrew is also a 
Governor of the University of Greenwich. A new 
vacancy has arisen with the Local Authority 
category and Andrew’s appointment as a Local 
Authority Governor will be well received by the 
governing body. 

Male/ 
White British 

Ms Sophie Smith Turnham Solicitor SE6 Sophie has been a community governor at 
Sandhurst Junior School for eight years; she 
served as Vice Chair for several years, and has 
now been Chair for two years.  Sophie is a very 
strong and effective leader, whose calm manner, 
commitment to school improvement, and clear 
vision has had a significant impact on the 
Governing Body and school. Her skills and 
experience will be of benefit to the governing body. 

Female  
White British 

P
age 274



New LA Governor Appointments and Re-appointments          APPENDIX 1 
 

 
Name  

 
School 

 
Occupation 

 
Residential 
Area 

 
Précis of Suitability to be considered as a 
school governor 

Governor 
Monitoring 
Information 

 
Gila Tabrizi Sydenham Policy Officer SE22 Gila has worked in  skills and education policy 

roles for over 5 years. Her role involves writing 
reports, policy documents and think pieces as well 
as submitting evidence to government 
consultations and parliamentary enquiries. She is 
currently responsible for dealing with 14-19  
funding agencies. She is also the lead for teacher 
education. She an active member of local 
community groups and the governing body would 
benefit from her skills and experience. 

Female 
Any other 
White 
Background 

Kate Canniffe Sir Francis 
Drake 

Company 
Director 

SE8 Kate runs a small computer consultancy firm, 
providing technical services. She has previously 
been a parent governor at the school and is 
experienced in setting strategy and direction, 
project planning.  

Kate has been Chair and Vice Chair at various 
times, and has been Chair of the Personnel 
Committee.  She is also a member of the 
Curriculum Committee and has always been a very 
active and supportive governor. Her appointment 
would be welcomed by the governing body. 

Female 
White British 

 

P
age 275



Agenda Item 13

Page 276



 

 

 

 

1. Summary  

1.1 At joint and individual meetings of the governing bodies of Lee Manor 
School  and The Brindishe Federation on the 19th March 2014, decisions 
were taken to form a hard federation from the 1st September 2014. As 
part of the process, a decision was also made to change the name of Lee 
Manor School  to Brindishe Manor Primary School.  

 
1.2    As a result, the governing body must be constituted in accordance with 

regulations made by virtue of section 19 of the Education Act 2002 
namely The School Governance (Federations) (England) Regulations 
2012. 

 
1.3 The report sets out a new Instrument of Government for The Brindishe 

Federation , proposes a nominee for the appointment as the Local 
Authority governor by the governing body and highlights the name 
change of Lee Manor School to Brindishe Manor Primary School. 

 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1 To seek agreement to a new Instrument of Government for The Brindishe 

Federation. 
 
3. Recommendation/s 
 

The Mayor is recommended to: 
 
3.1 Approve that the Instrument of Government for the federation listed below 

be made by Local Authority order: 
 

The Brindishe Federation    1st September 2014 
 

MAYOR AND CABINET  
 

Report Title 
 

Making of Instrument of Government  
The Governing Body of The Brindishe Federation 
(including Lee Manor School name change to Brindishe Manor 
Primary School) 

Key Decision 
 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

Lee Green , Lewisham Central 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children and Young People 
Head of Law 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date:  25 June 2014 

Page 277



 

 

3.2 To consider and approve the nomination of the Local Authority governor 
detailed in paragraph 6 below for appointment by the governing body. 

 
3.3 To approve the name change of Lee Manor School to Brindishe Manor 
 Primary School. 
 
 
4. Policy Context    
 
4.1 Each school has to have an Instrument of Government. The Local 

Authority must satisfy itself that the Instruments of Government for 
schools conform to the legislation. The Local Authority must also agree 
its content. 

 
4.2 Lewisham’s Children & Young People’s Plan sets out our vision for 

improving outcomes for all children. The main purpose of a governing 
body is to account for the achievement of children and young people in 
their schools. 

 
4.3 The appointment of governors supports the broad priorities within 

Lewisham’s Sustainable Community strategy, in particular those of being 
“ambitious and achieving” and “empowered and responsible”. Governors 
help inspire our young people to achieve their full potential and they also 
promote volunteering which allows them to be involved in their local area. 

 
4.4 Two specific corporate priorities that are relevant pertain to “community 

leadership and empowerment” and “young people’s achievement and 
involvement”. 

 
5. Background   
 
 
5.1  The School Governance (Federations) (England) (Regulations) 2012, ‘the 

 Regulations’ allows two or more schools to federate under a single 
 governing body.   

 
5.2  The Regulations set out the arrangements for establishing statutory 

 federations of governing bodies in maintained schools in England, the 
 constitution of the federated governing body of those maintained schools, 
 the procedures for a school to leave a federation and the procedures to 
 dissolve the federation. They apply to federations which are established 
 on or after 1 September 2012. 

 
5.3  The governing bodies of the two community primary schools, Brindishe 

 Lee and Brindishe Manor have been in a hard federation, known as The 
 Brindishe Federation, since 1st September 2010 .  

 
 
5.4  Lee Manor School went into a three-year partnership with The Brindishe 

Page 278



 

 

 Federation in September 2011. The governors of Lee Manor School took 
 the decision to partner with Brindishe Lee and Brindishe Green to ensure 
 the best possible education for all their children. 
 
5.5  Having followed the necessary process of consultation, the governing 

 bodies of The Brindishe Federation and Lee Manor School have decided 
 to proceed with a hard federation and informed the Local Authority on the 
 20th March 2014. 

 
5.6 The governing bodies of The Brindishe Federation and Lee Manor 

School resolved to agree to the establishment, in accordance with the 
Regulations, of a hard federation which would now also include Lee 
Manor School. As part of the federation process the governing body 
consulted on whether Lee Manor School’s name should change to 
Brindishe Manor Primary School.  

 
5.7 In accordance with the School Governance (Roles, Procedures and 

Allowances) (England) regulations 2013, the decision to change the 
name was specified as a matter on the agenda for the governing body of 
Lee Manor School on 19 March 2014.   Having considered the responses 
to the consultation the governing body agreed to change the name of 
Lee Manor School to Brindishe Manor Primary School. 

 
5.8  The hard federation will continue to be known as The Brindishe 

 Federation, with a single governing body of the following primary schools 
 from 1 September 2014:-  

 

• Brindishe Green, Beacon Road, Hither Green, London, SE13 5JA 

• Brindishe Lee, Wantage Road, London, SE12 8NA 

• Brindishe Manor, Leahurst Road, SE13 5LS 
 
5.9  The governing body of every federation must be constituted in 

 accordance with the Regulations. The total membership of the governing 
  body of a federation must be no fewer than seven governors. 

 
5.10 The governing body of a federation must include the following:-  
 

a) one parent governor elected or appointed in accordance with 
regulation 14 in respect of each school in the federation; 

b) the headteacher of each federated school unless any such 
Headteacher resigns the office of governor in accordance with 
regulation 19 of the Constitution Regulations 2012 (N.B. In the case of 
The Brindishe Federation this will be the Executive Headteacher);  

c) one staff governor; and   
d) one Local Authority governor. 

 
5.11 The governing body may in addition appoint such number of co-opted     
 governors as they consider necessary provided that the requirements in     
 the Regulations are met.  
 

Page 279



 

 

 The total number of co-opted governors who are also eligible to be 
 elected as staff governors under Schedule 3, must not exceed one-third 
 of the total membership of the governing body. 
 
5.12 The regulations now also state that the Local Authority governor is 
 nominated by the Local Authority but appointed by the governing body.  
 
5.13 Appendix 1 details the Instrument of Government the Local Authority is 
 proposing to make by order.  
 
6. Governor recommended for Nomination by the Local Authority .   
 
6.1 Spyros Elia , details of whom appear at Appendix 2, is the Local 
 Authority nominee for appointment as the Local Authority governor by 
 the governing body of The Brindishe Federation. 
 
7. Financial implications 

 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Legal implications 
 
8.1.1 Section 20 of the Education Act 2002 requires all maintained schools to 

have an Instrument of Government which determines the constitution of 
the school and other matters relating to the school.  

 
8.1.2 Each school must have an Instrument of Government detailing the name 
 of the school, the type of school and the membership of the governing 
 body. The category of governor and the number in each category is 
 specified in the Regulations. 
 
8.1.3  The governing body can review the Instrument of Government at any 
 time. Where the governing body requests a change to the Instrument of 
 Government, the Local Authority must ensure that the Instrument of 
 Government confirms to the principles laid out in the Regulations and 
 must make a new Instrument of Government. 
 
8.1.4 The Instrument of Government proposed for the governing body of The 
 Brindishe Federation conforms to The School Governance (Federations) 
 (England ) Regulations 2012.   
 
 Equalities Legislation 
 
8.2 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

Page 280



 

 

8.2.1 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
8.2.2 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

8.2.3 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 
Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have regard 
to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is 
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The 
Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet 
the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but 
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and 
the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

8.2.4 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5 Equality information and the equality duty 
 

8.2.5 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and 
who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the 
duty including steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on 
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and 
resources are available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-
and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 

Page 281



 

 

 
9. Crime and Disorder Implications 

 
9.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications. 
 
 
10. Equalities Implications 

 
10.1 Governors will have enough flexibility in their choice of constitutional 

models to enable them to address issues of representation of 
stakeholder groups and to ensure that governing bodies reflect the 
communities they serve. 

11. Environmental Implications 
 

11.1 There are no specific environmental implications. 
 
 
 
Background Documents 
 
 
Short Title of Document 

 
Date 

 
File Location 

 
Contact 
Officer 

The School Governance 
(Federation) (England ) 
Regulations 2012 
 

2012 Governor’ Services 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/
2012/1035/contents/made 
 

Suhaib Saeed 

School Governance 
(Roles, Procedures and 
Allowances)  (England) 
Regulations 2013 

2013 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/
2013/1624/made 
 

Suhaib Saeed 

 
 
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact Suhaib Saeed, 
Strategic Lead Governors’ Services and School Leadership, 3rd Floor, Laurence 
House, telephone 020 8314 7670. 
 

Page 282



 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

INSTRUMENT OF GOVERNMENT FOR FEDERATED GOVERNING BODIES 
 
1. The name of the federation is:  The Brindishe Federation  
 
2. The names and categories of the schools in the federation are: 
 

Name Category 

1. Brindishe Lee Community 

2. Brindishe Green Community 

3. Brindishe Manor Community 

 
3. The name of the Governing Body is: ‘The governing body of The Brindishe 
      Federation’. 
 
4. The Governing Body shall consist of the following. 
 

Category of governor 
(state where the term of 
office is less than four 
years) 

No. of 
governors 
in each 
category 

Name of school (For 
parent and foundation 
governors) 

No. of 
governors 
for each 
school 

Parent governors 3 Brindishe Lee Primary 
School 

1 

Brindishe Green Primary 
School 

1 

  
Brindishe Manor 
Primary School 

1 

Executive Headteacher 1  

Staff governor 1 

LA governor 1 

Co-opted governors 6 

 
 
5. Total number of governors:  12 
 
6. This instrument comes into effect on 1 September 2014 
 
7. This instrument was made by order of Lewisham Local Authority on 25 June 
     2014 
 
8. A copy of the instrument must be supplied to every member of the Governing 
    Body ( and the Headteacher if not a governor). 

Page 283



 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 
MAYOR AND CABINET 
              APPENDIX 2  
New LA Governor Nominee 
   

 
 
Name  

 
 
School 

 
 
Occupation 

 
Residential 
Area 

 
Précis of Suitability to be considered as a 
school governor 

Governor 
Monitoring 
Information 

Spyros Elia 
 
 
 

The Brindishe 
Federation 

Educational 
consultant 
(Previously  
deputy head 
in a 
Greenwich 
Secondary 
school)   

SE12 Mr Elia has been the Chair of Governors at 
Brindishe for over 18 years and has been 
Chair of Governors at Lee Manor through the 3 
year partnership. During this time all three 
schools have become outstanding. He is a 
National Leader for Governance and in 2009 
won the National Governor of the Year award. 

Male 
White 
European 

 

P
age 284



Agenda Item 14

Page 285



 

 

1. Summary  

1.1 The report sets out a variation to the Instrument of Government for St. 
Mary’s Church of England Primary School and proposes a nominee for 
the appointment as Local Authority governor by the governing body. 

 
1.2    The Governing Body are reconstituting under the School Governance 

(Constitution) (England) Regulations 2012. The new Constitution 
Regulations remove the requirement that were within The School 
Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 2007, that “such 
number of foundation governors who are eligible for election or 
appointment as parent governors that, when they are counted with the 
parent governors, compromise one third or more of the total membership 
of the governing body”. Varying the current Instrument of Government will 
thus provide the governing body with the opportunity to appoint 
foundation governors according to need rather than to regulation and to 
appoint co-opted governors based on skills required. 

 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1 To seek agreement to the variation of the Instrument of Government for 

St. Mary’s Church of England Primary School.  
 
3. Recommendation/s 
 

The Mayor is recommended to: 
 
3.1 Approve that the Instrument of Government for the school listed below be 

made by Local Authority order: 
 

St. Mary’s Church of England Primary School 1st September 2014 
 

MAYOR AND CABINET  
 

Report Title 
 

Making of Instrument of Government: The Governing Body of St. 
Mary’s Church of England Primary School 
 

Key Decision 
 

Yes Item No.  
 

Ward 
 

Lewisham Central 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Children and Young People 
Head of Law 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date:  25 June 2014 

Page 286



3.2 To consider and approve the nomination of the Local Authority governor 
detailed in paragraph 6 below for appointment by the governing body. 

 
 
4. Policy Context    
 
4.1 Each school has to have an Instrument of Government. The Local 

Authority must satisfy itself that the Instruments of Government for 
schools conform to the legislation. The Local Authority must also agree 
its content. 

 
4.2 Lewisham’s Children & Young People’s Plan sets out our vision for 

improving outcomes for all children. The main purpose of a governing 
body is to account for the achievement of children and young people in 
their schools. 

 
4.3 The appointment of governors supports the broad priorities within 

Lewisham’s Sustainable Community strategy, in particular those of being 
“ambitious and achieving” and “empowered and responsible”. Governors 
help inspire our young people to achieve their full potential and they also 
promote volunteering which allows them to be involved in their local area. 

 
4.4 Two specific corporate priorities that are relevant pertain to “community 

leadership and empowerment” and “young people’s achievement and 
involvement”. 

 
5. Background   
 
5.1  At a full governing body meeting on the 8th May 2014, the governing 

body of St. Mary’s Church of England Primary School made a decision to 
reconstitute the governing body. Reconstitution supports a review of its 
current membership and provides the opportunity to bring in additional 
skills to the governing body. 

  
5.2 As a result, the governing body must be constituted in accordance with 

regulations made by virtue of section 19 of the Education Act 2002 
namely The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 
2012. The total membership of the governing body of a maintained 
school must be no fewer than seven governors. 
 

5.3 The governing body of a maintained school must include the following:-  
 

• at least 2 parent governors; 

• the Headteacher unless any such Headteacher resigns the office 
of governor in accordance with regulation 19 of the Constitution 
Regulations 2012;  

• one staff governor; and   

• one Local Authority governor. 
 

Page 287



5.4 The governing body may in addition appoint such number of co-opted 
governors as they consider necessary provided that the requirements in 
the Regulations are met.  

 
5.5 The total number of co-opted governors who are also eligible to be 

elected as staff governors when counted with the staff governor and 
headteacher, must not exceed one-third of the total membership of the 
governing body. 

 
5.5 The regulations now also state that the Local Authority governor is 

nominated by the Local Authority but appointed by the governing body.  
 
5.6 Appendix 1 details the Instrument of Government the Local Authority is 

proposing to make by order. This has also been agreed by the 
Southwark Diocesan Board of Education. 

 
6. Governor recommended for Nomination by the Local Authority .   
 
6.1 James Stevens, details of whom appear at Appendix 2, is the Local 

Authority nominee for appointment as the Local Authority governor by the 
governing body of St. Mary’s Church of England Primary School. 

 
7. Financial implications 

 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Legal implications 
 
8.1.1 Section 20 of the Education Act 2002 requires all maintained schools to 

have an Instrument of Government which determines the constitution of 
the school and other matters relating to the school.  

 
8.1.2 Each school must have an Instrument of Government detailing the name 

of the school, the type of school and the membership of the governing 
body. The category of governor and the number in each category is 
specified in the Regulations.  

 
8.1.3 The Instrument of Government proposed for the governing body of St. 

Mary’s Church of England Primary School conforms to The School 
Governance (Constitution) (England ) Regulations 2012.   

 
 Equalities Legislation 
 
8.2.1 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

Page 288



8.2.2 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
8.2.3 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

8.2.4 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 
Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have regard 
to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is 
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The 
Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet 
the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but 
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and 
the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

8.2.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  
    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5 Equality information and the equality duty 
 

8.2.6 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and 
who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the 
duty including steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on 
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and 
resources are available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-
and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 

Page 289



9. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 

9.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications. 
 
 
10. Equalities Implications 

 
10.1 Governors will have enough flexibility in their choice of constitutional 

models to enable them to address issues of representation of 
stakeholder groups and to ensure that governing bodies reflect the 
communities they serve. 

11. Environmental Implications 
 

11.1 There are no specific environmental implications. 
 
Background Documents 
 

Short Title of Document Date File Location Contact 
Officer 

The School Governance 
(Constitution) (England ) 
Regulations 2012 
 

2012 http://www.legislation.gov
.uk/uksi/2012/1034/conte
nts/made 
 

Suhaib Saeed 

 
 
If there are any queries arising from this report, please contact Suhaib Saeed, 
Strategic Lead Governors’ Services and School Leadership, 3rd Floor, Laurence 
House, telephone 020 8314 7670. 
 

Page 290



      APPENDIX 1 

Instrument of Government 

Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School 
 
 

1 The name of the school is St Mary’s Church of England Primary 
School. 
 

2 The school is a voluntary aided school. 
 

3 The name of the governing body is The governing body of St Mary’s 
Church of England Primary School. 
 

4 The governing body shall comprise: 
 
(a) 2 parent governors 
(b) 1 Local Authority governor 
(c) 1 Headteacher 
(d) 1 staff governor 
(e) 2 co-opted governors 
(f) 9 foundation governors. 

 

5 The total number of governors is 16. 
 

6 The foundation governors in 4f. above shall comprise: 
 

(a) 2 appointed by the Southwark Diocesan Board of Education 
(b) 6 appointed by the Parochial Church Council of St Mary’s, Lewisham 
(c) The person referred to in 7a. Below. 

 
7   (a) The principal officiating minister of the ecclesiastical parish of St 

Mary’s Lewisham shall be a foundation governor ex officio. 
 

(b) The Archdeacon of Lewisham and Greenwich shall be entitled to 
appoint a foundation governor to act in place of the ex officio 
foundation governor whose governorship derives from the office 
named in 7a. above, in the event that the ex officio foundation 
governor is unable or unwilling to act as a foundation governor, or 
there is a vacancy in the office by virtue of which his/her governorship 
exists, or has been removed from office under regulation 21 (1). 

 
8 The Archdeacon of Lewisham and Greenwich shall be entitled to request 

the governing body to remove the ex officio governor referred to in 7a. 
above and appoint any substitute governor. 

 
9  The School has a trust. 

 
10  Ethos statement: 
 

Page 291



Recognising its historic foundation, the school will preserve and 
develop its religious character in accordance with the principles of the 
Church of England and in partnership with the Church at parish and 
diocesan level. 
 
The school aims to serve its community by providing an education of 
the highest quality within the context of Christian belief and practice.  
It encourages an understanding of the meaning and significance of 
faith and promotes Christian values through the experience it offers 
to all its pupils. 
 

11  This Instrument of Government comes into effect on the 1st 
September 2014. 

 
12  This instrument was made by order of Lewisham Local Authority on 

the 25 June 2014 
 

13  A copy of the instrument must be supplied to every member of the 
governing body (and the headteacher if not a governor), the Trustees 
and the Southwark Diocesan Board of Education. 

 

Page 292



MAYOR AND CABINET 
                 APPENDIX 2  
New LA Governor Nominee 
   

 
 
Name  

 
 
School 

 
 
Occupation 

 
Residential 
Area 

 
Précis of Suitability to be considered as a 
school governor 

Governor 
Monitoring 
Information 

James Stevens 
 
 
 
 

St Mary’s CE 
Primary 

Civil Servant – 
Home Office 

SE13 James has been an Local Authority appointed 
governor on St Mary’s governing body for three 
years.  His attendance is regular and he is an 
active and informed participant in meetings, 
offering appropriate support and challenge.  
Following the recent OFSTED he has been elected 
as a second Vice-Chair and Chair of the 
Resources Committee.   

Male 
White British 

 

P
age 293



Agenda Item 15

Page 294



 

  

 

 

MAYOR & CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Surrey Canal Sports Foundation  – Funding Allocation 

Key Decision 
 

Yes  Item No.   
 

Ward 
 

New Cross 

Contributors 
 

Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration 
Head of Law 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date:  25 June 2014 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of report 
 
1.1 To provide Mayor & Cabinet with information on the Surrey Canal 

Sports Foundation (SCSF) including the board structure and 
membership, details of the proposed facilities in the sports building, 
fundraising strategy and provisions to accommodate community use. 

 
1.2 To seek Mayor & Cabinet approval for the Council to agree to pledge 

£500,000 as a grant to the Surrey Canal Sports Foundation.  
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
 The Mayor is recommended to: 
 
2.1 agree to pledge £500,000 of funding to the Surrey Canal Sports 

Foundation subject to the terms of the associated funding agreement 
being agreed; and 

 
2.2 delegate authority to the Executive Director for Resources and 

Regeneration, in consultation with the Director of Regeneration and 
Asset Management and Head of Law, to negotiate the terms of the 
funding agreement. 

 
2.3  note that the funding agreement will be reported back to Mayor & 

Cabinet for approval. 
 
3.0 Policy context 
 
3.1 'People, prosperity, place', Lewisham's regeneration strategy 2008-

2020, sets out the Council's aspiration for a vibrant, dynamic Lewisham 
focussed around the themes of people - investing in the individuals and 
communities which are Lewisham’s greatest asset - prosperity - 
fostering the skills and economic opportunities for Lewisham to flourish 
and thrive - and place - developing high quality public spaces, 
sustainable buildings and protecting the areas which are sensitive to 

Page 295



 

  

change. The strategy identifies the area as a strategic site with the 
Borough. The strategy is also placed within the framework of the key 
national and regional policies which affect the Council’s work around 
regeneration of the borough, including the London Plan. 

 
3.2 'Shaping our future', Lewisham's Sustainable Community Strategy 

2008 - 2020, includes the 'Dynamic and Prosperous' theme, where 
people are part of vibrant communities and town centres, well 
connected to London and beyond. It details the Local Strategic 
Partnership's commitment to 'improving the quality and vitality of 
Lewisham's town centres and localities', and aspirations to 'support the 
growth and development of our town centres by working with 
commercial partners and developers', and 'maximise the use of our 
town centres as places to engage the local community'. ‘ 
 

3.3 Shaping our future’ identifies ‘Active healthy citizens as a key priority – 
where the Council are committed to ensuring that people can actively 
participate in maintaining and improving their health and well-being, 
supported by high quality health and care services, leisure, culture and 
recreational activities’. 

 
3.4 Strengthening the local economy is a corporate priority, emphasising 

the importance of 'gaining resources to regenerate key localities, 
strengthen employment skills and promote public transport. 

 
3.5 The Council's Asset Management Plan sets out the approach to using 

property effectively in order to achieve the Council's objective of 
making Lewisham the best place in London to live work and learn. It 
acknowledges that the Council’s assets have a key role to play in 
supporting the Borough's regeneration aims. 

 
3.6 The Council's Local Development Framework (LDF) sets the vision, 

objectives, strategy and policies that will guide development and 
regeneration in the borough up to 2025 and together with the Mayor of 
London's 'London Plan' will form the statutory development plan for the 
borough.  

 
3.7 The Lewisham Borough Sports Plan 2010 states that the overarching 

vision for sport in Lewisham is to increase opportunities to participate in 
sport at all levels and for all ages.  It further states that investment in 
new and existing sports facilities is crucial to the long term 
sustainability of sports development is crucial to the long term 
sustainability of sports development and accessing quality, ‘fit for 
purpose’, inclusive sport and leisure provision is key to encouraging an 
increase in participation and, in turn, an overall improvement in health 
and quality of life.  

 
3.8 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013 sets out to improve health by 

providing a wide range of support and opportunities to help 
adults and children to keep fit and healthy and reduce preventable ill 
health. The strategy identifies nine priority areas for action over the 
next 10 years, one of which is achieving a healthy weight and states 

Page 296



 

  

that one way that this will be achieved is by taking up opportunities to 
be physically active and for all children to engage in regular physical 
activity. 
 

4.  Surrey Canal Sports Foundation 
  
4.1 In early February 2011 the Council received an application for outline 

planning permission made by Signet Planning on behalf of Renewal 
New Bermondsey Two Limited (developer) for the comprehensive 
phased mixed-use development of the Surrey Canal Triangle site 
located in the New Cross ward. 

 
4.1.1 In May 2011 Renewal established the independent Surrey Canal 

Sports Foundation Ltd. (SCSF) charitable trust to oversee the capital 
fund raising and delivery of the not for profit 15,000 sq. m. of sports 
facilities detailed in the planning consent for the mixed use 
development. 

 
4.1.2 The SCSF is a key element in creating a new vibrant community at 

Surrey Canal. Renewal and the SCSF board of trustees are 
commitment to delivering a major new sports facility for Lewisham and 
South East London. This sporting complex has the potential to make a 
significant difference to the lives and health of the predominantly young 
and disadvantaged population in this area, the surrounding 
communities and beyond.  

 
4.1.3 A Board of Trustees was recruited during the summer of 2011 under 

the Chairmanship of Steven Norris [former Minister for Transport]. The 
Board consists of:  

 
Sir Steve Bullock (Executive Mayor of Lewisham Council) 
Cllr Peter John (Leader of Southwark Council) 
Baroness Grey-Thompson (Paralympian and cross bench Peer) 
Brendan Jarvis, Head of Global Real Estate for Barclays PLC (Europe, 
Middle East and Africa)  
John Inverdale  (Broadcaster) 
Steve Backley (Olympian) 

 
4.1.4 The trustees are seeking to raise the £40m required to build the biggest 

indoor community sports complex in London since Crystal Palace was 
built in the 1960’s (save for the Olympic complex). 

 
4.1.5 Renewal gave a firm undertaking to the SCSF, in the summer of 2011, 

to vest with them the long leasehold of the sports complex, valued at 
circa £10million. Following this Sport England pledged, in 2012, 
£2million towards the capital costs. The Sports Foundation have 
indicated that the funding pledged from the LB Lewisham, as the host 
borough for the facility, will be key to unlocking contributions from other 
funders. 

  
4.1.6 The SCSF board have already received considerable encouragement 

to apply for capital grants from statutory bodies, philanthropic 

Page 297



 

  

organisations and the Social Corporate Responsibility funds of at least 
3 PLC’s. 

 
4.1.7 The intention of the board is to have a single management organisation 

in place to run all of the sports facilities. It is envisaged that this will be 
a ‘not for profit’ organisation which will report directly to the Foundation 
Trustees. 

 
4.1.8 Part of the Foundation’s remit will also be to raise enough revenue 

funds to cover any annual shortfalls.  
  
4.2 Facilities 
 
4.2.1 The sport and leisure offer at the SCSF has been informed by a ‘Needs 

and Demand’ report which was jointly commissioned by Renewal, 
Sport England and London Borough of Lewisham. The London 
Boroughs of Lewisham and Southwark, Sport England, NGB’s and 
local clubs were consulted as part of this process to ensure that the mix 
of facilities provided within Sports Foundation both complement and 
enhance the sports offer in the local area as well as looking at 
opportunities to locate national centres of excellence within the facility. 

 
4.2.2 The plans submitted to the Strategic Planning Committee as part of the 

Section 73. application in December 2013 include the consolidation of 
the Foundation’s sports facilities into a single, four storey, building. The 
facilities include the following: 
 
- Boxing gym with three rings, weights, strength and conditioning area 
- 25m  x 6 lane swimming pool with disabled access, leaner pool and 

a spectator area 
- Fitness suite with 150 work stations, dance studios and weights 

arena 
- 4G surface for football, touch rugby and hockey 
- 3 multi-use sports halls for up to 20 table tennis tables, gymnastics 

area, indoor cricket nets, badminton, basketball, netball and 
volleyball 

- 3000 seat arena with retractable seating to host regional and 
national competitions; convertible into 3 sports halls when not in use 

- Climbing wall 
- Changing rooms 
- Office and teaching spaces 

 
Onside Youth Zones 
The Sports Foundation is in advanced negotiations with Onside Youth 
Zones to become a key anchor occupier of the sports building. OnSide 
Youth Zones is a charity with a successful track record of building and 
running 21st Century Youth Centres, which give young people quality, 
safe and affordable places to go in their leisure time.  
 
Youth Zones is a working title for a building which offers sports 
facilities, creative spaces for music, and a series of communal spaces 

Page 298



 

  

for relaxing, studying, eating and socialising. They are also staff on 
hand to offer support and advice. 
 
Onside have opened 6 youth zones in the North of England and are 
looking to open their first in London at Surrey Canal. 

 
4.2.3 It is estimated that the facilities, coupled with improved accessibility to 

the area, have the potential to accommodate 18,000 local residents 
and visitors each week. 

 
4.3 Community Benefits 

 
4.3.1 The Section 106 agreement for the Surrey Canal Triangle scheme 

sets out clear requirements in relation to availability of the sports 
facilities to local people. Those living in the London Boroughs of 
Lewisham and Southwark and students attending educational facilities 
will receive discounts on entrance fees and membership subscription. 
These discounted rates will be on a par with local authority rates for 
the use of leisure and sport facilities elsewhere in the borough.  

 
4.3.2 It is proposed that access to the leisure facilities will be available on 

either a pay for play basis or as part of a membership scheme, both 
options will be available at the discounted rates detailed above. Whilst 
the Section 106 agreement stipulates that, as a minimum, the centre 
should be available to local residents and students at the discounted 
rates for twenty percent (20%) of the proposed opening hours, it is 
envisaged that this figure will be vastly exceeded. 

 
4.3.3 In addition to local residents, the facilities are envisaged to be used 

extensively by local schools and sports clubs. 
 
4.3.4 The sports facility is also expected to house a café, bar, NHS 

community health service and flexible community space for hire.  
 
4.3.5 The provision of high quality sports facilities, in an accessible location  

and at affordable rates offers local residents and visitors the 
opportunity to adopt healthier lifestyles and take part in community 
groups and events which in turn will promote social inclusion, reduce 
health inequalities and increase participation rates.  

 
4.3.6 In addition to increasing  participation levels in sporting activities, a 

range of work opportunities from voluntary to entry level and 
management roles are likely to be generated by this regionally 
significant sports facility. The specificity of many of the roles are likely 
to require the uptake of new skills and potentially qualifications for 
people employed here. The sports facilities will provide new jobs and 
volunteering opportunities suited to the local population which currently 
experiences high levels of youth unemployment and low qualification 
attainment.  

Page 299



 

  

 
4.4 Meanwhile Use 

 
4.4.1 The SCSF is in situ and has already created meanwhile space for 

Lewisham Thunder Basketball Club and Fusion Table Tennis Club. 
 

4.4.2 The SCSF entered into a lease with Renewal on 4th April 2013 to 
occupy 2,200 sq.m. in unit 2 Stockholm Road, commencing July 2013 
to initiate their “sport in the Community” programme by providing a new 
interim home for Lewisham Thunder [the under 18 England Basketball 
Champions].  The aim is to support and enable them, under the 
management and coaching skills of Steve Bucknall, [an ex American 
NBA player and coach], to become a British Basketball League [BBL] 
franchise and a key anchor occupier of the new Sports complex with 
it’s 3000 seat basketball arena. 

 
4.4.3 The Olympic legacy Company has provided two basketball court 

sprung wood floors, seating and associated equipment. In addition, the 
local health authority has provided funding for Lewisham Thunder to 
deliver a “Hoops for Health programme” within 16 local primary schools 
which commenced September 2013. 

 
4.4.4 The SCSF is also providing facilities within this temporary building for 

the Fusion table tennis Club and are in discussions with an amateur 
boxing club.  

 
4.4.5 The new sports complex is, in principle, already fully occupied by the 

organisations listed above plus a regional centre for the English Table 
Tennis Association including provision for televising major table tennis 
Championships and events, the Millwall Community Scheme, a new 
home and museum for the London Amateur Boxing Association and 
provision for Ladywell gymnastics club. An in-principal agreement with 
Technogym [a reputable leading Italian manufacturer] is in place to 
equip the 150-station fitness and well-being centre. 

  
4.5 Millwall Community Scheme 

 
4.5.1 The Millwall Community Scheme currently occupy the Lions Centre 

which is leased on a 25 year term from the Council. The 
Lions centre will be transferred to Renewal under the terms of the 
Conditional Land Sale agreement entered into with Renewal in 

December 2013. The Council, Renewal and MCS are currently in 
negotiation to agree the terms for the relocation of the MCS to the 
SCSF. It is envisaged that MCS will be provided with dedicated office 
and meeting space in the new sports building and use of the sports and 
leisure facilities at the discounted local authority rate. 

 
5.0 Planning and other matters 
 
5.1 Renewal submitted a section 73 application in September 2013 for 

minor material amendments to the approved outline scheme including 
the consolidation of sports uses into one main building. The 

Page 300



 

  

recommendation to approve was agreed by the Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 12th December. Renewal intend to submit an 
application for reserved matters later this year with a view to 
commence building in the autumn of 2015. 

 
6.0 Financial implications 
 
6.1 This report proposes that £500k of funding is provided to the Surrey 

Canal Sports Foundation (SCSF) by way of a grant allocation from the 
Council.  The purpose of the grant is to contribute towards the overall 
total of approximately £40m which is needed by the Sports Foundation 
in order to plan, design and construct the sports facilities.  This grant 
will be funded from the Council corporate reserves.  

 
6.2 The Sports Foundation have indicated that the funding required from 

the LB Lewisham will be key to unlocking contributions from other 
contributors. At least £20m of the total funding will be required before 
the appointment of architects for the design and submission of a 
planning application. It is anticipated that a decision to provide the 
funding will support the Sports Foundation’s overall funding aims.  
However, actual payment of the funding at an early stage would be a 
risk to the Council if the sports facility stalled for any reason. Therefore, 
as part of any funding agreement, the Council would need to agree a 
schedule of staged payments that minimised this risk. 

 
6.3 The SCSF have provided high level indicative figures to support the 

viability of the sports facility on an ongoing basis.  However, there is no 
detail to confirm the volumes, projected income and costs used. 
Further information will be required to confirm ongoing viability in 
advance of the release of funding. 
 

7.0 Legal implications 
 
7.1 The Council has a wide general power of competence under Section 1 

of the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that individuals generally may 
do. The existence of the general power is not limited by the existence 
of any other power of the Council which (to any extent) overlaps the 
general power. The Council can therefore rely on this power to pay the 
proposed funding to the Trust. 

 
7.2 The precise terms upon which the Council’s funding is to be provided, 

including the timing of payments, are still to be agreed with the Trust. 
The Council will also need to be satisfied that it has reasonable security 
for its funding and that all necessary match funding has been obtained 
by the Trust before the Council’s funding is paid to the Trust. It is 
proposed that these matters will be negotiated by officers under the 
authority delegated by this report, with the final terms of the funding 
agreement being reported back to Mayor & Cabinet for approval prior 
to the funding agreement being entered into. 

 
7.3 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 

duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine 

Page 301



 

  

protected characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
7.4 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to: 
 

� eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation and 

� other conduct prohibited by the Act. 
� advance equality of opportunity between people who share 

a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
� foster good relations between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 
7.5 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations. 

 
7.6 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently  issued 

Technical Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory 
guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & 
Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and 
attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the 
equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public 
authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as 
failure to do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. 
The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at:  
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-
act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 
7.7 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 

issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 
 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 

7.8 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties 
and who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to 
meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more 
detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further 

Page 302



 

  

information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-
sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
8.0 Equality Implications 
 
8.1 It is intended that the SCSF will be accessible by all members of the  

local community. The SCSF have committed to providing the facilities 
to Lewisham residents at local authority rates and have adopted a 
flexible approach providing the option to have a membership or access 
the facility on a pay and play basis. In addition, the Surrey Canal Sport 
Foundation building will be fully DDA compliant.  

 
9.0 Environmental Implications  
 
9.1 There are no immediate environmental implications associated with the 

recommendations of this report.   The planning report referred to in the 
background papers has the environmental implications concerning the 
scheme.  

 
10.0 Crime and disorder implications 
 
10.1 There are no immediate implications associated with the 

recommendations of this report.  The planning report referred to in the 
background papers has the implications concerning the scheme.  

 
11.0 Conclusion 
 
11.1 Mayor & Cabinet are recommended to pledge £500,000 of funding to 

the Surrey Canal Sports Foundation to contribute towards the overall 
total of approximately £40m that the Sports Foundation need in order to 
plan, design and construct the sports facilities. 

 
Background Papers 
 
Copies of all background papers have been made available in the  
members' room prior to the meeting at which this report is due for  
consideration. The papers are listed in the table below. 
 

 

Short title of document Date File Location Contact Officer 

Strategic Planning Committee 
Report 

Land to the North and South 
of Surrey Canal Road 

13.10.11 Laurence House  Chris Brodie 

Page 303



 

  

 
Use of Appendices     
 
Appendix 1: Surrey Canal Sports Foundation Sports Halls – New Energy 
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Rob Holmans, 
Director for Regeneration & Asset Management on 020 8314 7908. 

 

Page 304



SURREY CANAL 
SPORTS FOUNDATION

SPORT HALLS
JANUARY 2014

Page 305



N
EW

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
: N

EW
 L

IF
E

 T
H

E 
LA

R
G

ES
T 

   
   

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

  
 S

P
O

R
TS

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y 

B
U

IL
T 

IN
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 

   
SI

N
C

E 
C

R
YS

TA
L 

 P
A

LA
C

E 
IN

 1
96

4,
 IT

 
B

R
IN

G
S 

N
EW

 
  E

N
ER

GY
 A

N
D

 
N

EW
 L

IF
E 

TO
 A

N
 

  A
R

EA
 IN

 N
EE

D
 

   
 O

F 
R

EN
EW

A
L.

W
E 

IN
V

IT
E 

YO
U

 
   

 T
O

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TE
 

TO
 T

H
E 

C
R

EA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

 
  A

N
 E

XC
IT

IN
G

 
N

EW
 D

ES
TI

N
AT

IO
N

.

   
   

   
   

   
 T

H
E 

H
A

LL
S 

W
IL

L 
B

E 
  C

O
M

P
LE

TE
LY

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
, 

A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

AT
IN

G
 1

8,
00

0 
LO

CA
LS

 
   

   
   

   
  A

N
D

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S 

EA
C

H
 W

EE
K

.

   
   

 S
U

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L 

SP
O

R
T 

H
A

LL
S 

   
   

   
   

 W
IL

L 
B

E 
A

 G
R

O
U

N
D

-B
R

EA
K

IN
G

, 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 £

40
M

, F
O

U
R

 S
TO

R
EY

 
IN

D
O

O
R

 S
P

O
R

TS
 C

O
M

P
LE

X.

1

Page 306



N
EW

 P
LA

CE
 : N

EW
 L

IF
E

CO
N

TE
N

TS

3 
LE

TT
ER

 F
R
O
M
 S
TE

V
EN

 N
O
R
R
IS
, 
C
H
A
IR

4 
FA

C
IL
IT
IE
S
 A
T 
TH

E 
S
U
R
R
EY

 C
A
N
A
L 
S
P
O
R
T 
H
A
LL

S

6 
S
P
O
R
TI
N
G
 L
EG

A
C
Y

8 
S
U
R
R
EY

 C
A
N
A
L’
S
 R
EN

EW
A
L

10
 

H
O
W
 T
H
E 
FA

C
IL
IT
IE
S
 W

IL
L 
B
E 
M
A
N
A
G
ED

12
 

A
 Y
O
U
N
G
 A
N
D
 D
IV
ER

S
E 
P
O
P
U
L
A
TI
O
N

14
 

H
EA

LT
H
Y,
 A
C
TI
V
E 
C
IT
IZ
EN

S

16
 

C
LU

B
S
 A
N
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
TI
O
N
S
 A
LR

EA
D
Y 
O
N
 S
IT
E

18
 

C
U
R
R
EN

T 
A
N
D
 F
U
TU

R
E 
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
ES

20
 

A
 D
A
Y 
A
T 
S
U
R
R
EY

 C
A
N
A
L 
S
P
O
R
T 
H
A
LL

S

22
 

TH
E 
S
U
R
R
EY

 C
A
N
A
L 
S
P
O
R
TS

 F
O
U
N
D
A
TI
O
N
 I
S
 U
P
 A
N
 R
U
N
N
IN
G

24
 

FU
N
D
IN
G
 R
EQ

U
IR
EM

EN
T

26
 

M
IL
ES

TO
N
ES

 

D
ea

r 
M

ay
or

 a
n

d
 C

ab
in

et
,

I a
m

 p
ro

u
d

 t
o 

ch
ai

r 
th

e 
S

u
rr

ey
 C

an
al

 S
p

or
ts

 F
ou

n
d

at
io

n
, a

 r
eg

is
te

re
d

 c
h

ar
it

y 
es

ta
b

lis
h

ed
 t

o
 

fu
n

d
, b

u
ild

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

 t
h

e 
S

p
or

t 
H

al
ls

, a
n

 e
xc

it
in

g
 n

ew
 £

40
m

 in
d

oo
r 

sp
or

ts
 c

om
p

le
x 

at
 S

u
rr

ey
 

C
an

al
 in

 n
or

th
 L

ew
is

h
am

.

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
L

on
d

on
’s

 la
rg

es
t 

in
d

oo
r 

sp
or

ts
 c

om
p

le
x 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
u

se
 t

o 
b

e 
b

u
ilt

 s
in

ce
 

C
ry

st
al

 P
al

ac
e 

in
 1

96
4 

an
d

 w
ill

 b
e 

u
se

d
 b

y 
18

,0
00

 p
eo

p
le

 e
ve

ry
 w

ee
k 

b
ri

n
g

in
g

 e
n

h
an

ce
d

 
op

p
or

tu
n

it
ie

s 
to

 o
n

e 
of

 t
h

e 
p

oo
re

r 
p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

b
or

ou
g

h
.

T
h

e 
fa

ci
lit

y,
 c

at
er

in
g

 fo
r 

a 
m

u
lt

it
u

d
e 

of
 s

p
or

ts
, w

ill
 c

en
tr

e 
ar

ou
n

d
 a

 3
,0

00
 s

ea
t 

ar
en

a 
th

at
 w

ill
 

sh
ow

ca
se

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
sp

or
ts

 e
ve

n
ts

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 b
as

ke
tb

al
l,

 n
et

b
al

l,
 b

ox
in

g
, g

ym
n

as
ti

cs
 a

n
d

 
ta

b
le

 t
en

n
is

, a
n

d
 w

ill
 e

st
ab

lis
h

 L
ew

is
h

am
 a

s 
S

ou
th

 L
on

d
on

’s
 p

re
m

ie
r 

in
d

oo
r 

sp
or

ti
n

g
 v

en
u

e.
T

h
e 

S
p

or
t 

H
al

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
n

ew
 h

om
e 

of
 t

h
e 

M
ill

w
al

l C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
S

ch
em

e,
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
S

ch
em

e 
w

it
h

 a
 n

ew
 4

G
 p

it
ch

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

L
ew

is
h

am
 T

h
u

n
d

er
 b

as
ke

tb
al

l c
lu

b
, F

u
si

on
 t

ab
le

 
te

n
n

is
 c

lu
b

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

L
on

d
on

 A
m

at
eu

r 
B

ox
in

g
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
.

T
h

e 
S

p
or

ts
 H

al
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

at
 t

h
e 

h
ea

rt
 o

f 
a 

w
id

er
 £

1b
n

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n
 s

ch
em

e 
at

 S
u

rr
ey

 C
an

al
 

th
at

 w
ill

 r
ad

ic
al

ly
 t

ra
n

sf
or

m
 t

h
e 

op
p

or
tu

n
it

ie
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

u
n

it
y.

 T
h

is
 is

 a
 

on
ce

 in
 a

 g
en

er
at

io
n

 o
p

p
or

tu
n

it
y 

to
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 im

p
ro

ve
 s

p
or

ts
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
el

p
 

ad
d

re
ss

 t
h

e 
h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
el

l b
ei

n
g

 o
f 

th
ou

sa
n

d
s 

of
 L

ew
is

h
am

’s
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

.
T

h
is

 b
ro

ch
u

re
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

in
tr

in
si

c 
va

lu
e 

of
 s

p
or

t 
to

 L
ew

is
h

am
’s

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

th
e

 
re

g
en

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

n
or

th
 o

f 
th

e 
b

or
ou

g
h

 a
n

d
 it

s 
d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

L
ew

is
h

am
 “

th
e 

b
es

t 
p

la
ce

 in
 L

on
d

on
 t

o 
liv

e,
 w

or
k,

 le
ar

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

y”
.

T
h

e 
S

u
rr

ey
 C

an
al

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

21
st

 C
en

tu
ry

 p
ro

je
ct

 t
o 

b
e 

p
ro

u
d

 o
f. 

T
h

e 
F

ou
n

d
at

io
n

 
al

re
ad

y 
h

as
 £

12
m

 in
 c

om
m

it
tm

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

p
or

t 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
d

ev
el

op
er

, R
en

ew
al

. I
n

 
ad

va
n

ce
 o

f 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

in
g

 c
om

p
an

ie
s 

an
d

 t
ru

st
s 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 b
ac

ki
n

g
, I

 w
ou

ld
 a

sk
 t

h
e

 
L

on
d

on
 B

or
ou

g
h

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
 t

o 
p

u
b

lic
ly

 a
n

d
 fi

n
an

ci
al

ly
 s

u
p

p
or

t 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
ow

er
 

u
s 

to
 u

n
d

er
ta

ke
 f

u
rt

h
er

 f
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

 w
it

h
 r

en
ew

ed
 c

on
fi

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 v
ig

ou
r.

Yo
u

rs
 s

in
ce

re
ly

,

S
te

ve
n

 N
o

rr
is

C
h

ai
r,

 S
u

rr
ey

 C
an

al
 S

p
or

ts
 F

ou
n

d
at

io
n

SU
RR

EY
 C

AN
AL

 
SP

OR
TS

 FO
UN

DA
TI

ON

3
2

Page 307



4 3 2 1

N
EW

 L
EV

EL
S 

: N
EW

 L
IF

E
TH

E 
SP

OR
T 

H
A

LL
S

A
R
E
N
A

 1
3,

00
0 

se
at

 a
re

n
a 

w
it

h
 r

et
ra

ct
ab

le
 s

ea
ti

n
g

 t
o 

h
os

t 
re

g
io

n
al

 a
n

d
 n

at
io

n
al

  
co

m
p

et
it

io
n

s 
fo

r 
b

as
ke

tb
al

l,
 b

ox
in

g
, n

et
b

al
l a

n
d

 t
ab

le
 t

en
n

is
. 

 
C

on
ve

rt
s 

in
to

 3
 s

p
or

ts
 h

al
ls

 w
h

en
 s

ea
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 u

se
.

 
C

h
an

g
in

g
 r

oo
m

s,
 s

to
ra

g
e,

 e
n

tr
an

ce
 fo

ye
r,

 c
af

é,
 c

rè
ch

e,
 s

p
or

ts
 s

h
op

,  
N

H
S

 C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
h

ea
lt

h
 s

er
vi

ce
, b

ox
in

g
 m

u
se

u
m

, b
ar

 a
n

d
 c

lim
b

in
g

 w
al

l.

A
R
E
N
A
 4

  
B

ox
in

g
 g

ym
 w

it
h

 t
h

re
e 

ri
n

g
s,

 w
ei

g
h

ts
, s

tr
en

g
th

 a
n

d
 c

on
d

it
io

n
in

g
 a

re
a.

  
25

m
 x

 6
 L

an
e 

sw
im

m
in

g
 p

oo
l w

it
h

 d
is

ab
le

d
 a

cc
es

s,
 le

ar
n

er
 p

oo
l a

n
d

 s
p

ec
ta

to
r 

ar
ea

.
  

F
it

n
es

s 
su

it
e 

w
it

h
 1

50
 w

or
k 

st
at

io
n

s,
 d

an
ce

 s
tu

d
io

s 
an

d
 a

 w
ei

g
h

ts
 a

re
a.

  
C

h
an

g
in

g
 r

oo
m

s,
 o

ffi
ce

 a
n

d
 t

ea
ch

in
g

 s
p

ac
e.

A
R
E
N
A

 2
3 

m
u

lt
i-

u
se

 s
p

or
ts

 h
al

ls
 fo

r:
  

U
p

 t
o 

20
 t

ab
le

 t
en

n
is

 t
ab

le
s

  
G

ym
n

as
ti

cs
 a

re
a

  
In

d
oo

r 
cr

ic
ke

t 
n

et
s

  
B

ad
m

in
to

n
, b

as
ke

tb
al

l,
 n

et
b

al
l,

 v
ol

le
yb

al
l

  
C

h
an

g
in

g
 r

oo
m

s,
 o

ffi
ce

 a
n

d
 t

ea
ch

in
g

 s
p

ac
e.

A
R
E
N
A

 3
  

4G
 s

u
rf

ac
e 

fo
r 

fo
ot

b
al

l,
 t

ou
ch

 r
u

g
b

y 
an

d
 h

oc
ke

y 
h

ou
si

n
g

 t
h

e
  

M
ill

w
al

l C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
S

ch
em

e.
 

C
h

an
g

in
g

 r
oo

m
s,

 o
ffi

ce
 a

n
d

 t
ea

ch
in

g
 s

p
ac

e.

C
R

O
S

S
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
P

O
R

T
 H

A
L

L
S

5
4

Page 308



N
EW

 L
EG

A
CY

 : N
EW

 L
IF

E

M
A

IN
 E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E
 F

O
Y

E
R

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

P
O

R
T

 H
A

L
L

S

“O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 g

re
a

t 
le

g
a

ci
e

s 
fr

o
m

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 2

0
1

2
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 f

a
n

ta
st

ic
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

e
 h

a
ve

 s
e

e
n

 in
 E

a
st

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rl

d
 c

la
ss

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 
ve

n
u

e
s 

th
a

t 
w

il
l 

in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 b
e

 o
p

e
n

 
to

 l
o

ca
l 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 b

y 
th

e
 

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

S
p

o
rt

s 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 l
o

o
k

 
li

k
e

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

e
xc

it
in

g
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 
u

si
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
p

o
rt

 
a

s 
a

 w
a

y 
to

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
te

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
 

o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 h

e
lp

 d
e

li
ve

r 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 
b

e
st

 s
p

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
a

ll
.”

L
o

rd
 C

o
e

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e

g
a

cy
 A

m
b

a
ss

a
d

o
r

“I
 a

m
 e

xc
it

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 s
u

ch
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

fu
ll

y 
a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
ll

 in
 o

n
e

 p
la

ce
. 

W
it

h
 1

8
,0

0
0

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 t
o

 u
se

 t
h

is
 

fa
ci

li
ty

 e
ve

ry
 w

e
e

k
 w

e
 h

a
ve

 a
 t

e
rr

ifi
c 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
to

 d
e

li
ve

r 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n

d
 

P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ic
 l

e
g

a
cy

 in
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

st
 

d
e

p
ri

ve
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

.”

B
a

ro
n

e
ss

 G
re

y-
T

h
o

m
p

so
n

 D
B

E
 

P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ia
n

6
7

Page 309



N
EW

 L
ON

DO
N

: N
EW

 L
IF

E
SU

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L’

S 
R

EN
EW

A
L

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

is
 o

n
e

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
’s

 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 s
it

e
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 a

re
a

, o
n

 t
h

e
 

fr
in

g
e

 o
f 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

e
d

 
b

y 
2

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s,

 h
a

s 
su

ff
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 
la

ck
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
t,

 y
e

t 
p

o
ss

e
ss

e
s 

g
re

a
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.

“T
h

e
 S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
p

ro
je

ct
 is

 a
 

fl
a

g
sh

ip
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

ch
e

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
d

e
li

ve
r 

re
a

l 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 f

o
r 

 
a

ll
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

.”
 

 S
ir

 S
te

ve
 B

u
ll

o
ck

, 
E

le
ct

e
d

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

M
a

yo
r 

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 a

n
d

 S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

S
p

o
rt

s 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 T
ru

st
e

e

“ A
t 

a
 t

im
e

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 is
 a

u
st

e
ri

ty
  

in
 p

u
b

li
c 

fi
n

a
n

ce
s,

 m
o

vi
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

  
o

n
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 s

u
ch

 a
 c

ru
ci

a
l 

a
re

a
  

is
 g

re
a

t 
n

e
w

s.
” 

 
 A

la
n

 S
m

it
h

, 
D

e
p

u
ty

 M
a

yo
r 

fo
r 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

, 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

T
h

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

:

   2
4

0
0

 h
o

m
e

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 2
4

0
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s)
  2

0
0

0
 n

e
w

 jo
b

s
  A

n
 ic

o
n

ic
 l

o
ca

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
in

d
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

co
m

p
le

x
  A

 n
e

w
 s

ta
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
in

e
  N

e
w

 b
u

s 
ro

u
te

s
  A

 m
a

jo
r 

n
e

w
 c

h
u

rc
h

 t
o

 s
e

a
t 

a
 1

2
0

0
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
o

n
g

re
g

a
ti

o
n

  N
e

w
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 M
il

lw
a

ll
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

ch
e

m
e

  A
 1

5
0

 b
e

d
 h

o
te

l 
w

it
h

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

ci
n

g
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s

   A
 c

re
a

ti
ve

 in
d

u
st

ri
e

s 
q

u
a

rt
e

r
  A

 h
e

a
lt

h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
sp

e
ci

a
li

si
n

g
 in

 s
p

o
rt

s 
in

ju
ry

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 in
 t

h
e

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
   A

n
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 s
e

tt
in

g
 f

o
r 

M
il

lw
a

ll
 F

C
  I

m
p

ro
ve

d
 p

e
rm

e
a

b
il

it
y 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
yc

li
n

g
 l

in
k

s
  A

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 in
cu

b
a

ti
o

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

  C
re

ch
e

 a
n

d
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 
  I

m
p

ro
ve

d
 p

a
rk

 a
t 

B
ri

d
g

e
h

o
u

se
 M

e
a

d
o

w
s

S
U

R
R

E
Y

 C
A

N
A

L
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

9
8

Page 310



H
O

W
 T

H
E 

FA
CI

LI
TI

ES
 W

IL
L 

B
E 

M
A

N
A

GE
D

T
h

e
 S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

(r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 c

h
a

ri
ty

 1
1

4
1

8
1

1
) 

w
a

s 
e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 in

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
  

th
e

 S
p

o
rt

 H
a

ll
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
u

se
. 

T
h

e
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
a

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

b
o

a
rd

 o
f 

Tr
u

st
e

e
s 

w
it

h
 v

a
ri

e
d

 
su

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
s 

w
h

o
 c

a
n

 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

se
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
re

 d
e

li
ve

re
d

 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 T
ru

st
e

e
s 

a
re

 t
a

sk
e

d
 w

it
h

 
ra

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 £
4

0
m

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 
a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y 
fo

r 
a

n
y 

sh
o

rt
fa

ll
 in

 r
e

ve
n

u
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

.

T
h

e
 S

p
o

rt
 H

a
ll

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
o

th
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 r

a
te

s 
a

s 
lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
p

o
rt

s 
ce

n
te

rs
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 

to
 l

o
ca

l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
, t

h
e

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
 

w
il

l 
b

e
 u

se
d

 e
xt

e
n

si
ve

ly
 b

y 
lo

ca
l 

sc
h

o
o

ls
, s

p
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s,

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

o
ve

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

ie
s 

o
f 

S
p

o
rt

 (
N

G
B

s)
, 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s,

 c
o

ll
e

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
  

h
ir

e
 m

a
rk

e
t.

N
EW

 F
OU

N
DA

TI
ON

 : N
EW

 L
IF

E

S
ir

 S
te

ve
 B

u
ll

o
ck

 
M

a
yo

r,
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
  

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m

S
te

ve
n

 N
o

rr
is

, 
C

h
a

ir
m

a
n

B
a

ro
n

e
ss

 T
a

n
n

i-
G

re
y 

T
h

o
m

p
so

n
P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ia

n

J
o

h
n

 I
n

ve
rd

a
le

B
ro

a
d

ca
st

e
r

B
re

n
d

a
n

 J
a

rv
is

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

R
e

a
l 

E
st

a
te

, E
u

ro
p

e
,  

th
e

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 a

n
d

 A
fr

ic
a

,
B

a
rc

la
ys

 

C
o

u
n

ci
ll

o
r 

P
e

te
r 

J
o

h
n

  
L

e
a

d
e

r,
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
  

o
f 

S
o

u
th

w
a

rk

J
o

rd
a

n
a

 M
a

li
k

 
D

ir
e

ct
o

r,
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l

S
U

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L 

S
P

O
R

TS
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 T
R

U
S

TE
ES

S
P

O
R

TS
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
C

O
M

PA
N

Y

S
P

O
R

T 
EN

G
LA

N
D

 

&
 N

G
B

’S

LO
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 

O
F 

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

C
LU

B
S

H
IR

E 
M

A
R

K
ET

LO
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 

O
F 

S
O

U
TH

W
A

R
K

LO
N

D
O

N
 A

B
A

LO
N

D
O

N
 E

TT
A

N
G

B
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L
&

 N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
S

P
O

R
TS

EV
EN

TS

P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

S
C

H
O

O
LS

S
EC

O
N

D
A

R
Y 

S
C

H
O

O
LS

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

 R
ES

ID
EN

TS

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

 N
H

S

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

 T
H

U
N

D
ER

FU
S

IO
N

 T
TC

D
O

W
N

S
ID

E 
FI

S
H

ER
 Y

C
LY

N
N

 A
C

M
IL

LW
A

LL
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

S
C

H
EM

E

U
N

IV
ER

S
IT

Y 
H

IR
E

C
LU

B
 H

IR
E

A
FT

ER
 W

O
R

K
 H

IR
E

H
O

LI
D

A
Y 

C
A

M
P

S

P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

S
C

H
O

O
LS

S
EC

O
N

D
A

R
Y 

S
C

H
O

O
LS

S
O

U
TH

W
A

R
K

 R
ES

ID
EN

TS

S
O

U
TH

W
A

R
K

 N
H

S

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E:

B
oa

rd
 o

f t
ru

st
ee

s

S
te

ve
 B

a
ck

le
y

O
B

E
, O

ly
m

p
ia

n

1
1

1
0Page 311



A
 Y

OU
N

G 
A

N
D 

DI
VE

R
SE

 P
OP

UL
AT

IO
N

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

w
il

l 
b

e
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y:

   a
 n

e
w

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 O
ve

rg
ro

u
n

d
 s

ta
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
st

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
in

e
   t

h
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

ra
il

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
S

o
u

th
 B

e
rm

o
n

d
se

y
   2

 n
e

w
 b

u
s 

ro
u

te
s:

 1
 l

in
k

in
g

 t
o

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

  
a

n
d

 1
 t

o
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
   g

re
a

tl
y 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 c

yc
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 w

a
lk

in
g

 r
o

u
te

s

N
EW

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
S

 W
IL

L 

A
LL

O
W

 1
8,

00
0 

P
EO

P
LE

 W
EE

K
LY

 T
O

 

A
C

C
ES

S
 T

H
E 

S
P

O
R

TS
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
T 

S
U

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L.

   1
/3

 O
F 

P
EO

P
LE

 A
R

E 
A

G
ED

 1
5-

25
 Y

R
S

 O
LD

   1
/3

 O
F 

P
EO

P
LE

 H
A

V
E 

N
O

 Q
U

A
LI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

S

   3
6%

 O
F 

YO
U

N
G

 P
EO

P
LE

 A
R

E 
U

N
EM

P
LO

Y
ED

   2
5%

 O
F 

LO
C

A
L 

C
H

IL
D

R
EN

 A
R

E 
C

L
A

S
S

ED
 O

B
ES

E 

TH
ER

E 
A

R
E 

2 
U

N
IV

ER
S

IT
IE

S
, 

1 
FU

R
TH

ER
 

ED
U

C
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
LL

EG
E,

 7
 S

EC
O

N
D

A
R

Y 

A
N

D
 4

4 
P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

LS
 W

IT
H

 E
A

S
Y 

A
C

C
ES

S
 T

O
 T

H
E 

S
IT

E.
 

N
EW

 C
OM

M
UN

IT
Y 

: N
EW

 L
IF

E

TH
ER

E 
A

R
E 

40
,0

00
 P

EO
P

LE
 L

IV
IN

G
 

W
IT

H
IN

 S
P

O
R

T 
EN

G
L

A
N

D
’S

 2
0 

M
IN

U
TE

 

W
A

LK
IN

G
 T

IM
E 

C
A

TC
H

M
EN

T 
A

R
EA

 

FR
O

M
 S

U
R

R
EY

 C
A

N
A

L.
 

“T
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s 
a

n
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

sp
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
d

ig
re

e
, a

n
d

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 l
in

k
s 

m
e

a
n

 
th

a
t 

h
u

g
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 u

se
 it

 a
n

d
 m

a
k

e
 t

h
e

 s
it

e
 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

ye
a

rs
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
.”

C
h

a
rl

e
s 

Jo
h

n
st

o
n

, D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

a
t 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

S
U

R
R

E
Y

 C
A

N
A

L
 C

A
T

C
H

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

 A
N

D
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T

S
C

H
O

O
LS

 &
 C

O
LL

EG
ES

S
U

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L

C
A

TC
H

M
EN

T 
A

R
EA

1
2

1
3

Page 312



N
EW

 E
N

ER
GY

 : N
EW

 L
IF

E
H

EA
LT

H
Y,

 A
CT

IV
E 

CI
TI

ZE
N

S

“ T
h

e
 S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
S

p
o

rt
 H

a
ll

s 
p

ro
m

is
e

 
to

 b
e

 a
n

 e
xc

it
in

g
 a

n
d

 in
n

o
va

ti
ve

 p
ro

je
ct

 
th

a
t 

w
il

l 
re

-e
n

e
rg

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

to
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 in

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
” 

 P
a

u
l 

C
la

rk
, C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 O
ffi

ce
r,

 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 N

e
tb

a
ll

“ I
 g

re
w

 u
p

 in
 s

o
u

th
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 I

 
st

a
rt

e
d

 p
la

yi
n

g
 b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 b
u

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 
a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
I h

a
d

 t
o

 t
ra

ve
l 

so
m

e
 

d
is

ta
n

ce
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
I k

n
o

w
 t

h
is

 p
la

ye
d

 a
 f

a
ct

o
r 

in
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
n

y 
p

e
o

p
le

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 m

y 
fr

ie
n

d
s,

  
st

o
p

p
e

d
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y.
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 

m
y 

b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 c

li
n

ic
s 

in
 s

o
u

th
 L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

I h
a

ve
 w

it
n

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

e
 im

m
e

n
se

 t
a

le
n

t 
th

e
 a

re
a

 h
a

s 
to

 o
ff

e
r.

 I 
fu

ll
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

su
ch

 f
a

n
ta

st
ic

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

p
o

rt
 in

 s
o

u
th

 L
o

n
d

o
n

; t
h

e
 

a
re

a
 in

 w
h

ic
h

 m
y 

ca
re

e
r 

st
a

rt
e

d
.”

 
 L

o
u

l 
D

e
n

g
, N

o
. 9

, C
h

ic
a

g
o

 B
u

ll
s,

 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

B
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
, U

S
A

T
h

e
 s

p
o

rt
s 

o
ff

e
r 

a
t 

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

w
a

s 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y 

a
 ‘N

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 

D
e

m
a

n
d

’ r
e

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
  

fr
o

m
 N

e
il

 A
ll

e
n

 A
ss

o
ci

a
te

s 
b

y 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l,

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s 

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 

S
o

u
th

w
a

rk
, S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g

la
n

d
, N

G
B

s 
a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 

C
lu

b
s.

T
h

e
 N

e
w

 C
ro

ss
 w

a
rd

, h
o

m
e

 t
o

 
S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l,
 is

 in
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 2

0
%

  
o

f 
th

e
 m

o
st

 d
is

a
d

va
n

ta
g

e
d

 w
a

rd
s 

 
in

 t
h

e
 U

K
. 

T
h

e
 S

p
o

rt
 H

a
ll

s 
w

il
l 

 
b

e
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

d
ri

ve
 t

o
 r

e
a

ch
 o

u
t 

in
to

 t
h

e
 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

to
 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

:

    a
ct

iv
e

 l
if

e
st

yl
e

s,
 l

e
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

 c
h

ro
n

ic
 il

ln
e

ss
   h

e
a

lt
h

y 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
   i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 s
e

lf
 e

st
e

e
m

   g
re

a
te

r 
m

e
n

ta
l 

w
e

ll
 b

e
in

g
   r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

cr
im

e
 r

a
te

s

T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

’s
 

re
p

o
rt

 “
S

h
a

p
in

g
 O

u
r 

F
u

tu
re

: 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

’s
 S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

tr
a

te
g

y 
2

0
0

8
-2

0
2

0
” 

st
a

te
s 

th
a

t 
“A

ct
iv

e
, h

e
a

lt
h

y 
ci

ti
ze

n
s 

a
re

 a
 k

e
y 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 -

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

re
 

co
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 

ca
n

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 in
 

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 t
h

e
ir

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

 b
e

in
g

, s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

  
b

y 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 
se

rv
ic

e
s,

 l
e

is
u

re
, c

u
lt

u
re

 a
n

d
 

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s”
.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 N
H

S
, p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
w

il
l 

a
im

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
  

in
 s

p
o

rt
s 

b
y 

h
a

rd
 t

o
 r

e
a

ch
 g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 

co
m

b
in

e
 s

p
o

rt
 w

it
h

  
a

d
vi

ce
 o

n
 fi

tn
e

ss
, n

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 
su

b
st

a
n

ce
 m

is
u

se
.

 

1
5

1
4Page 313



N
EW

 C
OM

M
IT

M
EN

T :
N

EW
 L

IF
E

CL
UB

S 
A

N
D 

OR
GA

N
IS

AT
IO

N
S

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 

T
h

u
n

d
e

r

E
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 in
 2

0
0

6
 b

y 
fo

rm
e

r 
L

A
 L

a
ke

r’
s 

b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 s

ta
r 

S
te

ve
 

B
u

ck
n

a
ll

 t
o

 h
a

rn
e

ss
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

’s
 

w
e

a
lt

h
 o

f 
ta

le
n

te
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

la
ye

rs
, 

T
h

u
n

d
e

r 
h

a
ve

 e
xc

e
e

d
e

d
 a

ll
 

ex
p

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
cu

lm
in

a
ti

n
g

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y 

in
 t

h
e

ir
 M

e
n

’s
 U

1
8

 t
e

a
m

 b
e

in
g

 
cr

o
w

n
e

d
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

ch
a

m
p

io
n

s.

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

re
ce

n
tl

y 
m

o
ve

d
 

to
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

a
t 

S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 
in

 N
o

rt
h

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 in

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
ir

 m
o

ve
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

p
o

rt
s 

co
m

p
le

x.
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r’

s 
a

im
 is

 t
o

 b
e

  
a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

ri
ti

sh
 B

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 
L

e
a

g
u

e
 f

ra
n

ch
is

e
.

S
in

ce
 2

0
0

6
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

h
a

ve
 g

ro
w

n
 a

 
re

g
u

la
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

2
5

0
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 h

a
ve

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 1
0

0
0

s 
o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 d

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

 
b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y.

O
N

 S
IT

E
:

M
O

V
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E

 S
P

O
R

T
 H

A
L

L
S

:

M
il

lw
a

ll
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
ch

e
m

e

T
h

e
 M

il
lw

a
ll

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 a

n
d

 
S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

 t
o

 t
a

ke
 p

a
rt

 in
 s

p
o

rt
, 

le
a

rn
 n

e
w

 s
k

il
ls

, i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

ir
 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t.

 
T

h
e

 S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

S
p

o
rt

 H
a

ll
s 

w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 a
 p

u
rp

o
se

 b
u

il
t 

n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
, 

re
li

e
vi

n
g

 t
h

e
m

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

rd
e

n
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
ti

n
g

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 
a

n
d

 a
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 l
o

ca
l 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

.

F
u

si
o

n
 

Ta
b

le
 T

e
n

n
is

 C
lu

b

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ch

a
m

p
io

n
s,

 F
u

si
o

n
 

a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 m

o
vi

n
g

 o
n

to
 s

it
e

 
in

 2
0

1
4

.

E
n

g
li

sh
 T

a
b

le
 T

e
n

n
is

 
A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n

E
T

TA
 w

il
l 

b
a

se
 t

h
e

ir
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 o

ffi
ce

s 
a

t 
S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 h
a

ve
 p

le
d

g
e

d
 a

 
ca

p
it

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

.

D
o

w
n

si
d

e
-F

is
h

e
r 

Yo
u

th
 C

lu
b

T
h

e
 c

lu
b

 w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
lo

ca
ti

n
g

 f
ro

m
 it

s 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

 in
 S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

 a
n

d
 

a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s.

 
F

o
u

n
d

e
d

 in
 1

9
0

8
 it

s 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

h
a

ve
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 t

h
re

e
 w

o
rl

d
 b

ox
in

g
 

ch
a

m
p

io
n

s 
S

id
 S

m
it

h
, T

e
rr

y 
D

o
w

n
e

s 
a

n
d

 L
lo

yd
 H

o
n

e
yg

h
a

n
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 w

o
rl

d
 

ti
tl

e
 c

o
n

te
n

d
e

rs
 T

im
m

y 
D

ri
sc

o
ll

 a
n

d
 

M
ic

k
y 

C
a

n
tw

e
ll

. 

L
yn

n
 

A
th

le
ti

c 
C

lu
b

B
ri

ta
in

’s
 o

ld
e

st
 a

m
a

te
u

r 
b

ox
in

g
 

cl
u

b
. 

F
o

u
n

d
e

d
 in

 1
8

9
2

 it
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 

re
lo

ca
ti

n
g

 f
ro

m
 it

s 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

 
in

 S
o

u
th

w
a

rk
. 

It
s 

p
a

st
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

h
a

ve
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 D

a
n

n
y 

W
il

li
a

m
s 

w
h

o
 

fa
m

o
u

sl
y 

b
e

a
t 

M
ik

e
 T

ys
o

n
 in

 2
0

0
4

.

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
m

a
te

u
r 

B
o

x
in

g
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n

A
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

w
o

 h
is

to
ri

c 
lo

ca
l 

cl
u

b
s,

 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

B
A

 w
il

l 
b

a
se

 it
se

lf
 a

t 
S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
 c

e
n

tr
e

 
o

f 
ex

ce
ll

e
n

ce
 a

n
d

 a
 b

ox
in

g
 m

u
se

u
m

 
a

t 
th

e
 S

p
o

rt
 H

a
ll

s.

1
7

1
6Page 314



N
EW

 O
PP

OR
TU

N
IT

IE
S 

: N
EW

 L
IF

E
CU

R
R

EN
T 

& 
FU

TU
R

E 
PR

OG
R

A
M

M
ES

: B
A

SK
ET

BA
LL

 C
A

SE
 S

TU
DY

B
A

S
K

ET
B

A
LL

 C
A

M
P

S
  *

D
u

ri
n

g
 s

ch
o

o
l 

h
o

li
d

a
ys

 T
h

u
n

d
e

r 
w

il
l 

d
e

li
ve

r 
ca

m
p

s 
st

a
rt

in
g

 a
t 

8.
30

a
m

 
w

it
h

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y 
b

re
a

k
fa

st
 f

o
ll

o
w

e
d

 
b

y 
m

o
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

ft
e

rn
o

o
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

se
ss

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

e
d

 h
o

m
e

w
o

rk
 

st
u

d
y.

 H
e

a
lt

h
y 

e
a

ti
n

g
 is

 a
 c

o
re

 
th

e
m

e
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 fi
tn

e
ss

, s
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

. T
h

u
n

d
e

r’
s 

la
st

 h
a

lf
-t

e
rm

 c
a

m
p

 
a

tt
ra

ct
e

d
 o

ve
r 

10
0 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

a
g

e
d

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 8

 a
n

d
 1

8.

W
H

EE
LC

H
A

IR
 B

A
S

K
ET

B
A

LL
  *

A
lr

e
a

d
y 

st
ro

n
g

ly
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

w
il

l 
b

u
il

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir

 
b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 
th

e
 r

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
ve

 
a

sp
e

ct
s 

fr
o

m
 g

ra
ss

ro
o

ts
 t

o
 e

li
te

 
le

ve
l.

 T
h

is
 s

p
o

rt
 is

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fo

r 
re

h
a

b
il

it
a

ti
o

n
, i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 s

e
lf

 
e

st
e

e
m

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
tl

y 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 

th
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 w

it
h

 
d

is
a

b
il

it
y.

 W
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir

 b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 

e
m

b
ra

ce
s 

th
o

se
 w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 a
ll

 a
re

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
d

 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
 s

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 
fu

ll
y 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 in
to

 t
h

e
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 
T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

fa
m

il
y.

FA
M

IL
Y 

TO
 F

A
M

IL
Y 

EV
EN

TS
  *

2 
vs

 2
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
si

st
in

g
 o

f 
a

 9
-w

e
e

k
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 
li

fe
st

yl
e

 w
o

rk
sh

o
p

s 
a

n
d

  b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 

co
a

ch
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s 
a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 d

a
y 

o
f 

fu
n

 b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 p
a

rt
 in

 w
it

h
 a

 c
h

o
se

n
 

fa
m

il
y 

m
e

m
b

e
r.

H
O

O
P

S
4H

EA
LT

H
  *

H
o

o
p

s4
H

e
a

lt
h

 is
 t

h
e

 B
ri

ti
sh

 
B

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 L
e

a
g

u
e

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, c
o

m
b

in
in

g
 

b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 c

o
a

ch
in

g
 w

it
h

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
y 

li
vi

n
g

 a
d

vi
ce

 f
o

r 
yo

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
. L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 T
h

u
n

d
e

r,
 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 N

H
S

, w
il

l 
d

e
li

ve
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 in

it
ia

ll
y 

to
 1

6 
lo

ca
l 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 a
im

 
o

f 
p

ro
d

u
ci

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 c

o
n

sc
io

u
s,

 
ta

le
n

te
d

 b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 p

la
ye

rs
.

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
LE

A
G

U
E 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

 *

P
la

ye
rs

 w
il

l 
b

e
co

m
e

 a
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
L

e
a

g
u

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
te

a
m

s 
th

a
t 

co
m

p
e

te
 

in
  U

14
, U

16
, U

18
 b

oy
s 

a
n

d
 g

ir
ls

 
le

a
g

u
e

s.

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

S
ES

S
IO

N
S

  *

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

vi
d

e
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

tw
ic

e
 w

e
e

k
ly

 f
o

r 
th

e
 5

-1
3 

a
n

d
 

14
+ 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s.

 T
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 p
a

rt
 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 in
it

ia
l 

co
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
la

yi
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 h
a

ve
 b

e
co

m
e

 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

ly
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
w

it
h

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 
a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 r
is

in
g

 t
o

 a
s 

m
a

n
y 

a
s 

12
0 

p
e

r 
se

ss
io

n
. T

h
e

 S
p

o
rt

 H
a

ll
s 

w
il

l 
e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

is
 s

ch
e

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

 e
xp

a
n

d
e

d
.

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 &

 Q
U

A
LI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

S
  *

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 
vo

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

co
u

rs
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
ir

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

in
 r

e
fe

re
e

in
g

; 
ta

b
le

 o
ffi

ci
a

ti
n

g
; 

co
a

ch
in

g
; 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
ty

; 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

o
rt

s 
p

sy
ch

o
lo

g
y.

 A
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

w
it

h
 l

if
e

 s
k

il
ls

, t
h

is
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 a

ll
o

w
 

th
e

 c
lu

b
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 b
y 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 
in

 h
o

u
se

 r
e

fe
re

e
s 

a
n

d
 o

ffi
ci

a
ls

. 
It

 is
 a

ls
o

 e
n

vi
sa

g
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
se

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 

to
 b

o
th

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y.

P
R

E 
/ 

P
O

S
T 

S
ES

S
IO

N
 S

TU
D

Y 
C

LU
B

  *

C
la

ss
ro

o
m

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

h
o

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

 

W
O

M
EN

’S
 S

ES
S

IO
N

S
  *

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

w
il

l 
te

a
ch

 
th

e
 b

a
si

c 
te

ch
n

ic
a

l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 w

o
m

e
n

 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

th
e

ir
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
ve

 s
e

ss
io

n
s.

 
T

h
e

se
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 m
o

th
e

rs
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 
w

h
il

st
 t

h
e

ir
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

re
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 
se

ss
io

n
s.

M
EN

’S
 S

ES
S

IO
N

S
  *

F
o

r 
+

1
9

 p
la

ye
rs

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

h
a

ve
 a

 m
e

n
’s

 t
e

a
m

 t
h

a
t 

p
la

ys
 in

 t
h

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

li
ta

n
 l

e
a

g
u

e
.

B
O

U
N

C
E 

B
A

C
K

 T
O

 F
IT

N
ES

S
 S

ES
S

IO
N

S

T
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

n
e

w
 M

u
m

s 
w

a
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 l

o
se

 b
a

b
y 

w
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

 g
e

t 
fi

t 
in

 a
 f

u
n

 w
a

y,
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 n

e
w

 
fr

ie
n

d
s.

 T
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 c

rè
ch

e
 

fa
ci

li
ty

 o
n

 s
it

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

se
 

se
ss

io
n

s.
 

B
A

B
Y 

B
A

S
K

ET
S

 S
ES

S
IO

N
S

T
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
3

-5
yr

 o
ld

s 
w

o
u

ld
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

ly
 

a
g

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
a

im
e

d
 a

t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

sk
il

ls
 in

 a
 f

u
n

 
a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t.

S
IL

V
ER

 S
H

O
O

TE
R

S
 S

ES
S

IO
N

S

D
e

si
g

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 in

 t
h

e
 5

5
+

 
a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

, t
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

  
b

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 e
it

h
e

r 
th

o
se

 n
e

w
 t

o
 b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 o
r 

th
o

se
 

w
is

h
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 r

e
-i

g
n

it
e

 t
h

e
ir

 
p

a
st

 s
k

il
ls

. 

A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

of
 c

om
m

u
n

it
y 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 fo
r 

E
A

C
H

 S
P

O
R

T
 w

ill
 b

e 
d

ri
ve

n
 b

y 
th

e 
C

lu
b

s 
an

d
 N

G
B

s 
b

as
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

S
p

or
ts

 H
al

ls
. 

H
e

re
 is

 a
 C

a
se

 S
tu

d
y 

o
f 

h
o

w
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 T
h

u
n

d
e

r 
b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 c
lu

b
 w

il
l 

d
ri

ve
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
a

n
d

 t
e

a
m

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 S

p
o

rt
s 

H
a

ll
s.

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

m
a

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 *
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y 
h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 a

t 
T

h
u

n
d

e
r’

s 
in

te
ri

m
 h

o
m

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
si

te
.

m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti

ve
 s

e
ss

io
n

s.
 

T
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 m

o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 

w
h

il
st

 t
h

e
ir

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
re

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 

se
ss

io
n

s.

M
EN

’S
 S

ES
S

IO
N

S
  *

F
o

r 
+

1
9

 p
la

ye
rs

 L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
i

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
sh

a
m

sh
a

m
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

 T
h

u
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

h
a

ve
 a

 m
e

n
’s

 t
e

a
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

m
 t

h
m

 t
h

a
t 

p
la

ys
la

ys
la

ys
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 
 in

 t
h

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
p

o
li

p
o

li
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 

ta
n

 
ta

n
 l

e
a

g
u

e
.

u
e

.
u

e
.

u
e

.
u

e
.

fr
ie

n
d

s.
 T

h
e

fa
ci

li
ty

 o
n

 s
it

e
se

ss
io

n
s.

 

B
A

B
Y 

B
A

S
K

ET
S

T
h

e
se

 s
e

ss
io

n
3

-5
yr

 o
ld

s 
w

a
g

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 p
a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g

S
IL

V
ER

 S
H

O
O

TE

D
e

si
g

n
e

d
 f

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
, t

b
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
th

o
se

 n
e

w
 t

o
w

is
h

in
g

 t
o

 r
p

a
st

 s
k

il
ls

.

m
p

e
te

 

a
rt

 

m
e

 
m

b
e

rs
 

20
 

a
n

d
e

d
.

vo
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
co

u
rs

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

le
a

d
 t

o
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

 r
e

fe
re

e
in

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

t
g

; 
t

g
; 

ta
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
a

b
le

a
b

le
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
 o

ffi
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
t

ci
a

t
ci

a
ti

n
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
;

in
g

;
in

g
; 

co
a

ch
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
; 

n
u

tr
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
it

io
n

 a
n

n
 a

n
n

 a
n

w
e

ll
w

e
ll

w
e

ll
w

e
ll

w
e

ll
w

e
ll

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

 a
s 

p
ro

v
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

w
it

h
w

it
h

 l
if

 l
if

 l
if

 l
if

 l
if

 l
if

e
 s

k
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 

th
e

 
th

e
 c

lu
b

 t
o

 
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
in

 h
o

u
se

 r
e

f
It

 i
It

 i
It

 i
It

 i
It

 i
It

 i
It

 i
It

 is
 a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

l
s 

a
l

s 
a

ls
o

 e
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

to
 b

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 

o
th

 
o

th
 p

a
re

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

co
m

m
co

m
m

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it
u

n
it

u
n

it

PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP
R

E
R

E
R

E
/ 

P
O

S
T

C
la

s
C

la
s

C
la

s
C

la
s

C
la

s
C

la
s

C
la

s
C

la
s

C
la

s
C

la
s

C
la

ss
ro

o
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
to

 e
n

co
u

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

th
e

 
th

e
 

to
 f

u
rt

h
m

o
re

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

h
in

g
h

in
g

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
; 

h
e

; 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
; 

n
 a

n
d

 s
p

o
rt

s 
p

sy
ch

o
lo

g
y.

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

 A
s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
e

 s
k

il
ls

, t
h

is
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

a
ls

o
a

ls
o

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

 a
ll

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

o
w

 
o

w
 

 t
o

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 b

y 
p

b
y 

p
b

y 
p

b
y 

p
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
ro

vi
d

in
g

d
in

g
d

in
g

d
in

g
d

in
g

d
in

g
   

o
u

se
 r

e
fe

re
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
f

d
 o

f
d

 o
ffi

ci
a

fi
ci

a
fi

ci
a

fi
ci

a
fi

ci
a

fi
ci

a
fi

ci
a

fi
ci

a
fi

ci
a

ls
. 

so
 e

n
vi

sa
g

e
d

 t
h

a
 t

h
a

 t
h

a
 t

h
a

 t
h

a
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
t 

th
e

se
 

e
se

 
e

se
 

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 e

xt
e

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
te

n
d

te
n

d
e

d
 

e
d

 
e

d
 

e
d

 
e

d
 

e
d

 
e

d
 

e
d

 
e

d
 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

lo
ca

l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l 
u

n
it

y.

O
S

T 
S

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
I

ES
S

I
ES

S
IO

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
O

N
 S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

TU
D

YYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYYY
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
C

LU
B

C
LU

B
  *

sr
o

o
m

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 
ro

n
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
h

o
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

m
o

re
T

h
e

s
to

 a
w

h
il

se
ss

M
EN

F
o

r 
h

a
ve

L
o

n
d

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

 T
H

U
N

D
ER

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

S
ES

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 T

O
U

R
N

A
M

EN
TS

LO
C

A
L 

U
12

-U
16

 L
EA

G
U

E 
R

U
N

 A
T 

S
U

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y

LE
W

IS
H

A
M

 T
H

U
N

D
ER

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T 

TE
A

M
S

 U
12

-U
18

LT
 P

R
O

FE
S

S
IO

N
A

L 
TE

A
M

H
O

O
P

S
4H

EA
LT

H
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E:

1
9

1
8Page 315



N
EW

 T
IM

ES
 : N

EW
 L

IF
E

A
 D

AY
 A

T 
SU

R
R

EY
 C

A
N

A
L 

SP
OR

T 
H

A
LL

S

6A
M

-7
AM

 
7A

M
-8

AM
 

8A
M

-9
AM

 
9A

M
-1

0A
M

 
10

AM
-1

1A
M

 
11

AM
-1

2P
M

 
12

P
M

-1
P

M
 

1P
M

-2
P

M
 

2P
M

-3
P

M
 

3P
M

-4
P

M
 

4P
M

-5
P

M
 

5P
M

-6
P

M
 

6P
M

-7
P

M
 

7P
M

-8
P

M
 

8P
M

-9
P

M
 

9P
M

-1
0P

M

A
R
E
N
A
 1

A
R
E
N
A
 2

A
R
E
N
A
 3

G
Y
M
N
A
S
T
I
C
S

S
P
O
R
T
S
 

H
A
L
L

3
G
 S

P
O
R
T
S
 

P
I
T
C
H

B
O
X
I
N
G

S
W
I
M
M
I
N
G

T
A
B
L
E
 

T
E
N
N
I
S

F
I
T
N
E
S
S
 

S
U
I
T
E

C
L
I
M
B
I
N
G
 

W
A
L
L

SP
IN

N
IN

G
 

SP
IN

N
IN

G
 

YO
G

A 
YO

G
A 

D
AN

CE
 

D
AN

CE
 

D
AN

CE
 

ZU
M

B
A 

ZU
M

B
A 

ZU
M

B
A 

N
ET

B
AL

L 
N

ET
B

AL
L 

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 L

EA
G

U
E 

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 L

EA
G

U
E 

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 L

EA
G

U
E 

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 L

EA
G

U
E

CL
AS

S 
CL

AS
S 

 
 

CL
AS

S 
CL

AS
S 

CL
AS

S 
D

AN
CE

 
D

AN
CE

 
D

AN
CE

 
VO

LL
EY

B
AL

L 
VO

LL
EY

B
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

AD
M

IN
TO

N
 

B
AD

M
IN

TO
N

YO
G

A 
YO

G
A 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

SC
H

O
O

L 
N

ET
B

AL
L 

N
ET

B
AL

L 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E
 

 
H

O
CK

EY
 

CR
IC

KE
T 

N
ET

S 
CR

IC
KE

T 
N

ET
S 

CR
IC

KE
T 

N
ET

S 
CR

IC
KE

T 
N

ET
S 

H
IR

E 
H

IR
E 

H
IR

E 
VO

LL
EY

B
AL

L 
VO

LL
EY

B
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L 
B

AS
KE

TB
AL

L
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

AD
M

IN
TO

N
 

B
AD

M
IN

TO
N

P
IL

AT
ES

 
P

IL
AT

ES
 

B
AB

Y 
B

AB
Y 

B
O

U
N

CE
 B

AC
K 

TO
 

SI
LV

ER
 S

H
O

O
TE

R
S 

SI
LV

ER
 S

H
O

O
TE

R
S 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

SC
H

O
O

L 
N

ET
B

AL
L 

N
ET

B
AL

L 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E 
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 L
EA

G
U

E
 

 
B

AS
KE

TS
 

B
AS

KE
TS

 
FI

TN
ES

S 
N

EW
 M

U
M

S 
(O

VE
R

 5
0S

) 
(O

VE
R

 5
0S

) 
H

IR
E 

H
IR

E 
H

IR
E 

VO
LL

EY
B

AL
L 

VO
LL

EY
B

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
AD

M
IN

TO
N

 
B

AD
M

IN
TO

N

N
O

N
-A

B
LE

 
N

O
N

-A
B

LE
 

P
R

E-
SC

H
O

O
L 

B
EG

IN
N

ER
S 

B
EG

IN
N

ER
S 

M
O

TH
ER

S 
AN

D
 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

TU
M

B
LI

N
G

  
D

IS
P

LA
Y 

CO
N

D
IT

IO
N

IN
G

 
SQ

U
AD

 
SQ

U
AD

 
SQ

U
AD

B
O

D
IE

D
 S

ES
SI

O
N

 
B

O
D

IE
D

 S
ES

SI
O

N
 

TO
D

D
LE

R
S 

CL
U

B
 

G
YM

N
AS

TI
CS

 
G

YM
N

AS
TI

CS
 

TO
D

D
LE

R
S 

CL
U

B
 

H
IR

E 
H

IR
E 

H
IR

E 
H

IR
E 

P
R

O
G

R
AM

M
E 

(8
+

) 
P

R
O

G
R

AM
M

E 
 

P
R

O
G

R
AM

M
E 

 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(I
N

TE
R

M
ED

IA
TE

S)

YO
G

A 
JA

ZZ
ER

CI
SE

 
AE

R
O

B
IC

S 
B

O
O

G
IE

 B
AB

IE
S 

SC
H

O
O

LS
 

SC
H

O
O

LS
 

U
N

D
ER

 5
S 

U
N

D
ER

 7
S 

U
N

D
ER

 8
S 

B
EG

IN
N

ER
S 

H
O

O
P

S4
H

EA
LT

H
 

H
O

O
P

S4
H

EA
LT

H
 

B
AD

M
IN

TO
N

 
B

AD
M

IN
TO

N
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

IN
D

O
O

R
 

AE
R

O
B

IC
S 

CL
AS

S 
CL

AS
S 

(6
 M

O
N

TH
S 

B
AD

M
IN

TO
N

 
B

AD
M

IN
TO

N
 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

B
AS

KE
TB

AL
L 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

CR
IC

KE
T 

CR
IC

KE
T

 
 

 
TO

 2
 Y

EA
R

S)
 

 
 

 
 

 
SE

SS
IO

N
 

 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
O

VE
R

 5
0S

 
O

VE
R

 5
0S

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
SC

H
O

O
L 

H
IR

E 
SC

H
O

O
L 

H
IR

E 
SC

H
O

O
L 

H
IR

E 
M

IL
LW

AL
L 

M
IL

LW
AL

L 
M

IL
LW

AL
L 

 
M

IL
LW

AL
L 

M
IL

LW
AL

L 
M

IL
LW

AL
L

 
 

FO
O

TB
AL

L 
FO

O
TB

AL
L 

FO
O

TB
AL

L 
FO

O
TB

AL
L 

LU
N

CH
 H

O
U

R
 

(R
U

G
BY

/F
O

O
TB

AL
L)

 
(R

U
G

BY
/F

O
O

TB
AL

L)
 

(R
U

G
BY

/F
O

O
TB

AL
L)

 
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

 
 

 
 

 
FO

O
TB

AL
L 

 
 

 
SC

H
EM

E 
SC

H
EM

E 
SC

H
EM

E 
SC

H
EM

E 
SC

H
EM

E 
SC

H
EM

E

B
OX

IN
G

 
B

OX
IN

G
 

KI
CK

 B
OX

IN
G

 
KI

CK
 B

OX
IN

G
 

KI
CK

 B
OX

IN
G

 
AM

AT
EU

R
 

AM
AT

EU
R

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
B

OX
IN

G
  

B
OX

IN
G

  
W

H
IT

E 
CO

LL
AR

 
W

H
IT

E 
CO

LL
AR

 
CH

ES
S 

CH
ES

S
FI

TN
ES

S 
FI

TN
ES

S 
CL

U
B

 
CL

U
B

 
CL

U
B

 
B

OX
IN

G
 

B
OX

IN
G

 
B

OX
IN

G
 

B
OX

IN
G

 
B

OX
IN

G
 

CL
U

B
 

CL
U

B
 

B
OX

IN
G

 
BO

XI
N

G
 

B
OX

IN
G

 
B

OX
IN

G

LA
N

E 
LA

N
E 

 
LA

N
E 

60
+

 S
W

IM
 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

AB
IL

IT
Y 

W
O

M
EN

S 
SC

H
O

O
L 

G
EN

ER
AL

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 

AD
U

LT
S 

CL
U

B
 

CL
U

B
SW

IM
M

IN
G

 
S

W
IM

M
IN

G
 

SW
IM

M
IN

G
 

 
SW

IM
M

IN
G

 
SW

IM
M

IN
G

 
SW

IM
 

AQ
U

AF
IT

 
S

W
IM

 
SW

IM
 

SW
IM

 
SW

IM
 

SW
IM

 
O

N
LY

 S
W

IM
 

S
W

IM
 

SW
IM

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SE

SS
IO

N
S 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SE

SS
IO

N
S 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SE

SS
IO

N
S 

B
AT

S 
W

IT
H

 
B

AT
S 

W
IT

H
  

O
VE

R
 5

0 
CL

U
B

 
O

N
E-

2-
O

N
E 

TT
 A

ER
O

B
IC

S 
TA

B
LE

 T
EN

N
IS

 
FA

M
IL

Y 
G

R
O

U
P 

FA
M

IL
Y 

G
R

O
U

P 
FU

SI
O

N
 

FU
SI

O
N

 
 

 
AN

D
 C

O
AC

H
IN

G
 

AN
D

 C
O

AC
H

IN
G

 
AN

D
 C

O
AC

H
IN

G
 

B
AL

LO
O

N
S 

B
AL

LO
O

N
S 

 
CO

AC
H

IN
G

 
AF

TE
R

 S
CH

O
O

L 
AE

R
O

B
IC

S 
O

P
EN

 S
ES

SI
O

N
 

O
P

EN
 S

ES
SI

O
N

  
M

AT
CH

 N
IG

H
T 

M
AT

CH
 N

IG
H

T
 

 
 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

 
 

 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
CL

U
B

 
 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

AD
U

LT
 C

O
AC

H
IN

G
 

AD
U

LT
 C

O
AC

H
IN

G

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S 

M
EM

B
ER

S 
M

EM
B

ER
S

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

PA
Y 

&
 P

LA
Y 

 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y 
PA

Y 
&

 P
LA

Y

C
AS

U
AL

 
AD

VA
N

CE
D

 
AD

VA
N

CE
D

 
AD

VA
N

CE
D

 
LA

D
IE

S 
LA

D
IE

S 
C

AS
U

AL
 

C
AS

U
AL

 
C

AS
U

AL
 

C
AS

U
AL

 
B

EG
IN

N
ER

S 
B

EG
IN

N
ER

S 
B

EG
IN

N
ER

S 
TA

ST
ER

 
TA

ST
ER

 
TA

ST
ER

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

M
O

R
N

IN
G

 
M

O
R

N
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
IM

B
IN

G
 

CL
AS

S 
CL

AS
S 

CL
AS

S 
SE

SS
IO

N
 

SE
SS

IO
N

 
SE

SS
IO

N

6A
M

-7
AM

 
7A

M
-8

AM
 

8A
M

-9
AM

 
9A

M
-1

0A
M

 
10

AM
-1

1A
M

 
11

AM
-1

2P
M

 
12

P
M

-1
P

M
 

1P
M

-2
P

M
 

2P
M

-3
P

M
 

3P
M

-4
P

M
 

4P
M

-5
P

M
 

5P
M

-6
P

M
 

6P
M

-7
P

M
 

7P
M

-8
P

M
 

8P
M

-9
P

M
 

9P
M

-1
0P

M

S 
M

SS
 

F

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

 
 

S 
M

 
P

SS
 

C

 
O

V
 

F

 
C

 
 

 
C

Y 
P

D
 

AD
V

S 
M

 
 

 
 

F

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

D
 

AD
V

 
C

S 
M

 
 

 
 

F

S 
B

S 
G

Y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
P

D
 

L
 

M

S 
M

 
P

 
 

 
 

F

 
 

 
 

 

S 
M

S 
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

Y 
P

S 
L

S 
M

S 
B

 
B

 
 

 
 

F

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

S 
C

S 
M

 
W

 
B

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
H

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
C

S 
M

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

S 
M

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

S 
M

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B

S 
M

S 
T

 
G

 
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S 
B

 
C

S 
M

S 
F

 
C

B
AL

L 
B

S 
B

 
C

S 
M

 
C

 
B

S 
T

S 
M

 
C

 
C

 
B

S 
M

 
C

6A
M

-7
AM

SS
IO

N
SE

SS
IO

N

M
-9

P
M

9P
M

-1
0P

M

2
1

2
0Page 316



N
EW

 M
OM

EN
TU

M
 : N

EW
 L

IF
E

TH
E 

SU
R

R
EY

 C
A

N
A

L 
SP

OR
TS

 F
OU

N
DA

TI
ON

 IS
 U

P 
A

N
D 

RU
N

N
IN

G

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

 s
p

o
rt

 
a

t 
S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l,
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 T
h

u
n

d
e

r 
a

n
d

 F
u

si
o

n
 T

a
b

le
 T

e
n

n
is

 C
lu

b
 h

a
ve

 
a

cc
e

p
te

d
 a

 r
e

n
t 

fr
e

e
 t

e
n

a
n

cy
 o

f 
a

 
w

a
re

h
o

u
se

 o
n

 s
it

e
 b

y 
th

e
 S

C
S

F.
 T

h
is

 
o

ff
e

r 
is

 w
o

rt
h

 £
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 o

ve
r 

a
 t

h
re

e
 

ye
a

r 
te

rm
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 

fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

’s
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 s
p

o
rt

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
.

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 f
a

ci
li

ty
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 
T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 F

u
si

o
n

 w
it

h
:

   2
 b

a
sk

e
tb

a
ll

 c
o

u
rt

s
    

 1
6

 t
a

b
le

 t
e

n
n

is
 t

a
b

le
s 

&
  

sh
o

w
 c

o
u

rt
    

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
 r

o
o

m
s

  
 C

a
n

te
e

n
   

O
ffi

ce
s

   
C

la
ss

ro
o

m
s

£
7

8
,0

0
0

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 d

o
n

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
b

y 
th

e
 N

H
S

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 T

h
u

n
d

e
r 

to
 d

e
li

ve
r 

th
e

 
H

o
o

p
s4

H
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
R

u
n

 
in

 1
6

 l
o

ca
l 

sc
h

o
o

ls
, H

o
o

p
s4

H
e

a
lt

h
 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 a
 p

yr
a

m
id

 o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y 
co

m
b

in
in

g
 f

u
n

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
xe

rc
is

e
s 

w
it

h
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

se
ss

io
n

s 
th

a
t 

te
a

ch
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

b
a

la
n

ce
d

 d
ie

ts
, c

a
rd

io
va

sc
u

la
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
st

a
n

ce
 m

is
u

se
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 in
te

ri
m

 s
p

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
so

 f
a

r 
in

cl
u

d
e

: 

   £
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
re

n
t 

fr
e

e
 

sp
a

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
ex

t 
3

 y
e

a
rs

;
   £

8
0

,0
0

0
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
p

u
rc

h
a

si
n

g
  

2
 x

 B
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 C

o
u

rt
s 

a
n

d
  

d
e

li
ve

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 H
o

o
p

s 
4

 H
e

a
lt

h
 

b
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
y 

li
vi

n
g

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

;
   £

1
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
p

ro
 b

o
n

o
 w

o
rk

 b
y 

b
ra

n
d

in
g

 a
g

e
n

cy
 T

h
in

k
fa

rm
;

   2
0

0
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e

g
a

cy
 s

p
e

ct
a

to
r 

se
a

ts
, f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 2

0
1

2
 

A
q

u
a

ti
cs

 C
e

n
tr

e
;

   F
u

rn
it

u
re

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

  
B

o
r o

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

.

O
u

r 
a

im
 is

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

s 
m

a
n

y 
cl

u
b

s 
a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 w

e
 

h
a

ve
 in

te
re

st
 f

ro
m

:

   L
u

o
l 

D
e

n
g

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
, 

B
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
   K

in
g

s 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

B
a

sk
e

tb
a

ll
   L

yn
n

 B
ox

in
g

 C
lu

b
   L

e
ft

 H
o

o
k

 B
ox

in
g

 C
lu

b
   K

a
iz

e
n

 K
a

i K
a

ra
te

 C
lu

b
   L

o
n

d
o

n
 V

o
ll

e
yb

a
ll

 
   P

a
d

e
l 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

L
ew

is
h

am
 T

h
u

n
d

er
L

E
W

IS
H

A
M

 T
H

U
N

D
E

R
 I

N
 A

C
T

IO
N

2
2

2
3

Page 317



N
EW

 C
A

PI
TA

L :
N

EW
 L

IF
E

FU
N

DI
N

G 
R

EQ
UI

R
EM

EN
T

£
40

M
 

IS
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 B
U

IL
D

 
TH

ES
E 

LA
N

D
M

A
R

K
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

. 

IN
C

O
M

E
 &

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

IN
C

O
M

E
 

Ye
ar

 1
 

Ye
ar

 2
 

Ye
ar

 3
 

Ye
ar

 4
 

Ye
ar

 5
 

S
p

or
ts

 In
co

m
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

n
a 

1 
£

74
8,

40
0 

£
77

6,
73

5 
£

80
0,

96
5 

£
82

4,
96

5 
£

85
6,

99
1

A
re

n
a 

2 
£

46
1,

82
9 

£
47

3,
50

9 
£

48
7,

26
1 

£
50

4,
38

8 
£

52
2,

20
4

A
re

n
a 

3 
£

65
0,

42
1 

£
67

6,
43

7 
£

70
0,

11
3 

£
71

7,
61

5 
£

73
1,

96
8

A
re

n
a 

4 
£

1,
41

5,
54

8 
£

1,
48

8,
96

0 
£

1,
55

8,
19

9 
£

1,
63

0,
87

5 
£

1,
70

7,
17

2
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
3

,2
7

6
,1

9
8

 
£

3
,4

1
5

,6
4

1
 

£
3

,5
4

6
,5

3
8

 
£

3
,6

7
7

,8
4

3
 

£
3

,8
1

8
,3

3
5

R
oy

al
ti

es
 @

 1
0%

 
£

92
,1

82
 

£
95

,3
93

 
£

99
,5

95
 

£
10

1,
96

1 
£

10
5,

34
6

To
ta

l 
In

co
m

e
 

£
3

,3
6

8
,3

8
0

 
£

3
,5

1
1

,0
3

4
 

£
3

,6
4

6
,1

3
3

 
£

3
,7

7
9

,8
0

4
 

£
3

,9
2

3
,6

8
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 

Ye
ar

 1
 

Ye
ar

 2
 

Ye
ar

 3
 

Ye
ar

 4
 

Ye
ar

 5
S

ta
ffi

n
g

 C
os

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

re
n

a 
1 

£
12

5,
00

0 
£

12
7,

50
0 

£
13

0,
05

0 
£

13
2,

65
1 

£
13

5,
30

4
A

re
n

a 
2 

£
13

7,
36

1 
£

14
0,

10
8 

£
14

2,
91

0 
£

14
5,

76
9 

£
14

8,
68

4
A

re
n

a 
3 

£
13

5,
29

0 
£

13
7,

99
6 

£
14

0,
75

6 
£

14
3,

57
1 

£
14

6,
44

3
A

re
n

a 
4 

£
85

7,
50

6 
£

87
4,

65
6 

£
89

2,
14

9 
£

90
9,

99
2 

£
92

8,
19

2
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
1

,2
5

5
,1

5
7

 
£

1
,2

8
0

,2
6

0
 

£
1

,3
0

5
,8

6
5

 
£

1
,3

3
1

,9
8

2
 

£
1

,3
5

8
,6

2
2

O
th

er
 C

os
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

re
n

a 
1 

£
54

6,
16

9 
£

56
1,

95
3 

£
57

5,
42

8 
£

58
9,

49
2 

£
60

4,
15

0
A

re
n

a 
2 

£
49

9,
96

2 
£

51
3,

11
7 

£
52

4,
79

8 
£

53
6,

92
6 

£
54

9,
49

8
A

re
n

a 
3 

£
37

3,
01

2 
£

38
3,

62
9 

£
39

2,
66

4 
£

40
2,

08
1 

£
41

1,
89

0
A

re
n

a 
4 

£
50

8,
72

1 
£

52
1,

74
0 

£
53

3,
76

4 
£

54
6,

38
4 

£
55

9,
51

2
S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
1

,9
2

7
,8

6
3

 
£

1
,9

8
0

,4
3

9
 

£
2

,0
2

6
,6

5
4

 
£

2
,0

7
4

,8
8

4
 

£
2

,1
2

5
,0

5
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

s
ts

 
£

3
,1

8
3

,0
2

0
 

£
3

,2
6

0
,6

9
9

 
£

3
,3

3
2

,5
1

9
 

£
3

,4
0

6
,8

6
6

 
£

3
,4

8
3

,6
7

3

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

u
r

p
lu

s
 

£
1

8
5

,3
6

1
 

£
2

5
0

,3
3

6
 

£
3

1
3

,6
1

3
 

£
3

7
2

,9
3

8
 

£
4

4
0

,0
0

8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

N
N

U
A

L
 U

S
E

R
 

T
H

R
O

U
G

H
P

U
T

 
Ye

ar
 1

 
Ye

ar
 2

 
Ye

ar
 3

 
Ye

ar
 4

 
Ye

ar
 5

 
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

V
is

it
s 

A
re

n
a 

1 
19

2,
69

0 
19

6,
57

0 
19

9,
53

7 
20

1,
73

6 
20

5,
03

2
A

re
n

a 
2 

12
1,

96
2 

12
4,

34
0 

12
6,

17
7 

12
7,

43
9 

12
9,

30
1

A
re

n
a 

3 
10

6,
33

2 
10

8,
45

9 
11

0,
62

8 
11

2,
28

7 
11

3,
41

0
A

re
n

a 
4 

50
5,

73
2 

53
0,

53
3 

54
9,

16
5 

56
8,

58
8 

58
0,

10
5

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
9

2
6

,7
1

6
 

9
5

9
,9

0
2

 
9

8
5

,5
0

7
 

1
,0

1
0

,0
4

9
 

1
,0

2
7

,8
4

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l 

vi
si

ts
 a

 w
e

e
k

 
1

8
,5

3
4

 
1

9
,1

9
8

 
1

9
,7

1
0

 
2

0
,2

0
1

 
2

0
,5

5
7

 
To

ta
l 

In
co

m
e

 p
e

r 
vi

si
t 

£
3

.6
3

 
£

3
.6

6
 

£
3

.7
0

 
£

3
.7

4
 

£
3

.8
2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
oy

al
ti

es
 a

re
 p

ai
d

 b
y 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

 o
f 

th
e 

co
n

ce
ss

io
n

s 
 

 
10

%
 

O
n

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
or

g
an

is
at

io
n

 w
ill

 m
an

ag
e 

al
l e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

sp
or

ts
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
 o

f 
u

se
 r

efl
ec

t 
a 

b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

ca
su

al
 a

n
d

 s
ch

oo
l u

se
, c

lu
b

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d
 N

G
B

 u
sa

g
e

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 fi

tn
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

co
m

b
in

at
io

n
 o

f 
p

ay
 a

n
d

 p
la

y 
an

d
 m

em
b

er
sh

ip
 u

sa
g

e
P

ri
ci

n
g

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 r
efl

ec
ts

 L
ew

is
h

am
 L

oc
al

 A
u

th
or

it
y 

an
d

 L
on

d
on

 m
ar

ke
t 

n
or

m
s

In
co

m
e,

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

p
u

t 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 a

n
d

 is
 in

 li
n

e 
w

it
h

 in
d

u
st

ry
 

n
or

m
s 

an
d

 lo
ca

l e
vi

d
en

ce

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 T

O
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
 S

P
O

R
T

 H
A

L
L

S
  

 
£

4
2

,4
6

2
,9

9
8

 

O
U

T
L

IN
E

 C
O

S
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 

18
,3

65
 s

q
 m

 
b

u
ild

 c
os

t 
£

33
,2

45
,6

23
 

 
 

 
la

n
d

 d
on

at
io

n
 

£
9,

21
7,

37
5 

 
 

£
 p

er
 s

q
m

 
%

D
em

ol
it

io
n

 
 

27
 

1.
3%

 
£

42
5,

00
0

S
u

b
st

ru
ct

u
re

 
 

19
4 

9.
1%

 
£

3,
02

4,
30

0

S
u

p
er

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

e 
 

17
2 

 
U

p
p

er
 fl

oo
rs

 
 

91
 

 
R

oo
fs

 
 

42
 

 
S

ta
ir

s 
 

16
 

 
E

xt
er

n
al

 w
al

ls
/w

in
d

ow
s/

d
oo

rs
 

 
25

8 
 

In
te

rn
al

 w
al

ls
 a

n
d

 p
ar

ti
ti

on
s 

 
10

7 
 

In
te

rn
al

 d
oo

rs
 

 
16

 
33

.0
%

 
£

10
,9

79
,5

34

In
te

rn
al

 F
in

is
h

es
 

 
 

 
W

al
l fi

n
is

h
es

 
 

49
 

 
F

lo
or

 fi
n

is
h

es
 

 
12

7 
 

C
ei

lin
g

 fi
n

is
h

es
 

 
45

 
10

.4
%

 
£

3,
44

9,
80

9
F

it
ti

n
g

s 
&

 F
u

rn
is

h
in

g
s 

 
12

7 
6.

0%
 

£
1,

98
0,

50
0

M
&

E
 In

st
al

la
ti

on
 

 
 

 
S

an
it

ar
y 

&
 p

lu
m

b
in

g
 in

st
al

la
ti

on
s 

70
 

 
M

ec
h

an
ic

al
 in

st
al

la
ti

on
s 

 
17

4 
 

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
11

0 
 

G
as

 in
st

al
la

ti
on

 
 

5 
 

L
if

t 
in

st
al

la
ti

on
s 

 
22

 
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

in
st

al
la

ti
on

s 
 

10
 

 
C

om
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 in
st

al
la

ti
on

s 
 

57
 

 
S

p
ec

ia
lis

t 
in

st
al

la
ti

on
s 

 
65

 
 

B
u

ild
er

s 
w

or
k 

in
 c

on
n

ec
ti

on
 

 
26

 
25

.3
%

 
£

8,
40

6,
43

2

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

 W
O

R
K

S
 

 
 

 
S

it
e 

w
or

ks
 

 
12

 
 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
 

15
 

 
E

xt
er

n
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

14
 

1.
9%

 
£

64
3,

66
2

To
ta

l b
u

ild
 &

 s
it

e 
w

or
ks

 
 

 
 

£
28

,9
09

,2
38

P
re

lim
in

ar
ie

s 
@

 1
5%

 
 

 
13

.0
%

 
£

4,
33

6,
38

6
To

ta
l c

u
rr

en
t 

d
ay

 fi
xe

d
 p

ri
ce

 (A
u

g
u

st
 2

01
3)

 
1,

81
1 

10
0%

 
£

33
,2

45
,6

23

N
O

T
E

S
 

 
 

 
T

h
e 

b
u

ild
in

g
 c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 c
al

cu
la

te
d

 u
ti

lis
in

g
 in

d
u

st
ry

 n
or

m
 p

ri
ci

n
g

 s
ch

ed
u

le
s.

T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

’s
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
p

o
rt

 H
a

ll
s 

is
 k

e
y 

to
 

u
n

lo
ck

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 o

th
e

r 
b

o
d

ie
s 

w
h

o
 h

a
ve

 e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

   T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

 
h

a
ve

 e
x

p
re

ss
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
  

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

.

   T
h

e
 G

L
A

 a
n

d
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
u

lt
u

re
, 

M
e

d
ia

 a
n

d
 S

p
o

rt
 h

a
ve

 
b

o
th

 e
x

p
re

ss
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

 
th

e
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

   T
h

e
 E

n
g

li
sh

 T
a

b
le

 T
e

n
n

is
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

ve
 p

le
d

g
e

d
 a

 
ca

p
it

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

. 

O
n

ce
 £

2
0

m
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
le

d
g

e
d

, 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 S
C

S
F

 w
il

l 
g

o
 

a
h

e
a

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 s
p

o
rt

 a
rc

h
it

e
ct

s 
fo

r 
d

e
ta

il
e

d
 d

e
si

g
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
 

a
 d

e
ta

il
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
.

£
10

M
V
A
LU

E 
O
F 
L
A
N
D
 D
O
N
A
TE

D
 

B
Y 
TH

E 
D
EV

EL
O
P
ER

 R
EN

EW
A
L.

£
2M

P
LE

D
G
ED

 B
Y 
S
P
O
R
T 

EN
G
L
A
N
D
 A
S
 P
A
R
T 
O
F 
TH

EI
R
 

S
TR

A
TE

G
IC
 F
A
C
IL
IT
IE
S
 F
U
N
D
.

C
om

m
it

m
en

ts
 s

o 
fa

r:

2
5

2
4Page 318



M
IL

ES
TO

N
ES

M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

2
 

O
u

tl
in

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

ra
n

te
d

 –
  

se
ct

io
n

 1
06

 a
g

re
em

en
t 

si
g

n
ed

JU
N

E
 2

0
1

3
L

ew
is

h
am

 T
h

u
n

d
er

 m
ov

e 
in

to
  

in
te

ri
m

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
on

 s
it

e

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

3
L

B
L

 M
ay

or
 a

n
d

 C
ab

in
et

 a
p

p
ro

ve
 

C
ou

n
ci

l l
an

d
 s

al
e 

to
 R

en
ew

al

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
3

 
F

u
si

on
 T

ab
le

 T
en

n
is

 m
ov

e 
in

to
  

in
te

ri
m

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
on

 s
it

e

2
N

D
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

1
4

 
£

20
m

 p
le

d
g

ed
 a

n
d

 a
rc

h
it

ec
ts

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 F
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

 c
on

ti
n

u
es

4
T

H
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

1
4

 
D

et
ai

le
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n

2
N

D
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

1
5

 
D

et
ai

le
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 g
ra

n
te

d

4
T

H
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

1
5

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 c

om
m

en
ce

s

4
T

H
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

1
7

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 c

om
p

le
te

d

4
th

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 2

0
1

7
S

u
rr

ey
 C

an
al

 S
p

or
t 

H
al

ls
 o

p
en

“ S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

is
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

st
 

d
e

p
ri

ve
d

 a
re

a
s 

in
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
a

n
d

 u
rg

e
n

tl
y 

re
q

u
ir

e
s 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. W
it

h
 it

s 
p

ro
xi

m
it

y 
p

lu
s 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 l
in

k
s 

to
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
, a

n
d

 
it

s 
yo

u
n

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
, t

h
e

 a
re

a
 h

a
s 

g
re

a
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
n

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
ca

ta
ly

st
 

in
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
.”

 
 B

re
n

d
a

n
 J

a
rv

is
, H

e
a

d
 o

f 
R

e
a

l 
E

st
a

te
, 

E
u

ro
p

e
, t

h
e

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 a

n
d

 A
fr

ic
a

, 
B

a
rc

la
ys

 &
 S

C
S

F
 T

ru
st

e
e

“ B
y 

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 S
u

rr
e

y 
C

a
n

a
l 

S
p

o
rt

s 
co

m
p

le
x 

w
it

h
 a

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 w

il
l 

b
e

 
se

tt
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
p

re
ce

d
e

n
te

d
 e

xa
m

p
le

 in
 

d
e

li
ve

ri
n

g
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

 t
h

e
 a

rt
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
a

n
d

 c
lu

b
 u

se
.”

 
 S

te
ve

 N
o

rr
is

, C
h

a
ir

m
a

n
, S

u
rr

e
y 

C
a

n
a

l 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n

2
6Page 319



SURREY CANAL 
SPORTS FOUNDATION

SPORT HALLS

Page 320



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\4\8\ai00008842\$2ufb1gom.doc 

 

MAYOR & CABINET 
 

Report Title 
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No.  

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee) 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: June 25 2014 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)(England) 
Regulations 2012 and under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs [3, 4 and 5] of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act,  and the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
 
 
17. Agreement to bid for funding from the Heat Network Development Unit 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 321



Agenda Item 17

Page 322

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 323

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 329

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 330

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 Declaration of interests
	2 Minutes
	Minutes April 9
	Minutes April 11

	3 Outstanding Scrutiny Matters
	4 Financial Outturn 2013-14
	Financial Outturn 2013-14

	5 Sir Francis Drake Primary School
	Sir Francis Drake Primary School
	Sir Francis Drake Addendum
	Appendices 1 to 7 Sir Francis Drake PS
	Sir Francis Drake PS Updated Appendix Five
	Appendix 8 Sir Francis Drake Primary School

	6 Small Scale Traffic Schemes 2014-5
	Small Scale Traffic Schemes 2014-5
	Small Scale Traffic Schemes Appendix A Amended on June 25

	7 Adoption Statement of Purpose update
	Adoption Statement of Purpose update
	Appendix 1 Adoption Statement of Purpose 2014-15
	Appendix 2 Young Children Guide
	Appendix 3 Adoption

	8 Trinity Primary School
	Trinity Primary School
	Trinity Primary Site Location Plan

	9 Somerville and Kenton Court Extra Care Scheme
	Somerville and Kenton Extra Care Scheme

	10 Response to Healthier Communities Select Committee on Public Health Expenditure
	Response to Healthier Communities Select Committee on Public Health Expenditure

	11 Management Report
	Management Report
	April 2014 Management Report

	12 Appointment of LA Governors
	Appointment of LA Governors

	13 Instrument of Government Brindishe Federation
	Instrument of Government Brindishe Federation

	14 Instrument of Government St Mary's School
	Instrument of Government St Mary's School

	15 Surrey Canal Sports Foundation
	Surrey Canal Sports Foundation
	Appendix 1 Surrey Canal Sports Foundation

	16 Exclusion of Press and Public
	17 Application for funding from Department of Energy and Climate Change
	Application for funding from Department of Energy and Climate Change
	Annex A - Proposed Area for Feasibility Study of Heat Network
	Annex B - Heat Networks Delivery


